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OUR PURPOSE

SUSTAINABILITY
THROUGH
TECHNOLOGY

DELIVERING MORE EFFICIENT
BREEDING ANIMALS TO FARMERS, TO NOURISH
THE WORLD MORE SUSTAINABLY

LEADING INTERNATIONAL MARKET POSITIONS
INVESTMENT CASE We supply elite breeding animals, semen and
embryos to over 50,000 customers in over 80
. _ : countries, including the majerity of the world's
Genus is a world qudlng Top 100 pig and dairy farmers. Our internaticnal

animal genetic improvement breadth and mult-species presence reduces

; ; our reliance on individual markets or segments
Company'_ with Jeodershrp In contrast, many of our competitors are regional
positions in pork, beef single-specias cooperatives.

and dairy genetics.
READ MORE ON

.14



FOCUSED, MULTI-SPECIES,

TECHNOLOGY-DRIVEN BUSINESS MODEL

Genus is exclusively focused on picneering animal
genetic improvement, to increase the efficiency and
sustainability of animal protein production. We employ
advanced genomics to selectively breed elite animals
in our proprietary herds. We are also picneering

the opplication of proprietory sexing technology,
advanced reproductive techniques and gene editing in
our product development programmes. Our technology
and know-how can be applied across multiple species,
leveraging our strength and R&D investment.

READ MORE ON

0.04

POSITIVE LONG-TERM

MARKET FUNDAMENTALS

Cur business benefits from positive long-term
trends, including growing global demand for
milk and meat, and the need 16 produce foad
more sustainably, to meet changing consumer
expectations. Genus's genetic improvemeant
technologies help farmers 1o da more with
less, reducing their resource Utllisation and
emissions, and maximising their profits.

READ MORE ON

.14

PEOQPLE AND RELATIONSHIPS

Our ability to serve cur customers is
underpinned by over 3,400 emplayees,
including over 100 PhDs. We also have
close relationships with teading research
institutions and strategic partners, giving
us cccess to cutting-edge technologies
that can benefit our customers and
further extend our leadership positions.

READ MORE ON

0.34

SCALE AND FINANCIAL STRENGTH
Genus is the largest, and the only listed,
animal genetics company glebally
operating in pork, beef and dairy. We
are profitable, cash-generative and
growing, with a strong financial position
and access to strategic capital, meaning
we can invest in transformational
technologies to further our genetic lead.

READ MORE ON

0.30
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2021 HIGHLIGHTS

Adjusted results are the Alternative Performance
Measures '/APMs') Lsed by t~e Board to meritor
undgerlymyg performance ot a Group and ooeretrg
sagTert 'evel wnonGra cppied censistant y
trrougrout These APMs shouc pe considered

r addton to, ana not as o sLost tute for or

as supeor to statutory veasures For mare
rforration an APMs, see t~e APM Giassary
Constant currercy cercentage roveTants are
cacu'otea oy restating the results for tre year

e~dea 30 June 2021 ot the average exchange -ates

app ea to adjusted ope-ating profit far the year
e~des 30 Jure 2020

Tre Group "as crongea ts account ng Bo Ky
‘e atec to tre capitar saton of cerran softrare
assets foiow rg the IFRIC Inte-pretat gr

ComT tteg's agenda decs o~ publisned n for
221 Trg cnomge = accourting paicy ealoan
Ingrense n operarng expenses of F27m - tre
cLrart year arg £S 2. for FY20 A Fv20 resy 13
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Nare 2 Bas s of Frenaraton Profit pefore tax
orcue g SaoS mooet § oresentec ory tis
year 19 cemorstrare tre mMmoget of aur Lrange
‘N ocCcouNteg Bo Cy, ard w ! mof be presented

~ luture penods

Tea pr-rory mtensity "ot o 3 0 Teasure af tre
Group's Scope 1and 2 2 Tissions oer tenne of
amirar we gnt
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GROUP REVENUE

£5743m

ADJUSTED BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE"?

1009

REVENUE GROWTH QF 4% IN ACTUAL CURRENCY
AND 10% IN CONSTANT CURRENCY?

> Strong revenue growth of 11%2 in PIC, our porcine genetics business; royalty

ravenue up N%’ with royalty revenue in Ching more than doubling and
good growth in Latin Amerca and Europe

> Continued royalty growth and high breeding stock sales in China
contributed to PIC volume growth of T1% {up 5% excluding Chinal

> Excellent revenue growth of 13%’in ABS, our bovine genetics business,
particularly in Brazil, Russia, India and Ching; continued success with
Sexcel’ (sexed genetics) and NuEra* [beef genetics)

> Record ABS volume growth af 15%, with sexed volumes up 29% and beef
up 22%

VERY STRONG ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX {'PBT'P GROWTH,

UP 38% IN CONSTANT CURRENCY? STATUTORY PBT AT £55.8M

> Adjusted operating profit including joint ventures and excluding gene
editing cost up 37%?

> Double-digit adjusted operating profit growth’ in PIC (up 16%?) and ABS
up 21%%), R&D nvestrrent increased 2%

> Statutory PBT increased 21% to £55.8m, adversely impacted by o reduced
net IAS 41 non-cash fair value biological asset valuation, offset by lower
exceptional costs

> Foreign currency translation adverse impact on adjusted PBT of £6 3m,
primarily reflecting weakness in LATAM currencies



STATUTORY PROFIT BEFORE TAX3

£55.8m

FREE CASH FLOW?

£37.5m

STRONG CASH GENERATION, EARNINGS MOMENTUM
AND INCREASED DIVIDEND

> Strong free cash flow' of £37.5m, net debt' of £105.6m, net debt

to EBITDA ratio remains strong at 0.9x
> Adjusted earings per shara' up 40% in constant currency?
> Recommended final dividend up 10% with 3.2x adjusted
earnings cover

SIGNIFICANT STRATEGIC PROGRESS

> Continued to win new customers globally, due to our
leading porcine and bovine genetics; genetic improvements
contributing to the reduction in use of energy, water and land
inanimal pratein production

> PIC China continues to win customers; five new key accounts
in FY21; serving over one third of top Chinese producers

> Continued shift in ABS's product mix; 23% of global sales
volume comprising sexed genetics and embryos reflecting
Sexcel's’ continued success and 29% beef genetics reflecting
the growing use of Nukra beef genetics in dairy herds

> Acquisition in Spain of Sergol {total consideration £7.7m)
expands supply chain and sireline market share in the world's
fourth largest pig market

STRATEGIC REPORT 03

ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX™?

£8L|-.8m

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

52.0p

> GenusOne entarprise system succassful roll-out continues,
with North America completed and Spain now live

> Significant capex investment underway, to support expansion
of best -in -industry facilities for PIC and ABS

> Good pragress with carbon reduction with the primary
intensity ratic® reduced by 11% cumulative compared with
FY12 baseline

BUILDING R&D CAPABILITIES AND OPPORTUNITY PIPELINE

> Good progress with the Porcine Reproductive Respiratory
Syndrome virus ['PRRSV') resistance development programme,
with two successful disease trials and a defined path to
regulatory approval

> Next generation of intelliGen, Gen2 ((Gen2’} sexing technology
launched; more compact, effective and efficient than the
previous generation technology

> Rapidly built world class reproductive biology team
and secured strategic partnerships with teading
external collaborators

> Strategic minority investrment in Xelect (E2.4m), o genetic
improvement consultancy in the fast-growing aqua
genetics market
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GENUS AT A GLANCE

INNOVATIO

PRODUCING MORE SUSTAINABLE
BREEDING ANIMALS FOR FARMERS

WHAT WE DO
Genus is ¢ world-leading
animal genetics company.

We partner with farmers to nourish the
world more efficiently and sustainably.

We da this by breeding better pigs and
cattle, so farmers can produce high-
quality meat and milk more efficiently and
sustainably. We accurately select animals
with desirable characteristics and use
them to breed subseguent generations.

Examples of desirable charactaristics

nclude feed efficiency, disease resistance,

growth rate, protein and fat content,
and fertility.

HOWWEDOIT

We analyse animals’ DNA
and look for markers that
we know are linked to
desirable characteristics,
which help farmers to
raise hegalthier and more
sustaingable animails.

We then select anirmals with the strongest
genetic profile from our proprietary and
partner herds and breed them to produce
even better offspring, in @ continuous
cycle. We distribute these genetically
superior animals t© our customers in

1he form of breeding animals, semen

or embryos.

We also own technology that enables us
to screen and process semen for desirable
traits, such as producing femaile offspring
for the dairy market, and license-in
technology to make precise gene edits

to animals’ DNA, which we are employing
in our R&D pragrarmmes, for example

to produce pigs which are resistant to
fatal disease.

Qur focus 15 on prograssive farmars, who
are pest placed to realise the benefits of
superior genetics and technologies.

INVESTING TO STRENGTHEN OUR POSITION’

T Rastatec fo ow rg ar Aon 2021IFRIC Intarpratation Commities 0ZEN00 O8C:S 0N Ehat rasy 1800 brev oLs ¥

zan ta sed softwore Dssets be g expersad
2 Ircuces ~etinvestTents r oo ogical ossets
3 Inciuges Aingrce egse nay™ents



MARKET SHARE'?

REVENUE®

ADJUSTED
OPERATING
PROFIT>*

CUSTOMERS
GLOBALLY

1 Source Government
agencies, Eu-ostat,
pork organisations,
Genus estimates.
Market shares
represent the
estirated share of
pg croduction in
top pig croduction
markets

2 Source Government
agencies, USDA,
OECD, genetics
and agr cultura
orgonisations, Genus
estimates Market
sneires represent
the estimatea share
of combned dairy
ard peef volumes in
ABS's Top 29 target
markets for dary and
Top 8 target markets
for neef

3  Reverue and
Adjusted Operating
Profit Including Joint
Ventures exclude
R&D reverues and
cOsis

4 For rroreinformation
on APMs ses APM
Glossary.
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SERVING PORK, DAIRY AND BEEF FARMERS GLOBALLY
Genus's leading porcine and bovine animai breeding divisions, PIC and ABS,
deliver genetically elite breeding animals to thousands of farmers globally.

1PIC 16% 5 Competitor 4 2%
2 Competitor 1 7% & Competitor 5 2%
3 Competitor 2 5% 7 Internal programmes 9%
4 Competitor 3 3% 80Other 56%

- 515.6m
2 000+

PIC, our global porcine genetics business, sells
genetically superior breeding pigs and semen to
farmers, so they can breed commercial pigs with
desirable characteristics for pork production.
We also provide technical services and advice
to farmers, to maximise the performance of our
breeding animals in their farms.

PIC owns over ten elite pure-bred pig lines, housed

in strategically located biosecure facilities. These
pigs are bred out into much larger breeding

herds in over 500 predominantly sub-contracted
‘multiplication’ farms around the world, many of which
are operated by customers themselves. PIC boars
are alse housed in over 400 boar studs globally,
where semen is collected for distribbution to
customears and multiplication herds.

PIC genetics are sold under the PIC brand through
direct sales channels and strategic partners.

PIC divisional review can
be read onpl8 - p.21

1 Competitor 1 N% 5 Competitor & 4%
2 ABS 9% o6 Competitor 5 3%
3 Competitor 2 9% 7 Other 60%
4 Competitor 3 4%

000+

ABS, cur global bovine genetics business, sells dairy
and beef bull semen and embryos from our supernor
cattle, which are sold to farmers to breed their cows
through artificial insemination. The resulting calves
will then exhibit desirable characteristics for milk
and beef production. ABS's highest-guality semen

is often sold in sexed form, which greatly increases
the probability of ¢ fernale calf. ABS also provides
technical services to farmers, to maximise the
performance of their animals bred with cur genetics.

ABS breeds genetically elite bulls in the US, Europe,
Latin America and India. The best bulls come to

one of ABS's six stud locations, where their semeniis
collected for distribution as a frozen ‘straw’ of semen
or used to create embryos for sale,

ABS genetics are sold through direct sales channels
and strategic partners under the ABS brand. (n the
UK and France, they are sold under long-astablished
Genus and Bovec brands.

ABS divisional review can
beread onp.22 - p.25
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

PROGRESS

POSITIONING THE GROUP
FOR FURTHER SUCCESS

I am delighted to be
reporting to you for the first

The Group time as Chairman of Genus.

delivered a

Strong and I want to thank my predecessor, Bob
Lawson, for his outstanding stewardship

bQIQ nced of the business during his ten years as

. Chairman and for handing over a business
performo nce in in excellent shape. Bob was a strong
. advocate for investment in science and

2021, Wlth bOth the application of that science to our
waorld. The success Genus is enjoying

P'C d nd ABS today is the result of that accumuiated

irivestment over many years.

contributing
to growth.

PERFORMANCE AND DIVIDEND
The Group delivered a strong and
balanced performance in 2021, with
both PIC and ABS contributing to growth,
Almost all regions were ahead of the
IAIN FERGUSON previous year and trading was particularly
goed in Ching, Brazi, Russia and India.
The Group's adjusted profit before tax was
E84.8m, up by 38% In constant currency
and 29% in actual currency. Statutoery PBT
was £55.8m (2020 restated: £46.3m).

We recognise the importance of
balancing our investrment for the future
with ensuring an attractive return for
shareholders. The Board i1s therefore
recammending a final dividend of 2170
per share, which will give a totai dividend
of 32.0p, Including the interim dividend
of 10.3p per share paid in April 2021 This
will result in growth in the total dividend
of 10%, The final dividend will be paid on
10 December 2021, to shareholders

on the register at the close of business
on 19 Novermper 2021,



STRATEGY

Genus is a long-cycle business and

one of the Board's key jobs is 10 keep
looking to the future. We continually
scan the horizon, to ensure we identify
developments in our industry and related
sectors, understand our competition and
hove access o important new science
and technology. This activity will underpin
the Group’s continuing success over the
next five to ten years.

The Board held its annual strategy session
during the year, which confirmed to us
that the strategy remains appropriate.
Qur pricrities are also unchanged. The
Group will continue to invest, to protect
and build on the strong positions of its
bovine and porcine businesses, and we
will seek opportunities to apply Genus's
sclence base 1o other species where

they can add value for sharehoiders.

Genus is purpose-led, with our vision
clearly setting out our goal of using
innavation to nourish the world. Our
strategy is aligned to this purpose, as is
our focus on sustainability, which | see
as intrinsic to our licence to operate.
Delivering improved cutcomes for farmers,
while reducing the cmount of feed and
other natural resources required, is a
core part of our breeding programmes.
We are also committed to improving
our own environmental footprint.

BOARD

I joined the Booard as a Non-Executive
Director on 1 July 2020 and succeeded
Bob Lawson as Chairmon on his
retirement, following the AGM on

25 Nevember 2020, There were two
other changes to the Board duning the
year, with Professor Jason Chin being
appomnted as a Non-Executive Director
from 1 April 2021 and Professor lan Charles
retiring from the Board on 31 May 2021

Jason has deep scientific expertise, as
Heod of the Centre for Chemical and
Synthetic Biology at the Medical Research
Council Laboratary for Molecular Biology,
in Cambridge. He is therefere ideally
positioned to act as scientific adviser to
the Genus Portfolio Steering Committee,
a role lan Charles filled with distinction

for more than three years, We thank lan
for his significant contribution during his
time on the Board, which included helping
us to understand the bicme and the
importance of reproductive biolegy.

PEOPLE

Genus employs over 3,400 talented and
dedicated people around the world.,

They have shown real commitment

and flexibility this year, helping us to
successfully deliver for cur customers and
keep our research programmaes on track
during CCVID-19. The pandemic has really
underscored the strength of the working
relationships across the Group, as well

as our people’s obility to take on new
chailenges and adapt to new technology.
While the situation in countries such as the
UK and US has eased in recent months,
we have significont businesses in India,
Brazil and other countries that have
continued to be hard hit. Unfortunately,
we have lost two colleagues to COVID-19
and our thoughts are with ther families
and friends.

LOOKING FORWARD

Genus has the platform and resources
to invest for the future and maintain

our virtuous cycle. We will continue to
select the best technology, science and
partners, and work to deliver continuous
genetic improvement. By taking this to
our customers and sharing in the value
we cregte for them, we will continue to
reinvest in R&D, our pecple and world-
class facilities to further grow cur market
leadership. This consistent Investment is
the driver of our long-term success and
our commitment to it gives us confidence
in Genus's future.

lain Ferguson CBE
Chairman of the Board
8 September 2021

STRATEGIC REPORT
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

SUCCES

SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS

The Group's financial
performance was
excellent, with

Genus achieving

its fastest profit
before tax growth
rate in over ten years.

STEPHEN WILSON

This was a very successful
year for Genus.

We delivered a very strong operational
and financial performance, made further
significant progress with our strategy and
continued to drive our innovaten agenda,
as we strive to fulfil our vision of 'Pionaering
animal genatic improvemernt to help
nourish the world’, Advancing sustainability
has alwoys been fundamental 1o our
business and vision, and we have made
good progress with our ESG agenda in

the year.

GROUP PERFORMANCE

The Group's financial performance was
excellent, with Genus achieving its fastest
profit before tax growth rate in over ten
years despite the currency headwinds.
Revenue rose by 4% and adjusted profit
before tax of £84.8m was 29% higher, or
38% in constant currency.

Both businesses achieved growth in their
key metrcs. In constant currency, Genus
PIC's revenue increased by 11% and the
strategically important porcine royalty
revenue was 11% higher, This contributed
to adjusted operating profit including joint
ventures being 16% up in constant currency.
All regions contributed to this growth, with
China a key driver as producers restocked
as @ result of African Swine Fever. Russia
and Brazil were also particularly strong.

Genus ABS increased revenue and
adjusted operating profit by 13% and 21%
respectively in constant currency. This was
underpinned by a 15% increase in volumes.
Sexed volumes grew by 29%, reflecting the
ongoing success of Sexcel, and global
beef volumas were 22% higher, supported
by increased use of NuEra beef genetics
in dairy herds. Again, growth was broadly
spread geographically, with Brazil, Russia,
India and China all performing well.

We continued ta invest significantly in R&D,
S0 we can bring the benefits of the latest
and best science to our customers, Net
R&D expenditure was £62.5m in the year
up 2% in constant currency), with primary
reseqrch expenditure in addition to gene
editing increasing 42% in constant currency
to £13.3m. We have further strengthened
our differentiated and proprietary offerings
and invested in key strategic initiatives,
including gene editing, the naxt generation
of ntelliGen technology ((Gen2t, and
reproductive biology, as well as further
developing our R&D pipeline.

STRATEGIC PROGRESS

Our PRRSv-resistance programme s making
pleasing progress, with the successfu!
completion of two rounds of disease tnals
of our gene-edited pigs. We have a defined
paoth 1o regulatory approval, including the
timeline to complete our Faod and Drug
Administration 'FDAY submissions and the
stens we need to take to achieve this



OUR VALUES

CUSTOMER CENTRIC

We are one team, dedicated to helping
customers thrive. We anticipate

their needs and help them seize
oppertunities, acting as partners to
improve quality, efficiency and cutput.
If we're not adding value for our
customers, we stop and think again,

Read more on p.? — p 33

RESULTS DRIVEN

We are proactive, determined to be
the best we can be and to exceed
expeactations. We redefine standards
for ourselves, our customers and

our industry. Every one of us takes
pride in delivering the highest level
of perfarmance. If something can be
improved, we fiind a simpler, hetter
way to do it

Read more onp.2 — p.33

PIONEERING

We are an innovative, forward-thinking
company. We have the courage and
confidence to explore new ideas, and
the energy and enthusiasm to deliver
them. We are creative, tenacicus and
resourceful in every area of our work.

Read more ocnp.? — p.33

PEQPLE FOCUSED

We are a business rooted in science
but built around our people. We inspire,
challenge and support everyone to
perform, develop and grow. We treat
others with respect and we invite views
and feedback to help us improve.

Read more on p.34 - p.37

RESPONSIBLE

We are ethical to our core. We feel

a deep sense of responsibility to

our customers, colleagues, animals,
communities and shareholders. We

are honest, relioble and trustworthy. We
rmean what we say and do what we say.

Read more on p.38 — p.4d

tn China, we are collaborating successfully
with our partner BCA, whichis engaging
positively with the Chinese regulatory
authorities.

We continue to drive innovation across
the Group, including delivering further
improvements to our IntelliGen technology.
We have now launched Gen?2 of IntelliGen,
which is more compact, effective and
efficient than the previous generation
technology. It has been introduced in our
Dekorra, Wisconsin facility and we plan to
introduce it shertly 1o our new facility at
Leeds, Wisconsin, which storted 1o receive
bulls in the summer of 2021, In addition,

we hove launched a major new R&D
crogramme in reproductive biclogy and
have established o new world-class

team in this area.

The implementation of GenusOne,

our new enterprse system, is continuing.
We completed the roll out in North
America and in Spain during the year
and are now working on the roll out

t¢ the remainder of the Group over

the next two years. GenusCne will be

a key enabler of leveraging our scaie

at a Group level and giving greater
visibility of business data. As we roll cut
GenusOne, we are also introducing

a new target operating model to
standardise our procurement, and financial
processes and reporting worldwide.

Investing in our digital capabilities in our
interactions with customers is ancther
important theme. Our ABS business in

Latin America has had great success
through digital sales during COVID-19 and
we will introduce more digital customer
engagemeant across ABS, to enhance

the customer experience. To support our
scientific programmes, we are aiso investing
in data science, 1o help us extract new
insights from the rapidly expanding sources
of data being generated by farmers.

Spain is the world's fourth largest porcing
market and we have expanded our supply
chain and market share in the male side
of the business, through the acquisition

of Sergal, a leading Spanish boar stud
operator. In addition, we have taken o
rminority stake in Xelect, an agua genetic
improverment consultancy based in
Scotland. We are pleased to have started
a partnership in this space and look
forward to the opportunities this may open
up to gain a presence in the fast-growing
aqua genetics market.

Finally, we are investing at a record pace

in new facilities to lay the foundations for
continuing future growth, Including new Sull
housing and IntelliGen production facilities,
& major new porcine nucleus in Canada,

a boar stud in Russia and new porcine
capacity in China.
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ADVANCING ESG

Sustainability in particular, is at the core

of our business. The ongoing genetic
improvement we deliver helps farmers

to produce more protein with fewer
resources and a lower carbon footprnt,
whether that is through producing pigs
which convert feed more efficiently into
growth or enhancing the productivity of
dairy cows. We have commitments to
reduce our own carbon footprint oy 25% by
2030 and have o readmap and planned
investments to achieve this. In the year our
carbon emissions reduced by 6.8% and our
primary intensity ratio reduced by 0.2%,
with a cumutative primary intensity ratio
reduction against the 2019 base year of
11.3% achieved towards the 2030 goal.

PEOPLE

To cchieve cur vision of ploneering
animal genetic improvermnent to helg
nourish the world, we need to ottract,
develop and retain cutstanding pecple.
The Genus Executive Leadership Team
was unchanged during the year and

wa continued te add to our strength in
depth, hiring talented leaders tc head up
data science, reproductive biology and
genomics. Our AWAKE programme, which
aims to empower women to succeed in
Genus, is gathering momenturm, reflecting
the importance we place on diversity. We
have rolled out Improvements in leaming
and development, 1o help our pecple
thrive. Employee engagement measured
through surveys remains high.

While the Group has demonstrated its
resilience in the face of COVID-19, we know
that the pandemic has placed a significant
strain on our people. We have consistently
focused on protecting their health and
well-being, and they in turn have risen to
the chailenge of serving our customers
and keeping the business moving ahead
As a gesture of gratitude, | was pleased to
anneounce a special additional payment
of £500 to all employees around the world
to thank them for their commitment and
contribution this year.

OUTLOOK

Locking ahead, the outlook for the Group
remains positive and we are confident in
our strategy and the many opportunities
for Genus. Group performance in FY20 and
FY21 was very streng, with good growth
acioss both ABS and PIC, led in particular
py strong growth in PIC China, where the
opportunity remains large. However, recent
volatility in the Chinese porcine market is
expected to continue for some manths,
creating a short-term headwind in FY22,
primarily for PIC China. As @ result of this
headwind, and despite expected strong
performance in the other areas of the
business, we expect Genus's growth to be
lower than our medium-term goal in the
current year before increasing again in FY23.

Stephen Wilson
Chief Executive
8 September 2021
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BUSINESS MODEL

DELIVERING

PRODUCING AND DELIVERING MORE
SUSTAINABLE ANIMALS TO FARMERS

PRODUCE GENETICALLY

SUPERIOR BREEDING ANIMALS

QUR STRENGTHS
AND RESOQURCES

GLOBAL POSITION

Genus is uniguely placed as a global
player, with leading brands and market
pasitions, which we strengthen through
acguisitions and partnerships

ELITE ANIMALS

We own elite porcine and bovine hards,
which produce animal protein more
efficiently and have trarts farmers valug

PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY

We harness leading genetic and breeding
technologies, which we develep in-house
and through strategic partnerships

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

We serve over 50,000 customers globally,
including most of both the Top 100 pig
producers and dairies globally

EXPERT PEQPLE

We have aver 3,400 employees, including
over 100 PhD qualified employees, and
relationships with leading research
institutions

GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAIN

We have proguction facilities in key
locations worldwide, coupled with sales
forces and agents in over 80 countries

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND SCALE

Our cash generative ousinesses and scale
allow us to fund strategic investments and
delivar improved returns

SHARED PROPRIETARY
TECHNOLOGY PLATFORM

GENOME SCIENCE AND BIQINFORMATICS
We understand the links between DNA
and animals’ observable characteristics,
and how we can influence them

GENOMIC SELECTICN

We breed successive generations of
animals by using DNA analysis to select
supenor parents in our breeding herds

BIOSYSTEMS ENGINEERING

We use technology to interrogate and
select cells, such as in cur semen sexing
technclogy

GENE EDITING

We are develaping more sustainable,
disegse-resistant breeding animals by
making precise changes to their genes

REPRODUCTIVE BIOLOGY

We have active R&D workstreams

in multiple advanced reproductive
technologies, such as IVF, which enable

us to select both female and male parents
for superior offspring




DELIVER MORE SUSTAINABLE
BREEDING ANIMALS AND
SERVICES TO FARMERS

We have o global supply chain that efficiently delivers
genetics to customers while mitigating risk for us, for
example through our use of third-party multipliers.
Qur technical teams then hefp our customers to

get the best from our products on-farm, delivering

a superndr customer experience

GENETICS PRIMARILY SOLD ON
MULTI-YEAR ROYALTY AGREEMENTS
Superior pigs with traits farmers value

BOARS IN STUD

40,000+

boars producing semen

EXPANSION HERDS

500+

herds multiplying up our
breeding animals

GENETICS PRICED ACCORDING
TO INDICES OF GENETIC MERIT

STUDS AND LABS

24m

semen straws and embryos
delivered or produced for

customers

200+

supericr dairy and beef buils

with traits farmers value

STRATEGIC REPORT 1

LINK TO STRATEGY

Delivering o differentiated proprietary
genetic offering

Focusing on large and progressive
protein producers globdally

Sharing in the value delivered

Recd more on p1é - p17

PRICE ACCORDING
TO THE VALUE DELIVERED

CUSTOMER

190m

MPEs produced

CUSTOMER

c.8m

dairy and beef
calves born

DELIVERING FOR
OUR STAKEHOLDERS

CUSTOMERS

We breed healthier, more productive
anirnals for customers, which produce
meat and milk mare efficiently and
sustainably. We build trust with customers
by linking pricing to on-farm performance,
such as piglets produced from our sows,
and by running validation trials

CONSUMERS

We make nutritious animal protein more
affordable and sustainable, 1o help feed
the world

COMMUNITIES AND ENVIRONMENT

We rnake farming more sustainable

by reducing the use of feed and other
resources required to produce the same
amount of meat and milk, helping to
reduce GHGs. We are also reducing the
direct emissions from our operations'

PEOPLE

We employ over 3,400 people globaily,
who all help to deliver our vision of
nourishing the world

INVESTORS

By sharing in the value we deliver to
customers, we generate returns for
our investors

1 GHGs rerates to greenhouse gas @missions.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

ENGAGING WITH WHY WE ENGAGE

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively engages with its HOW WE ENGAGE

stakeholders, to keep them updated
and ensure we understand their
priorities. The Board carries out some
engagement directly, while other
engagement occurs during the running
of the business, with the Board being
kept informed through reports from
management. The table opposite
describes our key stakeholders and
examples of engagement during the
year and actions which arose.

CUSTOMERS s CONSUMERS

Board representative:
All Directors

Qur customers depend on our genetics
to improve their businesses and their
profitability. We look to understand their
needs and to help them make the most
of our products and services. We look

to better understand end-consumer
requirements and preferences.

> The Boord typically visits key customers
when Board meetings are held outside
the UK, although this year's visits ware
conducted virtually due to ongoing
COVID-12 restrictions

> Regular Board updates on targeted
customers and customer wins

> Regular customer visits as part of our
service offering, enabling cur teams to
work closely with customers to better
understand their needs

> Board engogement with different levels
of the supply chain (albeit limited by
COVID-19), including meeting with meat
packers and processors to understand
what thay ook for in genetics to meet
consumér demands

> Keeping under review growth of
alternative non-animal proteins, in light
of consurner preference

KEY ISSUES
IDENTIFIED

ACTIONS ARISING

> Need for improved customer digital
experience

> Continued to roll out GenusUne for
customers in Narth America and Spain

> Migroted customer support for
ardering and invoicing onto GenusOne,
to make those procassas maore efficient
for customars

> ABS digital engagerment initative
launched with new copabilities to be
deployed in FY22



EMPLOYEES

Board representative:
Lesley Knox, Lykele van der Broek

SHAREHOLDERS

Board representative:
lain Ferguson

STRATEGIC REPORT 13

COMMUNITIES s ENVIRONMENT

Board representative:
Lysanne Gray

Our people play a crucial role in helping
us pursue our strategic goals and
uphold the core values that underpin
our organisation. We engage, equip
and support them to achieve their full
potential while building our business.

We maintain strong relationships with
shareholders, ensuring they understand
our strategy, progress and perfermance
and that we understand hew they view
our business.

We look to be a responsible citizen
within our communities, offering local
recruitment, responding to crises and
supporting charities. We also look to
minimise our impact on the environment.

Direct engagement by Workforce
Engagement Directors at virtual town
hall meetings

Employee Your Voice survey

Chief Executive video updates,
manager-led updates and updates
via intranet following resuits
announcements

Global town hall meetings

Leadership calis and quarterly
manager briefings

Regular internal communications from
management

Employee-led resource group (AWAKE
- Advancing Women's Advocacy,
Knowledge & Empowerment} to
ermpower women to contribute to their
full potential

Health and safety training programme
and regular updates/briefings

> Investor roadshows, led by the Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer

> Results announcements, presentations

and live welbcasts

> AGM and trading update in
November 2020
Annual Report

> Reguiar news flow on key
developments in the business

> Engagement with investars regarding
executive remuneration, sustainability
issues and Boara changes

> Caopital Markets Event in June 2021

> Updated website including
sustainability section

> Arange of placement and employment
opportunities offered for students
and apprentices

> Suppert for charities close to
local businesses

> Providing educational support
for agriculture and animal science
programmes

> Investing in activities designed to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions,
consistent with cur Climate
Change Palicy

Key points raised from town halls

included:

- Lessons learned from the COVID-19
pandemic

- Positive feedback on the
Company's increased focus on
sustainability

- The Strategic direction of the Group

- The Company's values and culture

improvement areas raised in the Your

Voice survey:

- learning and development

— Reward and recognition

Continuing to oversee how

management deals with the impact of

COVID-1? cn employees

> Continued shareholder interest in
sustainability and environmental
performance (see adjacent}

> Potential impact of climate change on
the business and our communities

> Need to link environmental performance
with management incentives and
ensure sustainability issues receive
focus and engagement at appropriate
levels within the Company

> Need to respond as required to locai
emergencies

Board continued to monitor progress
against key points raised in the Your
Voice survey and in direct feedback
from employees

Ensuring employees have the
technology, teols and other support
needed to do their jobs during the
ongoing CCVID-19 pandemic
Ensuring safe working environments,
in line with local governmental advice
across all facilities

Board adopted an empioyee
engagement key performance
Indicator (see page 17

> Continued focus on sustainability,
including the development of
clearer communications around the
Company's sustainability strategy
and performance

> The Board continued to scrutinise
management's strateqy, plans
and actions to achieve climate
change targets

> The Board will continue to monitor
implementation of the climate change
plan and progress against targets

> The Board reviewed and approved
changes to the governance of
sustainability in the Company from
FY22 (see page 38)

> The Board recommended the inclusion
of specific environmental performance
targets in executive pay arrangemaeants
{see page 82)

> Supported local charities
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MARKET OVERVIEW

FEEDING

THE WORLD MORE SUSTAINABLY

Each generation of farmers
has adopted new technigues
1o raise animals more
efficiently and sustainably.
The continued adoption

of selective breeding and
new technologies will help
farmers to meet the growing
demand for protein,

DEMAND DRIVERS FOR GENETIC IMPROVEMENT

DEMAND FOR ANIMAL

PROTEIN IS GROWING

The global population is expanding and
urbanising, and seeking a maore varied
and nutritious diet. Pork, milk and beef
consumption are forecast to grow by
1-2% p.a. in thae next decade,

FOOD PRODUCTION MUST

BECOME MORE SUSTAINABLE
Competition for resources, such as land
and water, and the nead to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions, puts pressure
on farmers to become more efficient,
through the use of genetically superior
animals and ather technologies.

CONSUMERS ARE DEMANDING

BETTER PRODUCTS

Consumers are increasingly demanding
heaglthier and more sustainable products,
which are traceable and produced with
fewer drugs. This increases farmers'
demand for genetically superior breeding
animals, which are naturally more efficient
and resilient.

FARMS ARE CONSOLIDATING

AND TECHNIFYING

Progressive farmers, who are more
open to new technologies and

measure performance in more detail,
are consolidating the sector. They
understand the benefits of genetically
superior animals and optimised breeding
strategies, such as combining the use
of sexed daoiry and beef sermen on dairy
herds to maximise profit.

US MILK PRODUCTION VS, DAIRY HERD 1980-2020"

1 Source LSDA



1

Source, USDA
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Dairy genetics herds have
rapidly consolidated leading
to better quality animals for
dairy farmers.

TRENDS IN OUR MARKET

CONSOLIDATICN OF ELITE

BREEDING HERDS

Elite breeding bulls and pigs are bred
from genetically efite breeding berds.
The increasing use of costly technology
and the scale required to keep pace with
industry leaders is driving consolidation
of these herds. As genetics consolidate,
some breeders are forming strategic
alliances with competitors, so they can
offer their customers superior genetics.

ADROPTION OF SEXING TECHNOLOGY
Cows must be impregnated to produce
milk so dairy farmers need to regularly
breed their animals and refresh their
milking herds. Using sexed semen yields
approximately 90% female offspring,

enabling dairy farmers to refresh their

milking herd with fewer, higher quality

breedings. This enables them to breed
the rest of the herd with beef semen,

Source Genus anaysis, JS Halsten bresders
represerted rthe Top 200 NMS -arkings oy birt
year; 2021 data bosed on Top 200 Holsteins active
Lsing August 2021 data frem tre Counc | on Dary
Cottle Breeaing

which maximises the meat quality {and
value} of the resulting calf.

BREAKTHROUGH TECHNOLOGY

AND DATA

Genus is developing innovative solutions
1o combat disease and improve animal
welfare, which alse have the potential
to dramatically increase protein
sustainability. These include development
of health-focused indices to select
optimal breeding animals, as well as
employing gene editing and advanced
reproductive technologies. Progressive
farmers are also increasingly leveraging
digital technologles, which provide data
and insight to support decision making.

1 Sexea includes embryos
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STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK

DELIVERING
AND SHARING
IN THE VALUE

We harness innovative
technologies and
know-how to breed
genetically superior
animals for progressive
farmers, and link our
pricing to the
performance of our
products on-farm.

STRATEGIC IMPLEMENTATION

Our overgrehing strategy, success
drivers {which fead into the focus
areas of our business model), and
associcted KPIs are determined at
Group level. The strategy 15 then

implementad at business unit level.

Our strategic progress in FY21 ang
near-term objectives for FY22 can
be found on pages 18 1o 29.

sustainability lies at the heart of
our business. KPls marked with
the above icon are considered
by the Board 1o be indicative of
our progress in this area. For more
information see page 38.

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

DELIVERING A
DIFFERENTIATED
PROPRIETARY GENETIC
OFFERING

SUCCESS DRIVERS

ELITE ANIMALS
PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY
EXPERT PEOPLE

FOCUSING ON LARGE AND
PROGRESSIVE PROTEIN
PRODUCERS GLOBALLY

SUCCESS DRIVERS
GLOBAL POSITION
GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAIN
CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE

SHARING IN THE VALUE
DELIVERED

SUCCESS DRIVERS

VALUE BASED PRICING
PRODUCT VALIDATION
LEVERAGE SCALE

SUSTAINABILITY AT THE
HEART OF QUR BUSINESS

WHAT DOES '
SUCCESS LOOK LIKE?

GENETIC GAIN

Creating better breeding
animals for farmers, measured
against indices comprising
economic traits that help to
drive farmers' productivity
and sustainability.

VOLUME GROWTH

Growing volumes,
particularly with progressive
livestock farmers.

PROFITABILITY

Genarating profit resulting
from the performance of

sur products in customers’
systems, and growing margin
as we leverage scale and R&D
investment across species.

Our strategy is underpinned
by our approach to
sustainable business and

the strength of our people,
The Board megsures the
performance of these key
areas using the KPls opposite.



HOW DO WE MEASURE THAT SUCCESS IN OUR BUSINESSES?

cO

Maasures the genatic impravement we achieve in our porcine nucleus herds, which

uttimately filters down to our customers’ farms.

DEFINITION: The ircex measures toe
mang ~al mprgvernest in customers' US$
profitability, per commercial og per year,
on a olrg three-year average Prior
years' index ratings have been uodated,
toreflect the latest -esu s from genomic
selecton and the econaic values of
ootk preduction

PERFORMANCE: Genus continues 1o
deliver migh rotes of genetic mprovemrent
trraugh expanding and ra ntaining a
large ~ucleus populaton for high selection
intensity, \rr'orovif\g techrica processes
for genomic eva uation, implerenting
precsion acta collectcn from birth to
consurmer and continuing 1o add new
trots and Gata streams

Tracks our globol unit sales growth in dairy and besf.

DEFINITION: Tre change in dairy, beef

and sexed units of semen and embryos
clawered or produced for custemers in

the year

Monitors porcine profitability per unit.

DEFINITION: Net soraine adjusted
coeating profit globally, expressed per
MPE Resuits incluae our share of Agroceres
PIC, our Brazihan jaint venture,

PERFORMANCE: Bovine volumes improved
18% to 24 Imilor ur ts, with partculary
strong growtn inLotin Amenca and Asa
Sexed volumes were up 29%, reflectirg
streng growts in Sexcel, which also
influenced the use of beef-on-dary
genetics, supportng a 22% ncrease n
gobal beef valumes,

PERFORMANCE: Ooe-ating profit per MPE
wis £0 65 up £0.04 {uo £ 08 in constant
cUrrency) This was primarnly due to strang
breeding stock sales 'n Ching, gioba!
roya'ty contract growth ond one-time:
mvestnents i tre pricr penod to expand
global production

Maeasures the emissions intensity of the Group's pperations, which ara largely driven by

animal weight.

DEFINITION: The ormary intensity rabic s
@ measure of the Group's Scope Tand 2
emissios per tanre of animal weigrt

PERFORMANCE: T~e numary ntensity
rat o decrensed by 0 2% 0 F¥2), dnven

down by a changea in the age profi e and

balancea by ar ircrease in the nuriber

of our animols, resulting frem the inclusion
of thrd - party sites wthin the scope of our

FY21em ssicns reporting

STRATEGIC REPORT 17

Moniters how many of our bulfs are highly ranked, based on economically relevant traits

for farmars.,

DEFINITION: "re rumnier of our generaily
avalloole Holstein bu ks | sted in the "ap
100 Geromic Net Ment USS rarirgs for
genomicaly tested ses

PERFORMANCE: Genus continues 10
mairtain its geretc lecdershp oosit en
with 31 0f the Too 100 Holstein ou s using
the Genamc Net Merit US$ rankirgs and
with a very strong p pelne Thsis mainy
driven vy the large proportion of high-
qualty oulls sourced from nur pronnetary
breed.~g progtemme, De Novo!

1 DeNeovo Geretcs LLC 5 51% owned
by Ga-us

Tracks the grewth in the number of commercial pigs with PIC genetics giabally.

DEFINITION: Tre cnange ~volure of

poth drrect and royalty ammal sales,

using & stondardised MPEs measure of
comrmerciol slaughter animigls that contair
our genetics.

Monitors bovine profitability per unit.

DEFINITION: Bovine ad usted operating
profit globally, expressed per oose of
semen or embrye delivered or produced
far customens

PERFORMANCE: Porcine volumes grew by
% to 190 millica MPEs Ching's volurres
were pastculary strong due ta the
ircrease ncustorer oreed.ng projects
followig the ASF outbreaks Excluding
Ching, volurnes were up 5% w tn strong
grow!™ in Brazl, Russ-a and Spair Volumes
under royaity contracts grew by 13% with
alregiens contrbuting

PERFORMANCE: Operating profit per dose
was E0 6%, up £0 %4 lup £0 20 1n constart
currency). This was due 1o the strong sales
growth of our premiurm Sexcel product
and leveraging our word-class sales and
proalct aevelopment olatforms

Measures |evels of employes angogement aver time.

DEFINITION: "he response to the
statemnent "l would recommend a fiena to
work at Genus®,

PERFORMANCE: Gerus cont mLes to
demorstate upper quatie levels of
empoyae engagement, with 74% of
emMpoyeas surveyed In a pulse survey
AFY21responding that they would
-ecommena o frend 1o work ot Genus
FY1e 79%)

1 TheFY21 pulse su-vey was
comp eted by near y a auarter of
employeeas In FY19 74% of those
empioyeas responded offirmatively
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OPERATING REVIEW / GENUS PIC

ACCELERATING

DR BILL CHRISTIANSON
CHIEF GPERATING OFFICER
GENUS PIC

BUSINESS PRIORITIES
SHORT TERM

Continue to strengthen our supply chain
in China and expand the lacal team

MEDIUM TERM

Keep expanding our global network

of elite farms, to accelerate dissemination
of genetic iImprovernent and enhance
resilience

LONG TERM

Succassfully bring PRRSv-resistant
ammals to market

MOMENTUM

Actugicurrency Corstant

- - - curtency

o 2020 Change crange

Year endea 30 Ju-e £m £ % %
Revenua 315.6 2988 & 11
Adjusted operating profit exc JV 1229 1133 8 14
Adjusted operating profit ine JV 1359 124.3 2 16
Adjusted operating margin exc JV 38.9% 375% 10pts 10pts

MARKET

African Swine Fever [ASF) remains the
largest threat and cpportunity for pig
producers, both in terms of the impact of
the spread of the disease, in particular in
China, and the resulting volatiity in supply
and demand In global markets. Whilst
ASF continues to cause challenges in
Asia, the disease has continued 1o spread
west across Europe with Eastern Germany
recently onnouncing the first coses of ASF
in 1ts swine population. Complications
from COVID-12 including labour shartages,
meat packing capacity, retail food service
dermand and intemational logistics delays
also continued to impact global pig
production. Feed input Costs rose due to
weather patterns and robust demand,
resulting in the higheast grain prices in
recent years. In the near-term, ASF, feed
input costs and COVID-19 implications will
continue to exert pressure on the global
porcing industry

China's park sector is experiencing
uncertainty affecting production

ond proftabilty due 1o market price
volatility, stagnant demand and ongoing
challenges with the ASF recovery. Soaring
park prices in 2020 suppressed demand,
whifst domestic supply increcsed as
production recovered, and foreign
imports continued. OQutkreaks of ASF
during the winter months also resulted

in o surge of slaughter of animals 1in 2021,
furtner contabuting to increGsed supply.
Consequently, domestic pig prices have
dropped approximatety 50% since the
beginning of 2021, which combined with
high input costs, caused a collapse of
producers’ margins. Despite China's
efforts to rebuild its herd, Rabobank
eshmotes thot inventory still remains
below 2018 pre-ASF numbers due to ASF

outbreaks in 2020 and 2021, Prices are
expected 1o remain volatile for some
months reflecting producers’ investments
in produchon capacity coming on stream,
segsonal demand trends and the release
of inventories of frozen pork accumulated
by importers.

In Europe, the cutbreak of ASF in Eastern
Germany, the COVID-18 pandemic and
new regulotions have collectively resulted
in challenging market conditions for
producers. However, pig prices recovered
in early 2021 due to the inventory
reductions from sow liquidations in
several countries, as well gs ongoing
demand from China. European pork
exports Increased by 24% versus the prior
year, with China being the key driver.
New armimal welfare and environmental
management standards have also
coused large concerns in parts of the
European industry, especially in Germany
and Netherlands. These standards will
reguire additional investments and

may well result in further sow inventory
reductions. Recent cancellation

of certain export icences grantad

by China, in reaction 1o the supply
imbalance currently experiencad In
Ching, is expected to have an adverse
impact on European producers due to
the reduction of exports to China.

The US industry has experenced
sustained high pig prices throughout
2021, due to strong domestic and
international demand, with thea iatter
exceeding expectations. Spot pig prices
have increased more than $75/cwt in the
US since the start of the year. US pork
exports were 1% higher than the prior year,
totaling 3.83 billion lbs through June 2021.
China was the largest buyer of US pork



STRATEGIC PROGRESS
IN 2020/21

DELIVERING A
DIFFERENTIATED
PROPRIETARY GENETIC
OFFERING

> Delivered further increases in
genetic merit across all targeted
trants

> Continued to oxpand our netwotk
of atite nucleus farms; started
construction on a joint venture
genetic nucleus in Brazit and a new
owned elite nucleus in Canada

> Increased global dissemination of
elite genetics despite constraints
created by COVID-19, flying
18,500 animals to 26 countries,
including 13,000 pureline gilts to
multiplication facilities in Russia
and China

FOCUSING ON LARGE AND
PROGRESSIVE PROTEIN
PRODUCERS GLOBALLY

> Grew adjusted operating profits in
Asia by 49%, driven particularly by
increasing demand in Ching and
underpinned by further expansicon
of our local supply chain

> Delivered adjusted operating profit
growth of 13% across Europe, aided
by our focus on large producers and
expansion of cur distribution netwaork
to support smaller customers

> Maintained previous performance
levels in North America, despite
the local impact of COVID-19,
helped by sales of our PIC800
boar through new accounts
with large producers

> Increased adjusted operating
profit in Latin America by 17%, with
particularly strong performance
from Brazil

SHARING IN THE
VALUE DELAVERED

= Agreed further royalty contracts
around the world, so that 78% of
our business is now conducted
on this basis (including 36% of our
business in Ching}

> Strengthened our relationship with
a major integrated producer in Latin
America, through o contract that
will see royalty payments increase
each year, consistent with the
incremental and curnulative value
PIC genetics bring 1o its business

> Conducted a further 28 product
trials, involving 87,056 pigs, to show
producers the benefits of using PIC
genetics in their systems

(23% of total exports), with Mexico close
behind. According to USDA projections,
total US pork exports for 2021 are
expected to be flat to marginally lower
year on year, while pig production

is forecast to be largely unchanged
from 2020.

Brazil's pork exports are the largest in the
South American pork industry. Its share of
global pork exports is forecast to be 11%
in 2021, with the primary destination
being China.

PERFORMANCE

Genus PIC's adjusted operating profits
for the year were £135.9m, up 16% in
constant currency. This performance
was driven by very strong growth in
many countries, In particular Ching,
Russia and Brazil. Volumes were up
N%, with all regions contributing and
the highest growth in Asia and Europe.
Total revenue increased by 11% in
constant currency and strategically
important porcine royalty revenue was
also up 11% in constant currency.

In North America, CCVID-19 caused
packing plant slowdowns in the first half
of FY21. Markat conditions improved in
the second half, contributing to full year
adjusted operating profit growth of 1% in
constant currency. Yolumes grew by 3%
but royalty revenue declined 1%, due to
reduced breeding activities by certain
customers affected by the impact of
plant slowdowns, and certain customers
experiencing PRRSv cutbreaks in the
second haif of FY21. However, key account
wins on our damiline products and strong
sales growth on the PIC800 sire ling,
provides momentum going into FY22.

Latin America's adjusted cperating profit
grew by 17% in constant currency, with all
the major countries contributing. Volumes
were up 7% and royalty revenues were

up 9% in constant currency. in Brazil,
strong export demand from China fuelled
significant industry expansicn and drove
almost 40% operating profit growth in our
joint venture with Agroceres. To continue
1o meet increasing demand, Agroceres
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PIC has begun constructing o new genetic
nucleus farm to house 3,600 elite animals
and produce up to 10,000 breeding
animals per year.

Although revenue in Europe was
essenticlly unchanged, adjusted
operating profit rose by 13% in constant
currency. Breeding stock sales were lower
due to large key account stockings in
the prior year. However, royalty revenues
were up 11% in constant currency,

with nearly all countries achieving
growth. Expansion projects in Russia
continued to drive strong royalty growth
and delivered profit growth of 24% in
constant currency. in Spain, Genus PIC
entered into a strategic relationshin with
Sergal, a leading porcine distributaer,

to acquire and integrate its semen
supply chain. This will support continued
long-term growth with pork producers

in the important Spanish market.

Asia’s adjusted operating profit grew by
49% in constant currency. The strength

in pig prices for the majority of the year
supported continued growth in customer
breeding projects, and improved margins
from by-product sales in Genus PIC's
owned farms in China. China's royalty
revenues grew strongly and were 121%
higher. However, country-wide health
challenges in the second half of the year,
along with a sharp decling in market pig
prices, resulted in some near-term sales
volatility as well as impacting cwned
farm profit margins from the sale of by-
product slaughter pigs. This volatility is
expected to continue through FY22. In
the Philippines, the industry has started
to show signs of recovery following the
impacts of COVID-19 end ASF. Despite

a volume decling of 3%, operating profit
increased by 48% in constant currency.
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GENUS PIC CASE STUDY

SUSTAINA

BUSINESS GROWTH

NEW FACILITY SUPPORTS
OUR SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS
GROWTH

In August 2020 Genus PIC began
construction of a 370,000 square-foot
riuclaus farm in Canada, This facility
will hause 2,000 elite females which
will enhance our capacity and support
growth in key markets, including Russia
and South Americo.

We carefully selected the farm's location
and layout to ensure the highest health
standards. Canada is recognised as a
‘high health’ export market and the farm
itself is isolated from other pig operations,
yet close 1o export facilines. The form's
design will facilitate physical security,
cleaning procedures and handling of
biosgcure feed and semen. The site’s
dedicated export facility and truck wash
will ensure thot high-health breeding pigs
canh be exported quickly and effectively in
ling with best practice.

We have designed the farm with
sustainabitity and animal well-being in
mind. Features inciude computerised
ventilation, heating and cooling, using
on-site composting to create fertiliser
for teed crops and energy saving
measures such as LED lighting. The farm
will hold pigs from Dirth to maturity, so
no animals will need to be transparted
during their growth phase, minimising
stress for the pigs. Combined with a
square footage per animal that exceeds
reguiations, this will help each arimal
O maximise its genetic expression,
banefiting them and our customers.
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Canada 370,000 2,000

location sq. ft elite females
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OPERATING REVIEW / GENUS ABS

PARTNERING

CREATING AND SHARING IN VALUE

DR NATE ZWALD
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
GENUS ABS DAIRY

JERRY THOMPSCN
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
GENUS ABS BEEF

BUSINESS PRIORITIES
SHORT TERM

Enhonce the digital customer experience

MEDIUM TERM

Move US praduction and lab work anto
our new Leeds site in Wisconsin

Accelerate growth in target markets
while continuing to strengthen product
development

LONG TERM

Expand our range of exclusive
relationships with producers arcund the
waorld, based on performance-based
coniracts and pnong

Actual currency Constant
- - - - curiency
2021 2020 Change change
Yea- ended 30 June £m Em % %
Revenue 250.1 2374 5 13
Adjusted operating profit 36.4 325 12 21
Adjusted operating margin 14.6% 13.7% G%pts 10pts
MARKET
Strong global demand for doiry products
and the easing of COVID-19 lackdowns
helped drive up the Fonterra Whale Ove ra “
Milk Powder auction price by 25% over
the tast 12 months. Increased demand demdﬂd fOl’
in Ching and other Asian markets was '
impaortant in supporting these prices, ABS S prOd UCtS
Markets such as Brazil saw record milk remOIned

prices, underpinned by government
initiatives to counter the COVID-1
pandemic and inflationary pressures,

This strong demand boosted EU dairy
production in the first half of 2021, with
prices up 9% over the prior year, However,
unfavourable weather dunng planting
resulted in higher feed costs, dampening
profitability. The US dairy herd was 2.5
rmillicn cows by May 202), its highest

level in over 20 years. Along with higher
yields, this is expected to increase milk
production by 2.4% during 2021

China dairy imports were also up through
the year, particularly in Q1 2021 which
saw milk and cream, whey and cheese
imports rise more than 50% ovar the

pnier year, when COVID-19 hampered
international trade. These imports

were mainly fulfiled by New Zealand,
Germany, the US and Austrafia.

Industry forecasts suggest 1% growth in
2021 for milk production in regions where
supply exceeds domestic demand

This comparas with 1.4% growth in 2020,
with most coming from the US and EU.
However, continued feed cost increnses
in these regwns will put pressure on
production marging and likely restrict
short-terrn supply growth,

resilient in FY21.

Worldwide beef demand was particularly
strong throughout the year. ASF's impact
on pork in China has increased import
demand for beef and the post-COVID-19
reopening of US foodservice and retail
over the last six months also contributed.
This has significantly increased beef
prices, particularly in Brazil {up 40%) and
the US (up 10%! In Brazil, this has been
exacerbated by lower supply levels

due to poor pasture growth, COVID-19
disruptions and farmers holding

onto cattie until they reached therr
desired weights.

However, Brazi! still reached a new global
racord for beef exports in 2020, due

10 rising production, a waak domestic
market, a much lower exchange rate and
strong demand from China. Brazihon beef
remains very price competitive given its
farge production capacty and hedvily
depraessed economy and currency. USDA
forecosts indicate that Brazlian beef
exports could grow by 5% in 2021, further
challenging Austraiia’s market share.



STRATEGIC PROGRESS
IN 2020/21

DELIVERING A
DIFFERENTIATED
PROPRIETARY GENETIC
OFFERING

> Continued to generate industry-
leading dairy bulls and established
our Elite Sire programme, offering
customers eurly uLLess 1o genomic
sires of high genetic ment

> Increased the number of NuEra
beef bulls in our nucleus facilities
and brought more of these
high genetic merit animals into
production for customers

> Grew global soles volumes of
sexed genetics {including Sexcel,
our proprietary product] by 29%,
NuEra Genetics by 53% and Beef
InFocus tour global beef-on-dairy
brand) by 15%

FOCUSING ON LARGE AND
PROGRESSIVE PROTEIN
PRODUCERS GLOBALLY

> Continued to increase sales
of Sexcel in new and existing
markets, with particularly strong
performance in China {up 151%)
and Russia (up 154%)

> Increcsed use of digital sgles
platforms in Latin America,
contributing to volume growth of
20% (17% of which came from new
customers), especially in Brazil
(up 33%)

> Strengthened our service to
the largest herds in the US, by
establishing o strategic account
management team to support
current and potential Customers

> Enhanced our BeefAdvantage
index in the UK, by adding feed
efficiency as a selection trait, using
market-focused performance data

SHARING IN THE
VALUE DELIVERED

> Enrolled over 125 large customers in
our Key Account Partner Program,
through which we become their
exclusive genetic partner and
provide a holistic service for a
monthly fee

> Conducted two beef validation
trials with feeders and packers
around the world, to demonstrate
the superior performance of NuEra
Gensetics and increase demand
through the supply chain

In the bovine genetics marketplace,
the significant investment required to
run competitive breeding programmes
saw a number cf trading partnerships
develop during the year, particularly
between Eurcpean co-operatives. Thig
trend is likely to continue, as a smaller
number of growing dairy and beef
producers want to partner with world-
closs genetics companies, to help them
grow sustainable protein production.

PERFORMANCE

The COVID-1? pandemic continued to
challenge our customers, despite the
pandemic easing in some countries.
However, overall demand for ABS's
products has remained resilient with
the ABS salesforce focus on obtaining
alf of their customers’ business. This has
included good uptake on new partnership
contracts which include an outcome
based pricing modei

ABS's adjusted operating profit increased
by 21%, with volumes up 15% and revenue
up 13% in constant currency. Dairy
customers continued to demand sexed
and beef genetics, with sexed volumes up
29% and beef volumes being 22% higher.
This is reflected in Sexcel's continued
success, the growing use of NuEra beef
genetics in dairy herds and customer
growth in the traditional beef segment.

Europe grew both volumes and revenue
by 7%, with adjusted operating profit

14% higher in constant currency. Sexed
semen volumes rose by 43%, with the

UK, Italy and the European distributor
business growing fastest. In Russia, the
business made strategic progress with key
accounts and delivered strong operating
profit growth of M7% in constant currency.
We algo achieved strong growth in other
distributor markets, however COVID-19
lockdowns in January and February
significantly reduced custemer access,
and with dairy producers limiting their
herd growth, conditions in the UK and
Europe were chalienging during the
second half of the year. Good progress
was made on moving customers to
partnership-based contracts and the ABS
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breeder tag system uptake has been very
encouraging. A new third-party IntelliGen
production facility that opened in Europe
in the first half of the year was successfully
validated and put into full operation.

North American revenue was unchanged
and adjusted operating profit fell by

13% in constant currency. We increased
investment in strategic key occount
management and marketing durng the
vear, however COVID-19 travel restrictions
continued to have a short-term impact
on sales. Volumes declined by 2% due

to reduced face-to-face customer
interactions and uncertain market
cenditions causing dairy producers to
rationclise their genetic inventory on-
farm. Beef-on-dairy volumes rose 19%,
supported by proprietary NuEra genetics
selected for cross-bred beef-on-dairy
performance and sexed volumes were
1% higher, however customers used less
conventional product. There was also
lower IntelliGen profit due to a planned
technclogy transfer in the pricr year.

In Latin America, revenue grew by 32% and
adjusted operating profit increased by
7% in constant currency. Performance in
Brazil was particularly good, reflecting the
strength of the Brazlian beef market, the
team's innovative digital sales campaigns
and our robust pricing policies. Overall
volumes in Latin America were 20% higher,
with sexed volumes up 36% and beef
volumes up 37%, utilising NuEra genetics
selected for cross-bred performance of
North American sires with tropical cows,
Embryo volumes increased by 26%.

In Asia, adjusted operating profit was up
53% and volumes grew 36%. Trading grew
in Ching, following a period of vertical
integration among customers, as dairy
processors acguired farms. After the end
of a multi-year drought and bushfires in
2019/20, Australia's customer demand
bounced back strongly. Sexed volumes
in Asia rose 64%, with strong Sexcel

sales in China. The year also saw strong
performance in our India business and the
signing of our fourth government sexed
semen contract in India.
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GENUS ABS CASE STUDY

ENGAGING

WITH PROGRESSIVE BEEF FARMERS THROUGH
INNOVATIVE SALES CHANNELS
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ENGAGING WITH
PROGRESSIVE BEEF FARMERS
THROUGH INNOVATIVE
SALES CHANNELS

Marcos Albinc is a Nelore cattle breeder
at the 800 cow Maranata Ranch in
Araguiana, Brazil, and has historically
never used artificial insemincation. In 2019
Marcos was invited by the ABS team

to participate in ABS's ‘Black Week'
digital sales event, during which Marcos
acquired 200 ABS embryos produced
with ABS's leading Nelore genetics, sexed
with our propristary sexing technology.

A high propertion of these breedings
resulted in high-quality female calves,
enabling Marcus to rapidly transform the
performance and sustainabiiity of his herd
in a single breeding event.

As a result of Marcos's positive experience
and support from ABS's technical services
team, he has developed a strong working
relationship with ABS and has since
invested in additional embryos. The
relationship has now progressed beyond
the acquisition of genetics and Marcos
has decided to employ ABS's IVB NEO
service, which wilt enable him to create
embryos from his best males and females
to breed his next generations, thereby
dramatically accelerating the genetic
improvement in his herd.
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OPERATING REVIEW / GENUS R&D

PIONEERI

TECHNOLOGY FOR

PROTEIN PRODUCTION

DR ELENA RICE

CHIEF SCIENTIFC OFFICER
AND HEAD OF R&D
GENUS R&D

BUSINESS PRIORITIES
SHORT TERM

Keep enhancing cur proprietary sexing
technology and increasing fertility

MEDIUM TERM

Gain regulatery ccceptance of PRRSv-
resistant pigs In target markets and
advance our reproductive technology
to accelerate genetic gain

LONG TERM

Harness dota analytics and genomic
science to develop insights into new traits
that will enhance the sustainability of
anmmal agriculture

Actud' currency Constant

o - currency

2021 2020 Change change

Year ended 20 June £m £m % %
Porcine product deveiopment 219 289 (24) {20}
Bovine product development 197 209 (&) 1
Gene editing 7.6 52 46 54
Other research and development 133 102 30 42
Net expenditure in R&D' 62,5 65.2 {4) 2

1 Exclud ng profit attrbutable to ron-contro ling rigrest

PERFORMANCE

During the year, Genus continued to
strengthen its proprietary differentiated
offerings and to invest in key strategic
initiatives, including gene editing,
IntelliGen production capacity and
porcine elite farm nucleuses, as well

as further developing its research and
development pipeling Net research
and development investrnent increased
by 2% in constant currency, with the
prior year having included large
investments to expand the porcing
elite nucleus populations, External
research collaboration spend was
lower, due to delays in spending caused
by COVID-19 constraints, and the
Group also berefited from efficiencies
Inits gene editing programme, by
internalising gene editing capabilities.

Parcine product development continues
to deliver hugh rates of genetic
improvernent, driven by the combination
of our expanded genetic production,
implementation of best science and our
capture of accurate and meaningful
data. Ongoing improvement initiatives
are focused on further refining our
genomic evaluation, exploring precision
measuremnent toals utiising new
technologies such as video imaging,
and continuing the integration of
Mallevang genetics for maximum product
aifferentiation Rates of genetic gain and
the results from product vahdaton triats
demonstrate that these invastments

are increasing our realised rates of
improvement. The decrease in porcire
product development expenditures are
primarily related to one-time projects in

We've launched a
new programme in
reproductive biology
and established a
world-class team in
this area.

FY20, which expanded capacity in Genus
PIC's elite farms, along with favourable
market conditions which reduced

running costs.

Bovine product development continued
1o generate an industry leading Holstein
dairy bull portfolio, which supported
strong volume growth in ABS. The De
Navo joint venture continued to produce
mare than S0% of these animals ana
the strong pipeline of young bulls will
relp sustain our leadarship position.
Global demand for NuEra genetics
grew further and represented mare than
30% of our total beef volumes. Recent
validation trials in customer systems
have demonstrated NuEra's significant
supernorty to competitor genetics, in
addition, we have now validated and



STRATEGIC PROGRESS IN 2020/21

GENE
EDITING

Conducted further trials on our
gene-edited pigs, demonstrating
complate resistance to two
prevalent types of PRRSy, and
made our second submission for
regulatory gpprovalin the US
With our partner BCA, increased
interactions with MARA and
progressed in-country lab and
production facilities

Coentinued our collaboration with
Kansas State Unversity to evaluate
oppertunities for combating swine
influenza and African Swine Fever

GENDER
SKEW

Introduced a second generation
of our industry-leading sexing
technolegy to enhance ease of
operation, improve efficiency and
incredse the gender skew rate of
each unit produced

increased production capacity to
help ABS meet global demand for
its sexaed semen product, Sexcel
Continued 1o expand our network
of IntelliGen Technolegies
laboratories, which now number
11 owned and licensed facilities
across four continents

REPRODUCTIVE
BICLOGY

Harnessed new technigues and
technologies to iImprove our system
for IWF, enhancing the quality and
quantity of embryos produced
internally and within licensed
laboratories

Started exploring the benefits of
working with emibryonic stem cells
to accelerate genetic gain, through
collaborations with the University
of California Davis and Missour
State University

DATA
STRATEGY

Developed a data and analytics
strategy and implemented
inttiatives on scalable hybrid
computing, flexible storage ond
cataloguing of assets to strengthen
data science capabilities and
support innovation
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launched our IntelliGen Gen2.0 (Gen2')
equipmeant at our Dekorra facility, which
will provide further production efficiencies
and further strengthen cur product
quality. We continue to invest in IntelliGen
with the launch of Gen2, while amortising
previously capitalised development costs.
We expect to expand our preduction
capacity further, to meet increasing
demand for sexed semen.

Net gene editing expenditure rose

by 54% in the year, mainly due to FY20
having included net income of £3.2m
recognised for a milestone payment
received from our Chinese partner, BCA.
Excluding BCA income, gene editing
expenditures were 5% lower. Qur work with
Caribou completed and we internalised
our capability for producing gene

edited animals, as intended. The PRRSv
programme is progressing as planned,
and we maintained our engagement

with the FDA, with whom we have a
constructive and positive relatienship. We
also initicted conversations, both directly
and with local partners, on regulatory and
market acceptance in key global markets,
including China and Japan.

Other research and development
expenditure increased by 42%. This
included initiating work on reproductive
biclogy and data science objectives, and
continuing efforts in our bicinformatics
platform and genome science. External
collaborations in a variety of discovery
areas also continued, though at a slower
pace due to institutions prioritising
COVID-19 research and vaccines.
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GENUS R&D CASE STUDY

DEVELOPING

PIGS WITH RESISTANCE
TO A DEVASTATING DISEASE

PRRSv is a devastating disease that
causes significant animal suffering and
billions of dollars in losses in global pig
production annually. PRRSv cannoct

be effactively prevented or gliminated
through traditional veterinary medicine
or vacamnation. Genus has pioneered the
development of ¢ gene editing solution
that has proven to confer complete
resistance to PRRSv in pigs, making
animals healthier and our food supply
safer and more sustainabile.

During FY21, we made great progress
and met our programme milestonas.

We complated live animal challenge
tricls, with our pigs demonstrating

100% resistance to both Type HUS and
Europeant and Type Il (US and Asia) PRRSy,
confirming previous academic findings
To commercialise our PRRSv-resistant
pigs, reguigtory approval 1s kay. Wea were
therefore pleased to submit the first two
product claim and method filings to the
US Food and Drug Administration.

Our path to reguiatory approval and
commercial launch is clear, and this
year's prograss has moved us closer
towards our geal of eradicating

this devastating disease.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

STRONG

PERFORMANCE FROM
A RESILIENT BUSINESS

In the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group's overall
performance was very strong despite some ongoing
impacts from COVID-19. The resilience of our operations was

( N th e yeCl re nd ed reﬂecte_d in revenue g‘rowth of 4% (10% il"l constqnt. c.urrency)
30 June 2021, the Ventures of 275 (36% n ponstomt surremey) on & restated
Group's overall investment i RAD of 62 8 (up 2% n constam semvoney,
performance Sehunted operating prof meluding Jomsventuret 1eveased
Was very strong. oS ey o st prots e

In line with the IFRIC Interpretation Committee's new
ALISON HENRIKSEN agenda decision published in Agril 2021, the Group
has changed 1ts accounting policy related to the
capitalisation of certain softwara assets. This change
relates to the capitalisation of costs of configuring or
customising application software under ‘Software as
a Service' {SaaS) arangements. As @ result, we are
capitalising less of our GenusOne costs as the system
is a Microsoft Dynamics 345 Saas sclution. This change
in accounting policy led to an increase in operating
expenses amounting to £2 7m in the current year and
£5.2m for FY20. All FY20 results are restated. For full
details of the impact see Note 2 Basis of Preparation.

Cn a statutory basis, profit before tax was £55.8m (2020
restated: £446.3m). The difference between statutory

and adjusted profit before tax principally reflected the
reduction in the non-cash fair value net 1AS 41 biological
assets, versus an increase last year, and lower exceptional
items, principally due to the prior year reflecting £16.4m of
litigation fees ond domaoges. Basic eomings per share on a
statutory basis were 72.6 pence (2020 restated: 544 pencal.

Genus continues 1o repert cdjusted results as Alternative
Performance Measures (APMg'), which are used by the
Board to monitor underlying performance ot @ Group and
opercting segment fevel and are applied consistently
throughout. These APMs should be considered in addition
to, and not as a substitute for or as superior & statutory
measures. For more information on Genus's APMs, see

the APM Glassary.

The effect of exchange rote movements on the translation
of our overseas profits was to reduce the Group's adjusted
profit before tax for the year by £6.3m comparad with
2020, primarily due to weakness in Latin American
currencies. All growth rates quoted are in constant
currency unless atherwise stated. Constant currency
percentage movements are calculated by restating the
results for the year ended 30 June 2021 at the average
exchange rates applied 1o adjusted operating profit for
the year ended 30 June 2020.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
' o _quu_stgd r_es_ults - Statutory resuh_s_ _
Actuu_l currency Constant Actual currency
restataa’ currency restated'

20 2020 Change change 2021 2020 Charge
Year @wied 30 June £m £m % * £m £m %
Revenue 574.3 5514 4 10 574.3 5614 4
Cperating profit exc JVs 769 601 28 34 477 424 13
OCperating profit ine JVs exc gene editing 97.4 760 28 37 n/a n/a n/a
Profit before tax 84.8 458 29 38 55.8 463 21
Profit before tox excluding ScaS impact’ 875 710 23 32
Free cash flow 375 352 7 n/m?
Basic earnings per share {pence} 1009 773 31 40 72.6 S54.4 33
Dividend per share {pence} 320 291 10

1 As s setoutin Note 2 Basis of Preparation, the Group nas cranged its accounting pol ¢y “elared to the capitulsulion of certain software assets fol owing the IFRIC
irterpratat on Commitles’s ugenda decision publsced in Apnl 2021 ~his chonge in occourting pel oy 'ed to onincrease ir operating expenses of £27m i~ the current yaar
ond £5 2 for Y20 Al FY20 results are restated and for details of the full impact see Note 2 8as s of Preparation Profit nefore tax exc'eding Soas mpact' s oresented only
tmis year to dermanstrate the mpact of our ¢hange in accounting pa icy, and wi'l not be presented in future in te years

2 ~/m=raot meanmgful,

REVENUE

Revenue increased by 10% in constant currency and 4% in actual
currency to £574 3m (2020: £551.4m). PIC's revenue growth of 11%
in constant currency {up 6% in actual currency) continued to be
underpinned by China, as the strong pig price for much of the
year supported growth in royalty revenue and breeding stock
sales, as customers expanded production. In ABS, revenue was
up 13% in constant currency (5% in actual currencyl reflecting
continuing success of our sexed and beef genetics, particularly
across Brazil, Russiq, India and China.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT INCLUDING JVS

Constant
currency
Actual currency f""}"‘?'
restated
Year ended 30 June on 2020 Change
Adjusted Profit Before Tax' £m £rm % %
Genus PIC 1359 1243 ? 16
Genus ABS 36.4 325 12 21
R&D 625 (652 4 (2)
Central costs {200} (208 4 -
Adjusted operating profitine Jvs  89.8 708 27 36
Net inance costs {5.0) (5.0} Q (2
Adjusted profit before tax 84.8 658 29 38

1 Incwdes share of adjusted pre-tax profits of joint ventu-es and “emoves share of
adjustec profits of non-controhng INnterasts,

FY21 FY20 Fy21 Fy20

Average Avarage Clasing Clos ng

Us Dollar/E 135 126 138 124
Euro/E 116 114 117 110
Broziian Real/E 715 574 687 477
Mexico-n_Pe_sg/i_E - 2814 26?0573 - 5757 2852
Chinese Yuan/E 892 889 893 875
Russian Rouble/E 10175 8517 10110 8819

Adjusted operating proft including joint ventures was £89.8m
(2020 restated: £70.8m), reflecting a high growth rate of 36% in
constant currency as mentioned above. Within this, Genus's
share of adjusted joint venture operating profit was higher at
£13.0m {2020: £11.3m), primarily due to strong results in the PIC
Agroceres joint venture in Brazil and our jeint venture in China.
Amounts attnbutable to non-controlling interests were lower at
£01m (2020: £0.6m) due to lower third party royalty income and
aramp up in dairy product development within our De Novo
joint venture. Our gene editing investment, which is primarily
focused on creating resistance in pigs against the devastating
PRRSv disease, increased £2.4m to £7.6m, largely because FY20
included net inceme of £3.2m fraom BCA, our Chingseg partner.
Excluding this, gene editing expenditures reduced through
efficiencies gained from internalising our capability to produce
gene edited animals. Adjusted operating profit including joint
ventures and excluding gene editing investment increased by
37% in constant currency to £87.4m (2020 restated: £76.0m), which
far exceeded our medium-term objective to achieve growth of
10%. The impact to profit from COVID-19 effects on trading across
the Group were largely offset by short-term travel savings of
approximately £5m compared te the prior year.

PIC performed strongly, with adjusted operating profit including
joint ventures up 16% in constant currency, particularly benefitting
from continued strong demand in China. Volumes were up 11%

(5% excluding China} with all regions contributing. Strategically
important royalty revenues were up 11%, supported by strong
growth in China of 121% and Europe of 11%. However North America
declined 1%, due to some customers’ breeding activities being
impacted by COVID-1? related packing plant slowdowns in the
first half of the year and PRRSv diseose outbreaks in the second
half of the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

ABS had ¢ particularly strong year, with adjusted operating
profit increasing 21% and record volume growth of 15%. Sexcel
continued to demanstrate that it is the sexed product of choice
for prograssive doiry farmers, driving overall sexed volume growth
of 26%. The growing use of NuEra beef geneatics in dairy herds
supported beef volume growth of 22%. The COVID-19 pandemic
continued to cause chaltenges to ocur customers and adjusted
operotng profit growth was achieved in all regions except North
America. Both Asia and Latin America achieved strong double-
digit growtn, with the latter continuing to benefit from innovative
digital sales campaigns.

Central costs were stable in constant currency at £200m
(2020 restated: £20.8ml. This included a ane-time E500 award
to every empioyee for recognition of thelr effort through the
COVID-19 pandemic, as well s investments to design and stort
implementing a new target operating model for our global
finance and procurement functions. Qur GenusOne enterprise
system roli-out continues to make good progress. As reported
above, under new IFRIC guidance, the continuing costs 1o
configure and implement the GenusOne cloud environment
during the year of £2.7m {FY20: £5.2m} are now being expensed
rather than capltalised, with FY20 also being restated, As these
costs are one-off in noture, we have determined to keep them
in Central, with the reduction over the pricr year due to less
configuration work as the roll-out progresses.

STATUTORY PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The table below reconciles adjusted proit before tox to statutory
profit before tax;

restated

2021 2020
£m £m

Adjusted Profit Before Tax 848 658
Operating profit attributable to non-controlling 01 06
interest
Net IAS 41 valuation maverment on biological 31 0.1
assets in JVs and associates
Tax on JVs and associates (3.0 (2.3
Adjusting iterns;
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biclogical (10.8) 158
assets
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets {7.4) 85
Share-bosed poyment expense (7.7) (5.8}
Exceptiona! items (3.3) (122}
Statutory Profit Before Tax 55.8 443

Our statutory profit before tax was £55.8m (2020 restated:
Fa4.3m} largely reflecting the increase in the underlying trading
perfarrmance and the reduction in exceptional ftems, partially
offset by the non-cash forr value net 143 4] biclogical osset
movement. Within this, there was a £6 4m uplift (2020: £13.2m
uplift) in porcine biolagical assets and ¢ £17.2m reduction (2020
£2.6m uplift) in bovine biclogical assets, due 1o certain fair vaiue
model estimate changes. Share-based payment expense was
£7.7m (2020 £5.8m). These reconclling items are primarly non-
cash, can be volatile and do not correlate to the underlying
trading performance in the year,

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

There was a £3.3m net exceptional expense in the year (2020:
£19.2m expensel, which included legai fees of £2.5m (2020

£5.6m) and with the prnor yeor alse beng impacted by £10.8m

of doamages and costs in relation to Genus ABS's litigation with
STGenetics. A non-cash Guaranteed Minimum Pension ({GMP
equalisation charge of £2.3m in respect of pension schemes has
also been recognised due to o High Court ruling on 20 November
2020, which ruled individua! transfer payments made by UK

pension schemes since 17 May 1990 need to be egualised for the
effects of GMP Also included is o credit of £20m inrelation o a
share forfeiture exercise.

NET FINANCE COSTS

Net finance costs were unchanged at £5.0m (2020: £5.0m).
Average facility borrowings were comparabie year on year,

with reductions in market interest rates being largely offset by
increased bank margins in relation to the Group's new Facility
Agreement, which was executed in August 2020, as well as higher
commitment and utilisation fees.

Amortisation costs in the year included £0.2m written off In
respect of the previous facility, ot the commencement of the
rew Facility Agreement, and £0.3m from the higher monthly
omortisotion costs of the new facility which are being spread
over d shorter three-year duration,

Cther interast included £0.8m (2020 £1.0m] of IFRS 16 finance
lease interest and FO.9m {2020: £0.9m) relating to the unwind
of discount interest on the Group's pension habilities and

put options,

TAXATION

The tox charge on the statutory profit in the year of £12.0m
{2020: £125m) represented an effective tax rate (ETR') of 20.4%
(2020 restated: 26.5%) with the prior year from 24.0% as
conseguence of the SaaS accounting restatement. This prior
year increase was due to non-recognition of the related
deferred tax asset, as the losses created were considered

nat ta be utilisable on a timely basis.

The statutory tax charge reduced by 3.6% due to the
revaluation {from 19% 10 25%] of deferred tax assets expected

1o crystalise post April 2022 in the UK and further reduced by
2.0% for additional future utilisation of previously incurred losses,
particularly in Germany which has an improved trading and
profitability ocutlock. These credits were offzet by movements in
tax provisions of 1.2% and a charge for prior year tax expenses
of 0.5%

The tax charge on adjusted profits In the year was £191m

(2020: £15.6m), which represented a tax rate of 22.5% (2020
restated: 23.7%). The adjusied tax rate is reduced by 3.3% by

the revalyation of UK deferred 1ax assets previously mentioned,
offset by a charge of 0.8% primarily resulting from the provision
for State Ald on CFC Finance Companies. in March 2021, HMRC
issued Genus with a char@ing notice for £1.2m in respect of its
assessment of the state aid due 1o be recovered. During the year,
Genus has provided a further £0.4m (2020; £1.0m) in respect of
its exposure to the repayment of previously claimed tax benefits
under this State Aid challenge but will continue to pursue various
avenues of appeal against both the EU Commission's original
decision and HMRC's interpretation of that decision,

as calculated in the charging notice received.

The cutlock for the Group ETR is in the range of 23%-25%,
consistent with the current year, excluding the one~off change
of rate benefit and provision increase.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Adjusted basic earnings per share increased by 31% (G0% in
constant currency) ta 1009 pence (2020 restated: 77.3 pencel

as a result of the strong trading performance and lower tax rate.
Basic earnings per share on a statutory basis were 72 6 pence
(2020 restated: 54.4 pencel, reflecting the strong trading
performance and lower exceptional charges, partially offset by
the non-cash fair value net IAS 41 biological asset movement.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

A feature of the Group's net assets 15 11§ substantial investmeant

in biclogical assets, which under IAS 41 are stated at far value.

At 30 June 2021, the carrying value of biclogical assets was
£337.3m {2020: £370.2m), as set out In the table on the next page.



2021 2020
v £m £m
Non-current assets 2799 3101
Curentassets 396 398
Ir;véntory . 178 203
o S 3373 3702
Represented by:
Porcine 2274 2627
Dairy and beef ) 1099 1275
S 3373 3702

The movement in the overall balance sheet carrying value of

biological assets of £32.9m includes the effect of exchange rate

translation decreases of £35.3m. Excluding the translation effect

there was:

> a £9Imincrease in the carrying value of porcine bhiological
assets, due principally to an increase in the number of
animats held, as well as 1o the mix of animals held; and

> o £6./m reduction in the bovine biological assets carrying
value, primarily due to current estimates, based on market
data, of the semen sales price attributable to the biological
asset value,

The historical cost of these assets, less depreciation, was £E651m
at 30 June 2021 {2020: £57.5m), which is the basis used for the
adjusted results. The historical cost depreciation of these assets
included in adjusted results was £10.0m (2020: £11.0m).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group's retirement benefit obligations at 30 June 2021 were
£111m (2020: £18.1m} before tax and £9.0m (2020: £14.6m) net of
related deferred tax. The largest element of this liability now
relates to some legacy unfunded pension commitments dating
prior to the acquisition of PIC by Genus.

Curing the year, contributicns payable in respect of the Group's
defined benefit schemes amounted to £7.4m (2020: £8.4m).
Contributions 1o the Milk Pension Fund ('MPF) are scheduled to
finish in September 2021 which will recduce the amounts payable
going forwards.

As the impact of COVID-1¢ on asset valuations reduced, robust
investment strategies and higher bond yields during the year for
our two main defined benefit obligation schemes have led to
strengthenad financial positions, Both the Dalgety Pension Fund
and our share of the MPF reported |AS 19 surpluses, prior to any
IFRIC 14 amendments, despite an additional GMP equalisation
charge of £2.3m,

CASH FLOW

Cash generated by operations of £86.6m (2020 restated: £77.2m}
represented cash conversion of 113% (2020 restated: 128%) of
adjusted operating profit excluding joint ventures. The strong
conversion of adjusted operating profit to cash is aligned to

our medium-term objective to achieve conversion of at least
20%. The increase in cash generation was primarily due to the
strong troding performance and a continued focus en working
capital management.

Capital expenditure cash flows of £33.8m (2020 restated: £297m)
included continued investment in the ABS supply chain, with state-
of-the-art new bull housing in Wisconsin, increasing PIC's supply
chain capacity, with o new genetic nucleus farm being constructed
in Canada, and investmeant in software development. Cash inflows
from jcint ventures were higher at £3.7m (2020 £3.7m). After interest
and tax paid, total free cash flow was £37.5m {2020: £35.2ml.

The cash outflow from investments was £16.9m [2020: £0.1m).
This incluged an upfront poyment of £69rm as part of the £77m
consideration to acquire the trade and assets of Sergal, a
leading Spanish porcine semen distributor, £2.4m to acauire a
39% minority shareholding in Xelect, an aguaculture genetics
services company, and deferred consideration payments from
previous acquisitions of £6.7m.
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The net cash inflow after investments and dividends was £1.2m
(2020: £16.9m), reflecting the additional investments and deferred
consideration payments made during the year.

“estated

2021 2020

Cash flow (before debt repayments) £m £m
Cash generated by operations 86.6 712
merestond taxpaid (193 (171
Capital expend\-tu_re R (33;8) (2‘;.7)-
Cashrecewed from Jve 37 37
Other S ' o1 11
Free cash flow 375 352
Acquisitions ona in:/e;trr;ents - (16_.9) ©1)
Dividends  nem 083
Share issued o1 o1
Ne-t cash inflow (beforerderil:it;e;a;rmienits)ii - 12 lé.‘?-

NET DEBY AND CREDIT FACILITIES

Net debt increased shghtly to £105.6m at 30 June 2021{202C:
£102.6m) primarily due to new financing leases. At the end of
June 2021 there was substantial headroom of £130m under the
Group's renewed credit facilities of £240m. The new facility was
originally for a three-year term to 24 August 2023, but the Group
exercised the first of two available extension options, extending
the maturity date to 24 August 2024, The facility also includes an
uncommittad £100m accordion agtion, which can be reguested
on a maximum of three occasions over the ifetime of the facllity
to fund the Group's business development glans.

Tre Group's financial position and borrowing ratios remain

very robust, with sufficient cash flows available to fund internal
investments and sufficient debt finance available to pursue
acguisition opportunities. At the end of June 2021, interest cover
was at 45 times (2020: 35 times). EBITDA, as calculated under our
financing facilities, includes cash received from joint venturas. Net
debt as calculated under our financing facilities excludes [FRS 16
leaise lianilities up to a cap of £30m but Includes bank guarantees.
The ratio of net debt to EBITDA on this basis at the year-end has
remained stable at 09 times (2020 restated’: 0.8 times). This level of
leverage is just below our medium-term objective of having a ratio
of net clebt to EBITDA of between 1.0 - 2.0 times.

RETURN ON ADJUSTED INVESTED CAPITAL

We measure the Group's return on adjusted invested capital using
adjusted operating profit including joint ventures after tax, divided
by the operating net assets of the business on the historical cost
basis and excluding net debt and pension liakilities. This removes
the iImpact of 1AS 41 fair value accounting, the related deferred tax
and goodwill. The post-tax return on adjusted invested capital was
higher at 23.0% (2020 restated: 201%), reflecting the strong profit
growth and lower tax rate. This was partially offset by an increased
asset base from the capital investments in supply chain capacity
and the increased values of our Brazilan joint venture, Agroceres,
and our Caribou shareholding.

DIVIDEND

Recognising the importance of balancing our investment for

the future with ensuring an attractive return for sharehaolders, the
Board 1s recommending @ final dividend of 217 pence per ordinary
share, anincrease of 10% over the prior year final dividend. When
combired with the interim dividend increase of 10%, this will result
in a total dividend for the year of 32.0 pence per ordinary share
(2020: 291 pence per share), an increase of 10% for the year.
Dividend cover from adjusted earmings remains strong at 3.2
times (2020 restated: 27 times), slightly above the medium-term
target of an adjusted earmings cover range of 2.5 1o 3.0 times.

Alison Henriksen
Chief Financial Officer
8 September 2021

1 FY20 Net Deot to EBITDA has been estated 1o reflect tha revised credit fociity
terrrs completed in August 2020
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PEOPLE AND CULTURE

ATTRACTING

BY BEING A PEOPLE MAGNET

ANGELLE ROSATA
GROUP HR DIRECTOR

We nurture an open,
respectful and
supportive working
environment founded
on the five Company
values of Customer
Centric, Results
Driven, Pioneering,
People Focused,

and Responsible.

Genus employs over 3,400 colleagues in
24 countries.

We provide more information on our
workforce in the Governance section.

INCREASING INCLUSION

We aim to be ¢ ‘People Magnet' for
current and prospective colleagues,
whoever and wharever they are.

We nurture an open, respectful and
supportive working environment,
founded on the five company values
our people helped to shape.

We have established a range of global
policies to help us, for exomple on Anti-
Harassment and Diversity & Inclusion. We
embed their provisions into our employee
handBook and working practices, from
recruitment assessments to enboarding
activites, and from performance
management to employee development.

Additional activities include the work
of AWAKE to enhance gender inclusion
{discussed on pages 3é to 371 This
yaar, we also delivered 'unconscious
bias’ training to over 100 senior
leaders, helping them ensure current
and future employees, customers and
cther stakeholders feel valued and
respected, regardless of differences.
Qur recruitment programmes have
subseguently sourced and considered
o more diverse range of applicants.

ATTRACTING NEW TALENT

Internships and graduate programmes
continued ta bring new talent into Genus
For example, in the US, ABS brought

in 28 mterns fnciuding 19 warmen! with
three already progressing inta full-

time roles. In the UK, we recruited ten
groduates, including four women.

We aisc develoged a new online
recrutrrent and onboarding portal, 1o
help us reach a broader and more diverse
pool of candidates. We are currently
rolling this out.

DEVELCPING QUR PEOPLE
We give all employees opportunities to
grow and thrive. For instance, we continue

10 evolve development programmes

for people leaders at different levels,
involving 212 participants from 14 countries
(34% of whom were women, in line with our
wider workforce profile). This year, steps
included expanding training for first-time
supervisors and piloting a new course for
mid~ to senior-level mancgers who have
graduated from previous prograrmmes
and are keen to keep improving
leadarship skills,

we implemented a 'self nomination’
option for many development
programemes, 1o help mitigate
unceonscious biases in delegate selection
processes. We glso enhanced diversity in
succassion plans by ensuring wamen have
sufficient opportunities to develop the
capabilities needed for future roles. In PIC
Latin America, for exampie, three women
were promoted in FY21 compared 1o only
one during FY20,

We also ensure that colleagues
receive training on global policies.
For example, every employee must
complete annual training on our Anti-
Bribery and Corruption Policy and
achieve 100% in a post-training test.
Employees also complete annual
training on animal well-being, anti-
harassment and cyber security.
Colleagues working directly with animals
receive role-specific safety traming.

ENHANCING ENGAGEMENT

We maintained our focus on engagmg
employees, despite constraints created by
COVID-19. We reqgularly shared infarmation
on Company plans and progress, and
enhanced feadership engagement
through virtual global, regienal and local
town halis, plus CEQ breakfasts with
cross-sections of colleagues.

Our two Non-Exscutive Director 'employee
representatives’ - Lesley Knox and

Lykele van der Broek — held a breakfast
discussion with employees from PIC Eurcpe,
gaining workplace and cultural insights

10 bring back to the Board. They wili be
holding further discussions around the
world as COVID-12 restrictions are relaxed.



We run a global employee survey every
two years and 'pulse’ surveys with

smaller groups in between. Our ‘pulse’
survey this year gained input from nearly
a quarter of employees. #4% of those
surveyed responded favourably to 'l would
recommend a friend to work at Genus’,
rmaintaining our employee Net Promoter
Score ['eNPS’) despite the challenges
created by COVID-19 82% of respondents
said they were proud of the way Genus
handled its response to the pandemic.

IMPROVING HEALTH AND SAFETY
Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, our
priority has been the safety of colleagues
and therr families. We introduced
protective protocols for employees
working at production facilities, in labs
and with customers. We suspended
overseds business travel and established
rigorous guidelines, aligned with local
public health autherities, for employees
working in offices.

In addition, we introduced support for
mental health and weli-being, recognising
the pandemic’s impact on employees’
work and home lives. This included a
‘Well-being Week', involving 25 webinars
from experts in different aspects of mental
health. We also gove employees access
to more than 60 local well-being guides.

Overall, we continued 16 improve health
and sofety performance, reducing the
recordable injury frequency rate by 21.46%
and vehicle incident rates by 169%.

ACTING ON CONCERNS

There are many ways in which employees
can raise issues, Including an indepeandent
hotline that supports our Whistleblowing
Policy and allows employees to
anonymously report any concerns about
unethical behaviour. Any such reports

are immediately referred to the Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary.
They are investigated and discussed

with the Group HR Directar, Head of Risk
Management and Internal Audit and

the Company's Audit & Risk Committee.
This process is regularly reviewed as part
of our annual Audit & Risk Committee
activity. Five issues were reported during
the year. Following full investigation, steps
token ranged from further training on
relevant policies to disciplinary action.

HUMAN RIGHTS

Genus is committed to respecting the
hurman nights of workers throughout our
value chain and the local communities in
which we operate. We qim to ensure that
onyone who might be affected by Genus
can enjoy the human rights described

in the international Bill of Human Rights
and the ILO Declaration on Fundamental
Principles and Rights at Work.

We monitor this through the same process
outlined above and there were no 1ssues
identified during the year.
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HOW WE'VE WORKED
TOGETHER DURING THE
COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Throughout the pandemic, our
people have demonstrated great
commitment, collaboration and
resilience to help each other,
serve customers and support
their local communities.

This has been facilitated by our focus
on health and safety, flexible and
remote working, and use of digital
technologies. As highlighted opposite,
our priority has been {and remains)
the well-being of employees, their
families and our customars, We have
monitered and followed iocal public
health guidance in every country
where we operate, while local teams
have worked together on additional
steps to strengthen protections

such as staggenng break times and
using white boards to communicate
handavers at shift-changes rather
than face-to-face meetings.

Qur investment in digital tools has
encbled colleagues and teams to
waork together searlessly, irrespective
of location. For example, the team
leading deployment of the new
microfluidic chip for our IntelliGen
technology replaced in-person visits
to sites around the world with videos,
onling training and Microsoft Teams
calls. Tools lIke Teams and Yammer
have also helped colleaguas remain
connected and avolid isolation when
working remotely.

We have also embraced digital tools
and platforms to communicate with
customers, e.g. through @ programme
of webinars and highly-successful
digital sales drives in Latin America.
These efforts have been underpinned
by a tremendous global team spirit
and commitment to colleagues,
customers and animals. Examples
include employees covering different
roles when colleagues have been
self-isolating and export teams finding
creative ways of continuing shipments
of animals to customers, despite the
challenges ond complexities created
by COVID-19.

The effectiveness of our approach was
recognised in @ recent ‘pulse’ survey of
more than 500 employees. 82% were
proud of the way Genus had handled
its response 1o the pandemic, 88%
said they have the technology/tools
needed to do their job and 87% knew
who 1o talk to if they needed support.
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PEOPLE AND CULTURE CASE STUDY

ADVANCING

WOMEN'S ADVOCACY,
KNOWLEDGE AND EMPOWERMENT



WOMEN ACHIEVIRG PROMOTION

100
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AWAKE (Advancing Women's Advocacy,
Knowledge and Empowerment) is an
employee resource group working with
executive sponsars, business leaders and
colleagues across the Company to help
us Increase gender balance and develop
more diverse teams more broadly.

AWAKE has established a global
community through which women
connect, collaborate and porticipate

n development programmes. The group
has a Company-wide lgadership team,
regional champions, 327 members and
14T male allies.

The group communicates with leaders
regularly and engages employees
through webinars, newsletters, Yammer
discussions and a SharePgoint resource
hub. In May 2021, AWAKE piloted training
focused on leadership for women.

AWAKE is one of the initiotives helping

us increase represantation of women

in Genus. During the year, 100 women
achieved promotion {44% of qil promotions
during the year) and 37 women made
lateral moves to take on new roles and
respansibilities (46% of all such moves
during the year).

AWAKE has also established a firm
foundation for further initiatives to
increase diversity in all its forms across
our Company.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

SUSTAINABILITY

AT THE HEART OF OUR BUSINESS

Our genetic improvement
work is directly focused on
helping farmers to meet
the challenge of producing
meat and milk more
efficiently and sustainably.

Sustainobility lies at the heart of our
business. It informs our purpose of
pioneering animal genetic improvement to
help nourish the world and infuses the core
volues that shape our work, every doy.

We make a positive contribution to the
world around us. According to the UN,
the global population is almost 8 billion
people today and is projected to reach
9.7 billion people by 2050. Our genetic
improvement work is directly focused on
helping farmers to meet the challenge of
producing meat and mitk more efficiently
and sustainably, increasing the avaitability
of high-quality, affordable animal protein
around the world. This challenge is
exacerbated by global climate change,
and risks to food security which flow
from it. As o resuft of bovine and porcing
genetc improvement, our customers use
far less lond, water and other natural
resources to produce more milk or meat
than they did some decades ago. We
are therefore helping to nowrish the world
whilst reducing the impact agriculture
has on the environment and we continue
1o accelerate our genetic improvemeént
programmes as we aim to lead the market
in sustainable anjmal protein production.

in parallel, we continue to reduce

the environmental impact of cur own
aperations, guided by our Clirmate
Change Policy. This polcy, which 1s
avaiabie on the Company's website,
commits us 1o a 25% reduction in
gresnhouse gas 'GHG') emissions by
2030 ond becoming ¢ net-zero emissions
business by 2050, We will use the
prmory intensity ratio to report emission
reductions, and we have a range of
practical activities already underway

10 heln us achieve this,

We fulfil our commitment by challenging
ourselves and those around us 1o think
differantly. From small improvements in
warking practices to innovations that
address stakeholder needs, we constantly
develop and explore new ideas for
enhancing our contribution and delivering
paositive, sustainable change. During

the year, we reviewed our governance

10 ensure that sustainability issues are
receiving focus at the highest levels of our
organisation. From FY22, the compasition
of our Sustainability Committee will be
bolstered by the addition of the Chief
Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Sclentific Officer and the Chief Operating
Officers of our business divisions os
members. The Committee will also be
attended by Lysanne Gray, our Non-
Executive sustainability champion, and
the Committee’s activities will be reported
directly to the Board of Directors, ensuring
that oversight of sustainability 1s o matter
for the Board as a whaole.

We transiate our bold thinking into
policies and practices that underpin our
operations around the world. From core
principles on protecting arimal well-being
to guidelines on supporting cormmunity
causes, we articulate expectations,
provide information and deliver training
where needed to ingrain rasponsible
business practices acrass our organisation
and the people we work with.

We set and continually monitar progress
using key performance indicators (see
page 41, We olso ensure employees

have multiple routes to raise any concerns
(including the independent whistleblowing
hotline explained earlier). No moteriol
issues were reported during the year.



ENHANCING OUR NUERA PROFIT

INDEX IN THE UK

By adding feed efficiency as a selection
trait, Genus ABS is using market-focused
performance dato to drive efficiency and
sustainability for customers, The results
of a recent UK trial involving 142 caives
from six sires shows o strong correlation
between genetic quality and GHGs, with
recluction improvement of 11% for the

highest genetic level per kilogram of meat.

DECARBONISING TRANSPORT -

FLEET TRANSFORMATION PLAN

Travel in vehicles represents around 14%
of our carbon footprint. As we prepare
for governments to cease sales of petrol
and digsel vehicles we are assessing the
differences between standard diesel van
and battery electric vehicles.

During the year Genus cperated six fully
electric vehicles in its UK fleet and has
plans to increase 1o 1510 FY22 as part of a
‘flectwide’ replacement programme. From
FY22, the Compuany will cease to buy any
petrol or diesel-only vehicles in the UK,
and we are working with suppliers to solve
issues for employees, such as access to
charging peints at home.
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ENERGY USE AT LEEDS:

MOVING FROM 'BROWN TO GREEN'

As part of a long-term plan to expand

its production capacity in North America,
ABS is building new production facilities
and laboratories at Leeds, Wisconsin.
Due to its reliance on fossil fuels for energy
generotion, the state of Wisconsin has
one of the highest electricity gnd carbon
intensity figures in the US, $6 to support
Genus's ambitions for decarbonisation,
the Company is instaliing photovoltaic
panels at the site which will supply 377 kW
of OC energy and remove pressure

on the local power grid.

1 Based on Genus LK tr al with strategic customer, data reoresents average pe-formonce of 149 offspring of six Genus Britis~ Blue sires procassed in 2013 and 2020,
percentage mprovemant reprasents reduction in carbon d coxide equivalents [carbon dioxise, methare and mitrous oxide) per k logram of carcass, re ative to worst

performing sirg 10 tr al
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

OUR SUSTAINABILITY
STRATEGY COMPRISES
FIVE PILLARS WHICH
SUPPORT OUR PURPOSE

PROGRESSING OUR SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY
Qur Sustainability Committee
contains experts from around our
globa!l Company. The Committee
sets our sustainability strategy,
articulates annual objectives and
monitors progress.

Qur progress with our sustainability strategy,
including key performance indicators where
relevant, Is summarised apposite

For more information on our work,
progress and Sustainability Committee,
please visit our dedicated webstte:
www.genrusplc.com/responsioility.



Sustainab ity objective
land related S0G)

Highhghts nthe year
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F¥22 gools

SUSTAINABLE PROTEIN
PRODUCTION AND

FOOD QUALITY
Advancing animal genetic
improvement to help our
custamers breed more
productive and resilient
animals which produce
better milk and meat more
efficiently and sustainably.

21
end hunger

2.3
productivity and

incomes of small-scale

food producers

13.1/13.2

strengthen resilience
ond adaptive
capacity to climate-
related hazards and

natural disasters in all

countries

ENVIRONMENT
Reduce the environmental

impact of our own operations

12.5
waste/manures

7.2/7.3
renewables and
energy efficiency
13.2

low carbon transition

ANIMAL WELL-BEING
Continuously improve animal

well-being across our business

worldwide

RESPONSIBLE EMPLOYER
OF CHOICE

Be a people magnet with a
dynamic, inclusive and safe
working environment

COMMUNITY

Proactively engage and
make ¢ positive contribution
in communities of which we
are g part

ns
disaster deaths

15.6
equitable sharing of
genetic resources

>

Drove further genetic improvements in

both porcine and bovine species

Continued our work to combat PPRSy

in pigs and completed controlled

research trials as well as submission of
regulatory information to the US Food

and Drug Administration

Undertook environmental audits of
four key office and production facilities
in the US, with energy efficiency and
maintenance actions identified

Audited 82.5% of PIC-owned
production sites

Generated 315,627 kWh of energy

from biogas

Commenced implementation of
additional solar schemes in the US,

which will come online in FY22.

Trialled electric vehicles in UK fleet
Examined slurry management actions

100% of employees with animal care

responsibilities received training on

Genus animal care standards

Continued investment in PIC and ABS

animal housing facilities

Maintained animal care standards

Reduced vehicle incidents by 16.9%

1o 183

Reduced recordabile injury frequency

rate’ by 21.46% t0 2.05

Recruited 164 staff into PIC and ABS

production sites

>

v

v

Continue driving porcine and bovine genetic

improvement and rapidly disseminate the

genetics to custamers globally by:

{i) increasing porcine genetic improvement index
by one standard deviation per generation;

(i} increasing bovine genetic improvement index
by one standard deviation per generation, and

(i} continuing to improve beef genetics based on
feed efficiency, quality and reduce greenhouse
gas emissions.

Continue responsible development of gene

editing technology, to aid disease resistance and

animal well-being

Launch environmental sustainability initiatives
acrass the Company consistent with Climate
Change Policy targets for GHG emission
reductions

Execute and explore oppoertunities for wider
deployment of renewable energy solutions across
ABS and PIC sites

Work to address slurry and manure management
challenges by exploring technological innovations
Conduct environmental audits of material facilities
Maintain scope and measures of PIC audits on
owned production, including 80% of owned sites

Ensure employees with animal care responsibilities
are regularly trained on Genus animal care
standards

Continue investrnent in animal housing facilities
Maintain and improve animal care standards and
operating procedures, to ensure alignment with
best practice

Maintain or improve employee engagement,
making Genus an enjoyable and fulfiling place
to work

Achieve a rolling 5% year-on-yaar reduction in
occupational road risk to 193 vehicle incidents
or fewer

Achieve a rolling 5% year-on-year reduction in

recordable injury frequency rate to 2.36 or less

Support measures to prevent and continue to
respond to local community crises, recruit into
local farms and encourage support for charities
close to the local businesses and aligned with
OUr rission

1 Recordable irury fraquency -ate 13 the numoet of work related noiaents toat resuit e injury or 1l ness, work restnicton, ar reguire treatment other thar first aid
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

CLIMATE CHANGE POLICY AND
GREENHOUSE GAS (‘GHG’) REPORTING

Genus acknowledges the reality of
climate change and recognises the
lasting negative impact it will have
on our business and our communities

Genus has committed 1o take action

on climate change in a number of ways,

including:

> driving porcing and bovine genetic
improvements which support
productivity gains and improve feed
efficiency, enabling a reduction in the
production of GHG emissions pear unit
of milk or meat produced;

> reducing the carbon footprint of our
own operations thraugh developing
a better understanding of how
enegrgy is used in our business. We
are committed to the sustainable
development of new facilities and are
evaluating the use of renewable power
solutions on a number of aur farms: and

» partner and advocate for policies that
advance positive climate goals and
identified United Nations Sustainable
Development Goalg 'SDGs').

OUR REPORTING APPROACH

In FY20 we refined our methods to
measure GHG emissions and developed
a Tier 2 FY19 emission baseline (FY19
Baseling’). Subject to restatement due
to collection of more accurate data,

the FY12 Baseline is used 1o measure
future improvements

We are committed to reducing GHG
emissions In our operations and will use
the ‘primary intensity ratio’ to report
emission reductions. We aim to reduce
the primary intensity ratio by 25% by 2030
and 1o have net zero GHG emissions

by 2050. This means that even as our
business grows, we dre seeking to

ensure that cur GHG emissions shrink.

We use operational control as our
reporting approach. We have determined
and reported the emissions we are
responsible for within this boundary

and believe there are no material
omissions. As part of the review of Tier

2 methodology we include our share of
joint venture emissions and omit some
livestock held Dy third parties, due to our
Iimited control over operating polices

GHG EMISSIONS REPORTING OUTCOMES
Qur GRG emissions are primarily methane
produced by our animals, caron dioxide

from consuming fuel and other materials,

and from transport.

Qur total GHG emissions decreased by
4.8% and primary intensity ratio decreased
by §.2%, driven down by a change in the
age profile and balanced by anincrease
in the number of our animals resulting from
the inclusion of third-party sites within the
scope of our FY21 emissions reporting.

in FY21 we have also applied more
detailed assessments of our source datg
and reporting of emissions factors relating
o animal feeds, and have restated

our reported FY20 and FY19 numbers
accordingly.

ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

World Resources Institute/World Business
Council for Sustainable Develcpment The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol A Corporate
Accounting and Regporting Standard’

DEFRA ‘Guidance on how to measure and
report your greenhouse gas emissions’

DEFRA ‘Environmental Reporting
Guidelines: Including mandatery
greenhouse gas emissions reporting
guidance’

Emissions Factor Data Source
IPCC ‘Guidelines for National Greenhouse
Gas Inventories'

DEFRA/DECC ‘Conversion Factors for
Comparny Reporting’

Energy Efficiency

We use significant volumes of energy
to power aur vehicles, buildings and
eguipment. Where we are not able to
access low carbon sources of power,
we use ‘high carbon’ fuels, including
coal 1o heat our buldings. We have
started to repiace these with lowsr
carbon alternatives or renewables.
At our Benxi and Chunhuo sites in
China, we will cease use of coalin
FY22 as we mplement energy efficient
replacement heating systems

At our Dekorra Campus in Wisconsin,
we operate a solar PV energy system
producing between 1.5-8.4 MwH
energy per month and have invested
Iin additional solar generation at
our new sita in Leeds, Wisconsin.

We have continued to invest in and
suppart our facilities teams over FY21
and have completed targeted aenergy
efficiency oudits ot iive ABS sites. Our
R&D team have implemented awarenass
and schemes which target laboratory
energy efficiency and waste which has
led 10 a reduction in downstream carbon
amissions in hazardous waste disposal.

Whilst FY21 saw an overall reduction in
‘Scope 3 related emissions from flying,
we successfully implemented enterprise
remote working and undertook essential
travel in company cars. Overall, we

have noted a 22% reduction in transport
related emissions in FY21. Over this time,
we have started 1o implement our fleet
transformation plan. In FY21, wa operated
six electric and 35 hybrid vehicles in the UK
and continued our focus on technology-
based solutions and telematics to help
our fleet drivers reduce their energy use
and emissions,

Genus Energy Data

In line with the UK Government's enargy
and carbon reporting requiremeants,
further information an our energy
consumption for the last two years across
Genus is set out opposite. This is scurced
from dato for the carbon doto reported
in this section and 1s tracked internally. All
data is collected from metered data for
electricity, Biogas combustion information
15 calculated using assumptions based
on records In China and Brazil Fuel use

1s reported based on financial records

of fuel purchased. We have opplied
assumptions on standard calorific values
to convert all lquid and gas fuel types to
a common energy metng (kWwh) and data
15 reported for the period 1 July 2020 to
30 June 2021,
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%

change
Fv21 F20 lrestated) FY19 (restated) from F¥19
Emissions from Tennes of CO.e Tonres of COe Tornes of COye Boseline
Global Globa Globa
UK arg  {excluaing UK UKard lexcluoing JK LKand fexcuding JK
ullshore  ana ottshierel oftshore  ana offshore) offsroe  ar~doffsrore)
Scope 1 - combustion of fuel, own transport and 2626 72314 2,630 T7673 3178 78773 -9%
livestock emissions
Scope 2 - purchased electricity, steam, heat 130 6,695 1468 6,850 171 7268 -8%
and cooling
Total Scope Tand 2 2756 72009 2,798 84,523 3,349 86,041 -9%
Scope 3 - material usage and waste, third-party 14,664 14119 21,489 -32%
distribution and business travel
Total emissions 96,429 103,440 110,879 -13%
Primary intensity measure — animal weight {tonne) 2839 10,488 @543 3%
Secondary intensity measure — turnover (Em) 5743 5514 4885 18%
Primary intensity ratio = Scope 1 and 2 831 833 937 -11%
(tCOe/tonne animal weight)
Secondary intensity ratio - Scope1,2and 3 1679 1876 2268 -26%
{tCOe/turnover)

Annual emissions figures have been calculated based on actual nine-month data for July to March for travel and distribution and ten-

month data for July to April, with both extrapolated to full year.

% change from

Erergy Type Source units Fy21 FY20 Fr19 FY1% Baosel ne
Electncity Electricity imported k¥Wh 15309577 20,156,010 17599380 -13%
Electricity generated from renawable sources and k¥wh 384012 334,670 303,800 26%
used on site
Electricity generated from renewabies sources kWh 0 0 0] -
and exported
Gas fuels Gasimported from the grid kWwh 10,876,063 Q617802 4,491 962 142%
Liquid fuels  Fuelused by plant (gas oil and diesel} kWh 18,548%464 18,268089 18,003,380 3%
Total Total energy used (i.e. annual quantity of energy kWh 45118616 48376571 40,398,522 12%
consumed from activities for which the Company is
responsible, including combustion of fuel and
operation of facilities)
Total energy imported li.e. annual guantity of energy  kWh 26,185640 29773812 22091342 19%
consumed resulting from the purchase of electricity
and gas. No imperts of heat, steam or cooling)
Proportion of energy use {UK) kWh 1081538 1,156,200 Q65,524
Proportion of energy use (RowW) kWh 44037078 47,220,371 39432996
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NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

The table below, ond the information it refers 1o, is intended 1o help stakeholders understand our position on key non-inancial matters
in line with the non-financial reporting requirements contained in Sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006.

Reporting
recuiremant

Poicies ana stanrdargs wnich
GOvVe'n Qur aporoach

Risk management ard
cddtional nformation

Environmental matters

Employees

Human rights

Social mattars

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery

Policy embedding, due diligence and outcomes

Description of principat risks and impact
of business activity

Description of the business model

Non-financial key performance indicators

Sustainability Framework

Global Employee Handbook;
Whistleblowsr Policy

Global Employee Handbook;
Whistleblower Policy

Charitable Donations Policy

Anti-Bribery and Corruption
Policy

Global Employee Handbook

See pages 38 w 41

See pages 3810 41
See pages 34 to 37

See page 35

See pages 3410 35

See Stiategic Report on pages 1to 49

n/o See Principal Risks and Uncertainties

on pages 46 to 48

n/a Ses Business Model on poges 10 to ]

Sustainability Framework

See page 41

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Section 172(1) of the Companies Act

2006 imposes a generat duty on avery

company director to act, in goad faith, in

the way they consider would be most likely

to promote the success of the company

for the benefit of its shareholders. In doing

so, directors must take into account alist

of factors that includie:

> the likely long-term consequences of
board decisions;

> how the company’s actions and
behaviours affect customers,
employees, suppliers, the community
and the environment;

> the desirability of maintaining a
reputation for high standards of
business conduct; and

> the need to act fairly between
sharehglders

This statermnent explains how the Board
complies with its obligations under
section 172,

LONG-TERM CONSEQUENCES OF BOARD
DECISIONS

Genus has a businass mode! and strategy
that deliver results on a multi-year

baosis. For example, we target cusiomers
where we can build long-term and
mutually beneficial relationships, rather
than seeking one-off transcctions. Our
investment in R&D can also take several
years to result in revenue genegrating
products, meaning our success in the
short-term depends on long-term
decisions taken in previous years. As a
conseguence, long-term decision making
is a natural part of the Board's approcch

Examples of decisions and their likely
long-term impact are set out below.

MANAGING OUR STAKEHOLDER
RELATIONSHIPS

To effectively consider the impact of
decisions on our stakeholders, we must
have a good understanding of their
needs and issues. We therefore actively
listen to our stakeholders at all levels

of the organisation, to ensure we take
account of and respond 1o their Interests
Information on how we engage with our
stokeholders, including the Board's direct
and indirect engagement with them, can
be found on pages 12 to 13.

The agenda for each Board meeting
indicates the relevant stakehaolder groups
against each item, ensuring the Directors
are aware of the stakeholder interests
they need to consider in their decisions

STANDARDS OF BUSINESS CONDUCT
The Board is aware of the need to
maintain high standards of business
conduct. The Group has a strong ethical
culture, underpinned by our values and

polcies, which are endorsed by the Boord.

The Group also has specific policies
and procedures 1o prevent bricery and
corruption, as described on page 34
and s made available on our website
genusplc com

Maintaining high standards of business
conduct atso relies on having the

nght culture within the Group. Page

&1 describes how the Board maintains
oversight of culture.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
Information on the Group's envircnmental
impact can be found on poges 38 to 4l

Lysanne Gray is the Board's Sustainability
Sponsor. She receives regular updaotes
from the Sustamnability Committee, which
monitors progress against the five pillars
of the Group's sustainability framework
including the actions identified in the
Group's Climate Change Policy.

TREATING SHAREHOLDERS FAIRLY

The Company’s shares are owned by a
wide range of institutional and individual
shareholders, with no shareholder having
a majarity nolding or significant influence
over the Group. As a result, no situations
arise i which any sharehalders can be
treated differently, ensuring fair trectment
for all,
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KEY BOARD DECISIONS
Examples of key Board decisions during the year, including how the Board considered the interests of relevant stakeholders, are set
out below.,

DECISION1

Background

During the year, the Board approved two Investments to enhance ABS's facilities at Dekorra and Leeds in Wisconsin. This involved
the construction of new bull housing at both locations and the building of an IntelliGen production facility at Leeds.

Relevant Stakeholders and Their Interests

The relevant stakeholders with interests in the proposal were:

> customers, who were looking for ABS to have the capacity to support thoir needs, including the ability 1o meet their rapidly
growing demand for sexed seman;

> communities, In particular arsund our nearby DeForest site, where the growing town had begun to encroach on the facility; and

> shareholders, given the investment was necessary to support our planned growth.

The proposal also supported the welfare of the bulls themselves, by providing them with state-of-the art housing.

Actions Taken

The first bull barn at Leeds, with capacity for 120 animals, was populated on 28 June 2021, A second bam ot Leeds and the
combined Sexcel and conventional laboratory will open in September 2021 Waork on a further 40 spaces at Dekorra and a third
barn and solar project at Leeds all started in July 2021.

Likely Long-Term Consequences
The Board's decisions to improve the two investments will support ABS's ability 1o meet customer needs over the coming years and
to generate growth and returns for shareholders in the process.

DECISION 2
Background
Bio-security is fundamental to Gur business and therefore we've been ahead of the curve in our response to COVID-19.

We were acutely aware of the potential impact and consequences of the pandemic and were therefore able to quickly respond,
for exarmple by restricting travel in and out of China ahead of advice from western governments.

We continued to operate in a COVID-secure way for all employees at all locations, and did not require any government support.

Relevant Stakeholders and Their Interests
Employees and customers.

Actions Taken

COVID-secure working arrangements were implementad across different sites, with offices moving to home working; production
sites and laboratenes operating with reduced stafing and staggered breaks; and changing advice for customer farm visits such as
limiting face to face contact, maintaining social distancing and enhanced hygiene practices.

We leveraged recent investmeants that had been made in IT meaning that our staff have been able to easily work from home,
Iimiting the need to visit offices, customer contact has shifted towards remote teleworking, and limited or no travel has been
taking place.

There has been a global effort from the Health & Safety team to coordinate local health and safety advice, and the Company's
response in each country has been in line with local government guidance.

During the year, o mental well-being week was rolled out, with 25 different webinars covering mental health awareness and self
help and self care. The webinars, provided by expert advisers, were held across six countries ensunng local, culturally sympathetic
perspectives were covered.

Likely Long-Term Consequences

The business has continued 1o Gperate throughout the pandemic in a COVID-secure way, with no material business disruption
for customers, and without furloughing any employees. Employees have generally responded that they have felt supported and
enabled to continue to do their jobs throughout the pandemic.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

ROBUST

APPROACH TO RISK

LINK TO STRATEGY

Genus is exposed to a wide range of risks and
uncertainties os it fulfils its purpose of providing
farmers with superior genetics, which in turn
supports the fulfilment of its vision.

Some of these risks relate to the current
business operations in our global
Qgricultural markets, while others relate
1o future commercial exploitation of our
leading-edage R&D programmes. We are
also exposed 1o global economic and
political risks such as trade restrictions,

As part of our risk management process
we monitor emerging risks and considler
when to include them in our main risk
assessment process. This year we
updated our evaluation of two of our
emerging risks. The first is changing
consumption patterns and the emergence
of alternative proteing such as lab-based
meat. The secand is our ability to continue
1o support sustainable protein production,
while reducing the environmenta! impact
of our own operations. We determined
thot sustainability has become o principal
risk due to the growing global focus

on climate change and is explained
further opposite. Additionally, due to the
improved funding position of our pénsion
plans, we no longer consider pension
funding a principal risk.

In considering our risks during the year,
we also performed detailed assessments
of the impact of the global outbreak of
COVID-19 ond Brexit. The assessment
covered the impact of these two risks

on our people, our customers and our
supply chain. We also assessed the
short- and long-term risks associated
with the expected global economic
disruption affecting our industry and the
markets where we operate. Whilst we
continue to evaluate the impact of these
two risks, our assessment is that they are
not principal risks for Genus.

From our broad risk universe, we

have identified ten principal rsks, which
we regularly evaluate based on an
assessment of the likelinood of accurrence
and the magnitude of potential impact,
1ogether with the effectiveness of our

risk mitigation controls

The Directors confirm that they have
undertaken a robust assessment of

the principal and emerging risks and
uncertainties facing the Group. More
information on our risk management
framework can be found in the Corporate
Governance Statement on page 56

Read more on plé - p7

Delivering a differenticted
proprietary genetic offering

Focusing on large and prograssive
protein producers globally

Sharing in the value delivered
Considered for Viability Assessment

Risk item focused on sustainability



Risk

Strategic Risks

DEVELOPING
PRODUCTS WITH
COMPETITIVE
ADVANTAGE

STRATEGIC LINK

CONTINUING TO
SUCCESSFULLY
DEVELOP
INTELLIGEN
TECHNOLOGY

STRATEGIC LINK

Risk description

Development programmes
fail to produce best genetics
for customers.

Increased competition

to secure elite genetics.

Failure to manage the
technical, production and
financial risks associated
with the rapid development
of the IntelliGen business.

STRATEGIC REPORT

How we manage rlsk

Dedicated teams align our product
development 1o customer requirements.

We use large-scale data and advanced
genomic ancalysis to ensure we meset our
breeding goals, We frequently measure

our performance against competitors in
clstomers’ systems, to ensure the value
added by our genetics remains competitive,

Cur continued developrment of the
technology and its deployment to new
markets 1s supported by dedicated internal
resourcaes and agreements with suppliers.

Further patent infnngement praceedings
niticited by ST in the US are being vigorously
defended.

DEVELOPING AND
COMMERCIALISING
GENE EDITING

AND OTHER NEW
TECHNOLOGIES

STRATEGIC LINK

CAPTURING
VALUE THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS

STRATEGIC LINK

GROWING
IN EMERGING
MARKETS

STRATEGIC LINK

SUSTAINABILITY

STRATEGIC LINK

Failure to develop
successfully and
commercidlise gene-
editing technologies due
to technical, intellectual
property {'IP'), market,
regulatory or financial
barriers.

Competitors secure 'game-
changing' new technology.

We stay aware of new technology
opportunities through a wide network of
academic and industry contacts. Our Genus
Portfolic Steenng Committee oversees our
research, ensures we correctly pricritise
our R&D investments and assesses the
adeguacy of resources and the relevant P
landscapes, We have formal collaboration
agreements with key partners, to ensure
responsible exploration and development
of technologies and the protection of IP.
The Board is updated regularly on key
development projects.

Failure to identify
appropriate investment
opportunities or to perform
seund due diligence.
Failure to successfully
integrate an acquired
business.

Failure to appropriately
develop our business in
China and other emerging
markets.

Failure to lead the market in
sustainable animal protein
production and help our
customers to meet the
challenge of producing
meet and milk efficiently
and sustainably.

Failure to fulfil our
commitment to reduce the
environmental impact of
our own operations and
implement our Climate
Change Policy.

We have a rigorous acquisition analysis
and dug diligence process, with the Board
reviewing and sigring off all material
nrojects. We also have a structured
post-acquisition integration planning

and execution process.

Our organisation blends local and expatriate
executives, supported by the global species
teams, to allow us to grow our business In key
markets, while managing risks and ensuring
wea comply with our global standards. We
also establish local partnerships where
oppropriate, to increase market access.

We have o global sustainability strategy and
climate change policy that are opproved,
and regularly reviewed, at Board level.

Cur Sustaincbility Committee oversees the
implementation of the strategy and the
annual objective setting process as well as
monitors progress using key performance
indicators. The Boara is updated regularly
on the progress of the key intiatives and

our prograss aganst the annual targets.

47

Risk change in 2021

No change.

No change. We continue to
improve our technology and

1o innovate, enhancing fertiity
nutcomes and processing
efficiency, with the next
generation of IntelliGen, Gen2
recently launched. We aiso
continue to increase IntelliGen's
global deployment, secunng
naw third-party custamaers

Na change. Key initiatives
cantinue to progress through
the R&D lifecycle, and we
maintain the high level of
investment needed to bring
the end products to market

No change. We continue to work
ciligently to identify areas of
cpportunity consistent with aur
strategic plons and our aim to
accelerate growth and create
value for our shareholders.

Our experiences with post-
acqguisition integration provide
a platform for integrating newly
acguired businesses.

Increased.

This 18 due to market price
volatility and uncertainty
affecting production and
profitability in the China pork
market.

New principal risk.

There has been o substantial
increase in consurmer and
investor focus on climate
change during the year.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

Risk

Risk description

Operational Risks

PROTECTING IP

STRATEGIC LINK

ENSURING
BIOSECURITY AND
CONTINUITY OF
SUPPLY

STRATEGIC LINK

HIRING AND
RETAINING
TALENTED PEQOPLE

STRATEGIC LINK

Financial Risks

MANAGING
AGRICULTURAL
MARKET AND
COMMODITY
PRICES VOLATILITY

STRATEGIC LINK

> Failure ta protect our
1P could mean Genus-
developed genetic material,
methods, systems and
technology become freely
available to third parties.

> Loss of key livestock,
owing to disease outbreak.

> Loss of ability to move
animals or semaen freely
{including across borders)
due to disease cutbreak,
environmental incident or
international trade sanctions
and disputes.

> Lower demand for our
products, due to industry-
wide disease outbreaks.

> Failure t¢ attract, recruit,
develop and retain the
giobal talent needed to
deliver our growth plans
and R&D programmes.

> Flyctuations in agricultural
morkets affect customer
profitability and therefore
demand for our products
and services.
Increase in aur operating
costs due to commadity
pricing volatility.

> The COVID-1¥ outbreak
increased volatility and
introduced significant new
financ<ial and operational
pressure across ggricultural
markets.

How we mahage rlsk

We have a globa!, cross-functional process
to ientify ond protect our IP. Our customer
contracts and our selection of multipliers and
jontventure portners include appropriate
measures to protect our IP. We maintam

\P appropricte landscape watches and
where nacessary conduct robust ‘freedom
o operdte’ searches, to identify thirg-party
rights to technology.
We have stringent biosecunty standards,
with independent reviews thraughout the
yeor to ensura compliance, We investigate
biosecurity incidents, to ensure learning
across the organisation. We regularly review
the geographical diversity of our production
facilities, to avoid over-reliance on single
sites.

We have a robust talent and succession
planning process, including annual
assessments of our global talent pool and
active leadership development progrommes
The Group's reward and remuneration
policies are reviewed regularly, to ensure
ther competitiveness. We work closely with
several specialist recruitment agencies, to
dentify candidates with the skills we need

We continuously moenitor markets and seek to
balance cur costs and resources In response
to market demand. We actively monmitor and
update our hedging strategy to manage

our exposure. Qur porcine royalty model

and extensive use of third-party muitipliers
mitigates the impact of cychcal price and/or
cast changes in pig production.

Risk change in 2021

No change.

increased, This is due to the
continued global supply

chain challenges imposed by
the COVID-19 outbreak, the
continued spread of ASF as
well gs the rising geopolitical
tension. Qur geographically
diverse production facilities and
the expert knowledge of our
supply chain ond commercial
teams allowed for o swift and
comprehensive response to
these challenges, which helped
{o reduce their impact.

No change. We have been
largely successfulin recruiting
and retaining the appropriate
skills ot ali levels, to meet our
business growth plans.

InCreasad.

This is dlue to iIncreased feed
Input costs as a result of higher
groin prices, triggered by
weather patterns and

strong demand.

In adcition, the China pork
market continued to deal with
the chalienges of ASF, price
dechne ond higher input costs.



GOING CONCERN AND VIABILITY STATEMENT

In assessing the appropriateness of

adopting the going concern basis of

preparing the financial statements as well

as in assessing viability, the Board have

taken into account:

> Genus's Strategic Plan which forms
part of management's best estimate of
the future performance and position of
the Group;

> (Genus's risks and uncertainties
including uncertainty arising from
COVID-19 and its impact on our
people, our customers and cur critical
business processes. Having now been
through over a yaar of Jdeuling with
the risks and impacts of COVID-19, we
believe that our mitigating controls
have been largely successful and
based on experience we do not expect
new COVID-19 impacts that could not
be largely mitigated. We therefore
expect that the Group will remain
resilient to the challenges of COVID-19;

> (Genus's rasuits at 30 June 2021
whereby the Group recorded adjusted
profit before tax growth of 29% in
actual currency,

> Genus's strong cash position at
30 June 2021 with free cash flow of
£375m (2020: £35 2ml ond net debt
of £105.6m (2020: £102.6m} and had
substantial headroom of £130m {2020:
£125.4m] under the Group's credit
faciities of £240m;

> Genus's credit faciity agreement which
consists of @ £150m multi-currency
RCF, @ USD125m RCF and a USD20m
and guarantee facility. The term of
the facility was far three years, to
August 23, with an option to extend
the maturity date before the first and
second anniversaries of the signing
date for a further year. In July '21, we
requested the first one year extension
opticn and this was approved by all
lenders in August '21. The facility also
includes an uncommitted £100m
accordion option which can be
requested on a maximum of three
occasions over the lifetime of the
facility to fund the Group's business
develepment plans; and

> The potential use of mitigating actions
including reduction in dividends and
postponing certain capital spend
and investments.

As part of the Directors’ consideration

of the appropriateness of adopting the

geing cencern basis n preparing the

financial statements, as well as their

assessment of the Group's viability, the

Board considered a number of key factors,

including our business model {see page

10), and our strategic framework {see

page 16). In addition, all principal risks

identified by the Group were considered

in a downside scenang within the viability

assessment with specific focus paid

1o those that could reasonably have

o material impact within our outinok

period, including:

> Growing in emerging markets, which
we have modelied through reductions
to short-term growth expectations,
particularly in Ching;

> Developing products with competitive
advantage, modelled through
reductions to short-term growth
expectations as a resuit of failing
to produce best genetics for our
customers or 1o secure elite genetics;

> Managing agricultural market
and commodity prices volatility,
modelled through reductions in price
expectations, particularly in Ching; and

> Ensuring biosecurity or continuity of
supply, which is modelled through one-
off impacts of disease outbreaks or
border closures.

We have considerad the position if
each of the identified principal risks
materiglised individually and where
multiple risks occur in parallel.

In addition, we have overlaid this
downside scendrio net of mitigating
actions, with reverse stress tests on both
our headroom and banking covenants to
ensure the range above and beyond the
downside scenario is fully assessed.

Based on this assessment our headroom
under these sensitivities and reverse stress
tests, including our mitigating actions,
remain adequate.
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In their assessment of the Group's viability,
tha Directors have determined that a
three-year time horizon, to June 2024,

is an appropriate period to adopt. This
was based on the Group's visibility of

its product development pipeline, for
example, as a result of the genetic lag of
approximately three years between the
porcing nucleus herds and customers’
production systems and the pipeline of
young bulls. The Board also considered
the nature of the principal risks affecting
Genus, Including the agricultural markets
inwhich it cperates.

Based on this assessment, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that

the Group has adeguate resources to
continue its operational existence for the
foreseeable future and for a pericd of

at least 12 months from the date of this
report. Accordingly, the Directors continue
to adopt and consider appropriate the
going concern basis in preparing the
Annual Report.

Also, based on this assessment, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Group will be able to continue In
operation and meet its liabiiities as they
fall due over the pericd to June 2024,

There are no indications from this
assessment that change this expectation
when looking beyond June 2024 at the
Croup's longer-term prospects,

The Strategic Report was approved by
the Board of Directors on 8 Septernber
2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Wilson
Chief Executive
8 September 2021

Alison Henriksen
Chief Financial Officer
8 September 2021
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

PROVIDING

LEADERSHIP AND OVERSIGHT

During my first
year at Genus,

{ have seen

first hand that
we have an
effective Board.

IAIN FERGUSON

Strong corporate governance
is the foundation for every
successful business. A robust
governance framework,
combined with clear
authorities ond processes,
allows the Board 1o set

the executive team free to
manage the business. At
the same time, appropriate
feedback ioops enable

the Board to oversee and
support the impiementation
of strategy.

During my first year ot Genus, | have

seen first hand that we have an effective
Board, including strong Committee

chairs and a group of Non-Executives
with a wide range of necessary skilis and
experiences. The Board is ably supported
by our Company Secretorial team,
including clear meeting agendaos that
highlight the relevant stakeholder interests
against each item we need to consider.

The Executive Directors wers both
appocinted 1o their roles in the previous
financial year, Stephen Wilson is providing
the forward-thinking leadership that
business such as Genus needs, | want

10 note here how weall Alison Henrnksan
has settled in to Genus, She is brnging
her own approach to reporiing and the
operation of the inance function, ensuring
we achieve the planned benefits from our
investment in GenusCne, developing a
new target operating model for finance
and helping to ensure we leverage the
benefits of cur scale, for example by
crecting a single procurement function,
This work will ensure we take G consistent
approach around the world, while
improving our efficiency and simplifying
the integrotion of any future acquisitions
we might make,



The Board's capabilities were reflected
in the performance evaluation during
the year, which showed that the
Board's strengths remain consistent
with prior years, and identified

areas for further development.

The ongoing pandemic has required

the Board, and many of our colleagues
across the Group, to work remotely during
the year. | am pleased to say that the
Group's robust controls, coupled with
prior investments in technology such as
Microsoft Teams, has meant this has not
compromised our governance structures.

Locking forward, the Board is cognisant
of the current geopolitical challenges
and the need to maintain appropricte
governance structures in markets where
the Group has sizeable and growing
businesses. This will remain an area of
focus for the Board in the coming years,

lain Ferguson CBE
Non-Executive Chairman
8 September 2021

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
2018 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
During the year ended 30 June 2021
Genus plc applied all the principles of
the Code and has complied with all

the provisions except for Provision 38,
Provision 38 provides that Executive
Director pension contriution rates should
be in line with those available for the
wider workforce. Qur Remuneration Palicy,
which was opproved by shareholders on
14 Novernber 2019, states that pension
contribution rates for Executive Directers
appointed after that date will be in

line with rates available to the wider
workforce. The pension contribution

rate for Stephen Wilson was reduced

at that time from 15% of base salary to
10% of base salary and will be discussed
with shareholders as part of our next
Remuneraticn Policy that will be tabled
to shareholders at the Annucl General
Meeting in 2022.
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KEY GOVERNANCE
ACTIVITIES

The Board's key
governance activities
during the year have
included:

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board undertook its annual
performance evaluation, reviewed
progress against prior year objectives
and identified pricrities for FY22

Read maore on p.&4d — p.61

UPDATING THE BOARD'S SKILLS
MATRIX

The Board reviewed its skills matrix
and identified its strengths and areas
for improvement to consider through
development and recruitrent

Read more on p.&4

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
RECRUITMENT

Professor Jason Chin joined the Beard
in April 2021 following the retirerment of
Professor lan Charles

Read mare anpé2 — p.6sd
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LEADERSHIP

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AND COMPANY SECRETARY

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

BOARD APPOINTMENT
SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

CURRENT APPOINTMENTS

PAST APPOINTMENTS

KEY TO COMMITTEES
Member of the
Nomination Committeg
Member of the
Remuneration Committee
Member of the
Audit & Risk Cammittee
Committee Chair

IAIN FERGUSON CBE
Non-Executive Chairman

July 2020 )
» Extensive Board, governance
and leadership experience
> Strong commercial, science

and agribusiness expertise
across a range of industries,
with & particular focus on
consumer goads and food
Deep appreciation of
capital markets and invester
santiment

v

Charman of Crest Nicholson
Holdings pic; Chairman of
Personal Assets Trust plc.

Non-Executive Drrector of
Sygen International ple;
Chairman of Berendsen pic;
Chairman of Stobart Group
Lt Senicr Independent
Director of Balfour Beatty ple;
Non-Executive Director of
Greggs plc; Lead Independent
Drector at the Departmaent for
Erwvironment, Food and Rural
Affairs; Chief Exacutive of Tate
& Lyle plc; Generat Manager
of Unilever AgriBusiness; Chair,
Uniever Piantations and Plant
Sciences Group: and Senior
Vice President, Corporate
Development at Unilever,

STEPHEN WILSON
Chief Executive

January 2013 ) B

> Six years s Group Finance
Director at Genus with
wide-ranging operational,
strategic and business
development responsibilities

> Extensive experience over
30 years in technalogy

businesses, including finance,

mergers ond acquisitions, T
transformation and investor
refations

> International experience
lving and waorking in Europe
and the US

> Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Management
Accountants

None

Group Finance Director of
Genus pic; Executive Vice
Prasident and Chief Financial
Otfhcar of Misys plc; finance and
business development roles

at IBM; and Non-Executive
Director and Audit Committee
Chair of Xchanging pic.

ALISON HENRIKSEN
Chief Financial Officer

January 2020 ~ _
> Over 25 yaars of international
experience in finance,
mergers and acquisitions,
business transformation and
Investor relations operating
across Europe, Australia, Asia,
the US and South Africo
Proven track record of drving
performance in public and
privately held organisations,
tboth business to busingss
ond business to consumer
> Qualfied as Chartered
Accountant with Ernst &
Young

v

None

Chief Financial Officer of
V.Group, a global leader in ship
maonagement; Finance Director,
UK & Ireland and Finance
Director, Australia, ot Compass
Group ple: and Chief Fincnaiat
Officer of Speaigity Fashion
Group Ltd, a former ASX listed
cCOMpany.



LYSANNE GRAY
Non-Executive Director

April 2014

> Significant
experience of risk
management, audit,
business operations,
acquisitions
and disposals,
and corporate
governance, gained
within the food sector

> Chartered accountant

Executive Vice President
Sustainable Business
Parformance and
Reporting at Unilever
ple.

Financial Controller

at Unilever plc and
Unilever NV, Chief
Auditor of Unilever;
Chief Financial Officer
of Unilever's giobal
food service business;
and a number of other
senior operational and
fingncial positions within
Unilever.

LYKELE VAN DER
BROEK
Non-Executive
Director; Workforce
Engagement Director

July 2014

> Vast experience of
growing companies
and waorking
in agricultural
businesses throughout
the world, including in
emerging markets

Chc;i} oﬁid en Research
pic.

Member of the Board

of Management of
Bayer CropScience, a
division of Bayer AG;
senior international roles
including the Head of
Bayer CropScience'’s
BioScience division; and
President of the Bayer
HealthCare Animal
Health division.

LESLEY KNOX

Senior Independent
Birector; Workforce
Engagement Director

June 2018

> Broad international,
strategic and financial
services experience,
both through
exacutive and non-
executive roles

> Has advised
numerous
companies including
manufacturers
and distnioutors
of food products,
encompassing poultry
and poultry breeding
companies

Non Executive
Director, Voice of the
Employee Director

and Remuneration
Committee Chair of
Legal & General plc

and Chairman of Legal
& General Investment
Management Holdings.

Founder Director of
British Linen Advisers;
Governor of British Linen
Bank Group; senior roles
as Dresdner Kleinwort
Benson; solicitor at
Slaughter & May; and
nUmMerous hon-executive
rcles, including Centrica,
SAB Miller, Aliance Trust,
Hays, Scottish Provident,
Bank of Scotland,
Grosvenor Group and
Thomas Cook.
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PROFESSOR
JASON CHIN
Non-Executive Director

April 2021

> Extensive experience
in academic and
cormmercial research
institutions, giving
him deep scientific
expertise

Working to develop
and apply methods
for reprogramming
the genetic code of
living organisms, with
research spanning
chemistry, chemical
biology and synthetic
biology

Holds Associote
Faculty status at the
Wellcome Sanger
Institute, where he
researches synthetic
genomics

Fellow of the
Academy of Medical
Sciences and Trinity
College, Cambridge
Head of the Centre for
Chemical and Synthetic
Biology, at the Medical
Research Counci!
Laboratory for Molecular
Biology.

v

v

v

Pasitions on the scientific
advisery boards of g
number of companies,
including Synaffix BV
and Orbit Discovery
Limited, where he retaing
an advisory role.

DAN HARTLEY
Group General
Counsel and Company
Secretary

June 2014 _

> Significant experience
in multi-jurisdictional
patent litigation,
mergers and
acguisitions, patent
and technology
licensing and
managing product
life cycles

Degrees in science
and law

v

Senior Vice President
and tntermational
Counsel of Shire plc; and
senior and global roles
in private practice, in the
UK and the US.



54 GENUS PLC / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

LEADERSHIP CONTINUED

GENUS EXECUTIVE
LEADERSHIP TEAM ("GELT')

STEPHEN WILSON ALISON HENRIKSEN DAN HARTLEY

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Group General Counsel
and Campany Secretary

See pages 52 and 53 for

Stephen's, Alson's and Dan's

bicgraphies.

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

CAREER



ANGELLE ROSATA
Group HR Director

> Deep and broad
expertise spanning
resourcing, talent
managemsant,
succession
planning, leadership
development and
health and safety

> Extensive HR strategic
planning skills and
commercial acumen

> Maostersin
Human Resource
Development from
Vanderbilt University

Joined Genus in
September 2013,
following more

than 20 years in tha
healthcare sector
Developed and
delivered PIC's people
strategy, before
becoming HR Director
for ABS and then
Group HR Director on
1 July 2017

Vo

'

DR BILL
CHRISTIANSON
Chief Cperating
Officer, Genus PIC

> Deep understanding
of agriculture and
biotechnology,
with broad industry
knowledge and
extensive commercial
and globaf
experience

> DVM and PhD in
Veterinary Medicine
from the University of
Minnesota

W

Joined Genus in 1993
and subsequently
worked in operational

roles spanning Europe,

South America

and the US, before
becoming General
Mariager of PIC North
Americain 2007

Led the combined
ABS and PIC business
ACross the Americas
from 2010, before
becoming COO of
Genus PIC in 2012

A

JERRY THOMPSON
Chief Operating
Officer, Genus ABS
Beef

> A natural entrepreneur

with deep industry
knowledge,
commercicl skills
and international
expenence

> Has helped Genus
astablish and
grow businessesin
countries as diverse
as the UK, Russia,
India and China

> Holds a degree In
Agriculture from the
University of Plymouth
and is a graducte
of Harvard Business
School's Advanced
Management
Program

> Joined PIC in 1992,
working initially in the
UK and then Siberia
and Romania, before
leading PIC in Central
and Eastermn Europe
and then Europe as ¢
whole

> Led PIC and ABS
in Russia and Asia
Pacific, before
becoming COQ for
Genus Asia in 2012
and then COQ for
Genus ABS Beefin
July 2016
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DR NATE ZWALD

Chief Operating

Cfficer, Genus ABS

Dairy o

> Deep expertise and
experience of dairy
geneatics, strong
commercial focus and
passion for people
development

> Board member of
the Council on Dairy
Cattle Breeding and
Vice President of the
National Association
of Animal Breeders

> Degree in Dairy
Science, MBA and
PhD in Dairy Cattle
Genetics from the

University of Wisconsin

v

_onir;ediG'enus in
January 2077 after 15

years at Alta Genetics,

including ten years as
General Manager of
its US business and
maore than two years
as Global Marketing
Director

Rernains involved

in his family's
commercial dairy
operation, Bomaz
farm in the US, which
has produced high-
ranking industry and
ABS sires

Vv

DR ELENA RICE
Chief Scientific Officer
and Headt of R&D

>

v

WV

v

Deep expertise

in running R&D
programmes,
regulatory science
and portfolic
management

who has led the
development and
introduction of new
genetic Improvermneant
technologies and
nurtured a portfolio of
gene editing projects
BSc and MSc in
Biclogy from Moscow
State University,

and PhD in Plant
Physiclogy and
Biochemistry from the
Timiryazav Institute

of Plant Physiology in
Mascow o
Joined Genus as Chief
Scientific Officer and
appeinted to GELT on
15 July 2019

Spent 18 years in
increasingly senior
roles within Bayer,
leading teams using
picneering science
and cutting-edge
technology to help
farmers grow food
more sustainably
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

THE BOARD

THE BOARD'S ROLE

The Board is respansible for ensuring our long-term success.
It approves our strategy and corperate goals and monitors
our performance against them; determines that we have the
necessary resources, systems and controls to achieve our
objectives; and sets the culture and standards of behaviour
we want 1o see throughout Genus.

The Board is also responsible for other critica! decisions. These
include approving the corporate budget; strass-testing our
scenarns planning to ensuring we have the rght funding,
approving material contracts, acquisitions, icences and
investments; and reporting to shareholders,

THE BCARD'S COMPOSITION

At the year end, the Board comprised the Non-Executive
Chairman, four independent Non-Executive Directors (NEDs')
and two Executive Directors — the Chief Executive and the Chief
Financial Officer. This gives a majority of NEDs on the Board.

There were a number of changes to the Board's composition
durng the year, More information can be found in the Chairman’s
Letter on page 50.

The Board comprises both well-established and newer NEDs, as
we have broadened the Board's skills and experience through
Non-Executive appointments over recent years, As ¢ result, the
Board has an appropricte blend of different areas of expertise,
long-stonging knowledge of the Group ond 1ts morkets, and

Titie individual Responsibifities

freshar parspectives. This halps to ensure the Board provides
evan-nanded oversight, works in g constructive and focused
manner and has the capabilities to manage the challenges
of o complex and evolving global business environment.

Alrnost all of our Directors have held leadership positions in
international companies, with saveral having run businesses
overseas. Several of our Directors, Including the Chair of the
Audit & Risk Committee, have significant financial experience,
while others have strong backgrounds in scientific research
ar inleading science-based businesseas.

The Board believes that all of the NEDs are indepandent in
character and judgement, and that there are no relationships or
crcumstances that are likely to affect {or could appear to affect}
their judgement, Following the performance evaluation described
on page 60, the Board also confirms that all the Directors
continue to be effective in their roles.

As required by the Code, all the Directors will offer themselves
for election at the next AGM. Details can be found in the Notice
of AGM.

BOARD ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

To ensure we have clear responsibilities at the top of the

Comgpany, the Board has set out well-defined roles for

the Chairman and Chief Executive. These, along with the '
responsiilities of our other Directors, are summarised in the

toble below.

CHAIRMAN IAIN FERGUSCN

CHIEF EXECUTIVE STEPHEN WILSON

CHIEF FINANCIAL ALISON HENRIKSEN

OFFICER

SENIOR LESLEY KNOX'

INDEPENDENT

NED

NEDs LYSANNE GRAY?, 7
LYKELE VAN DER BROEK,

JASON CHIN

T Ao a Woreeforce Engage rent Diracta-
2 Asothe Board's SustandD Ity Soonsar

sharehalders in the absence of the Chair and Chief Exacutive,

Jain's primary responsibility 15 to Jead the Boord and ensure it operates effectively, .
He achieves this in part through promoting an cpen culture, which allows people 1o

challenge the status quo, and holding meetings with the NEDs without the Executives ;
present. lain also communicates directly with shareholders,

Stephen is responsible for devising and implementing our strategy and for managing our
day-to-day cperations. He is accountable to the Board for the Group's development, in
line with its strategy, taking nto account the nsks, objectives and policies set out by the
Board and its Committees.

Alisonis responsiple for helping the Chief Executive 10 devise and implement the
strategy, and for managing the Group's financial and cperational performance.

Lesley provides a sounding board for the Chair and is an alternative line of
communicotion between the Chair ond other Directors. She Jeads meetings of the
NEDs, without the Charr prasent, 1o approise the Chair's performance, and consults with

The NEDs constructively challenge, oversee and help 1o progress the execution of our
strateqy, the management of the Group and the management of cur governance
structures, within the nsk and control framework set by the Board,



BOARD AND COMMITTEE STRUCTURE
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The diagram below shows the Beard and the Committees that report to it:

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE
Ensures the integrity of our
financial reporting, evaluates
our risk management and
internal contral system, and
oversees the internal and
external auditors.

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Provides direction and
oversight for continuous
improvement in our
environmental sustainability,
health and safety, animal
well-being and community
engagement.

GELT

COMMITTEE REPORTING TO
THE AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE’

BOARD COMMITTEES
The table below shows Board Committee membership at the
year end:

Committee o
Diractor Audt&Risk  Nomration  Remunerction
iqin Ferguson B = -
StepHen_Wﬂso_n T T T " ) .
J;Iis;niHemiksen _ ST
Lysorn ng Girm; i c v M_ _
Lykele van der Broek M v
Les-\ey-KrTox_ h M M C _
JasoncChin T T T T M T T W .

The Committee Chairs oversee and lead the Committees'
activities, within their terms of reference, and are responsible for
their effective operation. More information about the roles and
work of the Board Committees can be found in their statements
on pages 62 to 93, and in their terms of reference on our website
at www.genusplc.com.

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The table opposite shows how many Board and Commuttee
meetings each Director attended during the year.

INFORMATION FLOW TO THE BOARD

The diagram below sets out our process for 1
providing information to the Directors, ahead
of scheduled Board meetings. This ensures our
Board is well informed and the Directors can
contribute effectively to discussions.

To assst the Directars with discharg-ng therr duties Lrder s172
of the Cormparnies Act, each iterr inc.uded in the Board paoers

Indicates the relevant §172 considgerations More information
can be fourd in the 5172 Statement on page 44

The Chairman
sets tne agenda
for the meetng,
witminpLt frorm
the Chief
Executive ard
Group Company
Secretary

Leads our strategic delivery and ensures
organisationai alignment, engagement and
efficient execution.

BOARD COMMITTEES

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Determines remuneration for
our Executive Directors and
senior manageament, to
support our growth strategy
andg deliver valuse
for stakeholders

GENUS PLC BOARD

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Reviews the Board's structure,
size and compositicn and
proposes candidates for
appointment to the Board

GENUS PORTFOLIO STEERING COMMITTEE

Gives us a comprahensive view of our R&D
programme and involves our business units in

prioritising our RE&D initiatives.

OTHER TEAMS REPORTING TO THE BOARD

Dhrectar Bocra Nomination Aucit & Risk  Remuneratsn
Non-Executive

Chairman

Bob Lawson (retired 474 1/1 33 3/3
25 November 2020}

lain Ferguson® 8/8 474 5/52 5/5
Executive Directors

Stephen Wilson a8/8 44 5/5° 5/5¢
Alison Henriksen 8/8 4747 5/57 5/5¢
Non-Executive

Directors

Lysanne Gray 8/8 4/4 5/5 5/5
Lykele van der Broek 8/8 L4 5/5 5/5
Lesley Knox 8/8 4i4 5/5 5/5
lan Charles 8/8 L4 5/5 5/5
{stepped down

31 May 2021)

Jason Chin 2/2 n/a 1/1 1/1
lappointed

1 April 2021)

MNote The maximum numier of meetings trat Directo-s coula have atterded
ourng the year Board B, Nominat or Cammittee 4, Audht & Ris< Commitrae 5 and

Remuneraton Committee 5

1 Positior correct at 30 June 2027 The Roard has opproved cranges to the
governance structure of the Sustancbuty Committee which will comre into
effect in FY22. Trese are discussed nmore deta’l or poge 38

2 By nvitation

3 lainFerguson joimed tre Board on T July 2020 and became Cnarrman on Bob

Lawson's retirement

2 3

Aweek before Board meetings

tre meetng, taxe prace at
the agenda and ‘east aight umes
Board papers oer year

are sent to the
Directorsusing o
secure electronic
system

4 5

The upaatea

list of actions
becomes part of
the agenaa for

Decsiors and
achions agreea
at the meeting
are monitared

by the Group the next Board
Company rMeeting.
Secretary.
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THE BOARD'S YEAR IN REVIEW

The Board held eight scheduled meetings

during the year. At each scheduled

meeting, the Board receives updates on:

> business performance, business
development, talent development and
competitive landscape developments
from the Chief Executive;

> financial performance of the business
and ferecasts from the Chief Financial

Officer; and

One Board meeting ecch year is usually
held outside the UK, However, due 1o the
CQVID-19 pandemic, this could not take
place during the year. In addition to the
Board meetings, the Board also holds an
annual strategy session, focusing on the
strategic direction and goals of the Group
and its business units. This took place in
January 2021

> corporate governance and lagal issues
from the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary, and external

odvisers.

Topic and link

to our strategy Acthvity Actions ausing

LEADERSHIP AND Monitor Board Internal evaluation undertaken during the year,
EFFECTIVENESS effectiveness

LINK TQ OUR STRATEGY N h - - i

Staceroders £, 5
si72 congiderations, &, b

BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT
& STRATEGY
LINK TG OUR STRATEGY

Starero.agers. S, C, SC
5172 considerot ans. a

RESEARCH &
DEVELOPMENT
LINK TO QUR STRATEGY

Staxeroaers 5.C
$172 consgergtons 9, ¢

Updated on talent initiatives and management outcomeas
including the appointment of key management positions.

Manitor pipeline of
senior talent

Monitor progress against

Held strategy session with GELT and other business

our strategic objectives  leaders.
Raview and approve Avproved:
business activities >

Expansion of production capacity and signing of a
new lease at a PIC elite nucleus farm in China.

> Construction of a third new IntelliGen production
facility and additional bull housing at the ABS Leeds
expansion.

Construction of additional bull housing at ABS Dekorra.

> Acquisition of Xelect Limited, an aqua genatics
business.

> Acquisition of the customer base of Sergal Gestio.
Ramaderg, S.L, @ Spanish boar stud operagior.

> The lease and construction of a new PIC elite nucleus
farrm in China

Maorutor strategic Receved updates on:

developments > Litigation relating to IntelliGen technology

> Continued progress with the PRRSv
development programme.

> Competitor activities.

> Material business development opportunities,
including summaries of due dingence.

> Sustainability strategy and progress against
the Company's Climate Change Policy targets.
GenusOne enterprise management system.

> Integration of COVID-19 business adjustments

ond the impact on employees and customers

Monitor R&D progress

Received updates on:

> R&D programmes and material investments.

> The R&D stage gate review process for research
programmes.

> The progress of the PRRSv development programme
and InteliGen improvements.

> New initiatives in the areas of reproductive technologies

and scientific data
> lon Charles and Jason Chin's attendance ot GPSC
meetings.

The table below provides more detail

of the Board’s discussions and activities,
and the outcomes from them. it also

sets out how each topIc suppaorts the
delivery of our strategy and the fulfilment
of the Directors’ duties under 172 of the
Cormnpanies Act

Progress

Focus aregs identified
(see page &0)

See above

See pages 26 10 29

The Board approved the
establishment of an
Independent Sclentific
Advisory Committee
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Topic and knk
to our strategy Activity Actions anising Progress
EMPLCYEES Review recruitment Received updates or See pages 34 10 37

LINK TO OUR STRATEGY PiPeline

Stakeholders E
<172 consderatons o, 0

Update on employee
feedback

Monitor investor attitudes

SHAREHOLDERS
LINK TO OUR STRATEGY TOWaras Genus

Stakeholders: S
5172 considerations. ¢, f

Monitor performance

COMPANY

PERFORMANCE against plan
AND FINANCE

LINK TO OUR STRATEGY

Stakehaolders: § E o _d
5172 considerations: eview past an

o, f projected financial
performance

Monitor key financial
issues

EXECUTIVE/GELT Monitor business unit
UPDATES

LINK TO OUR STRATEGY

Stakeholders £, 5 C, 5C
5172 considerations’ o

HEALTH & SAFETY Ensure strong culture of
LINK To OUR $TRATEGY Nealth and safety

Stakeholders E
5172 considerations b

RISK
MANAGEMENT

LINK TO OUR STRATEGY

and control

Stakehalecers S
5172 cors.derations a,

petformance and pians

Monitor risk management

> Key vacancies and hires, including the Head of
Reproductive Biology, Global Procurement Director

and Head of Internal Audit.

> Talent development in leadership below GELT level.
> Your Voice employee engagement survey.

Held town hall meetings with employees and the Chief
Executive, and received updates on virtual meetings
between employees and the Workforce Engagement

Directors.

> Updated on meetings with sharehalders, potential

investors and analysts,
> Held Capital Markets Day in June.

> Continued engagement with investors on Genus's

sustainability strategy.

> Received updates on movements in the Company’s

share register.

> Received updates on the operational performance of
the business and market conditions for each division.

> Received updates on business units’

against strategy

performance

> Monitored the Group's performance against its

> Approved the annual and interim resultts and dividends.

> Approved the FY21 budget.

> Received tax and treasury updates.
> Recelved pension updates.

> Received updates on renewal of the Group's external

borrowing facilities.

> Reviewed going concern and viability, and reviewed

reports from the Company’s auditors

> Received financial and opercticnal performance

updates.

> Received regular presentations from each business unit.

> Conducted strategy session comparing performance
of each business unit against previously presented

strategic goals.

> Received regular updates from the business on COVID-

related matters.
> Received an update from AWAKE.

> Received updates on the Employee Well-being Week
and ongoing employee COVID-related updates.

> Reviewed FY21targets for health and safety, and
reviewed progress throughout the year.

> Received updates from the Head of Health & Safety,
incluging progress against relevant KPls.

> Received regular updates on COVID-19 implications

and risk management.
> Monitored the Group's risk register.

> Received updates on the whistleblowing hotiing

reports and investigations.

Key to stakeholders. E = Empioyees, § = Sha-eholders, C = Custormers, 5C = Supoly Chan

Key to 5172 cons.derations.
lal Conseauerce of aec sions In the ang term
{bl Interests of tne Comrpanry’s enoloyees

fc] Need to foster the Comrpany's business re at orships with suopaies, )

customes ond otners,

See pages 46 to 48

Chief Executive held virtual
treakfast meetings
Workforce Engagement
Directors held virtugl
meetings with PIC
employees over breakfast
based at several locations
in Europe ond the US

See pages12tol3

See pages 38 to 41

Seepages18to 29

See paoges 30 to 33

See pages 34 1o 37
See pages 38 to 41

{dl Impact of the Company's operations on tre commurity and envirormeant
{e] Desigbilty of the Company mantain ng a reputotion for h gh standards of

business conduct

Naed to act farly between members of the Company
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ASSESSING THE BOARD'S EFFECTIVENESS

To ensure the Board provides
effective leadership to the
Group, we have a three-year
evaluation cycle, using a
mixture of internal and
external evaluations.

This was the third year of the current
three-year cycla. In last year's Annuat
Repert, we noted the possibility of starfing
a new three-year cycle in FY21, following
the appointment of a new Chairman
Howewver, to alfow ain Fergusen a
sufficient settling in period as Chairman,
the Board decided to perform an internal
review of the type described in year three
of the cycle, with o view to conducting an
external evalugtion in FY22.

YEAR 1
An external Bourd effectiveness review
produces an action plan for the areas
of focus identified by the review.

YEAR 3
Aninternial réview
using questionnaires
and interviews with
the Chair of the
Board.

YEAR 2
A follow-up
questionnaire by
the same extarnal
consultant encables
us to monitor our

progress with
the focus areas.

THE EVALUATION'S CONCLUSIONS

The review showed that the Board is The evaluation also identified the
effective in most areas, 1s well led, and following priarities for the Board in Fy2T:
that the Directors challenge constructively > retaining a strong focus on outward-
ond effectively. The review highlighted the facing awarenass,

following key strengths: > supporting managemeant as it

> odiverse, inclusive and respectful navigates the post-COVID world;
culture; > ongoing Board succession;

> high-calibre individuals, with @ diverse > bolstering experignce in key
range of experience; geographies, and

> ahigh level of trust and confidence in > focusng on ESG and sustainability.
each other,

> acutture that encourages constructive
debote, whilst remaining collegiote;
ond

> genumne interest in and passicn for the
business and its succass.
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Last year's evaluation identified four priorities for FY21. These priorities and the Board's
progress with addressing them are set cut below:

Priority

Progress

Successful transition to the new Chairman and ongoing
Board succession

Obtain greater insight into local and regionai operating
environments and markets, as d result of COVID-19

Retain the focus on leveraging value from R&D

Ensure sufficient time is availlable to consider short- and long-
term strategic topics and 'out of the box’ thinking

WORKFORCE ENGAGEMENT
Lykele van der Broek and Lesley Knox are the designated
Workforce Engagement Directors.

They continued tc engage with employees this year, holding
virtual meetings with PIC staff in the UK, Ireland, Russia, South
Africa and ltaly. The key points employees raised at town hall
meetings are set out In the stakehalder engagement section on
pages 12 to 13 of the Strategic Report. The Board will continue to
monitor progress made against these points.

Looking forward, the intention remains for the Workforce
Engagement Directors to work around the Group's different
sites, 1o collect feedback and specifically to hold face-to-face
meetings with employees as part of the Board's programme of
annual visits. While the ability to meet face-te-face will depend
on the state of the COVID-1? pandemic at the time, virtual
meetings have continued to prove effective if site visits have not
been possible.

PURPQSE, CULTURE AND VALUES

Genus has long been a purpose-driven business, as reflected
in our vision of pioneering animal genetic improvernent to help
nourish the werld. This purpose provides the bedrock for our
strategy, with its rigorous focus on Improving genetics for the
benefit of progressive livestock farmers, and helping them to
maximise their performance on their farms,

To effectively deliver our strategy, and therefore to ultimately
achieve our purpose, it is assential that we have the right culture,
underpinned by o set of values that exemplify the business we
want to be. These values ~ being customer centric, results driven,
pioneering, peopie-focused and responsible — are completely
aligned to both our purpase and our strategy. More information
on our volues can be found on page %

for the Board.

The new Chairman has successfully transitioned into the role
and his induction process continues. The appaintment of NED
Jason Chinin April 2021 reflects the focus on Board succession
and his induction process 1s also ongoing. The Board continues
to focus on Board succession planning more generally. Refer
ta the Nomination Committee Report on pages 62 to 64 far
maore information.

Following the successful rollout of Genus One across North
America, a more detailed and transparent view of each country
is being provided to the Board.

The Board has focused on Gen2 of our IntelliGen technology.
Jason Chin has attended the GSPC since his appointment.

Given the impact of COVID-19 and the need to deal with
the short-term consequences, this remains a focus area

Genus aims to maintain a pesitive, inclusive and cooperative
culture, with a global outlook and a focus on excellent customer
service. The Board has a number of ways of understanding

and monitoring the culture around the business. In particular,
these include the results of the Group's Your Voice employee
survey and the Workforce Engagement Directors’ interactions
with employees during the year as described above. The

Board believes that health and safety performance is another
important indicator of culture and the Directors monitor
performance on a regutar basis.

During a typical year, the Directors also meet numarous people
from around the Group, including members of management
who present at Board mestings and through site visits, giving
them further insight into the culture ccross the Group. Due to the
COVID-19 related travel restrictions in FYZ21, the Board has used
technology te hear voices from around the business. This has
included customer presentations from Genus PIC and virtual site
visits with the PIC leadership team, BQP and Hermitage, as well
as custorner presentations from Genus ABS and virtual site visits
with the ABS leadership team and Arla. The Chief Executive and
Warkforce Engagement Directors alse held employee breakfasts
and town halls across the business (see page 59).

More broadly, the Group's performance process has a strong
focus on behaviours that are aligned to our values, while
succession planning at both Board level and below ensures
that talent pipelines are diverse. The Board also ensures its own
culture is aligned to the culture across the Group through the
annual evaluations of the Board and its Committees.

The Board is therefore satisfied that the Groug's culture is aligned
with its purpose, values and strategy and that our workplace
policies and practices are consistent with them,
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

This continued to be a busy year for

the Committee, as we focused &n my
successful transition as Chairman, the
recruitment of a new NED, Jason Chin,
and our ongoing induction process
through a pandemic and related
restrictions. The Committee olso
continued its broader work on succession
planning, diversity and the mix of skills
and experience on the Board.

lain Ferguson CBE
Chair of the Nomination Committee
8 September 2021

THE COMMITTEE'S ROLE AND

RESPONSIBLILITIES

The Committee is responsible for

> making recommendations to the Board
on the structure, size and compesition
of the Board and its Commitiees;

> evaluating the balance of skills,
experience, independence, knowledge
and diversity on the Board;

> succession planning for the Non-
Executive and Executive Directors and
other senior executives; and

> identifying and recommending suitable
candidates to become Directors,
based on merit.

The Committee has written terms of
referance, which set out the authority
delegated to it by the Board. These
are available from our website:
WWW.genusplc.Coim.

FOCUS AREAS FOR FY21

In lost year's report, we identified two kay

focus areas for the Committee in FY21.

These were:

> 10 ensure g successful induction for lain
Ferguson; and

> to continue progclive SUCCession
planning for key executive roles.

Given the travel restrictons Imposed due
to COVID-12 the Charman's induction
cantnues.

THE COMMITTEE'S MAIN ACTIVITIES
DURING THE YEAR

Appointment of Professor Jason Chin
We appointed Qdgers Bernstson as the
executive recruitment firm to conduct the
search for a new NED, Gdgers Bernstson
has no other connactions with the Group
or with individual Directors.

In cenducting the search, we looked to

dentfy a candidate with:

> first-class acadermic credentials in life
sciences;

> astrong commercial edge, ideally at
an organisation with significant R&D
investment:

> anactive network in the international
life sciences industry,

> the ability to explain complex scientific
concepls in lay terms;

> the credibility to support and
challenge the Chief Socientific Officer
across technical topics,; and

> the right personality ond fit.

Experence in emerging markets was also
seen as beneficial.

From a longlist of candidatas, we
produced a shortlist for interview, with the
rasult that we identifted Jason Chin as the
outstanding candidate.

A summary of Jason's work, roles and
scientific credentiats can be found in his
biography on page 53.



INDUCTION AND TRAINING

A good induction is a key part of
ensuring new Board members can fully
cantribute, so we get the most benefit
from their experience. During the year,
the pandemic prevented travel ond we
therefore supplemented the induction
programme with virtuat meetings.

Our induction programme has three main

elements:

> helping our Board members to conduct
themselves effectively, through
governance course in London;

> ensuring our Directors understand the
legal and regulatory aspects of being
a Beard memper; and

> anintroduction to our business, through
meetings with our management teams
and, when COVID-12 allows, sites visits.

SUCCESSION PLANNING
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Induction for lain Ferguson

lain joined the Board on 1 July 2020. The

initird phase of his Induction included:

> introductory video calls with GELT
members, attending a GELT meeting
in person and in-person meetings with
the Chief Executive, Chief Financial
Officer and Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary;

> introductory video cails with Board
members and attending the July
2020 and May 2021 Board meetings in
person;

> virtual meetings with senior
management across the businesses;

> business presentations from Genus PIC;

> business presentations from Genus
ABS;

> business presentations from Genus
RE&D;

> virtual calls with material investors; and

> calls with corporate advisers;

Induction for Jason Chin

Jason joined the Board on 1 April 2021,

The initial phase of his induction included:

> introductery video calls with Board and
GELT members and the Strategy and
Business Development Director;

> attending the May 2021 Board meeting
in person; and

> virtual attendance at GPSC meetings.

The Committee has a formal three-phase succession planning process:

Assessmant

Approach

Ongoing induction activities

lain and Jason travelled to our Stapeley
arnd Ruthin sites at the end of July 2021,
aleng with the rest of the Board. This
included a tour of the barns and intelliGen
laboratory, a customer site visit and ABS
business presentations.

COVID-19 permitting, lain and Jason

are also scheduled to travel to the US

in QOctober 2021, to visit Peps) Way, the
Reproductive Biology Laboratory, the
Genomics Laboratory, Dekorra and the
nucleus herd, followed by visiting PIC's site
at Henderscnville.

Both lain and Jason are due to attend

a governance course held by the
Company's advisers.

Execution

The Committes reviews the Board's
current skills and experiences across a
range of relevant areas.

This results in a skills matrix (see page
&64), which identifies the skills coverage
across all Board members.

Potential skills gaps are identified, so
they can be incorporated into future
succession planning at Board and
Executive level.

Areas for ongoing Board upskilling are
identified and discussed.

The Committee applies engagemeant

rules for succession planning,

inctuding:

> @nsuring succassion planning is in
line with the Committee’s terms of
reference;

> considering the need to replace
the skills of any departing NED; and

> filling any missing skills required for
the Company’s strategic direction.

Job specifications for the Non-
Executives and Executives are kept up
to date.

The Committee identifies the desired
skills for any new NED, for use in filling
any future vacancies on the Board.

Potential internal candidates for
promotion to Executive Director are
identified.
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Board skills matrix

The table below shows the key experience and skilis the
Committee has identified as desirable and indicates their depth
on the Genus Board.

Competence Low/rredium Goog/nign
Board and corporate governance - 100%
Strategy i - - 00%
Finoﬁce, t;omking c;nd copit;ﬂ mcrkets: 7&3% - 57%
Risk, cmﬁure ch_m-ge oknd-_c-:-hongie N B i -
management - 100%
F_’othcs Qr;j public -offoirs - - -AB% ) 57%
Stokeh(;\-der and“customér ) 7 i
communications 14% B86%
Sustéinc;;ility irrn;;ementa;ion and ) ” 7
communications 57% 43%
Human reso@rces - - - 160%
T syste;ns, trcrnsi;ormatior;rand datc;/ 7 )

cyber security 57% 43%
S_c-:'\ence a;d biotec_hndogy - ) 1:3% ) 57%
Food se;c_tor B - o 100%
Rev?ew, laun;H and mc;rketing o?fdo 7 ) :
regulated products 86% 14%
1mter-nc1gonqﬂ bus-;ess o ) N 14% B 86% )
US market W 7 e 7%
EP;EA mark_e\i ) - i 28;6 772'35
Asicm_ mgrket- o - o _43% B 57%
LATAM market S o aem

Succession planning for key executive roles

The Committee has identified the need to focus on succession
planning for key executive roles, and will make this a priority

in FY22,

DIVERSITY

Genus shares the aspirations of the Hampten-Alexander and
Parker Reviews to promote greater representation of women and
peaple from a minority ethnic background an company baards
At the year end, three of the seven Directors were female (43%),
ahead of the 33% target set by the Hampton-Alexander Review.
The Board will endeavour to retain the 33% target as a mirimum.
There were ofso three female members of GELT, comprising 38%
of the total. The direct reports to GELT, excludhing support staff,
were 23% fermale and 77% male

Our Board diversity policy aims to ensure that we consider
diversity in its broadest sense A diverse Board has members
with different skills, backgrounds, regional and industry
experiences, races, genders and other qualities. The different
viewpoints represented on a diverse Board can help Genus to
maintain its compaetitive advantage. The Board is committed to
building recruitment and leadership development programmes
thot copture inclusivity 1n our succession planning and talent
development, including o focus on appropriate representation
from female and minority ethnic candidates. The Group has

an employee-led forum called AWAKE {Advancing Women's
Advocacy, Knowledge and Empowerment), which brings together
female leaders and o cress-section of other women to develop
ideas for increasing dwersity and improving working practices.

Diversity also links to our values, by being people-focused ond
responsible, and to our strategy by encouraging new ideas which
deliver for our customers and ultimately drive our results,

The Board, with the support of the Nomination Committee:

> considers candidates against objective criteria and with
regard to the benefits of Board diversity;

> encourages the development of high-calibre employees, to
create a pipeline of potential Executive Directors;

> considers o wide poo! of candidates for appointment as NEDs,
including those with little company board experence;

> ansures a significant portion of the longlist for NED
positions are women ond candidates from a minority ethnic
background; and

> only engages executive search firms which have signed up to
the voluntary Code of Conduct on gender and ethnic diversity
and best practice.

The Board complied with the policy throughout the pericd. & copy
of the policy can be found on our website: www.genusplc.com.
The Committee reviewed the policy during the year and
concluded that it remained appropriate.

More information about diversity across Genus can be found in
the Strategic Report on pages 34 to 37

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Copies of service contracts and letters of appointment between
the Directors and the Company will be available for inspection
at the Cornpany's registered office dunng normal business hiours
until the conclusion of the AGM on 24 November 2021, and at
the AGM from at least 15 minutes prior to the meeting until

its conclusion.

COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS AND FOCUS AREAS FOR FY22

As part of the Boord evaluation pracess descrined on poge 60,
the Committea’s performance was reviewed . This identified areas
of focus for the caming year, including talent development and
Executive Director succession planning.,
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AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

The Audit & Risk Committee acts on
behalf of the Board and shareholders,

to ensure the integrity of the Group's
financial reporting, evaluote its system
of risk management and internal control,
and oversee the performance of the
internal and external auditors. We have
an annual work programme that is
designed to deliver these commitments,
which we followed during the year.

On 1 May 2021, lan Charles resigned,
and Jason Chin was appointed. | was
pleased to welcome Jason to the
Committes and | would like to thank
lan for his significant contribution to the
work of the Committee. The Committee's
membership continues to comply with
the UK Corporate Governance Code
and related guidance. All members are
independent NEDs, who bring a sound
range of inancial, commercial and
scientific expertise to the Committee.

All members received regular updates
from the externa! auditor, to ensure they
continue te have current knowledge

of the accounting and financial
reporting standards relevant to the
Group and the regulatery changes
and revisions to auditing standards
relevant to the provision of external
audit services. We also kept up to date
with developments in relation to the
corporate governance requirements.

Cur focus on risk management continued
throughout the year, with regular reviews
and ossessment of the Group's existing
and emerging risks. Durning the year we
received and discussed detailled input
fram management on key risks and
mitigation plans. In particular, we focused
on the risks associated with the CCVID-19
pandemic and its impact econcmies

and communities around the globe.

We reviewed management's assessment
of the COVID-1% impact on internal
financial controls and were satisfied
these controls continued to operate

as designed. We also continued to
recelve frequent updates on the
ongeing implementation of a Group-
wide enterprise system and monitor the
developmaent of its rollout. The system will
further strengthen the control environment
and support control standardisation
across the Group.

We have carefully considered the critical
accounting policies and judgements
and assessed the guality of disclosures
and compliance with financial reporting
standards, and reviewed the half-year
and Annual Report, together with the
related management and extermal
audit reports. We also supported

the Board in reviewing the going
caoncern and viability statements and
supporting anaclysis and disclosure.

We have ossessed the effectiveness of
internal and externcl audit, and their

use of technology and automated tools
to perform audit work whilst observing
the COVID-19 travel and office working
restrictions. The Committee was satisfied
with the performance of both the internal
and external auditors. Our assessment
identified opportunities to further
enhance the audit services provided by
sustaining the capabilities and efficiencies
developed dunng the year.

Lysanne Gray
Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee
8 September 2021
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COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

The Committee members’ biographies,
along with information on Genus's other
Board members, con be found on
pages 52 to 53.

The Board has confirmed that it 1s
satisfied that Committee members
possess an appropriate level of
independence and relevant financial and
commercial experience across various
industries relevant to the Company.

The Committee has formal terms of
reference, approved by the Board,

that comply with the UK Carporate
Governance Code. These are available
from our website: www.genusple.comi
The Committee’s annual review of these
terms tock place during the year.

COMMITTEE ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee's role and responsibilities

include raviewing and monitoring:

> the financial reporting process and
any significant financial reporting
judgements;

> the integrity of the Group's financial
statements and any formal
announcements relating to financial
performance;

= the Annudal Report, to ensure 1t is fair,
balanced and understandabie;

> the Company's reporting to
sharaholders;

> the effectivenass of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting
systems;

> the effectivenass of the Group's system
of risk management and internal
controls:

> the effectiveness of the internal audit
function; and

> the effectiveness, independence and
chjectivity of the Group's external
cuditor, ncluding any non-audit
servicas it provides to the Group,

The Committee also:

> ensures that the Group maintams
suitable confidential arrangements
for employees to raise concerns; and

= reviews the Group's systems and
controls for preventing bribery

The Committee reports its findings to
the Board, identifying any matters that
racquire action ar improvement, and
making recommeandations about the
steps 1o be taken,

COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS

Every three years the Board appoints

an external consultant to independently
evaluate its performance, and that of

its Committees. The last review was
perfarmed in 2019 and concluded that the
Committee was effective in meeting its
obfectives. The naxt external evaluation
will bein 2022,

In 2021, the Cormmittee assessed its

own effectiveness, through a structured
questionnaire, and concluded that it

was effective. The Commitiee agreed

1o continue ta enhance its effectiveness
by further understanding and reviewing
the adequacy of the Company's systems
for identifying and managing risk and
assessing whether the Company has
approprigte business continuity plans and
whether the plans have been tested and
maintaining an up-to-date understanding
about the way our business is develeping
in Geopaclitically challenged countries,

F ranca report ng area

THE COMMITTEE'S MAIN ACTIVITIES
DURING THE YEAR

During the year, the Committes

held five meetings and invited the
Company's Chairman, Chief Executive,
the Chief Financial Officer, the Group
Financial Controller, the Head of Risk
Management and Internal Audit, and
senior representatives of the external
auditor to attend these meetings. The
Committee also held separate private
sessions during the year with the Head
of Risk Management and Internal Audit
and the external audit lead partner,

At its meetings, the Committee focused
on the following topics:

Financial reporting

The main areas of focus and matters
where the Committee specifically
considered management's judgements
are set out below:

Judgements grd assumptions conside ed

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As s set out in Note 2 Basis of Preparation the Company has
changed its accounting policy related to the capitalisation

of certain software assets; this change follows the IFRIC

Intarpretation Cormmittee’s guidance publicised it May 2021

and relates to the capitalisation of costs of configunng or
customising application software under 'Software as a

Service' SaaS} arrangements, The Committee reviewed the
nature of the costs propoesed to be recognised in the Income

Stotement and is sotisfied with the proposed accounting
treatment, and adjustments made to restate the FY19
and FY20 financial statements, in Iine with the new

accounting policy.

This change in accounting policy led to adjustments
armounting to an £81m and £13.3m reduction in the

intangible Assets recognised in the FY19 and FY20 Balance

Sheets respectively, and to a £59m and £5.2m increase in

Cperating Expenses in those respective years,
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BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
VALUATION

GOING CONCERN AND
VIABILITY STATEMENT

PRESENTATION AND
DISCLOSURE OF
EXCEPTIONAL AND
ADJUSTING ITEMS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Judgeme~ts and assurptions corsidered

7Genus had £29.2m of adjusting items, including £3.3m of

In complionce with IAS 41, Genus records its biological assets
at fair value in the Group Balance Sheet (£337.3m), with the
net valuation movement shown in the Income Statement.

The Committee has reviewed the methodology, which

has remained unchanged, and outcomes of the biological
assets valuation. The Cammittee debated and considered
management's assumptions and estimates, through the
current period, and discussed and reviewed the external
auditer's report on this area, before concurnng with
management's proposals. The Committee also received
updates on management's streamlining and automation of
the models which wilt be used for the valuation process. The
Committee was satisfied with management’s accounting
treatment, including the Income Statement increase of
E&.4m in the value of porcine biological assets and the
decrease of £17.2m in the value of bovine biclogical assets.

The Committee has reviewed the Group's assessment of
going concern over a period of 12 months and viability over
a period of three years.

In assessing viability, the Committee has considered the
Group's budget and strategic plan, its credit facility
agreement, its principal risks and uncertainties including
uncertainty arising from COVID-19, as detailed on pages 46
to 48, and the liguidity and capital projections over the
period and is satisfied that this is appropriate in supporting
the Group as a Going Concern.

The Committee has concluded that the assumptions

are appropriate and that the viability statement could be
provided, and advised the Beard that three years was a
suitable perod of review, The Committee was also satisfied
with the disclosures in relation to the appropriateness of the
assessment period selected, the assumptions made and
how the underlying analysis was performed. The geoing
concern and viability statement is disclosed on page 49

of the report.

exceptional items in the Group Income Statement. The
Committee considered the presentation of these items in
the financial statements, due to the nature of these items
and the guidelines on the use of clternative performance
measures, issued by the European Securities and Markets
Authority. The Cormmittee received detailed reports from
management outlining the judgements applied in relation
to the disclosure of adjusting items, which include net {AS 41
valuation movement on biclogical assets, amortisation of
acguired intangible assets, share-based payment expense
and exceptional items. For adjusting items, the Committee
took into consideration the Improvements made concerning
APM disclosures, their volatility and lack of correlation to
the underlying progress and performance of the business.
Specifically, for exceptional items, the Committee took into
consideration the materiality, frequency and nature of the
iterms. Following this detailed review and active discussion
with management, the Committee has concluded that the
presentation of the financial statements is appropriate.
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Monitoring business risks

The Cornmittee discussed the principal

risks identified with management and

the external and internal cuditors, along

with management’s plans to mitigate

them, and received regular detailed

updates from the risk owners and their

direct reports. In addition to reviewing the

principal nsks, the Committee received

detailed updates on the following:

> COVID-19: the risks associated with the
COVID-19 pandemic and the efficiency
of the mitigating controls implemented
last year to support business
operations and financial reporting
process.

> Climate change: the related current
and emerging rsks and the roadmap
of actions identified in suppeort of the
climate change action plan.

> Biosecurity and continuity of supply:
the risk of losing key livestock or losing
our ability to move animals and/or
semen freely (including across borders),
due to disease outbreak.

> Enterprise system: the Committee
received regular updates on the
project to implement a new Group-
wide business system.

> Cyber security: the cyber security
risk faced by the Group and the
actions being taken to strengthen
infrastructure and systems security.

Internal control system

Quir risk management process and
system of internat control are described in
detail on pages 68 to 4% The Committee
reviewed the approach to standardising
financial reporting controls as part of
the new system implementation and the
results of the key financial controls self-
assessment process, which is performed
every six months. The Committee also
received an update on the impact of the
COVID-19 pondemic, and the related
remote working and trave! restrictions,
on the operation of internal controls and
was satisfied with how technology was
being used to support rermnote working.
The Committee further reviewed internal
audit’s findings ot each scheduled
meeting and received updates on

the implementation of management’s
remedial acticns.

The Cammittee further reviewed the
Group's Whistleblowing Policy and bribery
prevention procedures.
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The Committes conducted its annual
raview of the effectiveness of the Group's
internal centrols and disclosures. The
review did not identify any significant
control failings. Howevear, Genus routinely
identifies and implerments control
improvement opportunities and the
Committee discussed with management
various opportunities to further strengthen
the Group's system of internal control.

Oversight of internal audit and

external audit

Internal audit

The Committee reviewed and approved
the internal audit function’s scope, terms
of reference, resources and activities.
The Committee reviewed the changes
made to how internal audit activities were
delivered, as result of travel restrictions
and remote working requirements.

The Committee was satisfied that the
coverage and guality of internal audit
process remained appropriate. The
Head of Risk Manogement and Internal
Audit provided regular reports to the
Committee on the work undertaken and
management's responses to proposals
made in the internal audit reports 1ssued
during the year. The Committee continued
to maet the Head of Risk Management
and Internal Audit without management
being present. The Committee reviewed
and was satisfied with the internal audit
function's performance

External audit

Deloitte LLP was first appainted as the
Company's external auditor for the penod
endead 30 June 2006. Following a formal
tender process, Deloitte was reappointed
for the audit of the financial year ended
30 June 201,

In accordance with our current udit
partner rotation timeling, the Committee
expacts to conduct an external audit
tender for our FY25 audit. The Company
has complied with the Statutory Audit
Services Order for the financiat year
under review.

The Committee reviewed and agreed the
external auditor’s scope of work and fees,
held detailed discussions of the results

of its aud:t and continued 10 meet the
external auditer without management
being present. The Committee reviewad
the external auditor's cbjectivity and
independence and the Group's policy on
engaging the external auditor to supply
non-audit services. The Committee

abtained confirmation that the Revised
Ethical Standard has been complied
with and received the details of the
extarnal auditar's non-audit services
10 the Group, reviewed the nature

and monetary levels of these services,
which stood at 2% of audit fees, and
reviewed complionce with the Group's
Non-Audit Services by Auditor Policy
{see note 8 to the financial statements
for further details). The Committee was
satisfied that using Deloitte for such
services did not impalr its independence
as the Group's external auditor

The Committee assessed the extemal
auditor's performance i conducting the
audit for the June 2020 year end, based
on discussions with key inance staff and
Committee members. The questicnnarres
covered the external auditor's fulfilment
of the audit plan, the auditor's robustness
and perceptiveness in its handling of key
accounting and audit judgements, the
content of the external auditor's reports,
and cost effectiveness. The Committes
also considlered the results of regulatory
reviews performed on the external
auditor. While noting sore opportunities
far further improvernent, the Committee
concluded that the external guditor

was effective and was satisfied with the
plan put forward by the external auditor
10 respond to the opportunities for
improvement identified.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

Risk management

The Board Is responsible far our risk
management systern, which is designed
to identify, evaluate and prioritise the risks
and uncertaintias we face. The Board sets
our risk appetite, monitors the Group's

risk exposure for our principal risks and
ensures appropriate executive ownership
for gl risks. This ongoing risk management
mrocess for the Group's significant risks
was in place for the yedr under review and
up to the date of approvol of the Annuol
Report and Accounts. Our principal

risks and how we mitigate them are
summarised an pages 46 1o 48.

To further assist its understanding of
risk, the Board continued its programme
of visits ta our local operations, pror

to being interrupted by the COVID-19
travel restrictions. The Board received
regular political, economic and industry
risk updates from the relevant business
groups. The Board performed its annual

risk review in May 2021, This involved

a fresh review of the types and levels
of risk facing Genus as it executes its
strategy and was designed to identify
and evaluate any new or emerging
risks and ascertain whether the risk
register covared all relevant risks,

Internal contro!

The key elements of our internal control
systerm are set out below. An internal
control system cannct completely
eliminate the risks we face or ensure we do
not have o material misstgtement or loss.

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The Board sets formal autherisation

levels and other controls that allow it to
delegate authority to run our businesses
to the Chief Executive, GELT and their
management teams. Our management
supplements these controls by setting the
operating standards that each subsidiary
needs for its business and location,

GELT regularty reviews our performance
against strategy, budget and a defined
set of operational key performance
indicators. The Chief Executive, Group
Finance Director, Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary, and Group
Financial Controller also hold monthly
reviews with each business unit.

QUALITY AND INTEGRITY OF OUR PECPLE
We strive to operate with high integrity in
everything we do. Qur control environment
depends on high-quality people who
maintain our ethical standards. We ensure
our people’s ability and integrity through
our recruitment standards, training and
consistent performance management.
The Board is informed of appointments to
our most senior management positions.

INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL
REPORTING SYSTEMS

We create detailed operational budgets
for the year ahead, along with five-year
strategic plans, which the Board reviews
and approves. We then monitor our
performance throughout the year, so we
can address any issues. The information
we consider includes our monthly inanciol
results, key performance indicators and
vanances, updated fuli-year forecasts
and key business risks.

The main internal control and risk
managemeant processes relating to our
preparation of consolidated accounts
are our Group-wide accounting policies



and procedures, segregation of duties,
system access controls, a robust
consclidation and reporting system,
various levels of management review
and centrally defined process control
points and reconciliation processes.

INVESTMENT APPRAISAL

We control our capital expenditure
through our budget process and by
having clear authorisation levels, above
which our businesses must submit
detailed written proposals 1o the

Board for approval.

We carry out due diligence for business
acquisitions and material licences, and
conduct post-completion reviews of major
projects, to ensure we identify areas for
improvement and correct any areas of
underperformance or overspend.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Cur internal cudit activities are provided
by in-house and external resources,
under the leadership of our Head of Risk
Management and internal audit. During
the year, Internal Audit completed a risk-
based cudit programme agreed by the
Audit & Risk Committee, The Committee
reviews the results of these audits and the
subsequent actions we take, which we
also communicate to the external auditor.

All business units complete risk ond control
self-assessments twice a yaar. Internal
audit, as part of its work programme,
performs independent reviews of these
assessments 1o identify any deficiencies
inour controls and how we should address
them. The external auditcr also provides
observations on the control environment
as part of its audit work, The results are
commurnicated to senior managemeant
and the Audit & Risk Committee.

The Board, with the halp of the Audit

& Risk Committee, reviewed the
effectiveness of our internal control
system, as well as our inancial,
operational and compliance controls
and our risk management. The review
considered our internal control self-
assessment process, which is designed
to assess compliance with our minimum
control standards, the independent
internal audit programme, and the
reports management prepared when
the Board approved the interim and
final results and financial stotements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

it alsc assessed:

> whether we had identified, evaluated,
managed and contiolled significant
risks; and whether any significant
wecknesses had arisen, and

> if 50, whether we had addressed them.

The assessment also took into account
any risk or control issues we identified
through our divisional business reviews,
Board and GELT meetings, and
insurers’ reviews.

We have an internal control continuous
improvement work programme and
routinely identify opportunities to
strengthen our control environmenit

and improve our risk management
capabilities, However, the Board has not
identified or been told of any significant
failings in our internal controls.
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LESLEY KNOX

SENIOR INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR AND CHAIR OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

KEY HIGHLIGHTS

> Adjusted profit before tax +29%

> Adjusted earnings per
share +31%

> Strong progress against
strategic targets

This Remuneration Repaort has been
prepared so It complies with the
provisions of the Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups
lAccounts & Reports) lamendment)
Regulations 2013, which set out the
disclosures required for Directors'
remuneration as at the reporting date
The Report is also in accordance
with the requiraments of the Financial
Conduct Authonty's Listing Rules.

The Independent Auditor's Report states
whether, in the guditor's opinion, the
parts of the Report that are subject

1o cudit have been properly prepared

in dccordance with the legislation.

We have highlighted the parts of this
Repaert which have been audited

Section A — Annual statement

AIMS OF OUR REMUNERATION POLICY

> Toreflect the continued transformation
into G global agricultural bictechnology
pioneer.

> Pursuit of leading-edge technology
and focus on long-term innovation and
environmental sustainability to enable
future value creation for sharehelders.

> Sustainable robust short-term delivery
of financial performance as we invest
in the future.

> Ability to recognise innovation ond
progress, which are crucial to secunng
fong-term bettom-line performance.

> Ability to attract and motivate a high-
quality leadership team and drive
focus and behavicurs on long-term
achievement in a global market
for talent.

> Recognise expectaticns of
shareholders on reward and
governance,

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased
ta present the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for 2021.

This has been o challenging year for
the global economy as companies
have locked to maintain business
continuity in the face of a global
pandemic. | am pleased to report that
Genus hos delivered a very strong

set of results against this backdrop,
which is described extensively within
the Annugl Report. This Remuneration
Report covers the activity of the
Committes during the year, including
the determination of reward outcomes
for executives against the targets set.

WIDER EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT AND
REWARD OVERSIGHT

As a Committee, we have continued

to focus on wider oversight of reward
practices across the business, as

well as montornng levels of employee
engogement, Due to COVID-1? Lykele
van der Broek and myself held online
sessions with several teams gs it was
not passible for face-to-face meetings
10 take place. We discussed business
progress, employee sotisfaction and

a particular focus on getting feedback
on the business response to the impact
of COVID-19. additionally, the business
carried out an interim pulse survey
covering arouna 800 employees,
designed to understand how people
viewed the business response to
COVID-1% across different countries and
roles within Genus, the indings of which
were discussad by the Board. While

the pandemic has clearly had differing
irmpacts acrass the countries where our
employees are based, people were highly
positive about the business response
ta the pandemic, and the way that
adustments had been made 1o ways
of working cnd the embracing of new
technology and communication channels
1o maintain momentum of business
activity and a sense of belonging.



The fact that this level of business
performance has been achieved reflects
the leadership displayed throughout the
urganisation and the focus, contribution,
and resilience of all Genus employees.

I join with the Board in thanking all our
people for the part they have played in
delivering this performance.

Genus is an essential part of the

food chain and business activity has
been successfully maintained over
the year. The business has not used
any eptional government schemes
(such as furlough in the UK} or created
changes to employee compensation
as a result of the pandemic.

We have considered the potential impact
of COVID-12 on the future application

of our Policy. Our conclusion was that

the Policy remains appropriate for the
business and underlying strategy at this
time, and we will lock to operate the Policy
on the same basis for the year ahead.

As described in more detail within the
report we have been able to set forward-
looking targets (both financial and
non-inancial) which reflect the markets

in which we operate against which
performance will be assessed.

CASCADE CF REWARD PRINCIPLES
THROUGH THE BUSINESS

We discussed the way that reward
principles apply throughout the business,
and how appreaches in place for

senior leaders cascade through the
organisation. In particular, we focused
on the combination of individual gnd
business targets in determining variable
reward outcomes at all levels, and the
way that targets used for GELT members
(including the Executive Directors)

are applied through the business.

We considered gender pay within

Genus Breeding Limited, our largest UK
subsidiary, and noted the way that the
gender balance is continuing 1o change
with a far higher proportion of female
joiners, and the overall incredse n gender
diversity across the business.
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We also discussed the CEO pay ratio,

full details of which can be found within
this repart, including comparison with
pricr years. The overall CEO ratio has
increased year on year, reflective of the
high levels of business performance and
the significant growth in the share price
since PSP awards were made in October
2018, We have provided more insight and
a granular breakdown of this change to
demonstrate the alignment between pay
and performance.

The CEC highlighted his appreciation
of all that employees have contributed
to the business over the past year, and
we were supportive of the decision to
award a special one-off inancial oward
to all eligibie employees globally, which
comprised around 3,200 people.

Additionally, we were updated on the
wider governance framework for reward
within the business, including the steps
being taken 1o ensure line managers are
engaged in making apprepriate reward
decisions for their team members, and
that these align with the overarching
pay for performance philosophy in place
across the business.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

A focus on strategic progress ensures
that we are well placed to enable
futura growth. Key highlights during
2021 inciude development of new
strategic partnerships within cur PIC
business, the next stage of progress

of our PRRSv programme, insight as to
how we position sustainability at our
core of how we operate as a business
and actions we are taking to reduce our
operational greenhouse gas footprint,
and the progress we are making in
superior genetics in beef. Internally we
have also seen the continued rollout of
our GenusOne anterprise system across
North America as part of the Global
implementation.

Coupled with this strategic prograss has
been the delivery of some very strong
financial performance. Adjusted profit
before tax lexcluding gene editing) graw
by 28% in constant currency. We have
also achieved strong cash generation,
exceeding budgets set by E8.1m.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Section A — Annual statement

REWARD QUTCOMES FOR 2021

As highlighted elsewhere in the report,
the Group has changed its accounting
policy relating to the capitalisation of
cartain software assets foliowing the
guidance published in April 2021, We have
considered the woy we reflect this within
our reward outcomes. Targets for the 2018
PSP were set before the policy change
and we have calculated the PSP vasting
and Annual Bonus cutcomes excluding
the impact of this change. Including the
change would have created identical
outcomes under the Annual Bonus and
slightly higher vesting levels under the
PSP, Future vesting of PSP awards (and
targets for the 2022 Annual Bonus) will be
determined including the impact of this
accounting policy change in both the
bose year and final year of the respective
performance periad.

Against this performance backdrop we
determined outcomes under the Annual
Bonus plan ang the level of vesting of

share awards made under our PSP 1o GELT

members in October 2018. Full details of
targets and the associated performance
against them are disclased within the
report, with outcomes summarised below,

Annual Bonus

The total opportunity for each
Executive Director for the year

was 175% of salary, and the ovarall
formulaic outcome generated on
oward levet of 94 8% of maximum for
Stephen and 26.5% of maximum far
Alison. This was a reflection of very
strong financial performance against
stretching financial targets set, coupled
with demonstrable gelivery against
strategic goals for each individual.

We were very comfortable that the
formulaic outcome under the Annual
Bornus was an accurate reflection of
the performance achieved during the
year and demonstrated full alignment
with the shareholder experignce. in
line with our Annual Bonus structure,
one-thirg of the award will be
delivered in Genus shares under the
Deferred Share Bonus Plon [DSBP)
that are released after three years.

The financial achievement delivers
maximum awards under the financial
rmetrics of the Annual Bonus for each
Executive, and the same will be true
for many employees across Genus
who are assessed against the sarme
Genus Group performance metrics
and targets when their own variable
remuneration is calculated.

Performance Share Plan

Awards made in October 2018 were linked
to EPS performance over the three-year
period ending 30 June 2021, Average
annual EPS growth was 12.6% against a
performance range of 5% {which would
defiver 20% of the award] through to

full vesting at 15% or above. These are
colculated on an actual currency basis
Given the robust natdre of business
performance over the three-year penod,
the lavel of vesting (at a strong level but
below full vesting) is indicative of the
currency headwinds that the business
has faced over this time. The value of the
PSP within the single fiigure table is heavily
linked to the robust share price growth
over the perod - from a share price at
oward of £23.17 to a share price for the
last quarter of the inancial year of £50.62,
anincrease of 118.5%. These shares Gre
subject 1o a holding period of a further
Two years post-vesting, after allowing for
a number of shares to be sold to cover the
associated tax liability

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2022

We will operate the same core structure of
Annual Bonus and PSP for the coming year
with no changes in overall opportunity
levels for Executives.

The Annual Bonus will continue to be
assessed through key financial metrics
ladjusted profit before tax and generation
of free cash flow), alongside a number

of identified strategic measures that
nave been set for each Executive,
including targets specifically linked to
erwviranmental, sacial and governance
{ESG') metrics. Just under ene-third of
the strategic element will be assessed
agamst environmental and sustainability
targets for the business, recognising the
importance of this topic for wider society,
but particularly acknowledging the role
that our sector con play in this area. We
remain committed to comprehensive
disclosure of targets within future
remuneration disclosures with use of
externally reparted or qudited metrics
where possible.

We have set profit targets for the vear
(disclosed iater in the report) that require
continued growth in profit imeosured 1In
canstant currency) befora any award 1s
paid under the metric. In determining the
growth targets we considered muitiple
factors, including the budget set for
coming year, the exceptionally strong
performance achieved in 2021, and the
market headwinds expected across
certain of our key markets (in particular
Chinal. Therefore, while we have set
targets that continue 1o reguire absolute
levels of profit growth yeor on year, these
are lower in percentage terms from those
operated in 2021, with target awards
requiring 5% growth and stretch levels
set at10% growth or above. Any bonus
navable under this metric would remain
consistent with delivery of performance
ahead of our stoted medium-term
growth objective when viewed over Q
multi-year period. These targets are
cascaded throughout the business and
opply to all employeas whosea Annua)
Bonus is linked to Group performance.
We continue to focus on ensuring that
targets reward growth of the business,
ond that the target level of performance
required represents strang performance
for the business with exceptional levels
of performance needed to generate fulk
awards under the metric, and ensunng
that targets are aligned 1o budgets and
motivational for participants

The PSP award will continue to be
assessed against EPS performance over
the three-year period (2022 to 2025)

with the associated performance rarnge
{of annual growth in EPS of 5% to 15%)
consistent with the operation of awards
In recent years and in ling with our stoted
madium term growth objectives.

Salary levels have been increasad for
the CEQ and CFO effective 1 September
2021 inline with budgeted increases

for employees of Genus plc within

the UK. Both Executives receive a

cash supplement in lleu of pension
contributions, The CFQ joined the business
in January 2020, and this was saet at 6%
of sciary, in line with the average across
the wider UK workforce and will remain
at this level. In recognition of investor
exgpactatons in this area, the current
supplement paid to the CEO {of 10% of
salary} will reduce to the 6% level at the
end of December 2022,



POLICY RENEWAL

2021 was the second year of the current
Rermuncration Nalicy that wus uyreed

Ly shareholders in 2019. We continue

to believe that the core of our Policy is
appropriate and drives dlignment between
business performance and reward
outcomes. It 1s important that we ensure
that the Policy remains appronriate for the
strateqy of the business, the continued
growth of the organisation and the

global environment that Genus operates
within. We are also aware of the evolving
expectations of sharcholders and proxy
agencies on reward.

The Committee has started to discuss

areas where we expect to focus in

considering a new Policy that we will

present for approval next year. Particular

areas that we expect to Include within

consultation with shareholders include:

> g desire to review the performance
metrics within the PSP Plan and
the way we could include specific
measurels) linked to our environmental
performance and sustainability
progress;

> the way we look to set annual targets
for our Annual Bonus plan in future,
recognising the potential for some
variability in year-on-year growth while
in pursuit of our medium-tarm stated
growth aspirations; and

> overali competitivenass of reward
against the changing scale and
complexity of Genus as a global
bictechnology organisation,

We plan to consult with key shareholders
in the first quarter of catendar year

2022 on our thinking and look forward

to gaining their perspectives ahead of
tabling a revised Remuneration Policy at
the AGM next year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SUMMARY

| hope this introduction and
accompanying cisclosures give you
aninsight into the operation of the
Committee, the increasing breadth of

focus of the nature of our conversations,

and the way we have socught alignment
between business performance and
reward outcomes. | look forward to your
support at our forthcoming AGM. If you
have any feedback, | can be contacted
at remunerationchairagenusplc.com.

Lesley Knox

Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director and Chair of the Remuneration
Committee
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CCNTINUED
Section B — At a Glance 2021 {year ending 30 June 2021)

{For more detail please see pages 74 to 93)

WHAT EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WERE PAID IN 202%:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER:
STEPHEN WILSON ALISON HENRIKSEN

> Benefits include a car
allowance for each
Executive Director

> Pension allowance for
Stephen Wilson was
reduced to 10% of salary
on appoeintment to CEQ.
The allowance payable for
Alison Henriksen is 6% of
salary

1 BASE SALARY AND BENEFITS

> Metrics used and weighting:
Adjusted profit before tax
(50%), Cash generation
(15%), Strategic measures
(35%)

> Overall award 94.8% of
maximum for Stephen
Wilson and 96.5% of
maximum for Alison
Renriksen

> One-third of the total
award under this element
made in shores deferred for
three years

PSP INDICATIVE vALJE N &
> Awards grantedin
September 2018 vested at

81.2% of maximum based on

average annual adjusted

earnings per share growth

achiaved of 12.6% 1 Cogudteg based on the average share price for
the Ana quartes of the year ended 30 June 2027
(5.0620]

2 ANNUAL BONUS - CORE BONUS

REMUNERATION BREAKDOWN CHIEF EXECUTIVE: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER:
STEPHEN WILSON ALISON HENRIKSEN



WHAT EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CAN EARN IN 2022 AND HOW:

> Includes salary increase of
2.5% effective September
2021

> Nochange to benefit
provision for 2022

'I BASE SALARY AND BENEFITS

ANNUAL BONUS

> Annual bonus opportunity
of 175% of salary spiit
between profit, cash and
strategic metrics as shown

> 10% of the 35%
lapproximately one-
third} linked to strategic
measures focused on
environmental metrics
linked to our Delta-C plan

awards depends on the
adjusted earnings per
share {excluding gene
editing costs) achieved in
the three financial years
ending 30 June 2022

PSP SEPTEMBER FROM 2019
> The vesting of these

> The vesting of these
awards will be subject to
an agjusted earmings per
share growth, with the 2024
adjusted earnings per share
being compared te the 2021
adjusted earnings per share
{excluding gene editing
costs)

> 5% annual growth threshold
- 20% vesting

> 15% annual growth - 100%
vesting

> Vesting levels will be
calculated based on g
straight-line basis between
the above values

i PSP {SEPTEMBER 2021 AWARDS)
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE:
STEPHEN WILSON

STEPHEN WILSCN: MAXIM UM OF 175% OF SALARY,
TARGET AWARD OF 8§7.5% OF SALARY

Awards over 41,666 Genus shares

AWARD TO STEPHEN WILSON CF 200% OF SALARY

Salary changes are effective from September, oligned to the wider workforce:

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER:
ALISON HENRIKSEN

ALISON HENRIKSEN: MAXIMUM OF 175% OF SALARY,
TARGET AWARD CF 87 5% OF SALARY

Awards over 22,435 Genus shares

AWARD TO ALISON HEMRIKSEN OF 175% OF SALARY

Anrual Soary  Annucl Saary

o1 Sep from | Sep Crange

2021 2021 %

Stephen Wilson £601,800 £616900 25%
Alison Henriksen £408000 £418,200 25%
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Section B — Wider Workforce Remuneration

The Committee developed the Remuneration Policy agreed by shargholders in 2019 having reviewed the wider framework for reward
across the organisation and the way that this drives alignment of individuals towards organisational goals. It receives updates
annually on any material changes 1o wider workforce arrangements and additionally considers employee feedback on reward matters.
This is from Group-wide mechanisms (such as our Your Voice survey} but additionally from direct interaction between designated Non-

Executive Directors and employees.

Cur reward principles apply to all employees within the business and are designed to ensure we can giiract, motivate gnd retom
pecple fundamental to achieving our vision, and be part of a global organisation. We want people within the business engaged and
delivering because thay are excited by our visian, the part they can piay in this, and the difference they can make.

These principles are applied as consistently as we can, such that reward is standardised wherever possible, and delivared in ling with
our values. While the guantum may vary between roles, the principle of aligning reward outcomes with performance is fundamental to

the way we operdte.

Rewgrd elemant Our approach

BASE SALARY

Pay rates are determined with reference to the skill set and experience of the individugl. Most pay rates are

reviewed annually across the Group, with adjustments with reference to individual performance levels, market

BENEFITS

pay competitivenass and overall business affordability.

The countries we operate in display different practices in terms of benefit provisian. Typical benefits include

access te life insurance, pensien or retirement provision and may include medical cover. Qur approach is driven
by local market factors (which may include legislative requirements) rather than a single common benefit

offering globolly.
VARIABLE PAY

arrangements, These include:

Annual Benus

We operate a range of annual variable reward schemes and most of our employees participate in one of these

> Based on a combination of financial performance and non-financial metrics assassed through our
performance management proceasses (which all employses participate in)

> Financial metrics based around profitability and cash performance.

> Where metncs are consistent with those used for Executive Directors or GELT members, then the same
target/performance scale is used for everyone to drive alignment,

Production facilities — KPl plans
> Linked to the balanced scorecard of local KPIs for facility, covering metrics such as production ocutput levels
and health and safety.

Commissions

> Derived from individual sales perfermance of the individual.

In addition, we make discretionary awards of shares across the business annually, reflecting the contribution of

the individual ond to drive future alignment with our perfarmance.

Clarity
Implemantation of the strategy is
monitored through KPls including those
used within the Annuol Bonus and PSP
This ensures alignment between strategy
execution and reward outcomes.

Predictability

Examples of the range of cutcomes
under the Policy are shown

within the scenaro graphs.

This demonstrates the way that
different performance levels change
reward outcomes for individuals and
the asscoiated impact of changes
n the company share price.

Alignment of our Remuneration Policy to the Provisions of the 2018 Code (Section 40)

Simplicity

We look to describe the structure of
reward clearly to both participants and
sharehclders through effective disclosures,
so all stakeholders are clear on the
underlying reward principles and the

way reward ocutcomeas are determined.

Proportionality

A significant proportion of the total
reward opportunity is performance
driven, with clear linkage beatween
business metrics and reward cutcomes
through clear targets and use of KPls.

Shares form the mojority of variable
reward and Executives are required
to develop and maintain a material
sharehoiding in the business to fuily
align to the shareholder expenence.

Alignment to culture

The Policy aligns to our business

model and focus on the experience

of customers and employees. Metrics
linked to culture are used within variable
plans, alongside delivery of loeng-
term sustanable performance.
Risk

The Committee retain Jltimate discretion
1o vary outcomes from formulaic results
if thay oo not jJudge this to accurately
reflect underlying businass performance.

Malus and clowback pravisions apply
1o ail awards and we operate post-
cessobon shoreholding requirements
to turther align Executives to long-
term business performancea.
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Section B - CEO Pay Ratio

OUR CEO PAY RATIO FOR 2021

Cur CEQ pay ratio is shown below.
Median ratio

CEQ single vs CEO target
figure £k 25th parcentile Median _'J'Sth__porcentilo remuneration
Year Ended FTE reward Ratio FTE reward Ratio FTE raward Ratio
30 June 2021 2,888 E27374 105:1 £32,464 891 FL3T796 4&:1 541

No elements of pay have been omitted from the calculation and pay guartiles determined as at 30 June 2021 and values are
calculated based on those employed at this date. Where required, actual levels of remuneration were adjusted to create full-time
equivalent values by considering both the employees full-time equivalent hours and lwhere appiicable) the proportion of the year that
the individual was employed. The quartile values, spiit between salary and benefits are as follows:

25th 75th

percentle Median percentile

Salary (FTE} £23854 £27300  £36,102
Totai pay and benefits £27374 £32,464 L43796

The median ratio is consistent with pay and reward policies in operation within the business. Salaries are set with reference to market
levels of pay, with prograssion linked to experience and performance in role. The structure of reward in cperation means that a
greater proportion of pay is linked to variable pay in more senior roles and will therefore fluctuate linked to business and individual
performance outcomes against targets set, and to changes in the Genus share price.

OUR CEQ PAY RATIO HISTORY

To provide additional context we have also shown the ratio for the previous three years. For lllustrotion we have alse shown the
ratios against the target level of reward we disclosed within our Remuneration Policies as agreed by shareholders and provided
commentary below.

Reward structure — That the overalt CEO package 1s more highly geared towards
variable pay than most other employees within the UK business.

Business performance — As outlined elsewhere within this disclosure, 2021 was a
robust year for the business with strong profit growth. This has resulted in high levels
of award against stretching targets set for the Annual Bonus, and in vesting levals of
over 81.2% from PSP awards made in 2018 which were linked to EPS performance over
the three-year period.

Change of CEQ = The CEQO ‘single figure’ for year ending 2019 was lower than the prior
year. This reflectad the decision of our previcus CEQ to resign from the business and
farfeit any awards under our Annual Bonus or long-term incentive, albeit he was still
employed by Genus at the end of the financial year.

Share price growth — We have seen significant growth in the share price with the

average share price for the last three months of 2021 of 5,0462p which was an increase
of 50% on the same pericd the year before.

Median ratle

CEO single vg target CEO
figure __ 25thpercentile _ Median 7 _Isth percentila _ single figure
TOTAL PAY AND BENEFITS
Year ended CEQ FTE reward Ratio FTE reward Ratio FTE reward Ratio Ratic
30 June 20 £2,257' £25,230 891 £31,748 711 FL2 425 531 561
30 June 19 £815k F24.638 331 £31.867 261 F41792 2001 571
30 June 18 £2,54%k £24,204 1051 £30,759 831 £40,203 631 591

1 Thevalue -eflacts the change in CEC dur.ng the year and inc udes salary and perefits for Kanm Bitar throug to hs resigration ard all app icokie rewara elaments for
Stephan Wilson from tre date of mis appointment as CEQ 13 September 2019 to 20 Juneg 2020

METHOD OF CALCULATION AND RATIONALE

We have elected to use calculation Method A as outlined within the legislation. We have done this to get as accurate o picture as
possible for the reward of all our UK employees compared to the CEOQ. This contrasts with our diselosure on gender pay which focuses
on our largest UK subsidiary (Genus Breeding Limited) rather than all employees in the UK as required by the respective legislation. It
ensures that the calculation s done on a full-time equivalent basis in companng employee reward to the CEO position,
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GENUSS STRATEGY AND ITS LINK TO PERFORMANCE-RELATED PAY
GCur strategy and the way this is linked to variable reward 15 shown below.

INCREASE GENETIC SUCCESS
CONTROL AND MEASURED
PRODUCT BY

DIFFERENTIATION

TARGETING KEY
MARKETS AND
SEGMENTS

SHARING IN
THE VALUE
DELIVERED

R&D AND BUSINESS LINK TO
INNOVATION REMUNERATION
POLICY

PROPRIETARY GENETIC
IMPROVEMENT AND
DISSEMINATION
POSITIONS

VOLUME GROWTH

OPERATING PROFIT

CASH CONVERSICN

PERFORMANCE COMPONENTS AND THEIR IMPACT ON REMUNERATION

Strategic measures within the Annual
Bonus focus on key activities in pursuit
of our defined ionger-term strategy

Stratagic objectives recagnise wider
progress than financial measures
alone

Measured through the profit element
of the Annual Bonus

Over the longer term will flow into EPS,
used to determine vesting under the
P3P

Measured through the cash element
of the Annual Bonus

2020
“estoted 2021 Moverent% Impact on rerunerat on

Adjusted results
Revenue - £55l‘4; ES'M.?Smi 4% W\niput o AnnuoI_Bonus profit or;c; earnings p_er share in PgP
Ad]usfé& profit before t?jx EGS 8m e?z..am 75’9% Annual B_o-}ﬂus mec:sureum B o B
Ge_r;erc:t\on of free-.;;ash flow N £352m _-£37.5m B 7% Annuc;i Bonus meo;:re B o B
Adjusted e;;ings per shoreb ) 77.3‘;3 100.9; 1% _F;SP performc;r;:;e comditionwfﬁ a
Divid;hd per share o k7291p ?i.Op -_10% Executiv;-rewa rded v}c;dividends oﬁ:hores held gbst vestmgi
gr%:re price at ye(;;nd n 3532p 74,960p o 40% Detér_rmnes the VO\U_E-;Df deferred b_;r-wuses cmdﬁ;ép owards N

Values in the table are in actual currency as shown in the Annual Report. A number of adjustments are made 1o these for the purposes
of calculating awards under our incentive plans as described in this report and in ing with our Remuneration Policy. 2020 numbers have
been restated in line with the change in our accounting policy retaining to the caprtalisation of certain software assets as disclosed in
note 2 Basis of Preparation within the Annual Report. The change in accounting policy led to an increqse in cperating expense of £2.7m

in the current year and £5.2min 2020,

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ ALIGNMENT TO SHARE PRICE
The table below shows the value of shares currently held by the Executive Directors and those awarded under the Deferred Share
Bonus Plan DSBP', but not yet released (on a post-tax basis). It does not include those awards under the PSP which are scheduled to
vest in the future subject to Company earnings per share performance, which have the potential to significantly increase the alignment
of the Executives, subject 10 the resulting leve! of vesting.

Conclysion

Shares Corsequence

awarded Ind cat ve ofa+’ £2

uncer tre value on stare orce

Srares DSEP Total srare 30 June 2C27 change

WNea ioost-taxl SXDOSL'E (e s

Stephen Wilson 65,342 12,201 TT7SAT 3925206 155,085
Alison Henriksen Nl 1.344 1,344 48.037

CEOQ is aligned to share price movement through

ordinary shareholding

24688 CFOwas appointed inte role In January 2020 and has yet

10 see awards vest that were made under the PSP Plan

1 ¥ouecolcu areqosing tre nremnge shate or ce for tre finol auarter of tre Angroio year erdec 30 Ju~e 20211506201
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Section D — Annual Report on Remuneration

INTRODUCTION

This section of the Directors’ Remuneration Report is subject 10 an advisory vote at the 2021 AGM. Remuneration in respect of 2021
is determined by our Remuneration Policy agreed by 93.4% of shareholders at the 2019 AGM. The detalled Policy, approved by
shareholders ot the 2019 AGM on 14 Novemnber 2019, can be found in our 2019 Annual Report which is available from our website at
www.genusplc.com.

We have split this section into the following chapters to balance our formal disclosure obligations with our desire to have a clear and
understandable report:

What the Executive Directors Were Paid in 2021,

What the Executive Directors Can Earn in 2022.

The Process the Committee Followed to Arrive at These Deacisions.

How the Chief Executive's Pay Compares to Shareholder Returns Qver the Past Ten Years and to Employees’ Pay.
The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors' Fees.

Details of the Lirectors’ Shareholdings and Rights to Shares.

Details of the Executive Directars’ Contracts and Nan-Executive Directors' Letters of Appointment.

e NS

1. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WERE PAID IN 2021

Executive Directors’ single total remuneration figure (cudited)

The following table shows a single total figure of remuneration for the 2021 inancial year for each of the Executive Directors and
compares this figure to the prior year.

Subtotal

Subtotal for

Salary for fixed Annual variable
and fees Benefits'  Pension¢ pay banus’ PSP pay Tatal
Vear £000s £000Cs EO0Q0s £000s £OC0s £000s £000s £000s
Stephen Wilson 2021 600 13 40 &73 998 1217~ 2215 2,888

{ceased to be Group Finance Director and

appointed CEC from 13 September 2019} 2020 550 13 52 622 PUS 5945 1,839 2,161
Alison Henriksen 2021 407 12 24 [ 689 - &89 1,132
lappoeintaed 13 January 2020) 2020 190 & 12 208 297 - 297 505

1 Benefits included an anrual car ailowange of £12,009 for Stephen Wison and A son Henr ksen respeclively insured benefits iInclude Iife assurance, prvate meoical insura~ce
ard a meaical screen

2 Executwe Directors recaive a cash allowance in hew of pensior, wricn 's showr in the Fension column The percentage contribubior payable to Stephen Wilson wos reduced
ar appoirtmeant ta CEO from Group Fnance Directo} from 15% of salary to 10% of saiary Alisor Henr<ser receves o pens on contnipufion of 8% of salary

3 Borus earned inciudes the port of te dward wrich s defarred wtc Company s~aras.

4 Thevalue of tne PSP s determines oy the number of awards vest'ng n relat.on to performance = the per oa ended 30 June 2021 Divigend equivalents are nat added
to awaras maoe unaer the PSP The va ue shawn for 20215 cased on the average share pr.ce for the final three months of the 2021 ingncial year [which was 5,0620} This
comparas to the share prce at grant of 2, 317p [+118 5%) Of the value snown for the CEG, E660« 15 attr butab e to share pr ce apprec ahon between awara ond vesting

5 The 2020 values shown as estimated In the prev ous Annua Reoort have oeen restated to reflect the actual va'ue ot poit of vesting The share orce was 39560 on
 Septemnber 2020 when owords vested for Stechen Wilson

How the bonuses for 2021 were calculated

Annual Bonus

The 2021 bonuses for Executive Directors were calculated by reference to performance against o challenging sliding scale of

profit, cash flow and strategic measures. Targets were set by the Committee to exclude the costs of gene editing inline with our
Remuneration Policy. This was a decision by the Committee {as was the case in prior years} 1o ensure that management's reward was
not unfairly affected by decisions to make the right long-term investment decisions on behalf of the business.

The following results were achieved for each element of the annual bonus incentive.
Extent to whch

Actual 2021 Trresrotd Target Stretch  targets were met
Bonus target' Strategic ob,ective Waightrg  performance 0% awardl  {50% award) {full award) %]
Adjusted profit before tax Year-on-year profit growth 50% £97.2m? E76.2m £838m £876m 100%
Generation of free cash flow Cenerate cash for 15% £291m? £18m £21m £24m 100%

reinvestment and dividends

Strategic measures To bulld the foundation for 35% Seetable Chief Executive 85%
future growth Chief Financial Officer 90%

1 The fina~cial elements of the borus are bayab & on a straight line pasis oetween eocr thresroid, target and stretch ievel

2 Numpers shown exc ude the irrpact of the charge of t~e goeountng Poicy inked to the copita isat on of certain seftware assets. The Committee made the dec'sion ta
ca culate awards in this woy [albet the gutcome would nave been the same if these costs had been reflected in 2020 and 2021 perfomance)

3 This numper excludes £8 4m of IFRS 14 lease ga ustments included n our reported free cash flow number on page 78
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1. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WERE PAID IN 2021 CONTINUED
Strategic measures
The Committee reviewed and discussed achievement against targets set for strategic measures for each Executive Director in
determining overall award levels. Performance against these targets is disclosed retrospectively, as follows:

Stephen Wilson

Pay-out
against
Theme Opjective Key achievements 'n year maximym
Strategy Development  Expand the Company's > Five new key accounts in PIC China 85%
and Execution position as the leader in > Growth of ABS volumes by 15%, with associoted
anmmal genelics growth in profit margin
> Investment in Xelect 1o support our
understanding of the agqua genetics market
Leadership and Culture Fostering a positive and > Developed and implemented new leadership
inclusive culture and curricuium, courses and Learning Management
increasing empioyee platform
engagement at ali levels > Maintained high net promoter score
> Positive responses from employees to way Genus
managed employees through pandemic
innovation Continue strengthening > PRRS programme on schedule. Phase 1 FDA
RE&D technology capatilities subzmissions complete
and commercial relevance > Digital transformation across ABS
ang implemeant new [T > Cregtion of new team focused on Reproductive
technologies to support Biology
Cempany performance > Established scientific computing strategy
Sustanopility Make Genus on ingustry > High focus on communication of sustoincbility
leader in sustainatility strategy with investors and through Capital
Markets event
> Dela C programme launched internally with
net zero energy use at Dekorra site and pilot of
electric vehiclas in UK
> Implemented changes across R&D to drive
sustainability with removal of plastic and
elimination of over 50 tonnes of general waste
Pay out
agarst
Trigme On,ective Key achieverrents in yaar T U
Strategy Development  Expand the Company's > Enhancements to strategy process, including Q0%

Alison Henriksen

and Execution

Leadership and Culture

Innovation

Sustainability

position as the leader in
animat genetics

Fostering a positive and
nclusive culture and
increosing employee
engagement at alllevels

Continue strengthening

R&D technology capabidities
and commercial relevance

ond mplement new 1T
tachnologias to support
Company performance

Make Genus an industry
leader in sustainability

>

linkages to KPIs

Enhanced reporting and focus on profitability
measures

Relationship developmeant with US invastors
Execution of finance strategy encompassing
finance operating model design, strengthening
of core processes, collective team development
across Global finance and driving of digitisation
across function.

implementation of People Magnet strategy:
promotion of key individuals into new roles, focus
on accountabilities

Focus on procurement with implementation of
Group function and achievement of targeted
savings

Led optimisation of GenusOne and
arganisational alignment to sponsor and
implement globally

Development and presentation of sustainability
within Genus to investor base
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1. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WERE PAID IN 2021 CONTINUED
As aresult of this perfoarmance, the total Annual Bonus awarded to the Executive Directors was:

Annucl Barus

Annual Banus

Exte~tto which Annual Bonus - deferred

fargets were met - casn shares!

Stephen Wilson 94.8% £665,240 F£332620
Alison Henriksen 26.5% £459340 £229670

1 The ~umber of shares awardea wil' be calculoted in Septemrber 2021 wher bonuses are pard, Ore-third of bonus payable s deferred into Genws shares for three years

How the PSP figure was calculated in the single total remuneration table
Stephen Wilsan's PSP award granted on % October 2018 was subject 1o a pertormance condition, based on the growth in adjusted eamings
per share from 2018 to 2021. The range of targets applicable to the award, which had a value of 175% of salary at grant was as follows:

% of award
Average annual growth nadjusted earmn ngs per share vesting
Less than 5% per annum Nil
55”; per annum - 7 - . o 77207% 7
15% per onnum_ - I I - 100%

1 Stranght-line vesting between tre points 1~ the ooove table

The Committee set targets to calculate the long-term award after excluding gene editing costs incurred during the performance period,
to avoid an unintended impact on the Executives’ remuneration whilst making long-term decisions in suppaort of value creation. This is
censistent with the approach previously communicated to shareholders within our Policy and as taken in each of the last three years.

The adjusted 2021 earnings per share after the cost of share-based payments and adjusting for costs relating to gene editing was
104p. This represents an average annual growth in adjusted earnings per share of 12.6% campared 1o the comparable 2018 adjusted
earnings per share figure (after the cost of share-based payments). The resulting level of vesting is 81.2% of maximum’. Stephen Wilson's
award was over a maximum of 29,613 shares, so the actual level of vesting is 24,046 shares and these will vest on @ October 2021,

The Committee made the decision tc calculate vesting excluding the impact of the accounting change linked to capitalisation of costs
of certain software assets. This was done on the basis of drving consistency betweaen the base year and final cutcome, and recognise
the timing of the actudi change in the accounting policy. We additionally noted that had this impact been included then the resulting
vesting level would have been slightly higher.

The Company's average share price for the period from 1 Apnl 20271 to 30 June 2021 was 5,062p, meaning that the value shown for these
awards within the single figure table is £1,217194 for Stephen Wilson,

CEO reward alignment to share price performance
Share price on award = £2377

Share price {three months ending 30 June 2021} = £50.62

Share price growth over period = 118.5%

1 The average annual earnings per share growth ncluding gene editing costs after share-based payments was 12 6% and the 0ssac ated vestirg level would ~ove been 83 8%
of maximum

Jeining award
There were ng joining awards made to Directors in the year ending 30 June 2021.

Material contracts
There were no cther contracts or arrangemenits during the financial year in which a Director of the Company was materially interested
and/or which were significant in relation to the Group's business.

Payments for loss of office and payments to former Directors (qudited)
There were no payments for loss of office in the year or to any former Directors of the business.

Discretion

No discretion was applied by the Committee to outcomes under the variable plans and awards were determined against targets
set by the Committee. The Committee was fully sotisfied that the cutcomes delivered were consistent with the strong business
performance delivered.
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2, WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CAN EARN IN 2022
A summary of this chapter 1s given on page 75.

Base salary

In line with other UK employees, the date of salary review 1s 1 September 2021, Any change is considered against changes made to the

wider workforce.,

annual Annual
salary to salary from Change
156p 2021 1Sep 2021 %
Stephen W|Ison £601 800 £616,500 25%
Alison Henmksen £408 000 £418,200 2.5%

Benefits
The Executive Directors receive benefits including a car allowance, life assurance, an annual madical screen and private medical
insurance,

Pension

On appointment to the CEC role in September 2019, the pension allowance payable to Stephen Wilson reduced to 10% of salary (from 15%).
Alison Herriksen receives a pension afiowance of 6% of salary, consistent with our stated Policy to align rates for new hires to the wider
workforce. In line with investor expectations, the allowance paid to the CEO will reduce to 6% of salary from the end of December 2022.

Performance-related Annual Bonus
The structure for variable rermunaration for Executive Directors for 2022 will be as follows:

Annual Bonus

A maximum of 175% of solary for the Chief Executive ond Chief Financial Officer based on profit, cash generation
cmd strateg\c medasures,

Performance Assessed Across the foWlowmg metrics:

measures Adjusted Profit Before Tax — 50% of opportunity
Cash Generation ~ 15% of opportunity
Strcteg\c measures - 35/0 of opportumty

Vaolue of Bonus

Calibration of
profit target

The targets for the coming year are outlined below ond hczve continued to be chsclosed ona prospectwe bosis,
expressed in terms of growth. The targets have been set having considered the budgets n place for the year and
represent stretching business performance. The Committee considered budgets, analyst expectations and the
market conditions in our key countries in determining the range and is comfortable that the range set is stretching,
and fully aligned to cur stated medium-term growth objective.

Ne bonus is payable in respect of profit unless the prior year's result 1s exceedead. Thereafter, the banus award is
detarminad an the following basis:

Pay-cut (profit

Growth an pr or year ac usted oefore tax' alement}
0% growth or below NJI oword
5/ growth o - B - - - 7 : SO/o oword
WO/ growth or above 7 7 - - 7 lOOé award

Straight-line payout between performance points.

! Incorstant curency a~a exc ud ~g gene edit ng costs

Calibration of cash
generation target

The cosh torgel 15 the budgefed ﬁgure with a specific range of £3m below the tor’get omd £3m above.

Specific numbers were set {rather than a percentage range) to ensure Executives are focused on actual cash
genercnom The torget set cmd resu\tlng performonce Och|eved wnII be dlsclosed in the Armuol Report next year.

Calipration of
strategic meagsuras

Specific mecsurob\e targets have been set against this cotegory Imked 1o our strategic priarities |dent|ﬁed by the
Board for the year ahead. Appraxmately one-third {10% out of the 35%! will be linked to specific targets linked to
enyironmental measures.

it would be commercially sensitive to disclose these targets in advance and we will retrospectively disciose the
targets and associ iated performcnce ogornst them in the subsequem Annual Report

Bonus deferrat One-third of any bonus award will be deferred by way of shares for three years and will vest SubJeCt to comtmued

employment, gther than in ceriagin leover c‘rcumstomces

Malus and
clawback

The Committee can apply malus to deferred bonuses and clawback any element of paid bonuses tmt shoufd
not have been awarded or paid, in the event of a matenal misstatement of the Group's annual results or other
substantive reason,
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2. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CAN EARN IN 2022 CONTINUED

Long-term incentives

Awards to be granted 1n September 2021 will be granted under the 2079 PSP Plan approved by shareholders on 14 November 2019,
Stephen Wilson will be granted an award over shares worth 200% of salary and Alison Henriksen an award over shares worth 175%
of salary. Grants will be determined in line with the Plan Rules, using annual salary as at the point of grant to determine awards.
Awards granted will continue to require the Executive to retain the after-tax number of shares vesting in September 2024 for two
years. Enhanced clawback and malus provisions will apply to these awards as outlined within our Remuneration Policy, including for
reputational damage and corporate failure.

The performance targets for the awards to be granted in September 2021 will relate to average annual growth in adjusted earnings per
share, measured over three years and excluding gene editing costs. The range of targets for the 2022 awards (scheduled to be made
in September 2027 is unchanged from that awarded in recent years aond is s follows and is as follows:

vesting
Average anrual growthin causted earriegs Der share {% award)
Less than 5% per annum 0%
5% per Oanm - - - B - - 20%
15"/: per_onnum 7 7 - - - iOO%

Straight-line vesting between performance points shown above.

1 Growth n ad usted earnings per shore over tre toree - yeor pe-formance ser od will be calewated on a simple average onnual growth rate after the cost of shore -bosed
poyments and exc uding gere edit ng costs

The Committee continues to believe that using adjusted earnings per share is an appropriate measure of long-term performance of
the business, demonstrates alignment to our stated medium-term growth aspirations, and this is consistent with awards granted over
the past few years. The Committee believes the above performance range is appropriately challenging, incentivises Executives to
deliver the Company’s growth strategy and is therefore aligned with shareholders’ interests.

The Committee retains the discretion to be able to scale back vesting based on earnings per share performance if it does not consider
the vesting result to be consistent with the progress achieved against the Company’s strategy during the performance period. This is
considered appropriate to broaden the Executive team's focus beyond financial performance.

3. THE PROCESS THE COMMITTEE FOLLOWED TO ARRIVE AT THESE DECISIONS

The Committee complies with the UK Corporate Governance Code. It makes recommendations to the Board, within agreed terms
of reference, on remuneration for the Executive Directors and other members of GELT. The Committee's full terms of reference are
avallable on the Company's website ot www.genusplc.com,

During 2021, the Committee comprised:

Attendance
Drecror Irdepardert ot meetings
Lesiey Knox (Chair) Yes 5/5
L-ykete- von der Broék - 7 B ;es 5/5
Lysanne Gray . - - Yes 55
lan Chorlés‘ - B Yes E-:/S
ain F_ergu_s-on_ - - Yes 5/5
Bob Lc:ws::uﬁ2 - o o ;és 3/3
Joson Chin® - B - Yes 2/ 2

1 Retred from the Comrpany on 31 May 2021
2 Retired as Crairman on 25 November 2020
3 Joined the Company on1apnl 2021

None of the Committee members has any personal inancial interest {other than as shareholders), conflicts of interests arising from
cross-directorships or day-to-day involvement in running the business. The Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer attend
meetings at the Committee's invitation but are not present when their own remuneration is being discussed. The Committee is
supported by the Group HR Director, Group Reward Director, Finance and Company Secretariat functions.

During the year, the Committee continued to use PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC') for advice it considers Is of value, objective and
independent. PwC's fees were E45k for its remuneration advice to the Committee. PwC were appointed by the Committee following
a competitive tender process and their performance and independence as advisers is regularly reviewed. PwC is a member of the
Rernuneration Consultants Group and complies with its Code of Conduct. Separate teams within PwC provide unrelated advisary
service to the Group, including taxation, International assignments and actuarial advice to the Group.
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3. THE PROCESS THE COMMITTEE FOLLOWED TO ARRIVE AT THESE DECISIONS CONTINUED
During the year to 30 June 2021, the Committee mat five times and considered the following matters:

July 2020 September 2020

> Payreview for GELT mambers. » Determination of Annual

> Strategic targets for 2021 Bonus awards inrespect of
> Review draft Directors’ 2020,

Remuneration Report. » Testing of the performance
conditions and approval of
the vesting levels of long-
term share incentive awards
granted in 2017,

> Approval of long-term share
Incentive awards under the
Company's PSP and the
asscciated performance
targets.

> Review of sharehcidings
by Executive Directors and
GELT.

> Approvat of PSP for senior
leadership and review of
share dilution.

= Approvol of the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

How shareholders’ views are taken into account

November 2020 May 2021

> Discussion of shareholder > Strategic objectives for 2022.
voting on annugl > Incentive design across
remuneration, business,

> Review of remuneration > Qverview of wider reward
reporting and AGM season gractice across the FTSE 250
insight.

> Wider workforce
reward review and pay
benchmarking.

April 2021

> Update on COVID-19
and associated reward
considerations.

= Discussion of gender pay
findings within Genus
Breeding Limited and wider
reward approach in Genus.

> Discussion of E8G and
linkage to reward.

We consulted with shareholders chead of proposing our existing Remuneration Policy to sharehalders at our 2019 AGM which received
high levels of shareholder support. The results of the most recent votes were as follows:

Vote o~ Directors’ Rermunaration
Policy 2019 AGM [onaing)

Vote on Drrectos’ Remunaration
Report 2020 AGM jadwisory)

Total ~umkar % of Total nurber % of
of votes, votes cast of votes votes cast
For 46099609 278 42,801,233 G334
Against N B - CoLo26035 22 3046755 66
Total mumt;;r of shares inr_espect of whi;::votes were vaﬁJ\]mcde o 47‘125,64477 10(? AS,SA?,QE%E 10_0_
V-OE withheld o - o o l?QSlO - T_i,??O o

How employees’ payis taken into account

While the Company does not consult employees on matters of Directors’ remuneration, the Committee does take account of the policy
for empiloyees across the workforce when determining the Remuneration Policy for Directors.

The Group Reward Director facilitates this process, presenting to the Committee reward structures and approach across the
organisation including the way reward levels are set with reference to internal and external factors and how performance metrics
align with those used for GELT members {including Executive Directorsh The process alse includes sharing feedback received through
staff engagement surveys that include questions on pay, as well as consulting employees informally on their views of the current
overalt Remuneration Policy. Additionally, discussions on reward have formed part of diclogue between the nominated Non-Executive
Directors and employees as part of wider engagement activity as outlined etsewhere in the Annual Report. This forms part of the
feedback provided to the Committee and is used to assess the Remuneration Policy's ongoing effectiveness and any changes that

should be made,

When setting the Executive Directors' base salaries, the Committee compares the salary increases proposed for each Executive
Director with those proposed for employees in their geographical iocation, as wall as considening the typical Increase proposed across

our UK business and the wider Group.
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4. HOW THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S PAY COMPARES TO SHAREHOLDER RETURNS OVER THE PAST TEN YEARS AND TO EMPLOYEES' PAY
Total shareholder return

The following graph shows the Company's performance measured by total shoreholder return (TSR, compared with the TSR
performance of the FTSE 250 Index. The FTSE 250 Index was selected as it represents a broad eguity market of which the Company
is a member.

Ten years of total shareholder return

&00
500 -
400

300

TSR lrebased) 1 £}

200

100

8]
June N June 12 June 13 June 14 June 15 June 1é June 17 June 18 June 19 June 20 Jure 21
— — Genus —  FTSE250

As reguired under the reporting regulations, the table below shows the 'single figure’ pay for the Chief Executive over the same period,
to allow comparison between variability in reward and the shareholder experience over the same period.

Year enced 30 June 2021

Renord

. V\_/_OOG_ o B . FD'IT B\IEI o o Steohen W lscr

2012 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 207 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021

Total remuneration [(E00Qs)  £231  £1,774 £858 £877 L1622 E1704 [2856 [£2549 £815 £183 £2151 E2.888
Annual bonus (% of max) ga%  77% 3% 2% 99%  78%  59%  64%  NiE NIP 9l%  95%
Towl PSPvesting (% of max)  —  ~  — = 2e% 3% 79%  S6% N Nl 449%  812%

1 Included payment for loss of annual bonus 1£163,000} and the value of restrcted stock (E755,000) granted to compersate hir for loss of value forfeit on aiming Genus
2 Includes the aware under the Company Milestone slement of the annual oonus under the previcus Rerrureration Policy
3 Noawa-ds were payable fo'low ng the decis on of Kar m to res gn from the bus ress

4 Vesting was =1 as Kanm's employment cessot or date wos before scheduled vesting of PSP awaras

Director remuneration compared to Genus employees

Change in remuneration received

The table below shows the percentage change in the annual remuneration of Directors from 2019 onwards. Also provided for
comparison is a UK comparator number for each respective time peried which considers all employees of Genus plc on 30 June 2021
{excluding Directors) and calculating on an FTE basis changes in salary, benefits and bonus compared to the previous year.

Salary/fees {% cnange)

Benefts (% charge)
2020102021 2019102020 2020 te 2021

Bonus {% changel

2019 to 2020

2019102020 202010 2021
Stephen Wilson! 9 41 [4) 0 6 158
Alison Hemrikrseh; a - 7 ":' - r;07 77 0 n/a - 7_- o n}o
Io; Fgrgtrson - ) o n/a 7 n/<;1 o r;/c; ) 7n/cx nku o _H,’o_
Lykele vcn?je;_Bro-ek o o _0 - G (66) o 72577 n/a n/a -
Lysonn;Grioy - - - 0 8] - 6 - _-O ;1/07 o n?o
Lésley Knox 7 o 7”(757) s 0 0 N n/a n/a
Jason Chin o 7 i 7n/c|7 n/a I';/d_ o n/; n/u 7n/oi
UK comparators B o i.é - _25 o] 0 - 24 124

1 Stepren wos apoainted into tre CEQ rale on 13 Septemper 2019 The 2020 yeer (July 2019 to June 2020) nc udes part yeor of salary as CFO trrougr to 13 September 2019 and

part year 03 CEQ Sa ary ncrease rece ved in Seotember 2020 was 2%

2 Amecunts rove been annualised for 2020 for Aison to reflect her 'oining aate of 13 Jaruary 2020

3 Inc udes bacx payments for membership of respective Committees ~ot recerved our ng 2019
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4. HOW THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S PAY COMPARES TO SHAREHOLDER RETURNS QOVER THE PAST TEN YEARS AND TO EMPLOYEES' PAY

CONTINUED
Distribution statement

2020 2021 % crange
Ermployee costs (Em) £179m £194m 8%
Distributions to shareholders' £183m £19.5m 7%
1 ircludes diviaerds and share buy -packs
5. THE CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' FEES
Feas payable to the Non-Executive Directors per annum are as follows:

2019 2020 202
Posiion fess fecs feeas
Chairman £160000 £160000 £230,000°
Audit & Risk Committee/Remuneration Committee Chairs £60,000 £40,000 £460,000
Scientific Adviser to R&D Global Portfolio Steering Commitiee ({GPSCY) £45000 F&45000 E£65,000
Base Non-Executive Director fee £55000 £55000 £55,000

1 Tne Charman fee was reviewed pr or to the appaintment of lar Fergusen and was determined follow rg o review of market data, 0s d sclased in the 2620 Anrual Report

This fee gvel was appi ed followng appo riment 1o la n Fergusan as Cha rman effectiva 25 Novemoer 2020

The responsibilities of chairing the Audit & Risk and Remuneration Committees result in an additional fee of £5,000, giving the Chairs of

these Cammittees o total fee of £60,000. Fees will continue at this level for the coming year.

Total single figure of remuneration (audited} for 2020 and 2021 are as follows:

Taxabie

Feas expensas Benefits Tota.

Neon-Execut ve Directors £000s £000s EO0Os £000s
lain Ferguson’ 2021 157 - - 157
2020 - - - -

Bob Lawson? 2021 &7 - - &7
2020 160 30 1 191

Lykele van der Broek 2021 55 2 2 59
202G 55 b 5 jole}

Lysanne Gray 2021 40 - - 40
2020 &0 - - &0

lan Charles® 2021 &0 - - 60
2020 72 - - 72

Lesley Knox 2021 60 - - &0
2020 635 - - 63

Jason Chin® 2021 16 - - 186
2020 - - - -

Total 2021 475 2 2 479
2020 410 36 & 452

Jorea tne Comoamy ar 1 Juy 2020 gna cecore Charan o- 25 NoveTos- 2020

Ret red as Charmo~ o~ 25 Nove Tker 2020

Res grea from the Caroony or 31 May 2021

Jomeg tre Compery o~ 1Ape 2021

IrciLdes back oay=e-ts for memoersnio of respective Cometiees ~ot recevec cunng 2019

[ SN

The Non-Executive Directors' taxable expenses are travel expenses related to therr rele and have been grassed up for tax where

coplicable, in ine with HMRC rulas.
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6. DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS AND RIGHTS TO SHARES
Directors’ shareholdings (audited)

At the year-end, the Directors had the following interests in the Company's shares:
Unvested Unvested PSP
DSBP  awards held

At awards at at At

30 June 2021 %of Sharaholding 30 June2021 30 June2021 30 Jure2020

Number  salaryheld'  guideline? Numbaer Number Number

Iain Ferguson 4,000 n/a n/a n/a n/a -
Stephen Wilson o e5342 652%  200% 23020 102,156 73330
Alison Henriksan - 7 - 17% 2?0% - 2,;3;5 _-_-60,75-2 -
lan C-i_r-luorlesm_- - o ) o B - 7 n/a . n/n n/a n/a .
Lykele van der Broek o - “_.'-5,750 - n/a - n/él 7 n/a 7n/a 3750
L;f;annegroy - nAa ‘wa  nia nla -
Lesley Knox - 2000 na  n/a  n/a na 2000
Jason Chin - na  nfa  nje  nla -
Total o 15092 - 25556 142908 79080

1 Basedon tre corbired number of peneficially held shaves and tre net of tax CSBP awards »eld and the average closing share price over the trree manths to 30 June 2021
of 5,062c.
2 Executive Dreciors are exoectea to work towards achieve a shareholding of 260% of salary os set gut ir tne Remuneraticn Policy agreed oy sharehclaers in 2019

There were no changes in the Directors’ interests between 30 June 2021 and the date of this report.

Company share price
The market price of the Company's shares on 30 June 2021 was 4,940p and the lowest and highest share prices during the financial
year were 3 344p and 5,435p respectively.

Performance share awards granted in 2021 {audited)

The awards granted under the 2019 PSP were as follows:
Face maximum value of

Mumpe- of shares awards ot gront date % of award vesting
Executive COMDIISING OwWara (% salary} at thrasnaid Performance penoa
Stephen Wilson 30877 £1,203,600 (200%) 20 01.0720-300623
Alisen Henriksen 18,317 £714000(175%) 20 01.0720-3006.23

1 The clos ng overage shore price over the tnree days pror to tre award being granted has been usea to determice the moximum foce va ug of the awards wh ch was 3,.898p
laward gra=tad on 14 Sapteraber 2020}

The awards were granted as nii-cost share options and vesting will be subject to achieving a challenging sliding scale of adjusted
earnings per share growth target and a strategic underpin, consistent with our Remuneration Policy. The adjusted earnings per share
growth performance target for the above awards is:

Vesting
Average annua: growth in adjusted earninrgs per srare’ 1% award)
Less than 5% per annum 0%
5% perannum 20%
E% pe;onnum 100%

Straight-line vesting between performance points

1 Growtnin adjusted earmings per snare over tre three-year performa-ce penca wil be caleulated on a simple average anrual growth rate after tre cost of share-pased
payments ard ad usted for ge~e ed ting costs r line w th previcus awards

Deferred bonus awards granted in 2021 {audited)
The foliowing DSBP awards were granted in relation to the 2020 annual bonus:

Number of
s~ares  Foce voluect
comrpnsing awards at
Executive award grant dote’
Stephen Wilson 8079  £314°19
Alison Henriksen 2536 £38,865

These awards are not subject to any further performance conditions and will normally vest in full on 14 September 2023 subject to
continued service.

1 The closing average smae proe over the three doys or or to tre award being granted ~as neen used to determing the maximur face va ue of the awards Tmis was 3.898p
laward granted on 14 Septemoer 2020)



a8 GENUS PLC / ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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6. DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS AND RIGHTS TO SHARES CONTINUED
Summary of scheme interests (qudited)

As at 30 June 2021, the Executive Directors had the following beneficial interests in share awards and share options:

Stephen Wilson

At

At

3G June Granted Laosed i~ Exercised 30 June

Sha-e price 2020 inyear yaar " yecr 2021

Grart aate Award Vestng penog at grant MNumier Number Numrber Numbe- Number

13 September 2017 PSP 13 September 2017 to 1973p 33,443 - (18,427) (15,014) -
13 September 2020

13 September 2017 DSBP 13 September 2017 to 1973p 10213 - - {10,213) -
13 September 2020

9 October 2018 PSP % Qctober 2018 to 2317p 29613 - - - 29,613
@ October 2021

9 October 2018 DsBP @ October 2018 10 2317 7559 - - - 7,559
7 October 2021

T September 2018 PSP 11 September 2019 1o 2832p 41,666 - - - 41,666
11 September 2022

1 September 2009 DsSBP 11 September 2019 to 2832p 7,382 - - - 7,382
11 September 2022

14 September 2020 PSP 14 September 2020 to 2,898p - 30877 - - 30,877
14 September 2023

14 September 2020 DSBP 14 September 2020 to 3.898p - 8079 - - B,079
14 September 2023

Total 129,876 38,956 (18,427) (25,229) 125176

Alison Henriksen

At At

Share 3¢ June Granted Lapsed Exarcised 30 June

price 2020 nyea” =~ year In ygar 2021

Grart date Awgrd Vesting peniod at gra-t Number MNumrber Numger Numbier Number

7 April 2020 RSP 7 April 2019 to 3120p 22,435 - - - 22,435
11 September 2022

14 September 2020 psp 14 Septermber 2020 to 3.898p - 18,317 - - 18,317
14 September 2023

14 September 2020 DSBP 14 September 2020 to 38980 - 2,526 - - 2,536
14 September 2023

Total 22,435 20,853 - - 43,288

For the share awards to Stephen Wilson and Aliscn Henriksen granted on 14 September 2020, the closing average share price over
the three days prior to 14 September 2020 (the grant date for the PSP awards) of 3,898p was used to determine the number of shares

comprising individua! awards

The performance targets applying to the PSP awards made during the year are as described above. An earnings per share range also
applied to awards made in 2019 and 2018 to Stephen Wilson. No further performance conditions apply to DSBP awards other than
continued employment with the business.

Dilution

The aggregate dilution of all relevant share incentives is 3.57% as at 30 June 2021, which is tess than the permissible 10% in ten years

dilution hmit.
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7. DETAILS OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' CONTRACTS AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Director Apponrtrrent dote Curent contract date Exputy date Notice penad {months)
Executives

Steﬁhen \;Vl\soﬁ B 12 Dece;fﬂbieir'ZOVl”Z 13 September 2019 i ) n/a  12{from Company}, b_(from Exe-cutive)
Aﬁsorw Qenr@sen 13 January 2020 14 Novémber 2019 a n/(; 12 (from Company), é (fromr Executive}
Non-Executives S '
Lykeje vo; derBroek 1July 2014 4 September 2020 1 .L\y 2(;23 - 1
lysanne Gray 1 April 2016 1 April 2019 1 Apri 2022 1
Lés!ev“knox_ N 1 hine 2018 1 Junc 2021 1“June_202ei-_ - - 1
lgin Ferguson C O 1uuy2020 1July2020 1auly2023 6
JasonChin 1 April 2021 1 April 2021 1 April 2024 1

SECTION E - SUMMARY OF DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY

KEY DESIGN/PHILOSOPHY OF OUR REMUNERATION POLICY APPROVED BY SHAREHOLDERS AT THE 2019 AGM

What we are trying to achigve

How we are lcoking to ach-eve it

> Continued transformation into a global agricultural
biotechnology pioneer

> Pursuit of leading-edge technology and focus on long term
innovation and cpportunity to enable future value creation
for shareholders

> Sustainable robust short-term delivery of financial
performance as we invest in the future

> Ability to recognise innovation and prograss, which are crucial
to securing long-term bottom-line performance

> Abllity to attract and motivate a high-guality leadership team
and drive focus and behaviours on long term achievemeant in
a global market for talent

> Recegnise expectations of shareholders on reward and
governance

> Draw upon the aspects of our current policy that are already
working

> Include strategic measures within annual bonus assessment
whilst increasing the focus on financial metrics

> Reduction to pension contribution levels permitted within the
policy

> Introduction of a post-cessation shareholding requirement and
enhanced malus and clawback provisions
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Section E - Summary of Directors’ Remuneration Policy

BELOW IS A SUMMARY OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY APPROVED BY SHAREHOLDERS AT THE 2019 AGM

Executive Directors’ policy table

Bose salary

Berefits

Pension

PURPOSE
To provide competitive fixed remuneration
that will attract and retain employees with
the experience necessary to develop and
execute our strategy.

OPEEATION
Payable in cash.

Reviewed annually by the Committee with
any change effective from 1 5eptember.

Factors considered when reviewing

salary include:

> Salary increases awarded to other
employees in the country where the
individual is based.

= Comparable sglaries when
benchmarked against relevant market
comparatars {(ooth in the UK and
internationally).

> The experience of the individual and
the nature of the contribution they are
making and therr respensibilities.

> Qverall Group performance and wider
econamic conditions.

MAXIMUM
There is Ng set maximum, but changes are
ypically inline with the wider workforce.

Individual changes may be made ot

the discretion of the Committee outside

of these levels by exception. This could

include the following situations:

> Significant change in responsibility.

> Change in the Group's size and
complexity.

> To enable salary progression for newly
appointed Oirectars as they develop
in role.

To provide o competitive range of benefits
to drive engagement and commitment to
Genus.

Benefits generally include ¢ car allowance
and insured benefits (e.g. life assurance
and private medical insurance)

Where additional benefits are offered ina
particular location {or across the Group)
Exacutive Directors are typically eligible
to recelve those benefits on similar terms.
These could include access to employee
discounts or salary sacrifice benefits,

Directors may participate in a Share
Incentive Pian ['SIP') or any other all-
employee share scheme on the same
terms as other employees.

Where Executive Directors are recruited
from overseas or required to relocate
lincluding on an international assignment),
benefits such as travel and relocation
costs and tax equalisation arrangements
may be provided.

The car allowance is capped under the
Policy at £20,000 per annum.

The value of insured benefits will vary each
yaar basad on tha cost of the premiums
paid, and will be reflected within the
respective single figure table for the year.

To provide a competitive Company
contribution that enatles effective
retirement planning.

Directors may participate in the Company
Pension Plan o defined contribution
arrangement] or an alternative pension
saving vehicle that the Company may
provide.

Alternatively, the Company may provide
a cash supplement in lieu of pension
contributions into a scheme,

Only bass solary is pensionable.

An allowance will be made available
line with the rate available to the wider
workforce.

Maximum permitted under the Policy will be
10% of salary.
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Performance Share Plan

91

Srareholding

Te motivate and incentivise delivery of
annual performance targets covering
a comkination of inancial ang
strategic measures.

One-third of the Annual Bonus is deferred
into Company shares for a period of three
years, sulbject to continued service, The
remaining award is payable in cash.
Malus and clawback provisions exist for
awards made under the Annugal Bonus.

A dividend equivalent provision enables
dividends to be paid {in cash or shares)
on deferred shares that vest.

See explanatery notes for further detgils on
the operation including leaver provisions.

Maximum opportunity of 200%,

To incentivise Executives to achieve
superior returns to shareholders over
three-year pericd, to retain key individuals
and align with shareholder interests.

Awards schedulaed to vest three years from
Qrant, subject to continued employment
and satsfaction of challenging three-year
performance targets.

Following vesting the post-tax number of
vested shares must be held for atleast a
further two-year period.

A dividend equivalent provision enables
dividends to be paid (in cash or shares) on
shares that vest,

Malus and clawback provisions may apply
for a petiod of three years.

See explanatory notes for further details on
the operation including leaver provisions.

Maximum annual oward of 200% of
salary {300% of salary in exceptional
circumstances, such as recruitment).

To align Executives and shareholders.

Executives are required to achieve a
sharehalding of 200% of salary. it 1s
expected that this 1s achieved within

five years of appeintment, and that this
sharehalding is generated through retention
of at least half of the shares that vest under
the DSBP and PSPs.

Once met, individuals ore expected to
maintain at least this level of shareholding
and it will be reviewed by the Committee
annually.

A post-cessation shareholding policy will
apply for Executive Directors that requires
100% of shareholding for 24 months
following cessation (or actual applicable
shareholding in place at point of leaving
if lower).

This will apply considering shares awarded
inrespect of 2020 and beyond (including

to any new oppoeintments], and we will

net amend existing conditions for current
awards. Malus and clawback provisions
exist beyond cessation of employment, and
in certain leaver situations the expected
share treatment would continue to drive
ongoing alignment between the individual
and share price performance.

n/a
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Base Salary Benefits

Pension

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS
n/a n/a

n/ca
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Bonus awards are subject to achievement
against g sliding scale of challenging
financial and strategic objectives, which
the Committee sets each year to reflect
priorities for the year ahead.

The specific performance measures
are reviewed avery yeqr to ensure they
continue to support the Company’s
strateqy.

Financial measures govern the majornty of
the bonus and are typically linked to key
performance indicators (e.g. profit and
cash generation).

Strategic measures reflect key areas of
importance identified by the Committee
N advance.

For inancial perfermance targets

are based on a graduated scale. The
level of payment at threshold is set
annually but will not exceed 25% of
maximum, Full awards are for substantial
outperformance against targets set.

The Committee has discretion to adjust
the bonus outcome in light of overall
underlying performance. Any adjustment
will be disclosed within the following
Annual Report on Remuneration,

Once set, performance meaasures and
targets are expected to remain unaltered.
The exception would be if events were

o cocur which, in the opinion of the
Committes, made it appropriate to make
adiustments to ensure that the scheme
operates as originally Intended.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Performance Share Plan Sharehoiding
Awards vest based on three-year n/a

performance against a challenging range
of targets, aligned with the delivery of the
Company's long-term strategy.

Financial targets (including adjusted
earnings per share growth) will determing
the vesting of a mgjority of awards granted
in any year.

The threshold level of vesting is 20% of

the maximum. For performance between
threshold and maximum, awards vest on a
straight-line basis.

The Committee has discretion to scale
back {but not scale up) vesting, if the
Group's performance over the period is not
considerad to reflect the progress made
against strategic business targets.

The Committee will review performance
conditions annually, specifically the range of
earnings per share targets and the metrics
and weightings applied to each element

of the PSP. Any ravisions to the metrics
and/or weightings will only take place if it

is necessary because of developments in
the Company's strategy and, where these
are material, following dialogue with the
Company's major shareholders.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY

Fees

PURPOSE

OPERATION Payable in cash.

To provide compensation that attracts high-calibre individuals and reflects their experience and knowledge.

The Committee determines the Chairman's fee.

The Board periodically reviews Non-Executive Directors’ fees.

Additional fees are paid to Non-Executive Directors who Chair ¢ Board Committee and to the Senior independent

Director {'SID').

No Directors take part in mestings where their own remuneration s discussed.

Feas are based on the time commitments involved in each role and set with reference to the fees paid in other similarly

sized UK listed companies.

MAXIMUM
reviewed periodically ond may need to reflect any changes to time commitments or responsibilities.

The periodic review may result in an increase beyond the fees currently payable.

Nen-Executive Directors also receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in connection with Company
business and the Company may settle any tox incurred in relation to these. The fees payable for 2021 are stated on

page 86,

Any increase In Non-Executive Director fees may be above the level awarded to employees, given that they are only

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Lesley Knox
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
8 September 2021
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INFORMATION INCORPQORATED

BY REFERENCE

The following information required
to be included in a Directors’ Report
is provided elsewhere in the Annual
Report and is incorporated into the
Directors’ Report by cross reference.

Content location
Orrectors Pages
5210 53
Divirdends - Page 3-3_
Financial results B P(ges

30 to 33

Greenhouse gas emissions  Page 43
and energy consumption

Research and development  Pages

activities 2610129
Financial nsk management  Pages
30 to 33
Future developments in Pages
the business 14 to 29
Directors’ interests Page 87
Engagement with Pages
employeas, customers, 12t013

suppliers and others

Post Balance Sheet events  Note 41

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES/EMPLOYEES
WITH DISABILITIES

Genus values diversity and aims 1o
make best use of everyone's skills and
abilities. We are therefare cornmitted
to equal opportunities at every

stage of our employees’ careers. Qur
policy on employees with disabilities
is to fully and fairly consider people
with disabilities for all vacancies.

We intefview and recruit people with
disabilities and endeavour 1o retain
employees if they become disabled while
they wark for us. Where possible, we will
retrain employees who become disabled
and adjust therr working environment,

so they can maximise their potential.

POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS
The Group does not make political
conrtrbutions.

SHARE CAPITAL

Note 31 gives detalls of the Company’s
issued share capital and any movements
n the 1ssued share capital during the year.

The Directors may only issue shares

to the extent authorised by the
shareholders in general meeting. The
current power to allot shares was granted
by shoreholder resolution ot the 2020
AGM and a new authority is being

sought at the 2021 AGM within the limits
set out in the notice of meeting, that is

up t a nominal value of £4,384,398 40
frepresenting two-thirds of the Company’s
current issued share capital).

The Campany has one class of ordinary
share, with the rights set out in the Articles
of Association. All issued shares are fully
paid and each share has the right to one
vote ot the Company's general meetings.
There are no specific restrnctions either
on the size of @ holding or on the transfer
of shares, which are both governed by
our Articles of Association and prevailing
legislation, No persen has any specicl
rights of controt over the Campany's
share copital

Detcils of the Company's ermployee
share schemes are set out in note 30,
In connecticn with these schemes,
the Genus plc Employee Benefit Trust
holds shares in the Company from
time to time and abstains from voting
in respect of any such shares.

For additional information on capital
risk management including financial
Instruments, see note 26,

AUTHORITY TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'S
OWN SHARES

The Directors may only buy back

shares 1o the extent authorised by the
shareholders in general meeting. The
current power to buy back shares was
granted by shoreholder resolution ot
the 2020 AGM and o new authority is
being sought at the 2021 AGM within
the limits set out in the notice of
meeting, that s up to a nominal value
of £657,659.70 [representing 10% of the
Company's current 1ssued share capital)

The Company did not buy back any
shares under the authority granted ot
the 2020 AGM, from the date of that
AGM up to the date of this report.



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

As at 1 September 2021, we were aware
of the tollowing maternal interests in the
Company's ordinary shares:

Func Manager Shareholding %

Baillie Gifford & Co 5,416,054 8.24%

Aberc;éen Stoﬁdorg 4,51:3,075 6917%
nvestments

ach 3403525 5.18%
2571,698 4.52%
243687 371%

BlackRock
Vanguard Group

Capital Group

Columbia 2289265 348%
Threadneedle

Investments

Wellington 2163433 3.29%
Management

Devon Equity 2039151 3.10%

Management

There have been no material changes
in shareholding since 30 June 2021. No
other person has notified an interest in
the Company's ordinary shares, which
is required to be disclosed to us.

PROVISION OF INFORMATION TO THE

COMPANY'S AUDITOR

Each of the Directors at the date

of approval of this Annual Report

confirms that:

> so far as the Director is aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which
the Company's auditor is unaware; and

> the Director has taken all the steps
that he or she ought to have taken
as a Director in order to make himself
or herself aware of any retevont audit
information and to establish that the
Cornpany’'s cuditor 1s aware of that
information.

This confirmation is given and should
be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of section 418 Companies
Act 2006.

APPQINTMENT OF AUDITOR

Delgitte LLP has expressed its willingness
to continug in office as cuditor and a
resolution to reappoint it will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company has made qualifying third-
party indemnity provisions for the benefit
of its Directors which were made during
the year and remain in force at the date
of this report.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Company has procedures for
managing conflicts of interest. If o Director
bacomes aware that they or any of their
connected parties have an interest in

an existing or proposed transaction with
Genus, they should notify the Chairman
and the Company Secretary in writing or
at the next Board meeting. Controls are
in piace to ensure that any related-party
transactions invelving Directors, or therr
connected parties, are conducted on

an arm's length basis, Directors have an
ongoing duty to update the Board on
any changes to these conflicts.

REQUIREMENTS OF THE LISTING RULES
Details of the Company's long-tarm
incentive schernes can be found in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages
7010 93

Approved by the Board and signed on its
behalf by:

Dan Hartley

Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary
8 September 2021

95
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Cempany kaw requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
are required to prepare the group inancial statements in
accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
International Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to
Regulation (EC) No 1606/20G2 as it applies in the European Union.
The Directors have chosen to prepare the Parent Company
Financial Statements in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework’. Under company
law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or 1oss of the
Company for that period.

In preparing the Parent Cempany Financial Statements, the

Directors are required to:

> select sutable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

> make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

> state whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework” has been followed, subject to any
materal departures disclosed and explained in the Financial
Statements; and

> prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern kasis,
unless it is inappropricte to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

In preparing the Group Financial Statements, International

Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:

> properly select and apply accounting policies;

> present infarmation, including accounting policies, in a
manner that provides relevant, rehakle, comparable and
understandable information;

> provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, Other
events and conditions on the entity’s financial positicn and
financal performance; and

> make an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adegquate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable cccuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the Financial Statements comply with the Campanies Act
20046 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
preventicn and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and

integrity of the corporate and financial information included

on the Company's website Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ
from legislation in other junisdictions

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

> the Fingncial Statements, prepared in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framewaork, give & true and fair
view of the assets, labilities, inancial position and profit or
loss of the Company ond the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as ¢ whale;

> the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face, and

> the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a
whole, are fair balanced and understandabie, and provide
the infarmation necessary for sharehalders to assaess the
Company's position, performance, business model
and strategy.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Wilson
Chief Executive
8 Septemper 2021

Alison Henriksen
Chief Financial Officer
8 September 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Genus plc

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Opinion

In our opinion:

> the financial statements of Genus plc (the ‘Parent Company') and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’) give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 30 June 2021 and of the Group's prefit for the year then ended;

> the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs’) as adopted by the
European Union and IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ('IASB’);

> the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework'; and

> the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the inancial statements which compnse:

the Group Imcorme Slulernegnl,

the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income;

the Group and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity;
the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets;

the Group Statement of Cash Flows; and

the related notes 1to 42 and C1to C20.

4
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The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial staternents is applicable law and
international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and IFRSs as issued by the IASB. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 'Reduced
Disclosure Fromework' (United Kingdom Generally Accapted Accounting Practicel.

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK and applicatle law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further descrived in the auditor's responsibilities for the cudit of the financial statements section of our
report.

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (the 'FRC's’) Ethical Standard as applied to listed
public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audiit
services provided to the Group and Parent Company for the year are disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements. We confirm that
the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group cr the Parent Company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matter that we identified in the current year was:
> Valuation of Biological Assets under IAS 41 Agriculture’.

Within this report, key audit matters are identified as follows:

Newly identified
Increased level of risk
Similar level of risk
Decreased level of nsk

The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was £3.3m which was determined on

Materiality
the basis of Profit before Tax {'PBT), excluding the impact of exceptional items and the net 1AS 4]
valuation movemnent on biclogical assets.

Scoping Our audit scope covered 13 components, Of these, eight were sulject to a full scope audit, and five

were subject 10 specified procedures. Qur testing achieved coverage of 79% of Revenue, 83% of Net
Assets and 88% of PBT, excluding the impact of exceptional items and the net |AS 41 valuation
movement on biclogical assets.

Significant changes in our In the current year we dassessed the valuation of goodwill attributed to the ABS cash-generating unit
approach {'ABS CGU'} to no longer be a key audit matter, reflecting the continued improvement in the ABS CGU's
financial performance.
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4, Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors' use of tne going cencern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Cur evaluction of the Directors’ assessment of the Group's and Parent Company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting included:
> understanding the Group's process for assessing the going concern assumgtion including identification and testing of the design
and implementation of relevant management review controls underpinning this assessment;
> understanding the relevant assumptions used in the going concern models, inciuding the Strategic Plan, and chalienging
them by companson to our understanding of the business, external information and evidence gathered from other audit
procedures, including:
- reading analyst reports, industry data and other external inforrmation inspecting them for corroborative and contradictory
evidence in relation to managemeant's assumptions;
- challenging forecasted profit by comparison to recent historical financicl information; and
- challenging the key underlying data used in forecast scenarios by assessing it for consistency with our understanding
of the business;
> reviewing the terms of the Group's existing financing arrangements consisting of a E150m multi-currency RCF, a US$125m RCF and a
US$20m bond and guarantee facility, evaluating the associated disclosure provided by management, and reperforming the debt
covenant computations over the going concern assessment period; and
> evoluating the Group's disclosures on going concern against the requirements of IAS 1.

Based on the work we have parformed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and Parent Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for
a period of at least 12 months from when the financial statements are cuthorised for issue.

In relation to the reporting on how the Group has opplied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material to add or
draw attention to in reiation to the Directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether the Directars considered 1t
appropriate to adept the going concern basis of accounting.

QOur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report,

5. Key audit matters

Key audit motters are those matters that, in our professional jJudgement, were of most significance in our gudit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed nsks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
that we identified. These matters included these which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forming our opinion therecn,
and we do not provide o separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of Biological Assets under JAS 41 'Agriculture’

Key audit matter The Group carrias biological assets at fair valueg in line with the requirements of AS 41 "Agriculture’. Discounted
description cash flow analyses are performed in determining the valuation. As ot 30 June 2021, the Group held totat
biological assets (excluding those recognised in inventoryl of 319.5m {2020: £3499m),

Certain of the assumptions included within management’s valuation medels are subject to estimation
uncertainty, and accordingly, require the exercise of a signiicant degree of judgement. In planning cur audit,
we identified the following management assumptions as being the mast significant in the determination of
the valuation of gach species:

Bovine: the future growth rates of proven and genomic semen sales; the Biological Asset Value discount
factor; and the discount rate applied.

Porcine: the percentage of pureline offspning retained, sold or slaughtered and the discount rates applied to
the forecast cash flows.

Details of the key source of estimation uncertainty identified, the Group's accourting policy, and the
biclogical assets held are disclosad in notes 4 and 16 to the financial statements. The Audit & Risk Committee
ras included their assessment of this key audit matter on page 67.
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How the scepe of our In responding to the identified key audit matter, we completed the following cudit procedures:

audit responded to the > obtained an understanding of controls relevant to the review and approval of the valuation of

key oudit matter biclogical assets;

> gssessed the appropriateness of the togic and mechanical accuracy of the valuation models prepared
and the methodology applied by management for compliance with the requiraments of 1AS 41 'Agriculture’;

> made enquiries of manggement to understand the rationale applied in the determination of key
assumptions and any changes year on year;

= challenged the appropriateneass of key assumptions applied within the underlying forecasts prepared by
management, with consideration given to historical forecasting accuracy, availability of third-party
benchmarking dota (where appropriate);

> substantively tested the underlying transactional data underpinning third-party semen sales and
inspected the related contracts (Boving):

> substantively tested the reasonableness of management's forecasts with regard to the percentages of
offsioning Lu be retained, sold or slaughtered with reference to historic transaction data, and further,
considered the appropriateness of the forward-looking assumption applied (Porcine};

> involved our internal valuation specialists in our cansideration as to the appropriateness of the discount
rate applied by management in determining the fair value of biclogical assets; and

> assessed the completeness and accuracy of disclosures made within the financial statements in
accordance with |AS 41 'Agriculture’, and I1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements”.

Key observations We are satisfied that the valuation of biclogical assets and the related disclosures are appropriate.

4. Qur application of materiaiity

6.1. Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of
our audit work and 1in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined maternality for the financial stotements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Parent Company financial statements
£2.3m (2020: £3.0m)

£2.6m (2020: £2.5m)

5% (2020 5%) of Profit before Tax excluding 1% (2020:1%) of net assets.

the impact of exceptional items (as

defined in note 7 and in the Group Income  The increase in materiality is in line with the
Statement) and the net 1AS 41 valuation nerease in Parent Company's net assets.
movement on biclogical assets.

Materiality

Basis for determining materiality

The increase in materiality reflects the
improved trading performance of the

Group.

Rationale for the benchmark applied We have selected this adjusted Profit Net assets were selected as an appropriate
before Tax measure to determine benchmark for determining matenality, as
materiality so as to avoid distertion that the Parent Company acts primarily as o
could otherwise arise from non-recurring holding company.

itemns, highly volatile items or 1AS 41 fair
valug movements.
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&.2. Performance materiality
We set performance matericlity at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregaote, uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the inancial statements as a whole,

Group financial statements Parent Company financial statements
Performance materiality 70% (2020: 70%) of Group materiality 70% (2020: 70%) of Parent Company
materiality

Basis and rationale for determining In determining performance moteriality, we considered the following foctors:
performance materiality > our cumulative knowledge of the Group and its internal control environment;
> the low tumover in key management personnel;
> the high degree of centralisation in the Group's financial reparting controls and
processes; and
> the low number of corected and uncorrected misstatements identified in prior periods.

4.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit & Risk Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of F165k (2020
£150%), as wel! as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on gqualitative grounds. We also report to the
Audit & Risk Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1 Identification ond scoping of components

Qur cudit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls, and assessing
the risks of material misstatement at the Group level.

Components were selected to provide an appropriate basis for undertaking cudit work to gddress the risks of matenal misstatement
identified. Based on that assegsment, we identified 13 components of interest for the purposes of the Group audit (2020: 12). Of these
components, eight were designated as subject to full scope audit procedures (2020: ninel, with the remaning five subject to specified
procedures {2020 three). Excluding the Parent Company, cur component audits were performed using materiality between £1.1m and
£1.4m (2020: £1.0m and £1.4m} These components represent the principal business units and account for 79% of the Group's Revenue
(2020: 76%), 83% of the Group's Net Assets (2020 81%} and 88% of the Group's PBT, excluding the impact of exceptional tems and the
net 143 41 valuation movement on biological assets (2020: 83%).

In the current year we performed specified proceduras audit in respect of PIC Russia (2020: out of scopel, reflecting its growing
contribution to the Group. PIC Chile was reduced from a full scope audit to specified procedures, reflecting an averall decline in the
component's contribution to the Group.

At the Group level, we also tested the consolidation process and carnied out analytical procedures to confirm cur conclusion that there
were na significant risks of matenal misstatement within the aggregated financial information of the remaining companents not subject
to full scope audit or specified procedures.

1 Exc'uengtre Toactoferxceptcra temsgrgtre tet IAS 4lvawat cn —gve™ert oo o og Ca' assats

7.2. Werking with other auditors

The Group audit team engaged component audit teams 1o perform the audit proceduras as set out in section 7.1. The Group audit
team held regular communication with the component auditors in planning for, and throughout, the year-end audit process, Oversight
of the component quditors included attending ‘nter~al planning and status meetings, attending close meetungs held with local
management, and reviewing relevant gudit documentation.

in light of the travel restrictions and widespread lockdowns resulting from the COVID-1¢ pandemic we were not able to complete our
normal progromme of planned visits. In response 10 these restnctions we enhanced our remate eversight through a number of measures,
Os gpprogrigte to each component, including more frequent diclogue and use of video conferencing and screen-shanng faciities.
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8. Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our ouditor's
report thereon namely the Strategic Report, Corporate Governance Sections and the Additional Information sections. The Directors
are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual Report.

Our gpinion on the inanciol statemants does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whather the other infermation is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are reguired to determine whether this gives rse to
a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required o report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

9. Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities staternent, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
staterments and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal contrel as the Directors determine is
necessary to encble the sreparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar.

In preparing the fnancial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company's ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directars either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or hove no realistic
alternative but to do so.

10. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives dre to obtain raeasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is

a high level of assurance but is net a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always cetect o material
misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staternents.

A further description of cur responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www fre.orguk/auditorsresponsibilities. This dascription farms part of our auditor's report.

1. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which
our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud is detalled below.

.1 tdentifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws

and regulations, we considerad the following:

> the nature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance including the design of the Group's
remuneration policies, key drivers for Directors’ remunearation, bonus levels and performance targets;

> results of our enquiries of management, internal audit, and the Audit & Risk Committee abaut their own identification and
assessment of the risks of iregularities;

> any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the Group's documentation of their policies and procedures relating to:
- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and wheather they were aware of any instances of

non-compliance;

- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or clleged fraud,
— theinternal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations;

> the matters discussed among the audit engagement team including significant component audit teams and involving relevant
internal specialists, including tax, valuations, pensions, and IT specialists regarding how and where froud might occur in the financial
statements and any potential indicators of fraud.

As a result of these proceduras, we considerad the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the crganisation for fraud. In
common with all audits under 1SAs (UK), we are required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management cverride.

We alse obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the Group operates in, focusing on provisions of those
laws and reguiations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disciosures in the financial statements. The
key laws and regulations we considered in this context included the UK Companies Act, Listing Rules, pensions legisiation, and global
tax legislation.

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but
compliance with which may be fundamental to the Group's ability to operate or to avoid o material penalty. These included the
Group's compliance with health and safety regulations and environmental regulations.
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N.2. Audit response to risks identified
As a result of performing the above, we did not identify any key audit matters related to the potential risk of fraud or non-compliance
with laws and regulations.

Qur procedures to respond 1o risks identified included the following:

> reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

> enguiring of management, the Audit & Risk Committee, and in-house and external legal counsel concerning actual and potential
litigation and claims;

= performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relotionships that may indicate risks of matearial
misstatement due to fraud;

> reading minutes of meetings of those charged with govermance, and reviewing internal qudit reports; and

> In addressing the risk of fraud through management ovearride of controls, our procedures included:

~ testing the appropriatenass of journal entrigs and other adjustments which display potential fraudulent risk factors; in performing
this work, we specifically applied o broader range of risk factors to manual adjustments to revenue in order to increase the
number of selected transactions from revenue;

- assessing whether the jJudgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias including, in
particular, judgements over forecasting, pensions, ravenue recognition, uncertain tax positions and discount rates applied by the
business; and

- evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or sutside the normal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and peotential fraud risks to all engagement team membaers including
internal specialists and significant component audit teams and remamed alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws
and requlations throughout the oudit.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REGUIREMENTS

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repart to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion, based on the waork undertaken in the course of the audit:

> the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financicl statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

> the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicakle legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and ther environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors' Report.

13, Corporate Governance Statement

The Listing Rules requira us to review the Directars’ statement in relation to going concern, langer-term viability and that part of the
Corporata Governance Statement relating to the Group's compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Gavernance Code
specified for our review,

Based on the work undertakan as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate

Governance Statement is materially consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained during the audit

> the Directors statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the geing concern basis of accounting and any material
uncertainties identified set cut on page 42,

> the Directors’ explanation as to its assessmeant of the Group's prospects, the penod this assessment covers and why the penod is
appropriate set out on page 49,

> the Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 96,

> the Board's confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks set out on pages 46 1o 48;

> the section of the Annua! Report that describes the review of effectivenass of risk management and internal control systems set out
on poges 67 to 68, ond

> the section describing the work of the Audit & Risk Commitiee set out on page 45 to 49.
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14, Matters on which we are required to report by exception

14.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

> we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

> gadequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been
received from brancheas not visited by us; or

> the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the cccounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

14.2. Directors’ remunerction

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are clso required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration have
nat been made or the part of the Directars’ Remuneration Report to be auditad is not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

15. Other matters which we are required to address

15.). Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Audit & Risk Committee, we were appointad by the Board of Directors on 8 June 2006 to
cudit the financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2006 and subsequent financial percds. The period of total uninterrupted
engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is 16 years, covering the years énded 30 June 2006 to

30 June 2021.

15.2. Consistency of the cudit report with the additional report to the Audit & Risk Committee
Our audit opinion 1s consistent with the additional report 1o the Audit & Risk Committee we are required to provide in accordance with
ISAs {UK).

16. Use of our report

This report is made salely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordonce with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's mermbers those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the cpinions we
have formed.

Mark Tolley FCA (Senior statutory auditor}
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Stotutory Auditor

Reading, United Kingdaom

8 September 2021
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GROUP INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 June 2021

lrestated)
202t 2020
Note £m Em
REVENUE 56 5743 5514
Adjusted operating profit 5 769 501
Adjusting items:
- Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biclogica! assets 16 {10.8) 158
- Amortisation of acquired intangitle assets 15 (2.4) (85)
- Share-based payment expense 30 7n {5.8)
{25.9) 15
- Exceptional itemns: 7
- Litigartion {2.5) (164}
- Acguisition and integration ©.3) (2.1}
- Pension reiated {2.3) -
- Other 18 {07
Total exceptional items (3.3} (19.2)
Total adjusting Items (29.2) (177
OPERATING PROFIT 8 477 424
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures and associates retained 18 131 89
Fingnce costs 10 (5.4) {5.3)
Finance income 10 0.4 03
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 558 453
Taxation 1l 9.0} (10.6)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 46.8 357
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company 473 353
Non-cantroling interest (0.5} O&
4568 357
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Bosic earnings per share 12 72.6p Sh4p
Diluted earnings per share 12 72.0p 54.0p
lrestated)
2021 2020
£m Em
Alternative Performance Measures
Adjusted operating profit 768 601
Adjusted operating profit attributable to non-controlling interest (0.1 (G4}
Pre-tax share of profits from joint venturas and assaciates excluding net 1AS 41 valuatiaon movemenit 13.0 113
Gene editing costs 7.6 52
Adjusted aperating profit including joint ventures and associates, excluding gene gditing costs 97.4 760
Gene editing costs (7.6) (5.2
Adjusted operating profit including joint ventures and associates Bog 708
Net finance costs 10 (5.0 (50)
Adjusted profit before tax 848 458
Adjusted earnings per share
Basic adjusted earnings per share 12 10090 7130
Ohiuted adjusted earmings per share 12 100.1p 7670

Adjusted results are the Altemative Performance Measuraes [APMe) used by the Board to monitor underlying performance at a Group
and operating segment level, which are applied consistently throughout. These APMs should be considered in addition to statutory
measures, and not 0s a substitute for or as supancr o them. For more nformation on APMs, see APM Glossary.

1 Seerctelforaeto sof tre of 0 0E1 OG "@Stoterant
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{restateal’ {restated)’
202 2021 2020 2020
Nate Em Em Fm Ern
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 46.8 357
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign exchange translation differences {45.2) A
Fair valug maovement on net investment hedges 26 0.4 0.1
Fair value mavement on cash flow hedges 26 0.2 (0.4)
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive expensea 11 7.6 (1.4
{37.0) 6.8)
ltems that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial gain/losst on retirement benefit obligations 29 223 (16.5)
Movement on pensinn nsset recngnition restriction 2% (L) 104
(Recognition)/release of additional pension liability 29 {199) 47
Gain on equity instruments measured at fair value 67 -
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income/lexpense) 11 {2.0) 08
70 {7
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR [(30.0} (7.5)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 168 282
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Cwners of the Company 171 27
Nen-centrolling interast (0.3 03
146.8 28.2

1 Seenote 2 for detai’s of the pror pericd restalement
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Called
up Share
shore premium
capital  account
Note £m £m
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2019 (as previously reported) 65 1790
Prior period restaternent 2 - -
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2019 (restated) 65 1790
Foreign exchange translation differences, net - -
of tax
Fair vaiue movernent on net investment hedges, - -
net of tax
Fair value movement on cash flow hedges, net - -
of tox
Actuariaf gain on retirement benefit chligations, - -
net of tax
Movement on pension gsset recognition restriction, - -
net of tax
Release of additional pension liabiiity, net of tax - -
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year - -
Prefit for the year - -
Total comprehensive lexpense)/income for the year - -
Recognition of share-based payments, net of tax - -
Dividends 13 - -
Issue of ordinary shares - 01
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2020 {restated) 65 1791
Foreign exchange translation differences, net of - -
tax
Fair value movement on net investment hedges, - -
net of tox
Fair value movement an cash flow hedges, net - -
of tax
Gain on equity instruments measured at fair value, ~ -
net of tax
Actuarnal gains on retirement benefit obligations, - -
net of tax
Movement on pension asset recognition restriction, - -
net of tax
Recognition of additional pension iiability, net - -
of tax
Other comprehensive {expense)/income for the year - -
Profit/lloss) for the year - -
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year - -
Recognition of share-based payments, net of tax - -
Dividends 13 - -
Adjustment arising from change in non-controlhing - -
interest and written put option
Issue of ordinary shares 01 -
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2021 66 1791

Trans-
lation
reserve
£m

358

358
- {&.0)

- 0l

01 79

Hedging
reserve
£m

Q2

02

Non-

Retgined cantrolling Total

earnings Total interest equity

£m £m £m £m

2670 4884 {13) 4871
81) (81 - (8.1)

2589  4BQ3 (1.3} 4790
- (&.4) {0.1) (6.5)

- 01 - 01

- (04 - 0.4
(10.4) {104) - (10.4]

&8 68 - 68

29 29 - 29
on {7.4) f0.1) {75)

353 353 O4 357

346 279 0.3 282

55 55 - 55
(18.3; (183} - (183}

- 01 - 01

2807 4955 (L0} 4945
- (37.7} 0.2 (37.5)

- 0.3 - 03

- 0.2 - 0.2

5.0 5.0 - 50
19.8 198 - 198
(0.1} {0.1) - [0.1)
zn (177 - 177
70 {3020 02 (300}
473 413 (0.5} 468
543 171 (03] 168
49 49 - 49
(195 (195} - (195}
- - (0.2} (0.2

- 0.1 - 0.1l
320.4 4981 (1.5) 4966
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2021

{restatea)’ frestoted)’
2021 2020 2019
Note £m £m £m

ASSETS
Goodwill 14 101.5 1056 106.3
Other intangible assets 15 56.3 629 720
Biological assets 16 2799 3101 2871
Property, plant and eguipment 17 1230 1179 86.0
Interests in joint ventures and associates 18 34.1 227 236
Other investments 19 147 49 T4
Derivative inancial assets 26 - - 04
Other recevables 21 1.8 18 -
Deferred tax ossets 11 8.0 37 35
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 619.3 6316 586 3
Inventor\es 20 370 374 3560
Biologicat assets 16 39.6 3%8 401
Trade and other receivables 21 106.2 1008 280
Cuash and cash eguivalents 22 4460 413 305
Income tax receivable 2.4 31 33
Dedvative inancial assets 26 0.1 12 1.1
Asset held for so\e 0.2 0,2 02
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 231.7 2238 2092
TOTAL ASSETS 851.0 8554 7955

LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 23 {110.3) (95.0) (877)
Interest-bearing leans and borrowings 27 (13.9) (92) (2.1
Provisions 25 {13) (&0 (31}
Deferred consideration 38 (1.6 {7.5) (20}
Cbligations under leases 28 (9.0) (100} (2.2)
Tax liabilities (6.4) (4.0 6.1
Denvative ﬁmcncrul liabilities 26 - {05) (l O)
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES (142.5) {130.2) (ma 2)
Trcde and other payables 23 (1.4) (33 -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 27 {109.4) (103.6) {1019}
Retirement benefit obligations 29 (11.1) (18.1) (24.2}
Provisions 25 (11.1) (118} {5.7)
Deferred consideration 38 (0.5) (1.2} 4.2)
Deferred tax liabilities 11 {53.0) 65.5) {66.7)
Derivative financial labilities 26 {6.1) 6.1} {5.7)
Obhigations under leases 28 {19.3) (21 1) (39)
TOTAL NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES (211.9) (230.7) (212.3)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (354.4) (360.9) (3165)
NET ASSETS 496.6 4945 4790

EQUITY
Called up share capital 31 6.6 6.5 65
Share premium account 179.1 1791 1790
Own shares 31 {o.1) [onh] o1
Translation reserve 31 79 205 358
Hedging reserve 31 - (0.2) 02
Retomed eornmgs 320.4 2807 2589
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 498.1 4955 4803
Nan-controlling interest 39 3.6 4.6 42
Put aption over non-cantralling Nterest 39 (5.1) (5.6) {5.5)
TOTAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (1.5 (1o} {13)
TOTAL EQUITY 496.6 4945 4790

1 Seenote 2 for detars of the onor per od restatement
The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 September 2021,

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Stephen Wilson Alison Henriksen
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer



108 GENUS PLC / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

lrestatea)’

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITLES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividends received from joint ventures and associates
Joint venture and associate loan ipaymentl/repayment
Disposal of joint venture

Acguisition of joint venture and associate

Acguisition of trade and assets

Acquisition of investments

Payment of deferred consideration

Purchase of property, plant and eguipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eguipment

NéT CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Drawdown of borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Payment of lease liabiiities

Equity dividends paid

Dividend to non-controfling interest

Debt issue costs

Issue of ordinary shares

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash eguivalents at start of the year

Net increase in cash and cash equivaients
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE

2021 2070

MNote £m £

32 675 601

i8 4.1 25

18 (c.4) 12

18 - 38

18 {2.4) 12.2)

42 6.9) -

09 -

=8 (6.7) (17

287 (24.6)

(5.1) (5.1

0.3 11

{66.7) (250)

195.1 800

{176.1) (738)

(11.7) (11.1}

(19,5} {183

{0.2) -

s -

0.1 01

- {14.2) {23.1)
h 8.6 120
513 305

6.6 120

as 1.2

o 22 46.0 413

1 See note 2 for detas of the onor ser od restatement
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Genus plc {the ‘Company'} is @ public company limited by shares and incerporated in Englond, United Kingdom under the Companies
Act 2006. Its company number is 02972325 and its registered office is Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hompshire RG214DZ. The
Group Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
‘Group'}. We have used the equity method to account for the Group's Interests in joint ventures and associates. Our business mode! on
pages 10 to 11 explains the Group's operations and principal activities.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

We have prepared the Group Financial Statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standords ['IFRSs) adopted pursuant to Regulation
(EC} No 1606/2002 as it applies in the Furopean Union. The Group Financial Statements have also been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as issued by the 1ASB.

Unless otherwise stared, we have consistontly applicd the significant uccounting policies set cut below to all pericds presented in
these Group Financial Statements,

The going concern statement has been included in the Strategic Report on page 49 and forms part of these statements,

Functional and presentational currency
We present the Group Financial Statements in Sterling, which is the Company's functional and presentational currency. All financial
information presented in Sterling has been rounded to the nearest £0.1m.

Use of estimates

Preparing financial statements reguires monagement to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect our application of
accounting pelicies and cur reported assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Our actual results may differ from these estimates. We
review our estirmates and underlying assumptions on an ongoing basis, and recognise revisions to accounting estimates in the penod in
which we revise the estimate and in any future periods affected.

Note 4 provides information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and the critical judgements we made in applying
accounting policies that have the most effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements.

Alternative Performance Measures ["APMs'}
In reporting financial information, the Group prasents APMs, which are not defined or speacified under the requirements of IFRS and
which are not considered to be o substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measures.

The Group believes that these APMs provide stakeholders with additional helpful information on the performance of the business. The
APMs are consistent with how we plan our business performance and report on it in our internal management reporting to the Board
and GELT. Some of these measures are also used for the purpose of setting remuneration targets.

For o full list of all APMs please see the Alternative Performance Measures section of the Annuat Report on pages 180 to 187,

Change in accounting policy - Software as a service {'Saa$') arrangements

The Company has changed its accounting policy relatad to the capitaliscation of certain software costs; this change follows the IFRIC
Interpretation Committee's agenda decision publishad in April 2021 and relates to the capitalisation of costs of configuring or
customising application software under ‘Software os o Service' [Saa$’) arrangaments.

The Group's accounting policy has historically been to capitalise costs directly attributable 1o the configuration and customisation of
SaaS arrangements as intangibie assets in the Balance Sheet, irrespective of whather the services were performed by the Saa$s
supplier or third party. Following the adopticn of the above IFRIC agenda guidance, current Saas arrangements were identified and
assessed to determine if the Group has control of the software. For those arrangements where we do not have control of the
developed software, 10 the extent that the services were performed by third parties, the Group derecognised the intangible asset
previously capitalised. Amounts paid to the supplier in advance of the commencemeant af the service period, including for configuration
or customisation, are treated as A prepayment.

This change in accounting policy led to adjustments amounting to a £13.3m and £8.1m reduction in the intangible assets recognised in
the 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019 Balance Sheets respectively, and to a £5.2m and £59m increase in operating expenseas within
adrninistrative expenses, in those respective years.

Accordingly, the prior period Balance Sheets at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2012 have been restated in accordance with 1AS 8, and, in
accordance with 1AS 1 [reviged), a Balance Sheet at 30 June 2019 is also presented, together with related notes. The tables on the
following page show the impact of the change in accounting policy on previously reported financial results.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
Faor the year ended 30 June 2021

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION CONTINUED
Impact on the Group Balance Sheet

[As previcus y

reported) Impact of lrestated)

2020 restaterant 2020

£m Em Em

Intangible assets 76.2 {13.3} 629
Other net assets/(liabilities) 4314 - 4316
Net assets 5078 (13.3) 4945
Retained earnings 2940 (13.3} 2807
Other equity balances 2138 - 2138
Net equity 5078 {13.3) 4945

In segment assets and non-current assets lexcluding deferred taxation and financial instryments), the central asset value within the UK
is reduced by £13 3m. Additions to central non-current assets reduced by £5.7m and the central amortisation charge reduced by £0.5m.

Impact on Group’s Income Statement and Stotement of Comprehensive Income

{As previous y

~epo-iad) Impact of restated}

2020 restatement 2620

£m £rm £m

Adjusted segment operating profit 809 - 809

Central {154} 5.2) (208

Adjusted cperating profit 653 52 601

Operating profit 478 521 L24

Profit before tax 51.5 52 463

Proht for the year 409 {5.2) 357

Attributable to owners of the Company 405 (5.2) 353

Non-controlling interest 04 - Q4

Total comprehensive income for the year 334 (5.2) 282
Impact on basic and diluted earnings per share and adjusted earnings per share

[As previousfy

raported) Imoact of frestated:

2022 restgtement 2020

Pence Pence Pence

Basic EPS A24 (80} Sh4

Diluted EPS 619 (7%} 540

Basic adjusted EPS 854 (8.1} 773

Diluted adjusted EPS 847 (B0 767

Impact on statutory tax rate and effective tax rate on adjusted profit
(A5 praviously

reportaa) Impact of {restated}

2020 restatamert 20240

S £m £m

Profit befare tax excluding share of income tax of equity accounted investees 538 5.2 486

Total income tax expense (12%) - (129}

Profit after tax 409 (5.2) 357

Statutory tax rate (%) 240 2.6 266

Adjusted profit before tax 710 (2.2 458

Adjusted tax charge (15.6) - {15.6}

Adusted proft after tax 554 (5.2} 502

Effective tax rate on adjusted profit (%) 220 17 237
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION CONTINUED
Impact on Group's Statement of Cash Flows
[As previcusly
reported) Impact of {restaten)
2020 restatement 2020
£m Em fm
Net cash from operGting activities 658 {57 601
Net cash outflow from investing activities {30.7) 5.7 (250)
Net cash outflow from finaneing activities (231) - (23.1)
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents 120 - 120

No impact on the overali increase in cash and cash equivalent for the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIEL IN THE CURRENT REPORTING PERIOD THAT RELATE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AWHOLE

This section sets out our significant accounting policies that relate to the Financial Statements as a whole. Where an accounting policy
is generally applicable to o specific note to the Financial Statements, the policy has been described in that note. We have alse
detailed below the new accounting pronouncements that we will adept in future years and our current view of the impact they will
have on cur financial reporting.

Accounting convention

We prepare the Group Financial Statements under the historical cost convention, except for our biological assets, share-based
payment expense, pension liabilities and derivative inancial instruments. In accordance with IFRS, we measure biological assets at fair
value less point-of-sale costs, which reprasent distribution costs and seliing expenses, and share-based payment expeanse, pension
liakilities, and certain financial instrurments at fair value.

Basls of consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities the Group contrels. We have control of an entity when we are exposed, or have the rights, to variable returns
from the entity and have the abllity to offect the returns through power over the entity. In assessing centrol, we take into account
potential voting rights that we can currently exercise or convert. We fully consolidate the results of subsidiaries we acguire from the
date that control transfers to the Group. We cease consolidating the results of subsidiaries that we cease to control from the date that
control passes.

In preparing the Graup Financial Statements, we eliminate intra-Group balances and any unrealised income and expenses ansing
from intra-Group transactions. Unrealised gains ansing from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against
the investment, 1o the extent of our interest in the investee. We eliminate unrealised losses In the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currencies

We record foreign currency transactions in the relevant Group entity's functional currency, at the exchange rate on the transaction data.
At each balance sheet date, we retranslate monetary assets and ligbilities denominated in forgign currencies at the exchange rate on
the balance sheet date. We recognise the foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation in the Group Income Statement.

When non-menetary assets and liabilities are measured at historical costin a foreign currency, we translate them ot the exchange rate
at the transaction date. When non-monetary assets and liabilities are stated at fair value in a foreign currency, we translate them at
the prevailing exchange rate on the date we determined the fair value. We recognise the foreign exchange differences arising on
retranslation in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill ansing on consolidation, are translated into Sterfing at the prevalling
exchange rates at the balance sheet date, The resulting exchange differences are booked into foreign currency translation reserves
and reported In the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. We translate these operations’ revenues and expenses using an
average rate for the period.

When exchange differences arise from the fair value movement of related effective hedges, we taxe them to the foreign currency
translation reserve. When we dispose of a foreign operation, we release these differences to the Income Statement. Exchange
movements on inter-Company loans considered to be permanent equity are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive
Income, together with any related taxation.

The principal exchange rates were as follows:

Average C',°j',"9,, o
2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019
S Dollar/E 1.36 1.26 1.2¢ 1.38 1.24 127
Euro/f 1.13 1.14 113 117 1.10 112
Brazilian Real/£ 7.33 574 L99 6.87 677 489
Mexican Pesc/E 28.15 2608 2504 27.587 2852 2440
Chinese Yuan/E 894 8.8% 883 8.93 8.75 872

Russian Rouble/E 102.04 8517 8493 101.10 8819 80.30
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED .
For the year ended 30 June 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED IN THE CURRENT REPORTING PERIOD THAT RELATE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS A WHOLE CONTINUED

Research and development

We undertake research with the aim of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge, and recognise this expenditure in the income
Stotement as it is incurred.,

The Group constantly monitors its research activities. When research projects achieve technical feasibility and are commercially viable,
our palicy is to capitalise further devalopment costs within intangible assets, in accordance with 1AS 38.

Cur development activities include developing and maintaining our porcine genetic nucleus herd and our bovine pre-stud herds. We
do not capitalise development expenditure separately for these herds, as their fair value 1s included in the fair value of the Group's
hiologica! assets, in accardance with 1AS 41,

We disclose the casts of research and development activities, as required by 1AS 38 (see nate 8).

Other income and deferred income

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Company entered into a strategic collaboration with Beijing Capital Agribusiness (BCA) under
which BCA will establish and fund a collaboration specific entity 'BCA Future Bic-Tech} which will use Genus's intellectual property and
know-how to pursue the PRRSv resistance regulatory and development work in China. Genus will receive consideration after meeting
certain milestones in the development programme,

Each milestone is considered to be either a separate performance obligation, or a set of groups of separate perforrmance obligations,
under this agreement and are unbundled in the contractual arrangement as if they are distinct from one another.

We assess each separate performance obligation relating to the milestone payments, and upon completion of those performance
obligations recognise the foir volue of omounts earned in other iIncome. Some performance obligations, such as the transfer of
know-how, are recognised at a point in time whereas others, such as the provision of technical services, are recognised over time. We
recognise ony received but unearned consideration os deferred iIncome.

We will apply the sarne accounting policy to any other comparcble agreements

Reversals of impairment
We reverse an impairment loss in respect of assets other than goodwill when the impairment loss may no longer exist and we have
changed the estimates we Used to determine the recoverable amount.

We only reverse an impdirment 1053 to the extent that the osset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount it woutd have
had, net of depreciation or amortisation, if we had not recognised the impairment loss.

New standards and interpretations

In the current period, the Group has applied a number of amendments to IFRS issued by the Internaticnal Accounting Standards Board
that are mandatoerily effective for an accounting period that begins after 1 January 2020 and have been implementad with effect from
1 July 2020. These are:

> Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS;

> Amendments 1o IAS Tand IAS 8 - ‘Definition of Material’;

> Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 32 and IFRS 7 ~ 'Interast Rate Benchmark Reform”;

> Amendments to IFRS 3 - 'Definition of o Business’; and

> Amendment to IFRS 16 - 'COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions.

Their addition has not had any material impact on the disclosures, or amounts reported in the Group Financial Statements.

In April 2021, the IFRIC Interpretation Committee published guidance in relation to the capitalisation of costs of configuring or
customising application software under 'Software as a Service' {'Saas) arangements. See note 2 far the full impact of the new
interpretation.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

At the date of the Annual Report, the following standards and interpretations which have not bean applied in the report were in 1ssue
Lut not vet effective lond in some cases had not yet been adopted by the UK). The Group will continue to assess the impact of these
amendments prior to their adoption. These are:

Amendments to 1FRS %, 1AS 39 IFRS 7 IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 ~ ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2%

Amendment to IFRS 16 - 'COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021,

Amendments 16 1AS 1 — ‘Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current’;

Amendments ta I1AS 16 - 'Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intendad Use';

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle;

Amendments ta IAS 37 - ‘Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’;

Amendments 1o 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 — 'Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendmeants to IAS 12 - 'Deferred Tax related to Assets and Ligbilities arising from a Single Transaction’; and

Arrendments to 1AS 8 — ‘Definition of Accounting Estmates’.

VoW MV VYV oYY
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of Cansolidated Financial Statements requires the Group to make estimates and judgements that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts

Critical judgements represent key decisions made by management in the application of the Group's accounting poiicies, where o
significant risk of materially different cutcornes exists due 1o management gssumptions or sources of estimation uncertainty. Estimates
and jJudgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

The estimates which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the
next 12 months are discussed below.

Critical accounting judgements

Adjusting items

The Directors believe that the adjusted profit and earnings per share measures provide additional information to shareholders on
the performance of the business. These measures are consistent with how business performance 1s measured internally by the Board
and GELT.

The prefit before tax and adjusting items measures are not recognised profit measures under IFRS and may not be directly comparable
with adjusted profit measures used by other companies. The classification of adjusting items reguires significant jJudgement, after
considering the nature and intentions of o transaction. The Group’s definitions of adjusting items are outlined within the Group
accounting policies and have been applied consistently year-on-year.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Determination of the fair value of biological assets (note 16)

Determining the fair values of cur boving and porcine biclogical assets requires the application of o number of estimates
and assumptions.

Below is a list of these estimates and assumptions, showing whether we consider them to be observable or uncbservable inputs to the
fair value determination. in addition, we identify those inputs that are ‘readily obtainable’ transactionat data or ‘'open market prices’
Sensitivities of the estimates and assumptions given below are disclosed in note 16.

Estimates and assumptions Ohservable/Unobservable Source

Bovine Long-term dairy volume growth rate Unobservable n/a
Short-term dairy volume growth rate Unobservable n/a
Value at point of production' Unobservable n/a
Unit prices Observable Readily obtainable
Animais’ useful lifespan Observabie Readily ocbhtainable
Percentage of new dairy bulls to be produced internally each year' Unobservable n/a
Age profile of bulls' Unobservable n/a
Risk-gdjusted discount rate! Unobservable n/a

Porcine

{non pure line herds) Animals' useful lifespan Observable Readily obtainable
The proportion of animals that go to slaughter Observable Recdily cbtainable
The mix of boars and gilts Observable Readily obtainabie
Risk-adjusted discount rate Unobservable n/a

Porcine

{pure line herds) Number of future generations attributable to the current herds Chservable Readily cbtainable
Fair value pricas achieved on sales Chbservable Open market prices
Animals’ expected useful lifespan and productivity Observable Readily obtainable
The proportion of animals that go to breeding sales Chbservable Readily obtainable
Risk-adjusted discount rate’ Unobservable n/a

1 Key sources of estimat on uncertainty
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED .
For the year ended 30 June 2021

5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

{FRS 8 'Operating Segments' requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive and the Board, to allocate resources 1o the segments and 1o assess their
performance. The Group's operating and reporting structure comprises three opearoting segments: Genus PIC, Genus ABS and Genus
Research and Development. These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its segmental information. The principal
activities of each segment are as follows:

> Genus PIC — our global porcine sales business;

» Genus ABS - our global bovine sales business; and

> Genus Research and Cevelopment — our global spend on research and development,

A segmental analysis of revenue, operating profit, depreciation, amortisation, non-current asset additions, segment assets and
liabilities and geographical information 1s provided below. We do not include our adjusting iterns in the segments, as we believe these
do not reflect the underlying performance of the segments. The accounting policies of the repcrtable segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies, as described in the Financial Statements.

2021 2020
Revenue £m Emr
Genus PIC 315.6 2988
Genus ABS 250.1 2376
Genus Research and Development

Porcineg product development 7.3 117

Bovine product development 13 33
Gene editing -

Other research and development - -

8.6 150

574.3 5514

Adjusted operating profit by segment is set out below and reconciled to the Group's adjusted operating profit. A reconciiation of
adiusted cperating profit to profit for the yvear is shown on the face of the Group Income Statement.

(-astatedy
2021 2020
Adjusted operating profit Em Em
Genus PIC 1229 1133
Genus ABS 36.4 325
Genus Research and Development
Porcine product development (21.9) {289
Bovine product development {19.6) {20.8)
Gene editing (7.6} (52
Other research and development {13.3) (10.2)
(62.4) {64.9)
Adjusted segment operating profit 9569 809
Central (20.0} (208
Adjusted operating profit 769 601

1 Seencte 2 for cetals of the pricr pe- od restatement

Qur business 13 not highly seascnal and our customer base 1s diversified, with no individual custemer generating mare than 2%
of revenue.

Exceptional items of £3.3m expense (2020: £192m expensel relate to Genus ABS [£2.5m expensel, Genus PIC {(F0.3m expense) and our
central segment (£0.5m expensea). Note 7 provides detalls of these exceptional items.

We consider share-based payment expenses on a Group-wide basis and do not allocate them to reportable segments
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS N5

Additions to non-current
assets (excluding deferrad
taxation and financial

_Dopr_eclation ~ Amnnlsgtiaﬂ ) ) instrl.!mants)

{restated)' irestated)

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Em £m £m £m £m

Genus PIC 45 4.5 76 10.0 27

Genus ABS 114 28 32 26,8 247
Genus Research and Development

Research 05 - 09 1.7 15

Porcine product development 2.4 - - 71 1.4

Bovine product development 15 g.2 0.2 2.7 42

LA 0.2 11 11.5 71

Segment total 203 95 112 48.3 345

Central 37 1.6 10 39 43

Total 240 11.1 129 52.2 388

_ Segment assets o Segmentliub_il_itie_i -
[restated) restated!

2020 2019 201 2020 2019

£ Em £m £m £m

Genus PIC 2474 2621 (57.4) {(72.6) {(51.6)

Genus ABS 201.3 1571 {56.0) (52%) AR
Genus Research and Development

Research 72 T4 (6.1} (3.5) 0.6)

Porcine product development 2263 1800 (55.0) 156.3) (508

Bovine product development 1465 1615 {25.5) {33.6) {328]

3800 3489 (86.6) (93.4) {84.2)

Segment total 8289 768.1 {200.0} (218%9) (1777}

Central 265 274 (154.4) (142.0) {1388}

Total 8554 7955 (354.4) {3609) {3165}

1 Seenote 2 for detans of tna oreor penod restatermeant

Geographical information

The Group's revenue by geographical segment is analysed below. This analysis is stated on the basis of where the customer is located,

Revenue

North Amenca

Latin America

UK

Rest of Eurcpe, Middle East, Russia and Africa
Asia

2021 2020
Em £m
214.7 2264
83.8 818
92.2 Q44
82.1 780
101.5 708
574.3 5514

Non-current assets (excluding deferred taxation and financiat instruments)

The Group's non-current assets by geographical segment are analysed below and are stated on the basis of where the Gssets are

located.

Narth America

Latin America

UK

Rest of Europe, Middle East, Russia and Africa
Asia

{rastated) lrestatea]!

201 2020 2019
£m Em £m
4195 4544 400.2
46.1 373 457
733 655 625
[ 4. 415 583
278 2927 147
611.3 6279 5824

1 Seenote 2 for deta s of the ornor peniod restatement
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&. REVENUE

Accounting policy

The Group recognisas revenue from the following sources:
> sale of boving and porcine semen, porcine breeding onimals, embryos and ancillary products;
royalties;

canhsulting;

technical services and advice revenues;

installation and maintenance of IntelliGen technology;
licensing of IntelliGen technology:

slaughter animal sales; and

bovine partnership contracts.

Y ¥V ¥V VvV VY

Revenue is measured based on the consideration the Group expects to be entitled to under a contract with a customer and
excludes amounts collected on tehalf of third parties, The Group recognises revenue when it transfers controt of ¢ product or sarvice
to o customer.

The sale of bovine and porcine semen, porcine breeding animals, emizryes and ancillary products

Revenue from the sale of bovine and percine semen, porcine breeding animals, embryos and ancillary products 1s recognised when the
contrel of the goods has transferred 1o the customer or distributor. This is either when we ship to customers or on delivery, depending
on the terms of sale. Payment of the transaction price is due immediately, or within a short period of time, from the point the customer
or distributor controls the goods.

Royalties

Royaities are recognised when the performance obligation is met. We receive royalty payments from certain porcne customers based
on key performance variables, such as the number of pigs born per litter, the number of litters born par sow and the average slaughter
weight of the animals born. This amount is confirmed directly to Genus by the custemer. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediatety from the customer, or within a short period of time, once the performance abligation is satisfied.

Coensulting

Revenue from consulting reprasents the amounts we charged for services we provided during the year, including recoverable expenses.
We recognise consulting services provided but not yet bifled as revenue, based on a fair value assessment of the work we have
delivered and our contractual right to receive payment. Where unbilled revenue is conungent on a future event, we do not recognise
any revenue until the event occurs.

Technical services and advice revenues

Revenue from technical services and advice revenues represents the amounts we charged for services we provided during the year,
ncluding recoverable expenses. We recognise technical services and advice revenueas provided but not yet billed as revenue, based
on d fair value assessment of the work we have delivered and our contractual nght ta receive payment. Where unbilled revenug is
contingent on a future eévent, we do not recognise any revenuea until the event occurs. Technical services and advice revenues are
presented in ancillary services in the following table,

Installation and maintenance of IntelliGen technology

Revenue from the installation of intelliGan technaology fs recagnised by reference to the stage of completion of the nstallation and is
bosed on milestones being met. Maintenance is provided as o distingt service to customers and 1s recogrised over the period of the
service agreement. These revenues are presented in ancillary services in the following table.

Licensing of IntelliGen technology

Revenue from the licensing of IntelliGen technology is recognised at o point in time when the licence is granted. In determining the
transaction price, any minimum royalties due under the contracts are included in the value apportioned to the grant of the licence,
excluding any royalties that arise on units produced in excess of the guaranteed minimums. These additional royalties have been
determined to be o usage-based royalty and are recognised as revenue at the point in time that the units ore produced. These
revenues dre presented in ancillary services in the following table,

Slaughter of animals

Revenue froem the slgughter of animals is recognised when control of the goods has transferred to the sloughterhouse, which is
generally on the delivery of anirmals to the slaoughterhouse. Payment of the transaction price is due immediately, o within o short
perind of time, from the point the slaughterhousea cantrols the gaods.
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6. REVENUE CONTINUED

Bovine partnership contracts

Partnership contracts include the provision of multiple bovine products and services for a single price. The contract price is allocated
1o the individual performance obligations based on their standalone selling prices. The expected revenue is recognised for the
products agnd services once the individual performance obligation has been satisfied. Revenues from partnership contracts are
prasented in sale of animals, semen, embryos and ancillary products and services.

2021 2020
£m £m
Genus PIC 172.6 1626
Genus ABS 2422 2305
Genus Research and Development 8.6 150
Sale of animals, semen, embryos and ancillary products and services 423.4 4081
Genus PIC 143.0 1360
Genus ABS 0.6 02
Genus Research and Development - -
Royalties 143.6 1362
Genus PIC - -
Genus ABS 73 71
Genus Research and Development - -
Consulting services 73 71
Total revenue 574.3 551.4
Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group's revenue is anclysed below by the timing at which 1t is recognised.
2021 2020
Em Em
Genus PIC 3128 2955
Genus ABS 2291 2177
Genus Research and Development 8.6 142
Recognised at a peint in time 550.5 5281
Genus PIC 28 33
Genus ABS 21.0 199
Genus Research and Development - 01
Recognised over time 238 233
Total revenue 5743 5514

An analysis of contract assets and contract liabilities is provided in note 24

7. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Accounting policy
We present exceptional iterns separately, as we beliove it helps to improve the understanding of the Group's underlying performance

In determining whether an item should be presented as exceptional, we consider items which are material either because of their size
or their nature, and those which are non-recurring. For an iterm 1o be considered as exceptional, it must initially meet at least one of the
following criteria:

> itis o one-off material item;

> it has been directly incurred as the result of either an acquisition, integration or other major restructuring programme;

> 1t has been previously classified as an exceptional item, and as such consistent accounting treatment is being applied; or

> it isunusual in nature, e.g. outside the normal course of business.

If an item meets at least one of the criteria, we then exarcise judgement as to whether the itermn should be classified as exceptional.

For the tax and cash impact of exceptional items see notes 11 and 32, respectively.

2021 2020
Operating (expense)/credit £m £m
Litigation and damages (2.5 (1&4)
Acguisition and integration 0.3) {2.1)
Pension related (2.3 -
Other 18 07

By 192
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7. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS CONTINUED

Litigation and damages

Litigation includes lega! fees of £2.5m (2020: £5.6m) reinted to the actions between ABS Global, Inc. and certain affliates (ABS'}
and Inguran, LLC and certain affiiates (aka Sexing Technologies (ST and £nil {2020: £10.8m} for damages and costs related to
patent infringement.

Material litigation activities during the year ended 30 June 2021

I July 2014, ABS faunched a legal action against ST in the US District Court for the Western District of Wiscorisin ond initiated anti-trust
proceedings which ultimately enabied the launch of ABS's IntelliGen sexing technology in the US market [ABS I'). In June 2017, ST filed
proceedings against ABS in the same District Court, where ST alleged that ABS infringed seven patents and asserted rade secret and
breach of contract claims ('ABS I, The ABS 1 and ABS || proceedings in the periods befere the year ended 30 June 2021 are more fully
described in the Notes to the Financial Statements in previous Annual Reports.

On 29 January 2020, ST filed @ new US complaint against ABS {ABS III'). ABS has preparad and filed o response to the ABS 1l complaint,
including o motion to dismiss, on the basis that all these issues were fully resolved in erther the ABS [ or ABS ([ itigations. The parties
await the court's decision.

On 10 March 2020, the USPTO issued patent 10,583,439 (the "439 patent'), and subsequently ST asked the court for permission to

file a supplemental complaint in ABS Il asserting infringement of the '439 patent. ABS believes that ST's claim for infringement falls
short and haos filed an opposition to $T's request. On 15 April 2020, T filed a new complaint {ABS V'], asserting the same claim of
infringement of the '43% patent alleged in its supplemental complaint and then moved 1o consolidate the ABS IV and ABS Il litigation.
ABS has opposed this action and has filed a motion for summary dismissal. On 23 June 2020, the USPTO issued patert 10,689,210 {the
"210 potent’), and en é July 2020, ST sought o second supplement of ABS Il by adding a claim of ‘210 patent infnngement. ABS has
opposad this action. The parties owait the court’s decision.

On 26 October 2020 and 10 December 2020, ABS filed Inter Partes Reviews [IPR’) against the '439 and '210 patents with the USPTO.

On 4 May 2021, the Patent Trial and Appea! Board (PTAB] instituted the '439 patent (PR, finding a likelihood of success on all challenged
claims. & hearing and decision in the ‘439 patent IPR will be completad in the next 12 months. On 7 June 2021, PTAB declined to institute
the ‘210 patent IPR without examining the merits of the case. PTAB's decision was based on its exercise of its discretion, concluding that
the prior art referenced in the 1PR was cited duwring the initia! examination, therefore ABS could not demonstrate the exominer made o
material error, notwithstanding that the refevant prior art was not addressed by the examiner. ABS has filed o rehearing application.

ABS has also sought judgrnents as a matter of law {JMOLU) in relation to the invalidity of all three of the patents considered in ABS 1,
JMOLs in relation to the nan-infringement of two of those patents, and a reduction in domages awarded by the jury. The parties await
the court's decision.

Indian Litigation: In September 2019, ST also filed parallel patent infringement proceedings against ABS in India, alleging infringement of
the Indian patent 240790 ("790 patent'). The ‘790 patent s the aquivalent of the US patent 7311476 asserted in ABS 11 ABS had already
sought the revocation of the 790 patent in April 2017 before the Indian Patent Office and has now consolidated the revocation petition as
a counterciaim in the Indian court proceedings. Progress of these proceedings has been delayed due to the impact of the pandemic

Acquisitions and integration
During the year, £O.3m (2020: £21m) of expensas were incurred in relation 1o acguisitions completed during the year.

Pensicn related

Qn 20 Novermber 2020, the High Court ruled that individual transfer payments made since 17 May 1990 would need to be equalised
for the effects of Guaranteed Minimum Pansion { GMP). This judgment followed on from the pravious judgment on 26 October 2018,
where the High Court ruled that schemes had a legal obligation to pay benefits cllowing for GMP equalisation, resulting in an
additional liability being recognised. The prévious judgment had not considered historic transfer values. Genus's pension schemes
are also affected by this ruling, resulting in an aggregate past service charge of £2.3m in the peried, being £0.9m for the Dalgety
Pension Fund (DPF} and £1.4m for the Milk Pension Fund (MPF).

Other

included within Other is a £2.0m credit resulting from o share forfeiture exercise, in accordonce with the Aricles of Association. As o
three-year liabllity penod ended during the vear, the related provision was no longer needed and was therefore released. Included in
the prior year was £0.8m of expenses which reigte to the costs of entering into our strategic porcine coflabyoration in China.
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8. OPERATING PROF|T
Operating costs comprise:
{restateq)'
2021 2020
£m £m
Cost of sales excluding net IAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets and amortisation of multiplier (237.0) (236.3)
contract intangible assets
Net I1AS &1 valuation mavement on biological assets (10.8) 158
Amortisation of multiplier contract intangible assets ©.2) (0.3)
Cost of goods sold {248.0) {220.8)
Cost of sales lexcluding amortisation of acguired intangibles) (105.1) (103.5)
Amortisation of customer relationship intangible assets {h.4) (53)
Cost of sales (109.5) (108.8)
Research and Development expenditure (62.9) (65.3)
Amartisation and impairment of technology, software and licences and patents (5.2) .1}
Research and Development costs (68.1) {71.4)
Administrative expenses (exciuding exceptional items) (88.7) {818}
Share-based payment expense (7.7) (5.8)
Amaortisation of software, licences and patents (1.3) (1.2}
Exceptional items within administrative expenses {3.3) (19.2)
Total administrative expenses (101.0} {1080}
Total operating costs (526.6} (5090}
Profit for the year is stated after charging/lcrediting):
{rastatea)’
201 2029
£m £m
Net foreign exchange losses 0.5 0%
Depreciation of owned fixed assets 130 131
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 110 109
Loss on disposal of fixed assets and right-of-use assets 0.4 37
Loss on disposal of intangible fixed assets 0.5 12
Rental expense for short-term teases 0.1 12
Employee costs [see note 9) - restated’ 193.3 1784
Impairment of inventory 13 12
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 98.7 873
1 Seenote Z for detalls of tre pror oer od restatement
Auditor's remuneration is as follows:
202 2020
Em £m
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its asseciates for the cudit of the Company's Annual Report and 0.4 0.4
Financiol Statements
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company's subsidiaries 0.6 05
Total audit fees 10 0%
Tax compliance services - 01
Transaction support services - 02
Total non-audit fees - 0.3
Total fees to the Group’s auditor 1.0 12

Fees payable to other auditors of Group companies

Non-audit tox services principally comprise tax compliance suppaert services and transaction support. These services fall within the

non-audit services policy approved by the Company's Audit & Risk Committee at the time of engagement,
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9. EMPLOYEE COSTS
This note shows the tatal employment costs and the average number of people employed by segment during the year.

Employee costs, including Directars' remuneration, amounted to:

2021 2020

Em Em

Wages and salaries (including bonuses and sales commission) 166.3 1543
Sacial security costs 16.0 151
Contributions to defined contribution pension plans 49 46
Share-based payment expense ([exciuding National Insurance) 6.5 48
1937 1788

The employee costs above include £0.4m {2020: £0.4m) which has been capitalised into intangible assets os part of the development
of GanusOne (see note 15).

The average monthly number of employees and full-time equivalent employees, including Directors, was as follows:

Nin_ber of ampldyeaj B Full-time equ]gl_ant

liestated) {restared!
2021 2020 201 2020
Number Number Number Nuriber
Genus PIC 590 549 567 530
Genuys ABS 2,210 2,139 2,102 2,053
Research and Development 401 355 370 334
Central 64 50 57 52
3,265 3,103 3,096 2,969

Included in the totals above:
UK 863 843 ) 759

The Drrectors’ Remuneration Report sets out details of the Directors’ remuneration, pensions and share options.

1 i~ the ono- yeor, certan IT enployees ware prev.aus y al'ocoted to central out have now peer G 'ocated tothe susicess unts inine Min ther releted costs, to conform with
tne curent year presentatior There s ~o charge te the overa | erployes numbers reported

10. NET FINANCE COSTS
Net finance costs mainly arise from interest due on bank loans, pensiocn scheme liabilities, amortisation of debt 1Issue costs, unwinding
of discount an put options and the results of hedging transactions used to manage foreign exchange and interest rate movements.

Accounting policy
We recognise interest Income and interest expeanse in the Income Statement, ¢s they accrue, based on the effective interest rate method.

Interest income includes income on cash and cash equivalents and income on cther financial assets. Finance costs include interest
costs in relation to financial liabilities. This includes interest on lease habilties, which represents the unwinding of the discount rate
applied to lease liabilities.

2001 2020

Em £

Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts (2.8} (29}
Amartisation of debt issue costs 0.5) (0.4}
Other interest payable - (oL
Urwinding of discount put options 0.6) 05)
Net imtarast cost in respect of gension scheme liabilites 0.3} 0.4
Interest on lease liabilities 0.8 (10
Total interest expense {5.4) {(5.3)
Interest income on bank depaosits 0.4 03

Total interest income 0.4 03
{5.0) (50

Net finance costs
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This note explains how our Group tax charge arises. The deferred tax section of the note alse provides information on cur expected
future tax charges and sets out the tax assets and liabilities held across the Group, together with our view on whether or not we expect

to be able to make use of them in the future.

Accounting policies

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. We recognise tax in the Income Statement, uniess:
= it relates to items we have recognised directly in equity, in which case we recognise it in equity; or

> Itarses as d fair value adjustment in g business combination.

We provide for current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, at the amounts we expect to pay (or recover), using the tax
rates and the laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balence sheet date, together with any adjustments to tax payable in

respect of pravious years,

Deferred tax is tax we expect to pay or recover due to differences between the carrying amounts of our assets and liabilities in our
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in calcutating our taxable profit. We account for deferred tax using the

balance sheet liability method.

We generally recognise deferred tax liabilities for ail taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets to the extent that we will
probably have taxable profits to utilise deductible ternporary differences against. We do not recognise these assets and liabilities if the

temporary difference arises from:
> ourinitial recognition of goodwill; or

> our initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction {other than a business combination) that affects neither our

taxable profit nor cur accounting profit.

We recognise deferred tax liobilities for taxable temporary differences arising on our investments in subsidiaries, and interests in joint
venturas and associates, except where we can control the reversal of the tempaorary difference and it is probable that it will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

We calculate deferred tax at the tax rates we expect to apply in the penod when we settle the liability or realise the asset. We charge or
credit deferred tax in the Income Statement, except when it refates to items we have charged or credited directly to equity, in which case

the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Income tax expense

2021 2020
£m fn
Current tax expense
Current period 18.2 138
Adjustment for prior periods 1.3 (1.1
Total current tax expense in the Group Income Statement 19.6 127
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (2.6}
Adjustrnent for prior periods 05
Total deferred tax credit in the Group Income Statement (2.1)
Total income tax expense excluding share of income tax of equity accounted investees 9.0 108
Share of income tax of equity accounted investees (see note 18) 3.0 23
Tota! income tax expense in the Group Income Statement 120 129
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
(restated) {restated)
2021 2021 2020 2020
% Em % fm
Profit before tax 5.8 453
Add back share of income tax of equity accounted investees 3.0 23
Profit before tax excluding share of income tax of equity accounted investees 588 4846
Income tax at UK corporation tax of 19.0% (2020: 19.0%) 19.0 11.2 190 @2
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 10.5 6.2 68 33
Non-deductitle expenses 20 1.2 35 17
Tax exempt income and incentives 8.7) (5.2) (5.0 (2.4}
Change in tax rate (&.4) (2.48) (3.1) (1.5)
Movements in recognition of tax losses (1.2) (0.7) Il 15
Change in unrecognised temporary differences 2.2 13 {04} 0.2
Tax over provided in prior periods 0.5 0.3 (0.6 {0.3)
Change in provisions 12 Q7 16 08
Tax on undistributed reserves ©.7) (0.4) 16 08
Total income tax expense in the Group income Statement 20.4 120 265 129

1 See note 2 for detals of the prior penod restatemert
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11. TAXATICN AND DEFERRED TAXATION CONTINUED
The tox rate for the year depends on our mix of profits by country and our ability 1o recognise deferred tax assets in respect of losses in
some of our smaller territories. Tax is calculated using prevailing tax legislation, reliefs and existing interpretations and practice.

The Group's future tax charge and effective tax rate could be affected by factors such as countries reforming their tax legislation to
implement the CECD's BEPS recommendations and by European Commission initictives including state aid investigations.

In October 2017, the European Commission announced that it would be conducting a state aid investigation into the Group Financing
Partial Exemption ('Finco exemption’} contained within the UK's controlled foreign company {'CFC') legislation. Genus, in commaon with
many other UK companies, has taken advantage of this financing structure to support intra-Group lending to the Group's subsidiaries
in the US. The Commission concluded in April 2019 that the exemption contravened EU law and constituted partial state aid, to the
extent that the specific people functions ('SPFs') most relevant to managing the financing activities were based in the UK. The UK
Government, as well as a number of affected UK taxpayers including Genus, have appedled the EU Commissicn's conclusions and
court hearings for these appeails/annulment requests are currently pending, with a decision expected in the summer of 2022.

Under the EU Commission ruling, the UK Government is reqguired to identify any previous beneficiaries of the CFC Finco reliefs, quantify
the associated state aid and recover any identified amounts from UK taxpayers. In March 2021, HMRC issued Genus with a charging
notice for £1.2m in respect of its assessment of the amount of unlowful state aid due to be recovered. Genus has paid the assessed
amount but hos lodged an appeal against this assessment with HMRC, on the basis that the ameount charged is not state aid (Le. the
ariginal EU Commission decision is unscund in law) and also on the basis that HMRC's actual assessment is errcnecusly based on the
view that there are no non-UK SPFs in relation 1o the relevant CFC structure,

Genus has provided £0.4m (2020 F10m) in respect of its exposure to the reclaim of previously enjoyed tax benefits under this state aid
challenge but will continue to pursue the various avenues of appec| open to it against both the original EU Commission’s decision and
against HMRC's interpretation of that decision, as calculated in the charging notice received.

The tax credit attributable to exceptional items is a credlit of £1.1m (2020: credit of E4.5m}.

Income tax recognised directly in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Changes in Equity

2021 2020
Em Em
Financial instruments - 01
Foreign exchange differences on long-term intra-Group currency loans and balances {0.1) -
Gain on equity instrauments measured at fair value 1.7 -
Actuarial movement on retirerment benefit obhigatians (0.3} 08
Foreign exchange differences on translation of biclogical assets, intangible assets and leases 77 (1.5)
5.6 {0.6)
Income tax recognised directly to the Statement of Changes in Equity
Share-based payment expense 1.5 11
15 11

Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tox losses which were available for offset against future profits, with a potential tax
benefit of £15.2m (2020: £13.6m). We have recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of £7.3m {2020: £3.9m} of these benefits, as we
expect these losses to be offset against future profits of the relevant jurisdictions in the near term. We have not recognised a deferred
tax asset in respect of the remaining £7.9m (2020: £97m), due to uncertainty about the availability of future taxable profits in the
relevant junsdictions.

At 30 June 2021, the expiry dates of deferred tax assets in respect of losses available for the carry forward were as follows:

Expiring within
1-10 yeais 1-20 years Unlimited Total
Em Em £m Em
Losses for which a deferred tax asset is recognised 0.2 0.1 70 73
Losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised 0.2 - 17 79
0.4 0.1 14.7 15.2

In addition, at the balance sheet date, the Group had an unrecognised deferred tax asset inrespect of fixed asset timing differences
of £3.4m (2020 restated: £2.6rm). This unrecogrised fixed asset position has ansen as a result of the change In accounting policy for
'Software as a Service’ ('Saa$) arrangements as detalled in note 2. These unrecognised fixed asset timing differences have an
uniimited expiry date.
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11, TAXATION AND DEFERRED TAXATION CONTINUED
At 30 June 2020, the expiry dates of deferred tax assets in respect of losses available for the carry forward were as follows:
Exorng within
1-10 years N-20 years Unhm ted Total
£m £ra m £m
Losses for which a deferred tax asset is recognised 02 01 36 39
Losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised 0.2 - 95 97
04 01 131 1346

The gross value of losses for which deferred tax assets are recognised is £27.4m (2020: £179m). The gross value of losses for which

defarred tax assets are not recognised is £25 Am (20200 £33 3m}

We have not recognised deferred tax liabilities totalling £29m (2020: £2.1m) for the withholding tax and other taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain overseas subsidiaries. This is because we can control the timing and reversal of these

differences and it is probable that the differences wilt not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
We have offset deferred tax assets and liabilities, to the extent that they arise in the same tax jurisdiction.

The analysis of deferred tax balances is set out below:

2021 2020

Em £m

Deferred tax assets (8.0} 37
Deferred tax liabilities 53.0 655
45.0 618

The Finance Bill 2021, which was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021, introduced a new rate of UK corporation tax of 25% for large
companies, with effect from 1 April 2023. UK deferred tax assets of £1.6m refating to short-term timing differences and pension liabilities
that are expeacted to unwind in the period to 31 March 2023 have continued to be recognised at 19% and the remaining UK deferred tax
assets of £11.9m relating to fixed assets, share-based payments and losses forward that will Ikely urwind post 31 March 2023 have been

recognised at the new forward tax rate of 25%.

Movement in net deferred tax liabilities during the year

Changas in Priar year
tax rate  adjustments
Asat  Recognised recognisedin recognisedin Foreign Asat
T July inlncome Income Incame Recognised @xchange 30 June
2020 S "t L t Statement in aquity Transfers difference 2021
£Em £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 5.2 (1.0 {0.3) 01 0.1 - {0.5) 3.6
Intangible assets 8.8 (0.9) 11 0.2 {0.3) {0.4) 0.3) 8.2
Biological assets 744 {3.5) 0.8 - (7.9} - 0.1) 63.7
Retirement benefit obligations {3.5} 1.0 {0.1) - 03 - 0.2 {2.1)
Share-based payment expense (3.7 0.4 (0.5) - (0.5 - - &.7)
Short-term timing differences {15.5} (2.3) 1.6) (0.2) 21 - 11 (16.4)
Tax loss cary-forwards (3.9} (1.4) 1.6} {0.4) - - - (7.3)
61.8 (7.7) (2.8) (0.3) (6.2} (0.4} 0.4 45.0
Changesin Prior year
taxrote  cdustments
Asot  Recognised recognised in recogrisedin Foreigr As ot
1 July In Income Income Incame Recognised exchonge 30 June
2019 Statement Statemre~t Statemant Inequity T-arsfers afference 2020
£m Em £mr Em £ Em Emr fm
Property, plant and equipment 45 05) (08} 19 - 0l 52
Intangible assets 107 (1.6) (0.1 0.2} 0.1 - 0.1 88
Biclogical assets 666 4.2 0.3} 26 13 - - TFhh
Retirement benefit obligations a4 14 0.2 - 07 - - (3.5}
Share-based payment expense (27 0.2 (0.4) (o1} 07 - - (3.7}
Short-term timing differences 8.7 (5.1) 02 (2.4) - 06 0.1 (15.5)
Tax loss carry-forwards {2.8) 03 0.3 (1.3} - 02 - (39
63.2 (1.1 (L.5) 05 - 08 .1 4618
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is the profit generated for the financial year attributable to equity shareholders, divided by the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year.

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations

Irestoted)
2021 2020
{pencea) {pence}
Basic earnings per share 72.6 544
The catculation of basic earnings per share from continuing operations is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the
Company from continuing cperations of £47.3m (2020 restated: £35.3m) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding of 65,108,000 (2020: 6£,908,000), which is calculated as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic)
2021 2020
000s 000s
lssued ordinary shares at the start of the year 65,092 65,055
Effect of own shares held {180} {148)
Shares 1ssued on exercise of stcck options 9 21
Shares issued in relation to Employee Benefit Trust 187 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in year 65,108 64908
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations
trestatea)
2021 2020
(pence) percel
Diluted earnings per share 72.0 540

The calculation of diluted earnings per share from continuing cperaticns 1s based on the net proft attributable to owners of
the Company from continuing operations of £47.3m (2020 restated: £35.3m) and o weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, after adjusting for the effects of all potential dilutive ordinary shares, of 65,662,000 (2020: 65,427,000), which is
calculoted as follows:

Woeighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

2021 2020

000s 000s

Weighted average number of ordinary shares {basic) 45,108 64908
Dilutive effect of share awards and cptions 554 519
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of dituted earnings per share 65,662 65,427
restoted)!

20 2020

Adjusted earnings per share from continuing operations [ponce) {pence)
Adjusted earnings per share 1009 773
Diluted adjusted earnings per share 100.1 %7

Adjusted earnings per share is calculated on profit before the net |1AS 41 valuation movement on biological assets, amortisation of
acquired intangible assets, share-based payment expense and exceptional items, after charging taxation associated with thase
profits, of £65.7m (2020 restated: £50.2my), which 1s calculated as follows:

restated!!
2021 202G
£m Zm
Profit before tax from continuing operations 55.8 463
Add/{deduct):
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biclogical assets 10.8 {158}
Amortisation of acqguired intangible assats 74 85
Share-based payment expense 77 58
Exceptional items (see note 7) 3.3 192
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets 1n joint ventures {3.1} c1
Tax on joint ventures and associates 3.0 23
Attributable to non-controlling Interest {0.1) 0.6
Adjusted profit before tax B84.8 658
Adjusted tax charge (19.1) (15.6)
Adjusted profit after tax 65.7 50.2
Effective tax rate on adjusted profit 22.5% 237%

T Seerotel fordeta s or oror ver od restatament
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE CONTINUED
Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2021 2021
Profit Tax 2021
Em £m %
Profit before tax excluding share of income tax of equity accounted investees s8.8 12.0 20.4
Net 1A3 41 valuation movement on biclogical assets 10.8 29 26.9
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 74 1s 20.3
Share-based payment expense 77 1.6 208
Exceptional items {see note 7) 3.3 11 333
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on bicological assets in joint ventures 3.1} - -
Attributable to non-contralling interest 0.1} - -
Adjusted profit before tax 84.8 19.1 225

frestated)’

2020 2020 [restated!
Profit Tax 2020
£m £m %
Profit before tax excluding share of income tax of equity accounted investees 486 129 26.6
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets {158} )] 297
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 85 18 21.2
Share-based payment expense 58 11 190
Exceptional iterns (see note 7) 192 45 234
Net 1AS 41 valuation movement on bialegical assets in joint ventures 0l - -
Attributable to non-controlling interest (o) - -
Adjusted profit before tax 658 156 237

1 See note 2 for aetaiis on Grior perod restatement.

13. DIVIDENDS
Dividends are one type of shareholder return, historicaily paid to cur shareholders in late November/early December and late March.

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year

2021 2020
£€m £m
Final dividend
Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2020 of 197 pence per share 128 -
Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2019 of 18.8 pence per share - 122
Interim dividend
interim dividend for the vear ended 30 June 2021 of 10.3 pence per share 47 -
interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2020 of 9.4 pence per share - 61
195 183

The Directors have proposed a final dividend of 217 pence per share for 2021. This is subject to shareholders’ approval at the AGM and
we have therefore not included it as o hability in these Financial Statements. The total proposed and paid dividend for year ended
30 June 202115 32.0 pence per share {2020: 291 pence per share).

14. GOODWILL

Accounting policies

When we acquire a subsidiary, associate or joint venture, the goodwill arising is the excess of the acquisition cost, excluding
transaction costs, over gur interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabhilities.
identifiable assets include intangible assets which could be sold separately, or which arise from legal rights, regardless of whether
those rights are separable.

We state goodwill ot cost less any accumulated impairment losses. We allocate goodwill to cash-generating units ((CGUs"), which are
the smallest Identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets. We do not amortise goodwill but we do test it annually for impairment.

IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ requires us to treat the following as assets and ligblities of the acquired
entity, rather than of the acquiring entity:

> goodwill arising on acguisition of ¢ foreign operation; and

> any fair value adjustments we make on acquisition to the carrying amounts of the acquiree’s assets and liabilities.

We therefore express them in the foreign operation’s functional currency and retranslate them at the balance sheet date.
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14. GOODWILL CONTINUED

Impairment

We review the carrying ameounts of cur tangible and intangible assets at each balance sheet date, to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any indication exists, we estimate the asset's recaverable amount.

For goodwill, and tangible and intangible assets that are not yet available for use, we estimate the recoverable amount at each
balance sheet date. The recoverable amount is the greater of therr net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, we
discount the estimated future cash flows to their present value, using o pre-tax discount rate, which is derived from the Group's
weighted average cost of capital (WACC'). For some countries we add a premium to this rate, to reflect the risk attributable to that
country. If the asset does not generate largely independent cash inflows, we determine the recoverable amount for the CGU that the
asset belongs to.

We recagnise animpairment loss in the Income Statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount.

When we recognise an impairment loss in respect of o CGU, we first allocate it to reduce the carrying ameunt of any goodwill
cllocated to the CGU, and then apply any remaining loss to reduce the carrying amount of the unit's other assets on @ pro rata basis.

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each operating segment are as follows:

Genus PIC Genus ABS Total
£€m £€m Em

Cost
Balance at T July 2019 730 333 106.3
Effect of moverments in exchange rates 11 (1.8) {07}
Balance at 30 June 2020 741 315 10546
Business combination (see note 42) 35 - 3.5
Effect of movements in exchange rates (5.1) (2.5) {7.6)
Balance at 30 June 2021 725 290 101.5
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2021 - - -
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2021 725 290 101.5
At 30 June 2020 74.1 315 1056

To test impairment, we allocate goodwill to cur CGUs, which are in line with our cperating segments. These are the lowest level within
the Group at which we menitor goodwill for internal mancgement purposes.

We test goodwill annuclly for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be iImpaired. We determine the
recoverable amount of our CGUs by using value in use calculations. The key assumptions for these calculations relate to discount rates,
growth rates, expected changes to selling prices, cost savings derived from the IntelliGen technologies, and changes in product mix,

We hove estimated the pre-tax discount rate using the Group's WACC. We risk-adjusted the discourt rate for risks specific to each
market, adding between nil and 29% (2020: nil and 24%) to the WACC as appropriate. The pre-tax discount rate of 11% (2020: 11%) we
applied to our cash flow projections equateas 10 A post-tax rate of $.6% (2020: 9.3%). Our estimates of changes in selling prices and
direct costs are based on past experience and our expectations of future changes in the market.

The annual impairment test is performed on 31 March (2020: 31 May) There have been no additional indicaters of impairment identified
after this date that would require the impairment test to be reperformed. It 1s based on cash flows denved from our most recent
financial and strategic plans approved by management, over the next five years. A growth rate of 2.5% (2020: 2.5%) has been used to
extrapolate cash flows beyond this period. Shoert-tarm profitability and growth rates are based on past experience, current trading
conditions and our expectations of future changes in the market.
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14. GOODWILL CONTINUED
The Genus PIC and Genus ABS CGUs are deemed to be significant. The individual country assumptions used to determine value inuse
for these CGUs are:

Risk premium used to adjust Short-term growth rates
discount rate {CAGR) 7”|inﬂg-}79rm growth rates
201 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Genus PIC nil-11% nil-24% nil-43% nil-47% 2.5% 25%
Genus ABS nil-29% nil-24% 3%-48% (7%)-44% 2.5% 25%
Woeighted average risk Weighted average short-term
adjusted discount rate growth rates (CAGR}
2021 2020 200 2020
Genus PIC 10% % 13% 13%
Genus ABS 10% 9% 24% 23%

The rates towards the higher end of the range above represent those which are applied to our smaller entities and those in emerging
markets and hence appear high relative to others.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Management has performed the following sensitivity analysis:

> changing the key assumptions, with ather varables held constant;

> simuitaneocusly changing the key assumptions; and

> incorporating the potentiatimpact of the principal risks and uncertainties outlined on pages 44 to 48, in particular the mpacts of
biosecurity, market downturns, continuity of supply, increased competition and the impact of the global COVID-19 pandemic, taking
into account the likely degree of available mitigating actions.

Management has concluded that there are no reasonably possible changes in any one of the key assumptions that would cause the
carrying amounts of goodwill to exceed the value inuse of PIC and ABS.

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Our Group Balance Sheet contains significant intangible assets, including acquired technology, customer relationships, seftware and
our IntelliGen developmeant project.

Accounting policies
ldentifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Group controls the asset, 1t is probable that future economic benefits attributed
to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be reliakly measured.

For 'Software as ¢ Service' (SaoS’) arrangements, we capitalise costs only relating to the configuration and customisation of Saal
arrangements as intangible assets where control of the software exists.

Intangible assets that we have acquired In ¢ business combination since 1 April 2005 are identified and recognised separately from
goodwill, where they meet the definition of an intangible asset and we can refiably measure their fair values. Their cost is their fair value
at the acquisition date.

After their initial recognition, we report these intangible assets ot cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. This is the same basis as for intangible assets ccquired separately.

The estimated useful lives for intangible assets are as follows:

> Porcine and bovine genetics technology 20 years

> Multiplier contracts 15 yedars

> Brands 10 to 15 years

> Customer relationships 10 to 17 years

> IntelliGen 10 years

> Patents and licences term of agreement (4 years)
> Software 21010 years
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED
Intangible assets acquired separately

We carry intangible assets acquired other than throeugh a business combination at cost less accumulated amortisation and any

impairment loss, We charge amortisation on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives and review the useful life and

amortisation methed at the end of ecch financial year, accounting for the effect of any changes in estimate on a prospective basis.

Brands,
multiplier Separately
Porcing contracts identified
and bovine and ocquired {rastated)’ Patents,
genetics customer intangible {restated)' Assetsundar licences and {restated)’
technology relationships assats Software construction IntelliGen othar Taotal
Em Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
Balance at 1 July 2012 restated) 530 85.1 1381 148 28 240 44 184.1
Additions - - - 0l 3.2 18 - 51
Disposals - - {06} - {10 - {1.8)
Transfers - - - 40 {40 - - -
Effect of moverments in (1.0) 08 0.2 01 - 06 - 05
exchange rates
Balance at 30 June 2020 (restoted) 520 859 1379 184 20 254 [ 1881
Additions - - - 0.4 3.8 09 - 5.1
Acquisition {note 42} - 37 37 - - - - 37
Disposals - - - (1.1} - - - {1.1)
Transfers - - - 31 (3.1} - - -
Effect of movements in 0.3) {8.0) (8.3) {0.8) - {2.7) (0.1) {119}
exchange rates
Balance at 30 June 2021 51.7 81.6 133.3 200 27 23.6 4.3 1839
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2019 (restated) 308 618 G246 116 - 50 29 1121
Impairment - - - 02 - - - 0.2
Disposals - - - - - (04} - (0.4)
Amortisation for the year 28 56 85 11 - 23 10 129
Effect of movements in {0.5) 08 03 01 - - - 04
exchange rates
Balance at 30 June 2020 (restated) 332 68.2 1014 130 - 69 39 1252
Disposals - - - (0.6) - - - (0.8
Amortisation for the year 28 4.6 T4 14 - 2.2 0.1 111
Effect of movements in - (6.6} 6.6) 0.8) - ©.7 - {8.1)
exchange rates
Balance at 30 June 2021 36.0 66.2 102.2 13.0 - 8.4 4.0 127.6
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2021 15.7 15.4 311 70 2.7 15.2 0.3 56.3
At 30 June 2020 (restated) 188 177 365 54 20 185 05 629
At 30 June 2019 (restated) 222 233 455 32 28 190 15 720

Included within brands, multipher contracts and customer relationships are carrying amounts for brands of £0.7m (2020 £0.8m),
multipler contracts of £0 3m (2020: £0 5m) and customer relationships of £14.4m (2020: £16.4m).

Included within the software class of assets is £5.4m (2020 restated” £29m} and included in assets in the course of construction is £1.0m
{2020 restated: £1.6m) that relate to the ongoing development costs of GenusOne, our single global enterprise systam.

1 See ~ote 2 for aztals oftne prer per oc restatement
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16. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group applies quantitative genetics and biotechnology to animal breeding. We use these techniques to identify and select
animals with the genes responsible for superior milk and meat, high health and performance traits. We sell breeding animals, semen
and embryos to customers, who use them to produce offspring which yield greater preduction efficiency and milk and meat quality,
for the global dairy and meat supply chain. We recognise that accounting for biological assets is an area which includes key sources
of estimation uncertainty. These are outlined in note 4 and sensitivities are provided below.

Accounting policies

Biological assets and inventories

In bovine, we use research and development to identify genetically supenor bulls in @ number of breeds, primarily the Holstein dairy
breed. Each selected bull has its performance measured against Its peers, by using genomic evalugtions and progeny testing of its
daughters’ performance. We collect and freeze semen fram the best bulls, to satisfy our customers’ demand. Farmers use semen from
dairy breeds to breed replacemant milking stock. They use the semen we sell from beef breeds in either specialist beef breeding herds,
for multiplying breecing bulls tor use In natural service, or on dairy cows to produce animals to be reared for meat.

Our research and development also enables us to produce and select our own genetically superior females, from which we will breed
future bulls.

We hold our bovine biological assets for long-term internal use and classify them as nan-current assets. We transfer bull semen to
inventory at its fair value at the point of harvest, which becomes its deemed cost under |AS 2. We state our inventories at the lower
of this deemed cost and net realisable value.

Sorting semen 1s a production process rather than a biological process. As a result, we transfer semen inventory into sexed semen
production at its fair value at the point of harvest, less the cost to sell, and it becomes a component of the production process.
We carry sexed semen in finished geods at production cost.

In porcine, we maintain and develop a central breeding stock [the 'nucleus herd'), to provide genetically superior animals, These
genetics help make farmers and food processors more profitable, by increasing their output of consistently high-quality products,
which yield higher value. So we can capitalise on our intellectual property, we outsource the vast majority of our pig production 1o
our global multiplier network. We also sell the offspring or semen we obtain from animals in the nucleus herd to customers, for use
in commercial farming.

Pig sales generally occur in one of two ways: ‘upfront” and ‘royalty’. Under upfront sales, we receive the full fair value of the animal at
the point we transfer it to the customer. Under royalty sales, the pig is regarded as comprising two separately identifiable components:
its carcass and its genetic potential. We receive the initial consideration, which is approximately the animal's carcass value, ot the
point we transfer the pig to the customer. We retain our interest in the pig's genetic potential and recerve royalties for the customer's
use of this genetic potenticl.

The breading animal biclogical assets we own, and our retained interest in the biological assets we have sold under royalty contracts,
are recognised and measured at fair value at each balance sheet date, We recognise changes in fair value in the Incorne Statement,
within operating profit for the penod.

We classify the porcine biclogical assets we are using as breeding animals as non-current assets and carry them at fair vaiue. The
percine biclogical assets we are helding for resale, which are the offspring of the breeding herd, are carried at fair value and classified
as current assets.

Determination of fair values - biological assets

IAS &1 ‘Agriculture’ requires us 1o show the carrying value of biological assets in the Group Balance Sheet. We determine this carrying
value accerding to 1AS 4¥'s provisions and show the net valuation movement in the Income Statement. There are important differences
in how we value our bovine and porcine assets, as explained below.

Bovine - we base the fair value of all bulls on the net cash flows we expect to receive from selling their semen, discounted at a current
risk-adjusted market-determined rate. The significant assumptions determining the fair values are the expected future demand for
semen, the estimated biciogical value and the marketakle life of bulls. The biclogical value is the estimated value at the point of
production. We adjust the fair value of the bovine herd and semen inventory where a third party earns a royalty from semen sales
from a particuiar bull. Females are valued by reference to market prices and published independent genetic evaluations. The net
cash flows inciude any expected impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Porcine — the fair value of porcine biclogical assets includes the animals we own entirely and our retained interest in the genetics
of animals we have sold under royalty arrangements. The fair value of animals we own 1s calculated using the animals’ average live
weights, plus a premium where we believe that their genetics make them saleable. We base the live weight value and the genetic
premium on recent transaction prices we have achieved. The significant assumptions in determining fair values are the breeding
animals’ expected life, the percentage of production animals that are saleable as breeding animals and the expected sales prices.
For our retained interest in the genetics of animals sold under royolty contracts, we base the initicl fair value on the fair values we
achieved in recent direct sales of similar animals, iess the amount we received upfront for the carcass element. We then remeagsure
the fair value of cur retained interest at each reporting date. The significant assumption in determining the farr value of the retained
interest is the animals’ expected life, The assumptions used include any expected impact of the COVID-1? pandemic.

We value the pigs in our pure ling herds, which are the repository of our proprietary genetics, as a single unit of account. We do this
using a discounted cash flow model, applied 1o the herds' future outputs at current prices. The significant assumptions we make are
the number of future genarations attributable to the current herds, the fair value prices we achieve an scles, the animals’ expected
usefut lifespan and productivity, and the risk-adjusted discount rate.
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16. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS CONTINUED

Neon-recognition of porcine multiplier contracts where the Group does not retain o contractuai interest

To manage commaeércial risk, o very large part of our porcine business model involves selling pigs to farmers {'multipliers’t who produce
piglets on farms we neither manage nor contral. We have the opricn, but not the obligaticn, to buy the offspring ot slaughter market
value plus a premium. Because the offspring have superior genetics, we can then sell them to other farmers at a premiym,

We do not recognise the right to purchase offspring on the Group Balance Sheet, as we enter into the contracts and continue 1o hold
them for the purpose of receiving non-financial items {the offspring), in accordance with our expected purchase requirements. This
means the option is outside the scope of IFRS §. We do not recognise the offspring as biclogical assets under 1AS 41, as we do not own
or control them.

Bovine Porcine Total
Fair value of biclogical assets £m Em £m
Non-current biclogicat assets %87 188.4 2871
Current bislogical assets - 401 401
Balance at 30 June 2019 87 2285 3272
Increases due to purchases 175 1187 1362
Dacreases attributable to sales - (2173} {2173}
Decrease due to harvest (24.5) {227} 7.2
Changes in fair value less estimated sale costs 135 1306 1441
Effect of movements in exchange rates 20 49 68
Balance at 30 June 2020 1072 2427 3499
Non-current biological assets 1072 2029 3101
Current biological assets - 398 398
Balance at 30 June 2020 107.2 2427 3499
Increases due to purchases 1s5.2 1348 150.0
Decreoses attributable to sales - (223.0) (223.0)
Decrease due to harvest (24.0) (21.4) {45.8)
Business combination (see note 42) - 0.3 0.3
Changes in fair value less estimated sale costs 39 118.4 1223
Effect of movements In exchange rates (9.9} {24.3) {34.2)
Balance at 30 June 2021 92.0 2275 3195
Non-current biclogical assets 92.0 1879 2799
Current biclogical assets - 39.6 39.6
Balance at 30 June 2021 92,0 2275 319.5

Bovine biclogical assets include £7.4m (2020: £5.5m} representing the fair value of bulls owned by third parties but managed by the
Group. net of expected future payments to such third parties, which are therefore treated as assets held under finance leases.

There were no movements in the carrying value of the boving biclogical assets in respect of sales or other changes during the year.
Arisk-adjusted rate of 8.8% (2020: 8.8%) has been used to discount future net cash flews from the sale of bull semen.

Decreases due to harvest represent the semen extracted from the biclogical assets. Inventories of such semen are shown as biclogical
asset harvest in note 200

In porcine, included In increases due 1o purchases is the aggregate increase ansing during the year on initial recognition of ciological
assets in respect of multiplier purchases, other than parent gilts, of £47.5m (2020: £46 3m),

Decreases attributable 1o sales during the year of £223.0m (2020 £217 3m) inclucde £67.4m (2020 £681m) in respect of the reduction in
fair value of the retained interest in the genetics of animals, other than parent gilts, transferred under royalty contracts.

Also included s £978m (2020: £101.4m) relating to the farr value of the retained interest in the genetics in respect of animals, other than
parent gilts, sold to customers under royalty contracts in the year,

Total revenue in the year, Including parent gilts, ncludes £2065m (2020: £205.8m) :n respect of these contracts, compnsing £639m
[2020: £69.8m) on initial transfer of animals and semen to custamers and £143.0m (2020: £136.0m) in respect of rovalties received

A risk-adjusted rate of 9.3% (2020: 9.3%) has been used 1o discount future net cash flows from the expected output of the pure line
porcine herds. The number of future generations whicn have been taken into account is seven (2020: seven) and therr estimated useful
lifespan is 1.4 years {(2020: 14 years)
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Bovine Porcina Tatal
£€m Em £m
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biclogical assets'
Changes in fair value of biological assets 39 118.4 122.3
Inventory transferred to cost of sales at fair value {21.1) (21.4) {&2.5)
Biological assets transferred to cost of sales at fair value - [90.0) {90.0}
(17.2) 7.0 (10.2}
Fair value movement in related financial dervative - {0.6) 0.6}
{(17.2) 6.4 (20.8)
Year ended 30 June 2020
Bowving Porcire Tota
£ £ £mr
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets’
Changes In fair value of biclogical assets 135 1306 1441
Inventory transferred to cost of sales at fair value (109} (227) (326
Biological assets transferred to cost of sales at fair vaiue @5.1) (95.1)
2.4 128 154
Farr value movement in related inancial derivative - 04 04
2.4 132 158

1
reconciation to ac,usted operating profit (see APMs)

Fair value measurement

This represents the difference oetween coerating orofit prepared uncer 1AS 41 and coerating profit orepared under h storical eost gccounting which forms part of the

All of the biological assets inputs fall under Level 3 of the hierarchy defined in IFRS 13. Significant increases/(decreases) in any of these

inputs in isolation would result in a significantly lower or higher fair value measurement.
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16, BIOLOGICAL ASSETS CONTINUED
Uncbservable inputs and key sources of estimation uncertainty

2021 2020 Sensitivity
Bovine
Risk-adjusted discount 8.8% 88% 1 percentage point increase in the discount rate would
rate! result in approximately a £2.7m (2020: £3.2m) recuction

in value,

Value at point of 32.7% 36.2% 1percentage point decrease in the rate would result in
production' approximately a £4.6m (2020: £4 8m) reduction in value.
Percentage of new FY22 67% FY21 68% If percentage remained at FY21 level of $6% (2020: 36%)
dairy bulls to be FY2378% FY22 78% there would be a decrease in value of approximately
produced internally in FY24 80% FY2381% £2.2m (2020: £12.4m).
future years' FY25 and thereafter 82% FY24 and thereafter 83%
Age profile of Holstein FY22 ~ avg age 3.9 yrs FY21l - avg age 32 yrs If age profile remains at FY21 average age of 4.1years

bulls generating future
sales'

Age profile of US
beef-on-dairy bulls
generating

future sales

Long-term dairy
volume growth rate

Short-term dairy
volume growth rate

Porcine
Risk-adjusted discount
rate — upfrent prices

Risk-adjusted discount
rate — pure line herd’

Proportion of animals
that go to breeding
sales’

FY23 - avgage 3.2 yrs
FY24 - avg age 3.9 yrs

FY25 and thereafter — avy

age 3.8yrs

FY22 - avg age 4.9 yrs
FY23 - avg age 4.8 yrs
FY24 - avgage 4.Byrs
FY25 and thereafter —
avg age 4.Byrs

1.2%

3.2%

Gilts — 7.6%
Boars - 8.5%

FY22 - avg age 39 yrs
FY23 — avg age 39 yrs
FY24 and thereafter —
avg age 38 yrs

FY21 - avg age 50 vyrs
FY22 - avg age 48 yrs
FY23 — avg age 4.8 yrs
Y24 and thereafter —
avgage 4.8 yrs

20%

Gilts — 68%
Boars - 20%

(2020: 4.0 years), there would be an increase in value of
cpproximately £21m {2020: £2.4m).

if age profile remains at FY21 average age of 5.4 years
(2020: 5.2 years), there would be a decrease in value of
approximately £2.9m {2020: £1.4m).

1 parcentage point decraase In the growth rate would
result in approximately a £0.2m (2020: £0.2m)} reduction
invalue.

1 percentage peoint decrease in the growth rate would
result in approximately a £1.3m (2020: £1.7m) reduction
invalue,

1 percentage point increase in the discount rate would
result in approximately a £0.3m (2020: £0.3m} reduction
invaiue.

1 percentage point increase in the discount rate would
result in approximately a £2.6m (2020: £3.1m} reduction
in value. Any additicnal increase in the percentage
would lead to a linear impact.

1 percentage point Increase in the go to breeding sales
would resuit in gpproximately £8.4m (2020: £8.8m)
increase in value.

1 Key sources of estimat o~ uncertaimty

Additional infermation 200 2020
Bovine

Quantities at period end

Number of bulls in production 921 808
Number of bulls under development {including calves) 775 652
Total number of bulls 1,696 1460
Number of doses of semen valued in inventory 15.1m 12.4m
Amounts during the year

Fair value of agricultural produce - semen harvested durnng the period E24.4m £24.5m
Porcine

Quantities at period end

Number of pigs (own farms) 98,677 033146
Number of pigs, excluding parent gilts, despatched on a royalty basis and valued at fair value 84,386 89337
Ameounts during the year

Fair value of agricultural produce - semen harvastad during the period E21.4m £227m
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We make significant investments in our property, plant and equipment. All assets are depreciated over their useful economic lives.

Accounting policies

We state property, plant and eguipment at cost, together with any directly ottnbutable acquisition expenses, or at their [atest

valugtion, less depreciation and any impairment osses. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful

lives, we account for them separately.

We charge depreciation to the Income Statement on a straight-line basis, over the estimated useful lives of each part of an asset.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
> Freehold buildings 10 to 40 years

> Leasehold buldings over the term of the lease

> Plant and equiprment 3to 20 years
> Motor vehicles 3to S years

We do not depreciate land or assets under construction.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured initiclly at cost, based on the value of the asscciated lease liability, adjusted for any payments
made before inception, initial direct costs and an estimate of the dismantling, removal and restoration costs required in the terms of
the lease. Subseguent to initia! recognition, we record an interest charge in respect of the lease liability. The related right-of-use asset
is deprecicted over the term of the lease or, if shorter, the useful economic life of the leased asset. The lease term shall include the
period of an extension option where it is reasonably certain that the cption will be exercised. Where the lease contains a purchase
option, the asset is written off over the useful life of the asset when it is reasonably certain that the purchase option will be exercised.

Plant, motor Tatal Plant, motor Tatal
tand ond vehicles and Assets under owned Land and vehiclesand  right-of-use
buildings. equipment construction ossets buildings equipment assets Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m Em £m

Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 July 2019 62.1 913 4.7 1581 - - - 1581
Recognised on the adoption of IFRS 16 - - - - 197 &9 266 266
Transfers on cdoption of IFRS 16 - {12.2} - (12.2) - 12.2 122 -
Additions 0.4 Q4 148 246 19 72 @1 337
Transfers 46 47 (113} - - - - -
Disposals (1.6} (54 - {70} - (27 27 @7
Effect of movements in exchange rates Q4 - - Q4 03 04 07 11
Balance at 30 June 2020 &7%9 878 82 1639 219 240 459 2098
Additions 1.1 59 22.3 293 2.3 8.1 10.4 39.7
Business combination {see note 42) - 0.2 - 0.2 - - - 0.2
Transfers 4.3 35 (7.8 - - - - -
Disposals 0.3} (2.1) - (2.4) (1.9 (.7 (6.6 (9.0}
Effect of movements in exchange rates’ (8.4} (7.3} {0.6) (14.3) (1.6 {1.4) (3.0 7.3
Balance at 30 June 2027 86.6 88.0 221 176.7 20.7 26.0 46.7 223.4
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2019 208 513 - 721 - - - 721
Transfers on the adoption of IFRS 16 - {48 - {£.8) - 48 48 -
Depreciation for the year 38 @3 - 131 L 65 109 240
Disposals Q7 {27} - (3.4 - (1.5) (1.5} (&8}
Effect of movements in exchange rates 04 - - 04 - 03 03 07
Balance at 30 June 2020 243 531 - 774 4Liy 101 145 1R
Depraciation for the year 3.2 28 - 13.0 3.7 7.3 11.0 240
Disposals (0.3) {1L.5) - (1.8) (1.3) {6.2) (5.5) (7.3)
Effect of movements in exchange rates (2.7 (4.5} - (7.2) (0.3) (0.7) (1.0) {8.2)
Balance at 30 June 2021 245 569 - 8l1.4 6.5 125 120 100.4
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2021 42.1 311 221 953 14.2 13.5 277 1230
At 30 June 2020 4356 347 82 845 175 138 314 1179
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18, EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES
We hold interests in several joint ventures and associates where we have significant influence.

Accounting policies
Joint ventures are entities aver whose activities we have joint control, under a contractual agreement. The Group Financial Statements
include the Group's share of profit or loss arising from joint ventures.

Associates are entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies. The Group
Financial Statements include the Group's share of the total recognised income and expense of associates on an equity accounted
basis, from the date that significant influence commences until the date it ceases. When our share of losses exceeds our interest in an
associate, we reduce the carrying amount te nil and stop recognising further losses, except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on an associate’s behalf.

Under the equity method, investments in joint ventures or associates are initiclly recognised in the Group Balance Sheet at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint ventures and
associates. Related-party transactions with the Group's joint ventures and associates primanly comprise the sale of products and
services. As each arrangement is a separate legal entity and control rights are substantially equal with the other parties, no significant
Judgements are required.

The Group's share of profit after tax in its equity accounted investees for the year was £13.1m (2020: £8.9m).

The carrying value of the investments is reconciied as follows:

200 2020

£m £m

Balance at 1 July 227 236
Share of post-tax retained profits of joint ventures and associates 13.1 89
Additions 2.4 22
Disposal proceeds - (38)
Dividends received from Agroceres ~ PIC Genética de Suinos Ltda (Brazil) (2.5) (2.2
Dividends received from HY-CO Hybridschweine-Cooperations GmbH (Germarny) - {03
Dividends received from inner Mongolic Haoxiang Pig Breeding Co. Ltd. (Chinaj (1.6 -
Loan investment/lrepayment} 0.4 (1.2
Effect of other mavements including exchange rates (0.4) {4.5)
Balance at 30 June 341 227

During the year we purchased a 39% shareholding for £2.4m in Xelect Limited, an aguaculture genetic services company, and retan
a call eption to purchase the remaining shares in Xelect Limited 1n 2023, We clso made an investment of £0.4m in Societd Agricola
GENEETIC Srl, primarily through a shareholder's loan.

During the pricr year, we invested £2 2min @ new gssociate, inner Mongoelia Hooxiang Pig Breeding Co. Ltd., and cisposed of its entire
holding of Xianyang Yongxiang Agriculture Technology Co. Ltd., receving a return of loan capital and equity totalling £5.0m.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the joint ventures and asseciates to transfer funds to the parent, other than those
imposed by the Companigs Act 2006 or equivalent governmant rules within the joint venture's jurisdiction

Related-party transactions with joint ventures and ossociates

Transaction value Balance outstanding

2021 2020 2021 2020

Em Em £m Em

Sale of goods and services te joint ventures and associates (1.8) {12) 0.4 -
Purchase of goods and services from joint ventures and associates 5.0 31 {0.4) {1.6)

All outstanding balances with joint ventures and associates are priced on an arm’s length basis and are 1@ be settled in cash within six
months of the reporting date. None of the balances are secured.

Summary financial information for equity accounted investees, adjusted for the Group's percentage ownership, is shown on the
fallowing page.
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18. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES CONTINUED
Joint ventures and associates — year ended 30 June 2021

Cash and Qther
cash current  Non-current Biclogical Total Current Total Net
equivalent assets assets assets assets lighilities liabilitias assets
Net assets Ownarship £m £m £m Em Em £m £m Em
Agroceres - PIC Genética 49% 4.8 9.3 10.6 &9 31.6 (5.1) (5.1) 26,5
de Suinos Ltda (Brazil)
HY-CO Hybridschweine- 50% - 0.1 - - 01 - - 0.1
Cooperations GmioH
[Germany
Inner Mongolia Haoxiang 49% 3.0 0% 0.8 09 3.8 {0.4) {0.4}) 3.4
Pig Breeding Co 1 tA
(China)!
Chitale Genus ABS {India) 50% - 03 14 - 17 (0.1) {0.5) 1.2
Private Limited (India)
Avlscenter Mallevang A/S! 49% - - - - - - - -
Xelect Limited {United 29% 01 01 2.4 - 2.6 {0.2) (0.2} 2.4
Kingdom)!
Societd Agricola GENEETIC 33% - 0.2 0.6 - 0.6 fo.1) (0.1} 0.5
S.rl {italy)
Societd Agricola GENEETIC 33% - - - - - - - -
Service S.rl. (ltaly)!
79 109 15.6 6.0 40.4 (5.9) 6.3} 341
1 Classified os an associote Ad other irvestments are classfied os joint ventures,
Nat 145 &1
valuation
maovemant on
bialogical Oparating Prafit
Revenue assets Expensas profit Taxation after tax
Income $tatement Ownership Em £m £m £m £m £m
Agroceres - PIC Genética de Suinos Ltda (Brazil) 49% 315 39 (21.2) 14.2 (3.0 11.2
HY-CQ Hybridschweine-Cooperations GmbH 50% - - - - - -
(Germany}
Inner Mongolia Haoxiang Pig Breeding Co. Ltd, 49% 6.0 {0.8) (3.3) 19 - 19
({Chinal
Chitale Genus ABS (India) Private Limited (India) 50% 0.4 - (0.3) 0.1 - 01
Avlscenter Mallevang A/S' 49% - - (0.2) 0.2) - (0.2}
Xelect Limited {United Kingdem)' 39% 0.2 - ©.2) - - -
Societd Agricola GENEETIC S.rl. (ltaly) 33% 0.8 - 0.7} 0.1 - 01
Societd Agricola GENEETIC Service S.rl. {italy) 33% - - - - - -
38.9 3.1 (25.9) 16.1 {(3.0) 13.1

1  Classifiec as an associate All other investments are clossified as joint ventures.

Joint ventures and associates have a December year end, except Chitale Genus ABS {India) Private Limited, which has o March
year end, and Xelect Limited, which has a June year end. Where the year end differs from the year of the Group this is due to local
regulatory requirements.
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18. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES CONTINUED
Joint ventures and associates — year ended 30 June 2020

Cash ard Otrer
cas” current  Non-current Biological Totol Current Tota. Net
eguvalent assets assets asselts Qssets cathties labrlites assets
Net assets Owrership £ Em Em Em fm £m £m £
Agroceres - PIC Genética 49% 25 61 81 35 206 (2.4) (2.4) 182
de Suinos Ltdo (Brozil)
HY-CO Hybridschweine- 50% - 02 - - 0.2 N (01} 0.l
Cooperations GmbH
(Germanyl
Inner Mongolia Haoxiang 42% 20 12 a3 {01) 34 0.3} 0.3} 31
Pig Breeding Co. Ltd.
{China)!
Chitale Genus ABS (India) S50% - 04 11 - 15 - (0.4} 11
Private Limited (india)
Aviscenter Mallevang A/S 49% - 0.2 - - Q2 - - 02
48 81 25 34 259 2.8 (3.2} 227
Net 145 41
valuat or
movermeant on
o ogical Cperating Profit
Revenue assets Expenses profit Taxcticn after tax
Income Statement Ownershig £ Em £m £m £rn £m
Agroceres — PIC Genética de Suinos Ltda (Brazil) 49% 281 - (189) Q2 (2.3) 69
HY-CC Hybridschweine-Cooperations GmbH 50% 09 - 07} 02 - 02
(Germany)
Xianyang Yangxiang Agriculture Technalogy Co, 45% 14 - 07} a7 - G.7
Ltd. {China)
Inner Mangolia Haoxiang Pig Breeding Co. Ltd 49% 24 0.1 (18] a9 - g9
{China)'
Chitale Genus ABS {India) Private Limited {India) 50% 03 - {03 - - -
Avlscenter Mollevang A/S' 49% 0.2 - - 02 - 02
335 {0.1) (222) 112 (2.3) 89

1 Clossified as an associate Alother mvestre~ts are class fied s joint ventures

Joint ventures and associates have a December year end, except Chitale Genus ABS (India) Private Limited, which has a March year
end,

19. OTHER INVESTMENTS
We hold o number of unlisted and histed investments, mainly comprising our strategic investment in Caribou Biosciences, Inc. {'Caribou’)
and shares In listed entity National Milk Records plc 'NMR').

Accounting policies

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {FYOCI) comprise equity secunties which are not held for trading,
and which the Group has irrevocabily elected at mitial recognition to recognise as FYOCE The Group cansiders this classification
relevant as these are strateqic investments.

Financial assets ot FYOCH are adjusted to the fair value of the asset at the balance sheet date, with any gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and held as part of othear reserves, On disposal any gain or 10ss 1s recognised in other comprehensive
income and the cumulative gains or iosses are transferred from other reserves 1o retained earnings.

At initicl recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a inancial asset not at fair value through
Income statement, transacucn costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
Anarcial assets carried at fair value through income stotement are expensed in the Income Statement.

Other investments may include equity investments {where the Group aoes nat have control, joint control ar significant influence in the
investea), short-term deposits with banks and other invastments with onginal matunties of mere than three months. Any dividends
received are recognised In the income Statement.

2021 2020
Investments carried at fair value £m £
Unlisted equity shares - Caribou Biosciences, Inc 10.4 37
Unlisted equity shares — Other 2.3 14
Listed equity shares — NMR 20 18

147 69
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19. OTHER INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

We hold a strategic non-controlling interest in Canbou, which is measured at fair value using the valuation basis of a Level 2
classification. In July 2021, Caribou shares started publicly trading on NASDAQ. Given the proxirity of the transaction to the balance
sheet date, our hoiding has been valued at the average price expected 1o be achieved on listing.

NMR ordinary shares were acquired as part of the NMR pension agreement, and are measured at fair value. The valuation basis is
Level 1 classification, where far value techniques are quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Other unlisted equity investments primarily consist of strategic non-controlling interests in bovine technology companies, which are
measwred ot fair value and the voluation basis is Level 3 classihcaton, where fair value techniques use inputs which hove o significont
effect on the recorded fair value and are not based on observable market data.

20. INVENTORIES
Quir inventory primarily cansists of bovine semean, raw malenuls and ancillary products.

Accounting policies

Imventory (exciuding biclogical assets' harvest) is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the basis
of weighted average costs and comprises direct materials and, where approprate, direct labour costs and those overheads that have
been incurred in kringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

For our biological assets accounting policies, see note 16.

200 2020

£m £m

Biclogicat assets’ harvest classed as inventories 178 203
Raw matericls and consumables 29 07
Goods held for resale 163 184
370 374

21, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Our trade and other receivables mainky consist of amounts owed to us by custarmers and amounts we pay to our suppliers in advoence.

Accounting policies
We state trade and other receivables at their amoertised cost less any impairment losses.

202 2020

Em £m

Trade receivables 87.2 837
Less expected credit loss allowance (5.0} (34)
Trade receivables net of impairment 82.2 BO.3
Cther debtors 5.4 6.3
Prepayments 6.6 86
Contract assets (note 24) 77 51
Other taxes and social security 33 25
Current trade and other receivables 106.2 1008
Non-current other receivables 18 18

1080 1026
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21, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUED

Trade receivabies

The average credit pernod our customers take on the salas of goods is 53 days (2020: 53 days). We do nat charge interest on
receivables for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice.

The Group always measures the loss allowance for trade receivablas at an amount egual te ifetime expected credit losses (ECLs"). The
ECLs on trade receivables are estimatad using a provision matrix by reference 1o past default experience of the debtor and an analysis
of the debtor's current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the general economic conditions of the industry and
country in which the debtar operates and an assessment of both the current and the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date. The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor 1s in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, such as when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered inta bankruptcy
proceedings.

The Group recognises ECLs with reference to the following matrix, in accordance with the simplified approach permitted in IFRS ¢
There has reen no change in the estimation techniques during the current reporting period. A component of the caleulation is the risk
premium of the countries in which cur customers operate. The nsk premiums are updated on each reporting date, to reflect changes
in the global economy.

North Latin
America America EMEA Asia
2021 1.6% 4.6% 3.1% 12.9%
2020 16% 6.3% 26% 122%

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECLs that has been recognised for trade receivablas, in accordance with the
simplified appraach set out in IFRS 9.

202 2020

£m £m

Balance at the start of the year 3.4 24
Change in loss allowance due to new trade and other receivables originated net of those derecognised 3.4 25

due to settlement

Amounts written off as uncollectable f0.3) 03
Impairment losses reversed (1.4) (1.3)
Effect of movements in exchange rates [0.1) {0.1)
Balance at the end of the year 50 34

The aging of trade receivables is presented below:
Trade receivablaes

Trade receivables net of impalirment

200 202G 2021 2020

Days past dua Em Im £m £m
Not yet due 478 654 65.3 629
0-30 days 9.6 87 %1 83
31-90 days 6.5 52 51 55
21-180 days 1.8 15 17 15
Cwver 180 days 15 2.2 1.0 21
872 837 82.2 B80.3

No customer represents more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables (2020: no more than 5%).
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recernvables approximates therr fair vaiue.

Recawvables denominated in currencies othar than Sterling compnse £35.7m denominated in US Dollars {2020: £34.7mij,
EN.8m denominated in Euros (2020: £13.2m) and £379m denomindted in other currencias (2020 £32.1m),
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22, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
We hold cash and bank deposits which have o maturity of three months or less, 1o enable us to meet our short-term liquidity
requirements,

Accounting policies
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an integral part of our cash
management and are included in interest-bearing loans and borrowings less than cne year.

200 2020
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 46.0 413

The carrying amount of these assets approximates 1o their fair value.

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents can be assessed by reference to external cradit ratings of the counterparty where the
account or deposit is placed.

201 2020

Countarparties with external credit ratings £m £m
Ato AA- 34.2 310
BBB- tc BBB 6.4 51
8- 1o BB+ 5.0 52
CCC to CCC- 0.4 -
46.0 413

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Cur trade and other payables mainly consist of amounts we owe to our suppliers that have been invoiced or are accrued. They also
include taxes and social security amounts due in relation to our role as an employer.

Accounting pelicies
Trade poyables are not interest earing and are stated at their nominal value.

201 2620
£m £n
Trade payables 237 185
Other payables 7.6 49
Accrued expenses 60.2 57.2
Contract liabilities inote 24) 10.6 82
Cther taxes and sccial security 8.2 &2
Current trade and other payables 110.3 250
Contract liabilities (note 24) 1.4 33
Non-current trade and other payables 14 33

The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 27 days {2020: 21 days).

Payables denominated in currencies other than Sterling comprise £43.8m denominated in US Dollars {(2020: £391m), £10.5m denominated
In Euros {202C; £110m) and £32.6m denominated in other currencies (2020: £27.6m).

The carrying values of these liabilities are a reasonable opproximation of their fair values.

24. CONTRACT BALANCES

Accounting policy

A contract asset is recognised when the Group's right to consideration is conditional on something other than the passage of time,
for exampte the completion of future performance obligations under the terms of the contract with the customer In some instances,
the Group receives payments from customers based on a pilling schedule, as established in the contract, which may not match with
the pattern of performance under the contract.

Where payment is received ahead of performance a contract liakility will be created, and where performance obligations are satisfied
ahead of billing. then a contract asset will be recognised.

2021 2020

£m £m

Contract assets [note 21} 77 51
Current contract liabilities (10.6) 8.2)
Non-current contract liabilities 1.4) (33)

Contract liabilities (n<;t9723} ) {12.0) {115
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24, CONTRACT BALANCES CONTINUED

Contract Controct

assets liabilitles

£m £m

Balance at 1 July 2019 29 69)
Increases as o result of performance in advance of billing 273 -
Transfers to recelvables during the year (251) -
Increases as a rasult of biling ahead of performance - B820)
Decreases as a result of revenue recognised in the year - 7r1
Effect of movements in exchange rates - 0.3
Balance at 30 June 2020 51 (115
Increcses as a result of performance in advance of killing 358 -
Transfers to receivables during the year (32.7) -
Increases as a result of billing ahead of performance -~ (109.3)
Decreases as a result of revenue recognised in the year - 108.1
Effect of movements in exchange rates (0.5) 0.7
Balance at 30 June 2021 77 (12.0)

In sorme cases, the Group receives payments from customers basea on a billing schedule, as established in our contracts. The contract
assets relate 1o revenue recognised for performance in advance of scheduled killng and have increased as the Group has provided
mare services ahead of the agreed payment schedules for certain contracts. The contract lability relates to payments received in
advance of performance under contract and vanes based on parformance under these contracts,

The transaction price allocated to partially unsatisfied performance obligations at 30 June 2021is £3.6m (2020: £6.8m}. 't is expected
that the Group will recognise this rovenue over the next four years

25, PROVISIONS
A provision 1s a liability recorded in the Group Balance Sheet, where there is uncertainty over the timing or amount that will be paid,
and is therefore estimated. The main provisions we hold relate to litigation damages, legal provisions, customer claims and share forfeiture.

Accounting policies

We recognise G provision in the Balance Sheet when an event results in the Group having a current legal or constructive obligotion,
and it is prabable that we will have to settle the obligation through an cutflow of economic benefits. If the effect is material, we
discount provisions to their present value.

Contingent
ST deferred Share Qther

litigation  consideration forfeiture provisians Total

£m £m £m Em £m

Balance at 1 July 219 - 45 20 23 88
Additional provision in the year 102 - 03 25 130
Utilisation of provision - - - (1.6 (16
Release of provision - - - 02 02
Reclassifed to deferred consideration’ - &5 - - (4.5}
Effect of movement in exchange rates 03 - - - 03
Balance at 30 June 2020 105 - 23 30 158
Additional provision in the year 0.2 - - 27 29
Utilisation of provision 0.2) - - {2.3) {2.5)
Release of provision - - (2.0 (0.4) (2.4)
Effect of movement in exchange rotes {1.1} - - {0.3) (1.4}
Balance at 30 June 2021 9.4 - 03 27 12,4

1 Cornngent ceteres consaea! G~ Pos neen rec o3sfies 1o be a.sc'osed wen n oeferred coms geroron, 0s Ihe na'orces ore recorded Of far vo'uie ond not estimotad

2021 2020

Em £m

Current 1.2 40
Non-current 111 118
12.4 158

5T lingation relates specfically 1 our litigation only with Sexing Technologies, as described in note 7.

The share forteiture provision of £0.3m relates to potentiol claims thet could be made by untraced members over the next two years,
relating to the resale proceeds of shares that were identified durng the pror year as being forfeited.

Other provisions mainly relate to legal provisions {excluding ST Iitigaton) and customers’ claims. The uming and cash flows associated
with the majarity of legal claims are expected to be less than one year. However, for some legal ciaims the tming of cash fiows may be
long term in nature and are disclosed as such.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
This note details our treasury management and financial risk management objectives and policies, as well as the Group's exposure
and sensitivity to credit, liquidity, interest and foreign exchange rate risk, and the policies In place 1o moniter and manage these risks.

Financial risk management objectives

The Group's corporate treasury function provides services to the business, coordinates our access to domestic and international
Anancial markets, and monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the Group's operations, through interndl risk reports that
analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk {including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk
and price riskl, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

We seek to minimise the effects of these risks by hedging them using derivative financial instruments. Cur use of financial derivatives
is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-dervative financial instrurneants, and the investment of excess iquidity. The Board
of Directors reqularly reviews cur complinnee with paolicies and exposuie linnils. The Group does not enter into or trade financial
instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Key financial risks and exposures are monitored through a monthly repart to the Board of Directors, together with an annual Board
review of corporate treasury matters.

Financial risk

The principal inancial risks our activities expose us to are the risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and

commodity prices. We use derivative financial instruments to manage our exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and commaodity

price risks, including:

> forward foreign exchange contracts, to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on the sale of goods and purchase of supplies in
foreign currencies,

> Interest rate swaps, to mitigate the risk of nsing interest rates; and

> forward commodity centracts, o hedge commodity price risk.

Accounting policies

Financial instruments

Financicl ossets and liabilties in respect of financial instruments are recognised on the Group Balance Sheet when the Group becomes
a party to the instrument’s contractual provisions.

Financial liabilities and equity instrumants

Financial liakilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of o financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that
provides a residual interest in the Group's assets after deducting all of its liabilities and includes no obligation to deliver cash or other
financial assets. The accounting pelicies adopted for specific inancial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Put optich arrangements over non-controlling interest
The potential cash payments related to put options issued by the Group over the eguity of subsidiary companies are accounted for
as financial habilities.

The amount that may become payable under the option on exercise Is inftially recognised at present value within financial liabilities,
with a corresponding charge directly to equity. The charge to equity is recognised separately as written put options over non-
controlling Interest, adjacent to non-controlling interest in the net assets of consclidated subsidiaries.

Such options are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, in order to accrete the liability up
to the amount payable under the option ot the date at which it first becomes exercisable. The charge arising is recorded as @
financing cost. If the opticn expires unexercised, the liability is derecagnised, with a corresponding cdjustment to equity.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered inte and are subsequently remeasured 1o
their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss 1s recognised in the Income Statement immediately, uniess the
derivative is designated and effective as o hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the Income Statement
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

A derivative with o positive fair value is recognised as o financial asset whereas o derivative with o negative far value is recognised as
a financial ligbility. Derivatives cre not offset in the financial statements, unless the Group has both & legally enforceable right and
intention to offset. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument
is more than 12 months and it is not due to be realised or settled within 12 menths. Cther denvatives are presented as current assets of
current fiabilities.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that we would recelve or pay 1o terminate the swap at the balance sheet
date, taking into account current interest rates and the creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.

The fair values of forward exchange contracts and forward commaodity contracts are their guoted market price at the balance sheet
date, which is the present value of the quoted forward price.

Hedging activities
The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in respect of foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and commaodity
risk in fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign cperations.
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Al the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the nedging Instrurnent and the hedged

itern, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the

inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting

changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged nisk, which is when the hedging relationship meets

all of the following hedge effectiveness requirements:

> thereis an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

> the effect of credit sk does not dominate the value changes that result from thot economic relationship; and

> the hedge ratio of the hadging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group
actually hedges and the quantity of the hadging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

if ¢ hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk managerment
objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship
{i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying criteria again,

The Group designates the full change in the fair value of o forward contract fi.e. including the forward elements] as the hedging
instrurnent for all of its hedging relationships invelving forward controcts.

The Group designates only the intrinsic value of option controcts as a hedged item, i.e. excluding the time value of the option. The
changes in the fair value of the aligned time value of the option are recagnised in Other Comprehensive Income and accurnulated in
the cost of hedging reserve, If the hedged ftem 1s transaction related, the time value s reclossified 1o the Income Statement when the
hedged item affects the Income Statemeant. If the hedged item is time-period related, then the amount accumulated in the cost of
nedging reserve is reclassified to the Income Staterment on a rational basis, applying straight-line amortisation. Those reclassified
amounts are recognised in the Income Statement in the same line as the hedged item. if the hedged item is a non-financial item, then
the amount accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve is removed directly from equity and included in the intial carrying amaount of
the recognised non-financial item. Furthermaore, if the Group expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in cost of hedging
reserve will not be recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to the Income Statement,

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualifying hedging instruments that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumuiated under the heading of cash flow hedging
reserve, and limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement and is Included in the ‘other gains and losses' line item.

Amounts previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accurmulated in equity are reclassified to the Income Statement
in the periods when the hedged item affects the Income Statement, in the same line as the recogniséd hedged item. However, when
the hedged farecast transaction results In the recognition of a non-financiatl asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are removed from equilty and included in the mitici!
measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability. This transfer does not affect Other Comprehansive
Income. Furthermore, If the Group expects that seme or all of the loss accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve will not be
recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to the Income Statement.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting anly when the hedging relationship lor o port thereof] ceases 1o meet the quolifying criteria
{after rebalancing, if cpplicable). This includes instances when the hedging instrumeant expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The
discentinuation is accounted for prospactively Any gain or foss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in cash
flow hedge reserve ot that time remains in eguity and is reclassified to the Income Statement when the forecast transaction occurs.
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve is reclassified
immediately 1o the Income Stotement.

Undar interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floaung rate interest amounts
caleulated on agreed notional principal ameounts Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on
the fair value of issued fixed-rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable-rate debt held. The fair value of
interest rate swaps at the reporung date is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curves at the reporting
date and the credit risk inherent in the contract. The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the end of the
finoncial yeor.

As the critical terms of the interest rate swap contracts and tharr correspanding hedged items are the same, the Group performs

a qualitative assessment of effectivenass and it s expected that the value of the interest rate swap contracts and the vaiue of the
corresponding hedged tems will systermnatically change in opposite directions, In response 1o movemeants in the underlying interest
rates. The main source of hedge ineffectiveness in these hedge relationships is the effect of the counterparty and the Group's own
credit risk on the fair value of the interest rate swap contracts, which is not reflectad in the fair value of the hedged item attributable
10 the chonge in imerest rotes. No other sources of ineffectiveness emerged from these hedging relotionships.

Net investment hedges

Hedges of net investrnents In foreign operations are accounted for similarly 1o casn flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the foreign
currency forward contracts relating to the effective portion of the hedge 1s recognised in Other Comprenensive Income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. The gain or 10ss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the Income Statement, and is included in the ‘other gains and losses' Ine item.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to the Income
Statement on the disposal or partial disposal of the foreign operation.

We only apply net investment nedge accounting in the Group Financial Statements.
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Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that Group entities can continue as going concerns, while maximising the return to
shareholders by optimising our debt and equity balance. Tne Group's copital structure consists of debt, which includes the borrowings
disclosed in note 27, cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable 1o equity holders of the Parent, comprising issued capital,
reserves and retained earnings, as disclosed in note 31

Gearing ratio
The Group keeps its copital structure under review and monitors it monthly to ensure the gearing ratio remains below 60%. The Group
is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

{restated)

2021 2020

£m m

Debt {see note 27 151.6 1439
Cash and cash equivalents {see note 22) (46.0) (41.3)
MNet debt (see note 32) 105.6 1026
Equity' 496.6 4945
Net debt to equity ratio 21% 21%

1 3ee note 2 for detanls of prior period -estatement
Debt is defined as long and shart-term borrowings, including lease obligations as detailed in note 27,
Equity includes oll capital and reserves of the Group ottributable to equity holders of the Parent.

Categories of financial instruments

We have categorised financial instruments held at valuation into a three-level fair value hierarchy, based on the priority of the inputs
to the valuotion technique in accordance with IFRS 13. The hisrarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or abllities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure fair value fall
within different levels of the hierarchy, we base the cotegory level on the lowest priority level input that is significant to the fair value
rnegsuremeant of the instrument in its entirety. We have estimated the fair values of the Group's outstanding interest rate swaps by
calculating the present value of future cash flows, using appropriate market discount rates, representing Level 2 fair value
measurements as defined by IFRS 13,

2021 Carrying value _ 2020 Carryirg va ug
Leval 1 Leval 2 Leval 3 Total itaveil level 2 Level 3 Total
£m Em £m £m Err £m £m Em
Financial assets
Other investments 2.0 10.4 2.3 147 18 - 51 55
Trade receivables and other debtors, - 919 - 919 - 821 - 891
excluding prepayments and accrued
income (see note 21)
Cash and cash equivalents - 46.0 - 46.0 - 413 - 413
Derivative instruments in non- - 0.1 - 0.1 - 12 - 1.2
designated hedge accounting
relationships
Derivative instruments in designated - - - - - - - -
hedge accounting relationships
20 148.4 2.3 152.7 18 1316 51 1385
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables, excluding - (102.1) - {102.1) - %2.1) - (921}
other taxes and social security (see
note 23}
Leans and overdrafts (see note 27) - {123.3) - (123.3) - (1128 - {112.8}
Leasing obligations (see note 28) - (28.3) - (28.3) - (311 - (311}
Derivative Instruments in non- - - - - - 0.3 - {03}
designated hedge accounting
relationships
Derivative instruments in designated - - - - - 0.2 - (0.2}
hedge cccounting relationships
Put option over non-controlling interast - (6.1) - 6.1) - 61 - 6.1
Deferred consideration (see note 38) - (0.4) .7 (2.1) - (5.1 (2.6 87
- {260.2) (1.7) (261.9) - (2477) (3.6) (251.3)

We hold a strategic non-controlling interest in Caribou Biosciences, Inc (Caribou’), presented above within Other Investments (note 19),
In July 2021, Caribou shares started publicly trading on the NASDAQ, and was reclassified from a Level 3 instrument to Level 2. There
have been no transfers between levels during the prior year.
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Foreign currency risk management
We undertake transactions denominated in foreign currencies,

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date
were as follows:

Liahifities Assats B
2021 2020 200 2020
Em £m £m Em
Us Dollar &7.7) (76.2} 21 12
Euro (12.1) (55) 0.5 -
Chinese Yuan - - - 02

Foreign currency Income Statement sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to movements in the US Doliar, Euro, Brazilian Real, Mexican Peso, Chinese Yuan and Russian Rouble
exchange rates.

The following table detalls the Group's sensitivity to a 10% and 20% increase and decrease in Stering agaimnst these currencies.

10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key monagement and represents our assessment

of a significant change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only cutstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the pernod end for a 10% or 20% change in foreign currency rates. It includes external
loans, as well as loans to foreign operations within the Group where the loan is denominated in a currency other than the lender or
borrower's currency. & positive number below indicates an increase In profit when Sterling weakens against the relevant currency.

A strengthening of Sterling against the relevant currency would produce an egual but opposite reduction in profit, and the balances
below would be negative.

Zqicurrnncy movement 10% currency movement

2021 2020 20N 2020

£m Em Em £m

Euro 2.4 22 1.2 11
US Dollar 1.2 15 0.6 08
Brazilian Real 2.8 22 1.4 11
Mexican Peso 238 28 1.4 14
Chinese Yuan 7.0 43 3.5 22
Russian Rouble 13 10 0.6 05

Forward foreign exchange contracts
The Group's policy is to enter Into forward foreign exchange contracts, to cover specific foreign currency payments and receipts.
The following table details the forward foreign currency contracts outstanding as at the year end:

Average exchange rate Contract value _ Fairﬂﬁ

- Foreign 201 2020 2021 2020
2021 2020 currency Em Em Em £

Outstanding contracts
Buy DKK - 834 DKK - 4.3 - 01
Sell CNY 2.03 895 CNY 20 20 - -
Buy AUD 185 183 AUD 1.0 11 - -
Sell BRL - 634 BRL - 0l - -
Sell PHP 67.78 62.85 PHP 0.1 - - -
Sell RUB 10195 86957 RUB 0.1 01 - -
Buy EUR 0.86 098 EUR 8.8 57 - -
Sell PLN 5.30 496 PLN 0% 08 - -
Buy MXN 28.03 2821 MXN 5.6 01 0.1 01
Sell USD 1.40 123 ust 47 20 {0.1} -
Buy EUR/Sell CHF 1.09 106 CHF 0.3 03 - -
Buy EUR/Sell BRL - 5.88 8RL - 02 - -
Buy USD/Sell BRL 5.05 522 BRL 18 33 - 01
Buy USD/Sell CLP 72003 798.13 CLP 0.3 03 - -
Buy USD/Sell CNY 6.43 709 CNY 17 18 - -
Buy PHP/Sell USD 48.82 4995 PHP 50 32 - -
Buy USD/Sell CAD 1.23 134 CaD 23 3l - -
Buy USD/Sell MXN - 2274 MXMN - (088 - -
Buy USD/Sell EUR 1.19 112 EUR 23 03 - -
Buy USD/Sell RUB 72.58 5952 RUB 15 0% - -
Buy USD/Sell INR 73.06 76.33 INR 2.8 40 - -
Buy USD/Sell ZAR 1441 1725 ZAR 6.2 03 - -
Buy USD/Sell ARS 97.85 - ARS 0.2 - - -
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Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk, as Group entities borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. We manage this risk
centrally, by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, using interest rate swaps. We regularly review
our hedging activities, to afign with our interest rate views and defined risk appetite, thereby ensuring we apply optimal hedging
strategies to minimise the adverse impact of fluctuations in interest expense through different interest rate cycles.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section
of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

We have determined the sensitivity analyses below, based on the Group's exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments, at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities, we prepared the analysis assuming the liability
vutslunding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year. A 1.0 percentage pointincrease or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management and is our assessment of a significant change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1.0 percentage point higher orlower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit would have
decreased or increased by £1.2m (2020: decrease/increase by £07m). This impact is smaller than would otherwise be the case, due to
our fixed-rate hedging.

Interest rate swap contracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts,
calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. These contracts enable us to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the
cash flow exposures an the variable-rate debt we hold. We determine the fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date by
discounting the future cash flows, using the yield curves ot the reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract. This fair value
is disclosed on the following page. The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the end of the financial year.

Cash flow hedges
The following table details the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding, as at the
reporting date:

Average contract
fixed interest rate National principal amount Fair value
2021 2020 201 2020 201 2020
Qutstanding receive floating pay fixed contracts % % Em Em £m Em

USD interest rate swaps

Less than one yaar - 122 - 363 - -

One to five years - - - -
- 363 - -

GBP interest rate swaps
One to five years 1.13 161 5.0 250

02

The interest rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis. The corresponding flogting rate on the interest rate swaps is three-month LIBOR.
We settle the difference between the fixed and floating interest rate on @ net basis.

Interest rate swap contracts that exchange floating-rate interest amounts for fixed-rate interest amounts are designated as cash flow
hedges, to reduce our cash flow exposure resulting from variable interest rates on borrowings. The interest rate swaps and the interest
payments on the loan occur simultanecusly and we recognise the amount defarred in equity in the Income Statement, over the period
that the floating rate interest paymeants on debt affect the Income Statement.

Since LIBCR will cease as a reference rate after December 2021, the Group has migrated to simitar but more robust market standard
rates of SONIA as the reference rate for GBP and SOFR as the reference rate for USD. All of the existing interest rate swaps expire before
31 December 2021 and as such there is no assurned impact from LIBOR reform in assessing whether these swaps continue to meet the
documented hedging criteria.

Commedity hedges
The Group hedges both feed and slaughter exposures using Chicago Mercantile Exchange lean heg, corn and soybean meal
commodity futures contracts.

Average price _ Notionel principal amount Fair valu:

2021 2020 201 2020 20 2020
Commodity hedge uss JS3 £m £r £m £m
Open commaodity contracts as at June 2021
Lean hog 0.79 0.58 7.6 47 (0.8} 0%
Com 4.78 382 (4.3) (2.0} 1.0 (.1}
Soybean meal 382 300 (3.5} (2.1 0.1} -

(0.2} 06 01 08
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Net investment hedges

The Group policy 1s to hedge no maore than 70% of its wholly owned subsidiaries. The Group has designated EUR 125 million of Pig
Improvermnent Company Espafia, S.A. and Bovec $.A. as a hedged item using EUR 12 5 million of the revolving ¢redit facility os a nat
investment hedge.

The table below shows a reconciliation of the gains or loss deferred in equity:

2021 2020

Em £m

Loss ot the start of the year {0.5) 04}
Effective gains/{losses) recognised in equity in period 0.4 0.1
Balance carnied forward in equity as effective losses (0.1) 0.5)

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that o counterparty will default on its contractual obligations, resulting In financial 10ss 1o the Group. We have a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. We regularly monitor cur expasure and the credit ratings of our counterparties,
and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved caunterparties. Credit exposure on financial
instruments is controlled by counterparty limits that the Board reviews and approves annually.

Trade receivables consist of o large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. We carry out
ongoing credit evaluation of the financial condition of accounts receivable

Liquidity risk management

The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for managing liquidity nsk. We manage this risk by maintaining adedquate reserves
and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and habilities.

Liquidity and interest risk tables
For non-derivative financial liabilities, see notes 27, 28 and 38.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities, excluding

trade payables and other creditors which are short term and, as disclosed in note 23, have an average credit period of 27 days
(2020 21 days). We have drawn up the tabie based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities, using the earliest date
on which we can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted
average
effactive Less than 3 months—
interest rate 1month 1-3 months 1yeaar 1-5 yaars 5+ years Tatal
% £m £m £m £m £m £m
2021
Loans and borrowings 1.13 49 0.4 99 1115 - 1287
Lease liabifities 2.81 - 2.4 71 21.3 28 33.6
Deferred consideration - - 0.1 12 Q.4 - 17
Variable interest rate instruments 1.66 69 29 18.2 1332 28 1640
2020
Loans and borrowings 092 28 0.2 02 1065 - 1167
Lease liabllities 300 - 28 84 197 3% 348
Deferred consideration - - 4é 29 12 - 87
Variable interest rate instruments 153 Q8 76 115 1274 39 1602

The following table detalls the Group's expected maturity for other non-dernvative financial assets, excluding trade receivables and
other debtors We have drawn up this table bosed on the unaiscounted contractuol matunties of the assets, including interest we will
earn on them, except where we expect the cash flow to occur in a different period.

Woighted
average
aftective Lass than 3 months-
interast rate 1month 1-3 months 1year 1-S years 5+ years Total
% Em £m £m £m £m £m
2021
Variable interest rote instruments 1.03 38.2 - 78 - - 46,0
2020
Vanagle interest rate instruments 110 413 - - - - 413

The Group has financing facilities with a total unused amount of £122 3m (2020 £125 4m) at the balance sheet date. We expect to meet
our other obligations from operating cash flows and the proceeds of maturing financial assets. We expect to reduce the debt to equity
ratio, as borrowings decrease through repayment from operating cash flows



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 147

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

The following table details the Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments. We have drawn up the table based
on the undiscounted net cash outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross cutflows on
derivatives that require gross settlement. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, we have determined the amount
disclosed by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates, as illustratad by the yield curves ot the reporting date.

Less than 3 months-
1month -3 months 1yadar 1-5 yeurs 5+ years Total
£m £m Em £m £m £m
2021
Foreign exchange contracts - - - - - -
Commaodity swops 03 0.1) {0.1) - - 0.1
Interast rate swaps - - - - - -
2020
Foreign exchange contracts 02 - — — — 02
Commodity swaps 03 05 - - - 08
Interest rate swaps - 01 01 - - 02

Commaodity swaps and interest rate swaps are always settled on @ net basis, Foreign exchange contracts can be settled on @ net or
gross basis; the net cash flows presented in the table above reflect an inflow of £88.4m and outflow of £88.4m (2020: infiow of £70.3m
and outflow of £70.1m).

27. LOANS AND BORROWINGS
The Group's borrowing for funding and liguidity purposes comes from a range of committed bank facilities.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

We initially recognise interest-bearing loans end borrowings at their fair value, less atirioutable transaction costs. After this inrtial
recognition, we state them at amortised cost and recognise any difference between the cost and redemption value in the Income
Statement over the borrowings’ expected life, on an effective interest rate basis. The carrying values of these liabilities are a
reasoncable approximation of therr foir values,

200 2020
£m £mr
Non-current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans 109.4 10358
Obligations under leases {see note 28) 19.3 211
128.7 1247
Current liabilities
Unsecurad bank loans and overdrafts 139 2.2
Cbligations under leases {see note 28) 9.0 100
229 1%.2
Tota! interest-bearing liabilities 151.6 1439
Terms and debt repayment scheduie
Terms and conditions of outstanding loans and overdrafts were as follows:
2021 207 2020
Currency Interest rate Em £m
Revolving credit facility and overdraft GBP 1.5% 43.2 284
Revelving credit facility, term loan and overdraft UsD 15% 597 585
Revolving credit facility and overdraft EUR 1.4% 10.7 48
Obligations under leases uso 28% 283 311
Other unsecured bank berrowings Other 08% o7 82
Total interest-bearing liabilities 151.6 1438

The above revolving credit facllities are unsecurad. Infarmation about the Group’s exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risks is
shown In note 26.
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27. LOANS AND BORROWINGS CONTINUED

2021 2020
Loans and berrowings (excluding leasas) comprise amounts falling due: £m £m
In one year or less or on demand 14.7 75
In maore than one year but not more than twoe years - 1036
In more than twe years but not more than five years 1099 -

1246 11331
Less: unamortised issue costs (1.3) {0.3)

1233 1128
Current liabilities {13.9) 22)
Non-current liabilities 109.4 1036

At the batance sheet date, the Group's credit facilities comprised a £150m multi-currency revalving credit facility (RCF), @ USD125
million RCF and a USD2C millon bond and guarantee facility. The original term of the facility is for three years with two years remaining
at the balance sheet date. There 1s an option 1o extend the maturity date for a further year before the first and second anniversaries
of the signing date. The first extension has been requested 1o 24 August 2024 and approved by all participating banks, extending the
credit facility by a further 12 months. The facility also includes an uncommitted £100m accordion aption, which can be requested on

a maximum of three occasions over the lifetime of the facility to fund the Group's business development plans.

As part of its interest rate strategy, the Group has entered into interest rate swaps to hedge floating LIBOR rates. As o result, bank loan
and cverdrafts nclude borrowings of £5m fixed at 113%, exciuding applicable bank margin.

28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES
Alease is @ commitment to make a payment in the future, primarily in relation to property, plant and machinery and motor vehicles,

Accounting policies
In accordance with IFRS 16, we recognise as an expense any payments made in respect of short-term leases {those with a term of less
than 12 months) and leases for low-value iterns on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease

For all other leases we recognise a liability at the date at which the leased asset is made available for use, and a corresponding
right-of-use asset is recognised and depreciated over the term of the lease {see note 17},

Lease ligbilities are measured at the present value of the future lease payments, excluding any payments relating to non-lease
components. Future lease payments include fixed payments, iIn-substance fixed payments, and variable lease payments that are
based on anindex or @ rate, less any lease incentives receivable. Lease liabilities also take inta account amounts payable under
residual value guarantees and payments to exercise options, 1o the extent that itis reasonably certain that such payments will
be made. The payments are discounted at the rate implicit in the lease or, where that cannot be measured, at an incremental
borrowing rate.

We remeasure the lease liabllity [and make a corresponding adjustment to the related nght-of-use asset} whenever:

> Thelease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of the exercise of o purchase option, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

> Thelease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
(unless the lease payments change is due to @ change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

> Alease contract is modified, and the lease modification 1s not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using @ revised discount rate,

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the perods presented.

Tha changes in the lease liabilities are as follows:

2021 2020

£m Zm

Balance at the start of the year 311 61
Recognised on the adoption of IFRS 16 - 266
Leases entered nto during the year 104 F1
Leases terminated early (1.0) -
Payments made (12.5) (121)
Interest a8 10
Effect of movements in exchange rates (0.5) 04
Balance at the end of the year 283 11

At 30 June 2021, the Group is committed to £0.1m (2020 £0.1m} for short-term leases
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28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES CONTINUED
The maturity of the obligations under leases are as follows

2021 2520
Em £m
Fy21 - 100
Fy22 9.0 78
FY23 6.8 52
FY24 4.7 32
FY25 2.8 16
FY26 20 12
FY27 1.3 1.2
FY28 0.8 Q7
After FY28 09 az
283 311

Presented as;
Current 9.0 100
Non-current 193 211
283 311

Lease obligaticns denominated in currencies other than Sterling comprnse £15.9m denominated in US Dollars (2020 £18.0m},
£2.7m denominated in Euros (2020: £3.3m) and £3.0m denominated in other currencies (2020: £2.6m).

29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a number of defined contribution and defined beneht pension schemes covering many of its employees.

The principal funds are the Milk Pension Fund ('MPF) and the Dalgety Pension Fund ('DPF'} in the UK, which are defined benefit schemes.
The assets of these funds are held separately from the Group's assets, are administered by trustees and managed professionally.

Accounting policies

Defined contribution pension schemes

A number of our employees are members of defined contribution pension schemes. We charge contributions to the Income Statement
as they become payable under the scheme rules. We show differences between the contributions payable and the amount we have
paid as either accruals or prepayments in the Balance Sheet. Tha schemes’ assats are held separately from the Group's assets.

Defined benefit pension schemes

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes for some of its employees. These schemes are clesed to new members

and to further accrual. We calculate our net obligation separately for each scheme, by estimating the cmount of future benefit that
employees have earned, in return for therr service to date. We discount that benefit to determine its present value and deduct the fair
value of the plan's assets (at bid price). The liability discount rate we use 1s the market yield at the balance sheet date on high-quality
corporate bonds, with terms to maturity approximating cur pensicon liabilities. Qualified actuaries perform the calculations, using the
projected unit method.

We recognise actuarial gains and losses in equity in the period in which they occur, through the Group Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Actuarial gains and losses include the difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets and experience
gains and losses on scheme liakilities.

Genus and the other participating employers are jointly and severally liable for the MPF's cbligations. We account for our section of the
scheme and our share of any orphan assets and fiabilities, and provide for any amounts we believe we will have to pay under our joint
and several iability. The joint and several liability also means we have a contingent liability for the scheme's obligations that we have
not accounted for.

Under the joint and several ligbility, we initiclly recognise any changes in our share of orghan assets and liabilities in the Income
Statement. After this initial recognition, any actuarnial gains and losses on the orphan assets and liabilities are recognised directly
in equity through the Group Statement of Changes in Eguity, in the period in which they occur.

During the year, the DPF defined benefit pension scheme purchased annuities in order to hedge longevity risk for pensioners within the
scheme. As permitted by 1A3 19, the Group has opted to recognise the difference between the fair value of the plan assets and the cost
of the policy as an actuarial loss in Other Compreheansive Income.

We measure the fair value our gqualifying insurance policy assets to be the deemed present value of the related obligation.
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Retirement benefit obligaticns

The financial positions of the defined benefit schemes, as recorded in accordance with 1A% 19 and IFRIC 14, are aggregated for
disclosure purposes. The liability split by principal scheme is set out below.

2021 2020

£m £m

The Milk Pension Fund — Genus’s share 2.2 75
The Dalgety Pension Fund - _
National Pig Development Pension Fund 0.3 07
Post-retirement healthcare 0.6 06
Other unfunded schemes 8.0 23
Overall net pension liability 11.1 181

Overall, we expect to pay £4.1m (2021: £8.0m} in contributions to defined benefit plans in the 2022 financial year.

The defined benefit plans are administered by trustee boards that are legally separated frem the Group. The trustee board of each
pension fund consists of representatives who are employees, former employees or are independent frem the Company, The boards of
the pension funds are required by low to act In the best interest of the plan participants and are responsible for setting certain policies,
such as investment and contribution policies, and for the governance of the fund.

The defined benefit pension schemes expose the Group 1o actuanal risks such as greater than expected longevity of members, iower
than expected return on investments and higher than expected inflation, which may increase the plans' liabilities or reduce the value of
their assets.

UK pensions are regulated by The Pensions Regulator, a non-departmental public body established under the Pensions Act 2004
and sponsored by the Department for Work and Pensions, operating within a legal regulatory framework set by the UK Parliament,
The Pensions Regulator has statutory objectives set out in legislation, which include promoting and improving understanding of the
good administration of work-based pensicns, protecting member benefits and regulating occupaticnal defined benefit and
contribution schemes. The Pensicns Regulator’s statutory objectives and regulatory powers are described on its website at
thepensionsregulatorgov.uk.

Alf defined benefit schemes are registered as an occupational pension plan with HMRC ond are subject to UK legislation and oversight
from The Pensions Regulator. UK legislation requires that pension schemes are funded prudently and valued ot least every three years.
Separate valuations are required for each scheme. Within 15 months of ecch valuation date, the plan trustees and the Group must
agree any contributions required to ensure that the plan is fully funded over time, on a suitably prudent measure.,

Funding plans are individually agreed with the respective trustees for ecch of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes, taking into
account local regulatory requirements.

On 20 Novernber 2020, the High Court ruled that individual transfer payments made since 17 May 1990 would need to be equalised
for the effects of GMP. This jJudgment followed on from the previous judgment on 246 October 2018, where the High Court ruled that
schemes had alegal obligation to pay benefits allowing for GMP equalisation, resulting in an additional liability being recognised.
The previous judgment had not considered histaric transfer values. Genus's pension schemes are aiso affected by this ruling, resulting
in an aggregate past service charge of £2.3m in the period, being £0.9m for the DPF and £1.4m for the MPF,

The Milk Pension Fund (‘MPF’)

The MPF was previously operated by the Milk Marketing Board and was also open to staff working for Milk Marque Ltd [the principal
employer, now known as Community Foods Group Limited), National Milk Records ple, First Milk Ltd, hauliers asscciated to First Milk Ltd,
Dairy Farmers of Britain Ltd (which went into receivership in June 2009} and Milk Link Ltd.

We have accounted for our section of the scheme and our share of any arphan assets and liabilities, which together reprasent
approximately 86% of the MPF {2020: 86%). Althcugh the MPF is managed on @ sectionahsed basis, it is a ‘last man standing scheme’,
which means that all participating employers are jointly and severally liable for cll of the fund's licbilities, With effect from 3¢ June 2013,
Genus's remaining active members ceased accruing benefits in the fund and became deferrec pensioners.

The most recent actuarial triennial valuation of the MPE was at 31 March 2018 and was carried out by qualified actuaries. The valuation
has been agreed by the trustees.

The principal actuarial assumptens adopted in the 2018 valuation were that:

> Investment returns on existing assets would exceed fixed-interest gilt yvields by 1.6% per annurm untl 31 March 2030, then by 0.5% per
annum thereafter;

> Consumer Price index ('CPI'} price inflation is expected to be 0.9% per annum lower than Retail Price Index {'RPI') price inflation; and

> pensions in payment and pensions in deferment would increase in future in line with CPI price inflation, subject to various minimum
and Mmaximum INCredses.

At 31 March 2018, the market velue of the fund's assets was E454m. This representea approximately $5% of the value of the uninsured
liabilities, which were £480m ot that date.
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The deficit in the fund as a whole, by reference to the 31 March 2018 valuation, was £26m (of which Genus's notional share was £22m).
This shortfall is being addressed by additional contributians from the participating employers. Under the trustee prepared schedule of
contributions, Genus is required to make deficit repar contributions of £6.0m per annum commencing 1 April 2018, and rising thereafter
by 3.4% per annum until 30 September 2021, in addition to funding the scheme’s operating expenses.

The disclosures required under 1AS 19 have been calculated by an ingependent actuary, based on accurate calculations carried out as
at 31 March 2018 and updated to 30 June 2021

Genus has assessed its additional pension liability under IFRIC 14 by reference to this schedule of contributions, resulting in an amount
of £42.9m (2020: £22.6m) being recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Dalgety Pension Fund ('DPF)
The most recent actuarial valuation of the DPF was at 31 March 2018 and was carried out by qualified actuaries.

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the 2018 valuation were that:

> investment returns on existing assets would exceed fixed-interest gilt yields by 1.6% per annum until 31 March 2018, then egual the gilt
yield per annum thereafter;

> CP!price inflation is expected to be 0.7% per annum lower than RPI price inflation; and

> pensions in payment and pensions in deferment would increase in future inline with CPI price inflation, subject to varicus minimum
and maximum increases.

The market value of the available assets at 31 March 2018 was £32.9m. The value of those assets represented approximately 109% of
the value of the uninsured liabilities, which were £30.2m at 31 March 2018. Under the funding agreement, the Company will not have to
make deficit repair contributions.

The disclosures required under JAS 19 have been calculated by an independent actuary, based on accurate calculations carried out as
at 31 March 2018 and updaoted to 30 June 2021

As at 30 June 2021 the DPF, which includes a £20.5m separate reserve held against future unknown liabilities materialising, was in an
overall net pension asset position of £8.8m. However, the Company does not have the unilateral right to this surplus and therefore in
line with IFRIC 14, the recognition of this asset is restricted.

In August 2019, the trustees purchased an additional bulk buy-in annuity policy with Legal and General in respect of the remaining
deferred and pensioner members, at a cost of £38m. This reflected a £15m premium over an estimated I1A5 19 lability of £23m, reducing
the restriction on the recognition of assets.

The primary bulk annuity policy was secured with an insurance company in July 1999, which matched the benefit entitlement of almost
all of the fund's current and deferred pension liabilities at that time. The value of the policy and related liabilities at 30 June 2021 was
£654m {2020: £691m). We do not have any legal rights to any surplus relating to these bulk annuity policies.

National Pig Development Company Pension Fund (‘NPD’)

The Group operates a closed defined benefit scheme for a small number of former employees of the National Pig Develocpment
Company Limited. The total market value of scheme assets and liabilities ot 30 June 2021, under the provisions of I1AS 19, were £6.3m
{2020 £6.1m) and £6.6rn (2020: £6.8rm), respectively.

The most recent actuarial triennial valuation of the NPD was at 30 June 2017 and was carried out by qualified actuaries. The valuation
has been agreed by the trustess.

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the 2017 valuation were that:

> investment returns on existing assets would exceed fixed-interest gilt vields by 1.7% per annum;

> CPl price inflation is expected to be 1.0% per annum lower than RPI price inflation; and

> pensions in paymeant and pensions in deferment would increase in future in line with CPI price inflation, subject to various minimum
and MaXImum INCressas,

The market value of the available assets ot 30 June 2017 was £5.2m. The value of those assets represented approximately 78% of the
value of the uninsured liabilities, which were £6.7m at 30 June 2017. Under the trustee prepared schedule of contributions, Genus is
required to make deficit repair contricutions of £253,000 per annum commencing 1 July 2017

The disclosures required under I1AS 19 have been calculated by an independent actuary, based on accurate calculations carried out as
at 30 June 2017 and updated to 30 June 2021

Other unfunded schemes
When the Group acquired Sygen Internatianal pic in 2005, it also acguired three unfunded defined benefit schemes and an unfunded
retirement health benefit plan, which it now operates for the benefit of the previous Group's senior employees and executives.

Unfunded defined benefits schemes

The scheme liabilities for the three unfunded defined bernefit schemes amounted to £6.6m (2020: £8.4m), based on 1AS 19's methods
and assumptions. This amount is included within pension liabilities in the Group Balance Sheet. It also operates several unfunded
defined benefits which amounted to £1.4m (2020: £0.9m). Interest on pension scheme liobilities amounted to £0.2m (2020: £0.2ml. The
disclosures required under 1AS 19 have been calculated by an independent actuary, using the principal assumptions used to calculate
the scheme liabilities as for the defined benefit schemes.
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Post-retirement healthcare

The scheme liabilities for the unfunded retirement health benefit plan amounted to £0.6m (2020: £0.6m), based on IAS 19's methods and
assumptions. This amount 1s included within retirement benefit obligations in the Group Balance Sheet Interest on plan liabilities
amounted to £nil (2020: £nil).

The principal assumptions used to colculate the pian iabiities were that the discount rate would be 1.90% (2020:1.65%) and that the
long-term rate of medical expense inflation would be 6 9% (2020- 6.8%).

Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes

2021 2020

£m £

Present value of funded obligations (includes Genus's 86% share of MPF (2020 84%) 1,0977 11585
Present value of unfunded obligations 89 58
Total present value of obligations 1,106.6 11693
Fair value of plan assets (includes Genus's 86% share of MPF (202C: 86%)} (1147.2) (11825
Restricted recognition of asset (DPF} a8 87
Recognition of additional liability (MPF) 429 226
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 111 181

Each of the defined benefit schemes manages risks through a variety of methods and strategies, including equity protection, to limit

the downside risk of falis in equity markets, as well as inflation and interest rate hedging. By funding its defined benefits schemes, the

Group is exposed 10 the risk that the cost of meeting its obligations is higher than anticipated. This could occur for several reasons, for

example:

> Investrnent returns on the schemes’ assets may be lower than anticipated, especially if falls in asset values are not matched by
similar falls in the value of the schemes' licbilities.

> The level of price inflation may te higher than that assumed, resulting in higher payments from the schemes.

> Scheme members may live longer than assumed, for example due to advances in healthcare. Members may alsc exercise (or not
exercise) options in & way that leads to Increases in the schemes’ labilities, for example through early retirement or commutation of
pension for cash.

> Legislative changes could also ieqd 10 anincrease in the schemes’ liabilities.

Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes
The fair value of the total plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category is as follows:

Lavel1 Levei2 Level 3 2021 tevell Level 2 Level 3 20620

£m £m £m £m £m Em Fm £m

Equities - 58.5 - 585 - 506 - 506
Diversified growth funds 0.2 98.0 - 98.2 02 ?1s - QL7
Liability driven investments - 1168 - 1168 - 145.4 - 1454
Gilts and corporate bonds - 121.1 - 1211 - 1155 - 1155
Cash 146 4.1 - 5.7 146 74 - Q0
Property 39 - 34.4 383 33 - 3346 369
Direct lending - 37 27.4 31.1 - 28 148 176
Bulk annuity policy - - &77.5 &77.5 - - 7146 7146
Cther - - - - 12 - - 12
57 402.2 7393 1,147.2 &3 4132 7630 11825

Note:

Level 1. valued using unadjusted guotad prices In active markets for identical financial instruments.

Level 2: valued using technigues based on information that can be obtained from observable market dato.
Leve! 3 valued using technigues incorporating information other than cbservable market data.
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Movement in the liability for defined benefit obligations

2021 2020
£m £r
Liabkility for defined benefit oligations at the start of the year (including the bulk annuity policy (DPF) 1,169.3 11795
Benefits paid by the plans (57.8) (58.1)
Current service costs and interest 188 271
Actuarial gains recognised on fund liabilities arising from changes in demographic assumptions {2.7) (230}
Actuariai {gains)/losses recognised on fund licbilities arsing from changes in inancicl assumptions (22.4) 85.4
Actuarial gains recognised on fund liabilities arising from experience {other) 09 {41.5)
Reclassified from accruals 0.7 -
Pust service cost 2.3 -
Exchange rate adjustment {07 {01}
Liability for defined benefit obligations at the end of year 1,106.6 31,1693
Movement in plan assets
2021 2020
£m m
Fair value of plan assets at the start of the year (including the bulk annuity policy [DPFR 11825 12011
Administration expenseas (0.4) {0.5)
Reclassified from accruals 0.3 -
Contributions paid into the plans 7.4 84
Benefits paid by the plans (57.8) {581)
Interest income on plan assets 182 273
Actuarial {losses)/gains recognised in eguity (3.7) 43
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,147.2 11825
Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes
Summary of movements in Group deficit during the year
2021 2070
£m Em
Deficit in schemeas at the start of the year (18.1) (24.2)
Administration expenses {0.4) (05}
Exceptional cost of GMP equalisation (2.3} -
Reclassified frem accruals {0.4} -
Contributions paid into the plans 1.4 8.4
Net pension finance cost (0.3 (0.2}
Actuanal gains/{losses) recognised during the year 223 (16.6)
Movement in restriction of assets (0.1} 104
{Recognition)/release of additional liability (19.9) 47
Exchange rate adjustrment 0.7 01
Deficit in schemes at the end of the year (11.1} {181}
Amounts recagnised in the Group Income Statement
2021 2020
£m £m
Administrative expenses 0.4 05
Interest obligation 18.8 271
Interest income on plan assets {189} (27.3}
Interest on additional liability 0.4 046
Exceptional cost of GMP equalisation 2.3 -
3.0 02
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The expense is recognised in the following line items in the Group Income Statement

207 2020
£m Em
Administrative expensas 0.4 a5
Exceptional cost of GMP eguclisation 23 -
Net inance charge 0.3 Q4
3.0 09
Actuarial fosses/(gains} recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
2021 2020
£m £m
Cumulative loss at the start of the vear 63.3 619
Actuarial {gains)/losses recognised during the year {22.3) 1646
Movement in restriction of assets 0.1 {10.4}
Recognition/{release] of additicnal iobility 199 (47
Exchange rate adjustment 0.7 o1
Cumulative loss at the end of the year 60.3 633
Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis
Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averoges) are:
2021 2020
Digcount rate 1.90% 1.65%
Consumer Price Index 2.10% 2.10%
Retail Price Index 2.85% 2.80%

The maortality assumptions used are consistent with those recommended by the schemes’ actuaries and reflect the latest available
tables, adjusted for the experience of the scheme where appropriate. For 2021, the mortality tables used are 97% of the 52NA tables,
with birth year and 2021 CMI projections with a smoothing parameter of Sk = 7.0, subject to a long-term rate of improvement of 1.25% for
mates and fermales and 2019 the mortality tables used are 97% of the SZNA tables, with birth year and 2019 CMI prejections with a
smoothing parameter of Sk = 7.0, subject to a long-term rate of improverment of 1.25% for males and females.

Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes
The following table shows the assumptions used for all schemes and illustrates the life expectancy of an average member retiring at
age 45 at the balance sheet date and a member reaching age 65 in 20 years' time

2021 2020
Years Years
Retiring at balance sheet date at age 45 Male 220 220
Femdale 24.4 243
Retiring at age 65 in 20 years' timg Male 23.3 233
Female 259 258

Duration of benefit obligations
2021 2020
Years vears
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations 138 139
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations, 171 171

excluding defined benefit obligations backed by purchased annuities

Sensitivity analysis

Measurement of the Group's defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in certain key assumptions. The sensitivity analysis below
shows how a reasonably pessible increase or decrease in a particuiar dssumption would, inisclation, result in an increase or decregse
in the present value of the defined benefit chiigation as at 30 June 2021, We have included additicnal sensitivity analysis, which
excludes the value of our defined benefit cbligations backed by purchased annuities, as the asset value is the deemed present value
of obligations, with no movement to the overall scheme deficits. Given recent market volatiity due to the impact of COVID-19, we
continue to use g sensitivity analysis of 0.5%.

Dise_eunt rate Rate of inflation Life expectancy
Decrease increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
by 0.5% by 0.5% by 0.5% by 0.5% by 1yaar by 1year
Em £m £m £m Em Em
Increase/(decrease) in present vaiue of defined ciligation 887 {84.3) {60.0) 688 (L) LLb
£xcluding purchased annuity obligations 344 {(32.7) (232 2467 (17.3) 173

increase/{decrease) In present value of defined obligation

The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation, as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would occur inisclation from one another.
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The sensitivities assume the funds’ assets remain unchanged. However, in practice changes in interest rates and inflation will alse affect
the value of the funds’ assets. The funds' investment strategy 1s to hold matching assets with values that move in ling with the liabilities
of the fund, to protect against changes in interest rates and inflation.

This sensitivity analysis has been prepared using the same method adopted when adjusting results of the latest funding valuation to
the balance sheet date. This is the same approach adopted in previous periods.

The history of experience adjustment is as follows:

20N 2020 2019 2618 2017

£m £ £m £ £mn

Present value of the defined benefit obligation 1,106.6 11693 1,1795 10047 1,141.2
Fair value of plon ossets (L147.2) (11825 (12011} (1,1223) (1,126.7)
Restrict recognition of asset and recognition of additional liability 517 313 458 685 261
Deficit in the plans 111 181 242 339 409
Experience adjustments ansing on pian liabilities (%) 21 18 48 27 27
Experience adjustments arising on plan assets (%} 2.4 16 25 10 28

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

We have a number of share plans used to award shares to Directors and senior management as part of their remuneration. Ta record
the cost of these, a charge is recagnised over the vesting penod in the Group Income Statement, based on the fair value of the award
on the date of grant.

Accounting policies

We recognise the fair value of share awards and options granted as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity.
We measure the fair value at the grant date and spread it over the vesting period of each option. We use a binomial valuation model
to measure the fair value of options and a Black-Scholes valuation mode! to measure the fair value of share awards. We adjust the
amount we recognise as an expense, to reflect the estimated performance against non-market related conditions and the number of
share awards and options that actually vest at the end of the vesting period.

The Group recognised a total share-based payment expense of £7.7m (2020: £5.8m), including National Insurance contributions of
£1.2m (2020: £1.0m).

Share awards

There wera 665,522 conditional share awards outstanding at 30 June 2021, These conditiondl shares were awarded to Executive
Directors and senior management under the 2014 Performance Share Plan on 20 November 2014, 14 September 2015, 14 September
2016, 13 September 2017, ¢ October 2018, 11 Septermber 2009, 7 April 2020 and 14 Septemiber 2020. In accordance with the plan's terms,
participants have received a condimonal annual award of shares or nil cost option awards, which will normally vest after three years,
with the proportion of the award vesting depending on growth in the Group’s adjusted earnings per share. Further details of the plan's
performance conditions are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Durmg the year ended 30 June 2021
185,386 awards were granted on 14 September 2020, with an aggregate fair value of £7139,000. The fair value of services received
in return for share awards granted is based on the fair value of share awards granted, measured using a Black-Scholes valuation
model. At the date of grant, the fair value of a share awarded was £38.51, based on an expectad dividend yield of 0.20%.

> §,219 awards in total were granted on 8 September 2020, 5 Cctober 2020, 12 October 2020, 25 Fenruary 202113 Apnl 2021 and
19 April 2021, with an aggregate fair value of £287.000. The fair value of services received in return for share awards granted is based
on the fair value of share awards granted, measured using a Black-Scheles valuation model. At the date of grant, the aggregate
fair vatue of a share awarded was £446.15, based on an expected dividend yield of 0.76%.

Number of Numoer of

awards awards

2021 2020

Outstanding at the start of year 770,690 933,772
Exercised during the year {193,601) (203438}
Farfeited during the year (103,172) (210326
Granted during the year 191,605 250,682
Qutstanding at 30 June 665,522 770,690
Exercisable at 30 June 9108 14,694

Bonus and restricted stock share awards

In addition to the outstanding share awards above, there were 72,466 bonus and restricted stock share awards outstanding at 30 June
2021. The bonus shares were awarded to Executive Directors and senior management as part of the compulsory deferred bonus, and
restricted stock share awards were granted to senior management in connection with recruitment. In accordance with the awards’
terms, participants have received a conditional annual bonus award of shares or nil cost option awards, which will normally vest
between one and three years after award, previding the participant 1s employed by the Group at that time.

In the year ended 30 Jurne 2021, 22,383 bonus share awards were granted on 14 September 2020, with an aggregate fair value of £862 000.



156 GENUS PLC / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED .
For the year ended 30 June 2021

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

Numbar of Numbe- of

awards awards

2021 2020

Qutstanding at the start of year 84,061 138,633
Exercised during the year (32,654) {33,269}
Forfeited during the year (1,324) {42041)
Granted during the year 22,383 20,738
Outstanding at 30 June 72,466 84,061

Exercisable at 30 June - -

Share options

On 12 August 2004, the Group established a share option pragramme that entities key management and other senior employees to
purchase shares in the Company. Further grants on sirmilar terms were offered to these employee groups as set out below. The terms
and conditions of the grants are as set out below. All options are to be settled by physical delivery of shares and meet the criteria for
being treated as equity settled.

Employees entitled Grantdate Numoper of instruments  Vesting conditions Option exercise pace  Cortractual [fe of ootions
2004 Company share plan G September 2011 3,398 Exercisable 97783p 10 years
2004 Company share plan 7 September 2012 15,245 Exercisable 1,33400p 10vyears
2004 Company share plan 26 September 2013 139290 Exercisable 141300p 10vyears
Total share options 32633

Share options
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

Weighted Weighted

average average
exarcise Number of BRErS e Number of
price options price cptians
2021 2021 2020 2020
Qutstanding at the start of year 1173p 67,131 1137p 120688
Forfeited during the year 9i5p (9.489) - -
Share appreciation rights effected during the year 1,059p (5,134) 1,184p {14,451)
Exercised durng the year 981p (19.875) 1.021p {37.066)
QOutstanding at 30 June 1,331p 32,633 1173p 67,131
Exercisable at 30 June 1.331p 32,633 1173p 67,131

The options at 30 June 2021 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.6 years (2020: 2.0 yearsh. No share options were
granted during the year {2020 nill. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise during the year was £44,73p(2020: £31.34p),

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital s the nurnber of shares in issue at their par valug. A number of shares were issued in the year, in relation the
employee share schemes.

Accounting policies
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the amounts of the proceeds received, net of direct issuance costs.

Own shares

We include the transactions, assets and licbilities of the Group-sponsored Qualifying Employee Share Cwnership Trust ({QUEST) in the
Group Financial Statements. In particular, the trust's purchases of the Company's shares are deducted from shareholders’ funds until
they vest unconditionally with employees.

Share capital

2021 2020 2021 202C
Number NuTber £m £r

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 10 pence 65,761,500 65091625 6.6 45

There 15 no authorised share capital imit.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receve dividends, as declared from time to time.

The movement in share capital for the penod was as follows:

2021 23520 200 2026

Number NL~Der £m L
Issued under the Executive Share Option Plan 19,875 7086 - -
Issued to Employee Benefit Trust 650,000 - 0.1 -

669,875 37066 0.1 -
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Shares issued under the Executive Share Option Plan were issued at option prices as follows:

2021 2021 2020 2020
Number Price Number Price
Executive Share Option Plan - - 6097 65450p
5,599 729.83p @213 72983p
9,032 977.83p 7175 @7783p
1,738 1334.00p 6,209  133400p
2,506 1413.00p 8372 141300p
19,875 37066

Reserve for own shares

The Company's shares are held by a QUEST, which is an employee benefit trust established to facilitate the operation of our long-term
incentive scheme for senior management. The reserve amount represents the deduction in arriving at shareholders’ funds for the
consideration the trust paid for the Company’s shares, which had not vested unconditionally at the balance sheet date. The number
and market value of the ordinary shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust and the QUEST were:

20 2020 20 2020

Numbkar Number £m Em

Shares allocated but not vested 509,269 75184 25.2 24
Unallocated shares 92,334 P2.334 4.6 33

601,603 167518 208 59

The shares have a nominal value of £60.160 (2020 £16,752).

Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from translating the financial statements of our foreign operations.

The Group uses foreign currency denominated borrowings of £10.7m (2020: £6.8m) as a hedge against the translation exposure

on the Group's net investment in overseas companies. Where the hedge is fully effective at hedging the variability in the net assets

of such companies caused by changes in exchange rates, the changes in value of the borowings are recognised in the Consclidated
Staterment of Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the hedging and translation reserves. The ineffective part of any change in
value caused by changes in exchange rates is recognised in the Consolidated Income Staterment.

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments,
net of taxation.

Hedging and translation reserves
Hedging Translation
1eserve reserve

£m £m
Balance at 30 June 2019 02 358
Exchange differences on translation of overseas operations - (&8}
Gain recognised on net investment hedges - 0.1)
Gain recognised on cash flow hedges — interest rate swaps {eFA] -
income tax related to net gains recognised in other comprehensive income - (L4}
Balance at 30 June 2020 02} 295
Exchonge differences on translation of overseos operations - (45.4)
Loss recognised on net investmeant hedges - Q.4
Loss recognised on cash flow hedges — interest rate swaps 0.2 -
Income tax related to net losses recognised in other comprehensive income - 7.6

Balance at 30 June 2021 - (79)
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32. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

{restated)’
200 2020
Em Emn
Profit for the year 468 357
Adjustment for:
Net IAS 41 valuation mavement on biclegical assets 108 (15.8)
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets T4 85
Share-based payment expense 7 58
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates (13.1) 83
Finance costs (net) 5.0 50
Incorna tax expense 20 106
Exceptional items 3.3 192
Adjusted operating profit from continuing cperations 769 601
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 240 240
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment 0.4 37
Loss on disposal of intangible assets Q.5 12
Amortisgtion and impairment of intangible assets 3.7 4t
Adjusted earings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 108.5 936
Cosh impact of exceptional items (3.0 (5.8)
Qther movements in biological assets and harvestad produce (12.8) (29)
Decrease in provisions ana release in deferred consideration (0.4) (2.2}
Additional pension contributions in excess of pension charge {7.0) (79}
Other {1.3} (0%}
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 8l1.0 739
{increasel/decrease in inventories (1.3) 01
Increase In receivables {11.0) (8.8)
Increase in payables 179 120
Cash generated by operations B6.6 772
Interest received 0.4 03
Interest and ather finance casts paid (2.8} [34)
Interest on leased assets {(0.8) (10}
Cash flow from dernvative iinancial instruments 0.2 05
Income taxes paid {16.1) {13.5)
Net ¢ash from operating activities &67.5 601
1 See ~ote Z for detars of the pr or pencd restatenent
Analysis of net debt
Total changes in liabilities due to financing activities are as follows:
Cther
A1 July Net Fareign nen-cash At 30 June
2020 cash flows exchange movements 2021
£r £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 22) 413 6.6 (1.9} - 46.0
Interest-bearing loans — current (see note 27) @2 (&.4) 0.6 (0.9} {13.9)
Lease ligbilities - current [see note 28) {1001 117 0.2 {109} (2.0}
{(192) 7.3 0.8 {11.8) (229}
Interest-nearing logns — non-current (see note 27) 11036) (12.7) 69 - [109.4)
Lease ligbilities - non-currer (see note 28) {21.1) - 0.3 1.5 (19.3)
(1247) (12.7) 7.2 15 (128.7)
Total debt financing 11439) (5.4) 8.0 (10.3) {151.6)
Net debt (102.6) 1.2 6.1 {10.3) {105.6)

Included within nan-cash mavements is £9.4m in relation to net new leases and £E09m in the unwinding of debt issue costs.
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33. OPERATING LEASES

Accounting policies

For short-term leases (those with a term of less than 12 months) and low-value items, we charge the rentals payable to the Income
Statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company has elected not to apply IFRS 16 to contracts where the nght-of-use asset would be recognised as an intangible asset
(e.g. software licences).

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-canceliable operating leases which expire:

2021 2020

£m Erm

In less than one year 0.8 08B
Between cne and five years - 08
I maore than five years - -
0.8 16

34, CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
At 30 June 2027, outstanding contracted capital expenditure amounted to £1.2m and related to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment {2020 £13 2m),

35. CONTINGENCIES AND BANK GUARANTEES
Contingent lichilities are potenticl future cash outflows, where the likelihood of paymaents is considered mare than remote but 1s not
considered probable or cannct be measured reliably. Assessing the amount of liabilities that are not probable is highly judgemental.

The retirement benefit obligations referred to in note 29 include obligations relating to the MPF defined benefit scheme. Genus,
together with other participating employers, is joint and severally liable for the scheme's obligations. Genus has occounted for its
section and its share of any orphan assets and liabiiities, collectively representing approximately 86% {2020: 86%) of the MPF. As a
result of the joint and several ligbility, Genus has o contingent liability for the scheme's obligations that it has not accounted for,
The total deficit of the MPF from the most recent triennial valuation can be found in note 29.

The Group has widespread global cperations and 15 consequently a defendant in many legal, tax and customs proceedings incidentat
to those operations. In addition, there are contingent licbilities arising in the normal course of business in respect of indemnities,
warranties and guarantees. These contingent liakllities are not considered to be unusual in the context of the normal operating
actvities of the Group. Provisions have been recognised in accordance with the Group accounting pelicies where required. None

of these claims are expected to result in a material gain or loss to the Group.

As described in note 7, the Group 1s involved in ongoing litigation proceedings and investigations with ST that are at various legal
stages. The Group makes a provision for amounts to the extent where an outflow of economic benefit is probakle and can be reliably
estimated. However, there are specific claims identified in the litigation which the Group considers the outcome of the claim is not
probable and will not result in the outflow of economic benefit.

The Group's futura tax charge and effective tax rate could be affected by factors such as countries reforming their tax legislation
to implement the OECD's BEPS recommendations and by European Commission initiatives including state aid investigations.
Further information can be found in note 11.

At 30 June 2021, we had entered into bank guarantees totalling £191m (2020: £59m).

36. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

In accordance with |AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures’, key management personnel are those having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controliing the activities of the Groug, directly or indirectly. Key management personnel comprise the Directors
and the other members of the Executive Mancagement Committee.

2021 2020
£m Emr
Salaries and short-term employee benefits 8.0 72
Post-employment benefits 0.2 03
Share-based payment expense 4.1 20
12.3 @5

Directors
Further details of Directors' compensation are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Other transactions with key management personnel
Other than remuneration, there were no transactions with key management personnal.
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37. GROUP ENTITIES

In accerdance with section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a list of subsidianes and joint ventures and Qssociates as ot
30 June 2021is set out below. All subsidiary undertakings are subsidiary undertakings of their immediate parent undertaking(s),

unless otherwise indicated.

Nature of business

Bovine
% of share
eapital/
Dirget/ vating rights.
Indirect held by
Country of Group Group
Name of undertaking Registered oddrass incorporation interast Share class companies
ABS Argenting S.A, A, Castellanos 1169, (3080] Esperanza, Sante Fe, Argentina Direct  ARS1 Ordlinary 100%
Argentina
ABS Chile Limitado Avenido del Parque #4161 office #60), Huschuraba, Chile Direct CLP1 Common 100%
Sdﬂt\OgO Ch\le Stock
ABS Genetics South Africa tPty) Prestige Park Biock B, Unit No SB Pastorale Street South Africa Indirect  ZAR1 Ordinary 100%
Ltd Durbanville Industrial Park, Durbanville, 7550, South
Afrwo
ABS Global (Canadal Inc. TSZS Floradale Roc:d Elmira ON NSB 221, Comudo Canada indirect CACL Ordinary 100%
ABS Global, Inc. 1525 vaer Road, De Farest Wi 53532 United Stc\tes United States Indirect USD0.01 100%
Common
ABS Itoilic Srl. Via Bastida nr. 6, ioc. Cavatigozzi, 26020, Cremona, Italy Indirect €1 Quota 100%
Italy
ABS México, S.A. de CV. Kansas No. 2028, Quintas Campestre, 31214, Mexico Direct MXN1OClass 1 100%
Chihuchua, Chih., Mexico MXNlO CIossZ
ABS Polska Sp.z o Szafirowa 224, B2-300 Gronowo Gorme, Poland Poland Indlirect PLNI1, OOO 100%
Ordmcly
ABS Progen ireland Unlimited  Suite 6, Rineanna House, Shannon Free Zoneg, Co. Ireland Indirect £0001 100%
Company Clore Ire\ond Ordinary
Bovec SASU 49 Chemm des Molweres 69210 Lenti\ly, Frcmce France \ndwect €10 Ordinary lOO/
Chitale Genus ABS {Indic) Amcr Neptune, Ofﬁce No.&06, off Baner Road, S. India Lndurect INR10OO 50%
Private Limited No.&/ 1/, Vilkage Baner, Tal. Havel, Pune, Oedinary
Maharashtra, Inda
De Nova Genetics LLC 1286 Onole Drive, New Aloin 1A 52160, United States United States Indirect No Par Value 51%
LLE Units
Genus ABS Colombio SAS Avenida Carrera 70, No. 105 - 51, Bogota, Colombia Colombia Inclirect COP10000 100%
Crdinary
Genus Australia Pty Ltd 15 Scholar drive, Bundoora VIC 3063, Australia Australic Indirect ALID1.388 100%
Crddinary
Genus (Beijing) Intermnational B1508, Lucky Tower, Easts 3rd Ring Road, Chaoyang China Indirect No Par value 100%
Trade Co., Lid. District, Beijing, 100027, China Common Stock
Genus Breeding India Private  Amar Neptune, Office No.406, off Baner Road, 5. India Indirect  INR1 Qrainciry 100%
Limited No.&/ 11, wilage Baner, Tal, Haveli, Pune,
MGhOrOShtro india
Genus Breeding Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Bosmgstoke Hampshire, UK Direct £1 Crdinary 100%
t0ﬂ<720373 RG21 40Z, United Kingdom
Genus Ukraine’ LLC Pidhsna str., 1, KYIV 03164, Ukrane Ukrame Indirect No Par Value 100%
Commaon 5tock
Inimex Genetics Limited Matnx House, Basing View. Basingstoke, Harmpshire, UK Indirect £1 Ordinary 100%
RG21 4DZ, United Kingdom
In Vitro Brasil Méxica, S.A. Ploza Comercial Punto Colonngs, Boulevard Mexico Inedwact  MXNL Ordinary 9%
cde CV. Independencia #746, Intericr 6, CP. 27140, Cidade
Torreon - Estado, Coohuuro Memco
LLC Genus ABS Rus Zhe\eznodorozhncya Street House 51 Lettar Znh, Russia Indirect  RUBL Crdinary 100%
Prermses 2, 300062, Tulg, Russion Federation
Pecplan AB:) Imp. e Exp. Lido,  Rod BR 050 Km 196 - 50metros, Zora Ry-al, Dela, Brazl Indirect  BRLL QOrdinary 100%
MG - 38108 000, Brazwl
St Jacobs Animal Breeding 1525 Rlver Road, De Forest Wi 53532 United Stotes Umited States Indirect  Na Par Value 100%
Corp Common
Zitery S.A. Maamo Tajes 7189, Uruguay Uruguay Indirect No Par Value 100%

Common
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37. GROUP ENTITIES CONTINUED

Nature of business
Porcine

Direct/

161

% of share
eapltal/voting

indirect rights held by
Country of Group Group
Name of undertaking Registered address incorporation interest Share class campanies
Agroceres PIC Genética de Rua 1JN, 0’1417, Sala 16 — Jardim Novo, Rio Clare/SP Braoizil Incirect BRL1 Ordinary L9%
Sumos Ltda - CER13. 502 7M Brozn
Agroceres PIC Sumos Ltdc: Rua 1JN, n° Mﬂ SO|O T/’ Jordlm Novo, Rio ClGro/SP Brazil Indirect BRLL Crdinary 49%
- CEP, 13.502 -74, Brazil
Avlscenter Mellevang A/S Mrlleve] 3, 4670 Holstod, Denmark Cerimark Indirect DKK 1 L%~
Ordmory
GENEETIC Serwce S R. L Vlole Europc 71 32100 BeHuno Ito\y !to\y \nd\rect €l Ordinary 33%:
HY- CO Hybndschweme— Tegelberg 19 - 21, 24576 Bad Bromstedt Germony Germony Indlirect  No Par Value 50%:
Cooperct\ons SmbH Common
Inner Mongolia Hooxwong Pig  Jintang Village, Jinding Town, Zhidan County, Ching Indirect  No Par Value 49%!
Breedlng Co. Ltd ch An Mumcwpo\:ty Shaanx Provmce China Commaon
PIC (Shanghai) Agncu\ture Room 702-5, No, 719 Shen Gun Road, Min Hang Ching Indirect  No Par Value 100%
Science and Technology District, Shangha, Ching Commaon
Company Limited
PIC (Zhangjagang) Pig Office 1210, Lnternottono\ Fmonce Tower, 20 ngong Ching Inclirect Usol 100%
Improvement Co, Ltd. Road, Zhangjiagang Bonded Zone, Zhangjiagang Ordinary
C\ty Jlar\gsu Province, Chmc
PIC Andina SpA Avenida del Parque #4161 ofﬁce #601 Huechuraba, Chile Indirect CLP1 100%
Santicge, Ch\\e Crdinary
PIC Canada Ltd. Borden Ladner Gel’VGIS LLP 1900-520, 3rd Avenuej Canada Indirect CADL 100%
SW., Colgczry Alberta T2P ORS Canodc Ordmcry
PIC France SA 69 Chemm des Moheres 69210 Lentlﬂy Frcnce France \no‘lrect €l7 Ordmcry 100%
PIC Genetics Designated Riverside One, Slr John Rogerson's Quay, Dub\m 2, Ireland Indiract €1 27 Orchingary 100%
Activity Campany Irefand €127
Redesmable
preference
shares
PIC Genetics LLC 79 Narodnyy Boulevard, 308000, Belgored, Russia Indirect RUBL Ordinary 100%
Russmn Federcmon
Pig \mprovement Cormpany de Wencesloo de la Barguera No 7, Col. Villas de\ Sur, Maxico Indirect Mo Paor Value 100%
México, S. de RL. de CV 76040 Queretaro, Queretaro, Mexico Common
Stock
PIG Improvement Company Jathostrafte Tla, D-30183 Hannover, Germany Germany Indirect  No Par Value 100%
Deutschland GmbH Common
Stock
Pig Improvement Company C/Pau Vilo, 22 2% puerta &, 08174 Sant Cugat del Spain Indirect €25 Ordmory 100%
Espafia, 5.4, VGHes Borcelom Spcm
Pig \mprovement Compony UK Motnx House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hompsh\re UK Indirect E£0.10 Ordinary 100%
Limited (00716304} RG214DZ, United Kingdom
PIC Italia Sl Strada der Loggi 22, 06135, Ponta Son G!Ovonm Italy Indirect €1 Ordinary 85%
Perugia, Italy
PIC Philippines, Inc. Urit 2101/2102, QTst Floor Jollwbee Plaza, F. Ortlgos Jr Philippines Indirect PHP100 100%
Rd., Ortwgos Center Pc15|g City, 1605, Dhmppmes Ordinary
PIC USA, Inc. 100 BlueGrass Commons Blvd, Suite 2200, United States Indirect Uspl 100%
Hendersonwi!e TN 37075 United States Orckinary
RenOVAte Biosciences, Inc. 3500 South Dupont nghway Cover, Delowcre 19901 United States Direct usbooo 33%*
United States Serigs Seed
Preferred
Reprodutores PIC, Lda Av Eng. Duarte Pacheo, Amareiras, Torre 2 - 1494, Portugal Indirect No Par Value 100%
1070-102 Lisboa, Portugal Common
Stock
Societd Agricola GENEETIC  via Marche n. 2, 42122, Reggion Emilia, Italy Italy Indirect €1 Ordinary 33%!

S.RL
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37. GROUP ENTITIES CONTINUED
Nature of business

Potcine % of share
Direct/ capital/vating
indirect rights held by

Country of Group Group

Name of undertaking Registered address incorporation interest Share class companies

Shaanxi PIC Pig Improvement 12105, 21st floor, Yun tian Building, 12 Feng Cheng China Indirect  No Paor Value 100%

Co, Ltd. Second Street, Xian Economic Developrment Distrnict, Common

Xian Ctty Shoanxr Prownce China Stock

Yan'an Xinyongxiang Jintang leloge Jianjun Town Zhidan Coumy Yan An China Indirect  No Por Value 49%!

Agncuiture Technology Municipahity, in Shaanx Province, China Common

Ca., Ltd. Stock

Nature of business

Other

% of share

Direct/ capital/voting

indirect rights held by

Country of Group Group

Name of undertaking Registered addrass incorporation interest Share class componles

Accounting & Managerial Kansas No. 2028, Guintas Campestre, 31214, Meaxico indirect  MXN1 Class 1 S6%,

Serv:ces S deRl deCV thuahuo Chih, Mexu:o

ABS mrernotmnol Inc. 1525 River Road, De Forest Wi 53532 Umted Stotes United States indirect uspl 100%

Ordinary
ABS Pecplan Ltda. Rod. BR OSO Km 196 + 150metros Zona Rural, Deltg, Brazil Direct BRL1 Ordinary 100%
MG ~ 38108- OOO Brazil
Agence Spillers NV. Ploce SGmt—LGmbert 14,1200 Woluwe - So\nt Lombert Belgium Indirect  Na Par Value 100%
Belgium Common
Stock

Braziian Holdings Limited Matnx House, qumg View, Bc:smgstoke Hcmpshl{e UK Indirect £1 Qrdinary 100%

(OOA?QOAB) RG21 407, United Kingdlom

Braziian Propemes Limlted Motr\x House, Bosmg View, chsmgstoke Hampshire, UK Direct E1l Ordinary 100%

RG214DZ, United ngdor‘n
Busby Participagdes Ltda, Av. Leopo\dmo de Oliveirg, 4113, Solc 303, Centro Brazil Indirect  BRL1 Ordinary 100%
CEP: 38010 a18.08 UBERABA MG

Cannavarro Participagoes Ay, Leopo\dlno de Ollvem 4M3, Solo 303 Centro, Brazil indirect BRL1 Ordinary 100%

Ltdo CEP: 38010 -000, UBERABA-MG

Dm\co Exportodoro Ltda. Av Lecpo\dmo de Ohvem 4113 Sala 303 Uberaba, Brazil Indirect BRL1 Qrdingry J.OOns

Minas Gerais, CEP 38010-000, Brozil
Daolgety Pension Trust Limited  Motnx House, Bosing View, Basingstoke, Hampshirg, UK indirect E1 Ordinary 100%
RGQW 4Dz7, Umted ngdom
Fyfield (SM} Limited (G1026475) Motnx House, Basmng View, Bc:lsmgstoke Hompshire, UK indirect L1 Orcddinary 100%
RG21 ADZ Urited ngdom
Fyfield Dormant Matrix House Basing View, Basingstoke, Hompshlre UK Indirect £1 Ordinary 100%
RG214DZ, Unned ngdom
Fyfield Holland B v Matrix House Basing View, Basingstoke, Hompshire Netherlands Indirect NLG100 100%
RGEW 404, Unlted ngdom Qrdinary
Fyfield [relond Limited One Spencer Dock North WO” Guay, Dublin 1, Ireland Ireland Indirect €125°A 100%
Ordinary
€125 'B
Crdinary
Genus Investments Limited Matnx House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Direct £1 Ordinary 100%
{020285717)¢ RG21 407, United Kingdom
Genus Quest Trustees Limited  Matrix House, Basing View, Bosmgstoke Hampsh\re, UK Direct £1 Crainary 100%
RG21 402, Un|ted ngdom

Genus R&D., Inc. Corporctmn Serv ice Company, 251 tht\e Falls Drive,  United States Indirect ussool 100%
Wilmuington DE 19808, Unitea States Comman

Genus Trustees Limited Matnx House, Basing View, Basingstoke Hampshire, [SL3 Direct £1 Crdinary 100%
RGZ1 5DZ Umted ngdom

GILFinance S.art 21 Avenue dela Faencenea, L - 7511 Luxembourg Luxemtourg Indirect USDl 100%

Ordinary
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Nature of business
Other
% of share
Direct/ capital/veting
indirect rights held by
Country of Group Group
Name of undartaking Registered address incorperation interest Share class companies
PIC {UK]) Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect E1 Ordinary 100%
RG21 407, Umted Klngdom
PIC Do Brasil Empreendlmentos Ruc 1IN, no. 1411, Sata 13, Jardim Novo, Rio Claro, Bragzil Indirect BRLOOL 100%
& Participacdes Ltda. Estado De Soo Pauio, CEP 13.502.741, Brazil Crdinary
FIC Fyfield Limited (ONM19739) Matrix Houfc B(].:Iﬂq Vigw, Busingsloke, Hc:lmpsmre UK Indirect E1 Crdmary 100%
RG214D7, Umted Klngc!om
PIC Serwcms Agropecuor\os Wences\ao de la Barquera No.7, Col. Villas del Sur, Mexico Indirect MXNL1,000 100%
S A de CV 76040 Queretaro Queretaro, Memco Ordinary
P:g Improvement Company Matrix House, Bosmg View, Bosmgstoke Hcmpshlre UK Indirect E£1 Ordinary 100%
Overseas Limited {00716304)4 RGZ] ADZ Unitect Kingdom
Pigtales Limited Matrix House Basing View, Bosmgstoke Hampshire, UK Indlirect El Qrdinary 100%
RG21 ADZ Umted K|ngdom
Premium Gemet\cs Unlmmted Suite 6, Rmecnnc House, Shcmnon Free Zone, Co Ireland Incirect €0001 100%
Cormpany Clore \relond Crdinary
Promar International Limited  Matnx House Basing Vlew Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Dhrect F1 Crdinary 100%
[03004542)2 RG2 ADZ Umted K|ngdom
Skoglunc Pcrt\cwpogoes Ltda,  Av Leopo\dmo de Olveira, 4.113, 50\0 303 Cemtro Braizil Incirect BRL1 Ordinary 100%
CEP 38010 000, UBERABA MG
Spillers Limited Matrx House Basing View, Boswngstoke Hcmpsmre UK Indirect £0.25 Ordinary 100%
RG21402, Umted ngdom
Spillers Oversecs Limited Martrix House Bcsmg View, Bosmgstoke Hampshure, UK Indirect £0.25 Ordinary 100%
00069723 RGQT 407, Umted ngdom
Sygen, Inc. 100 BlueGrass Commons Blvd, Suite 2200, United States Indirect Usbl 100%
Hendersomwl\e TN 37075 Unlted Stotes Common
Sygen lnterncmono\ L\mlted Matrix House, Bosmg View, Basingstoke, Hompshwe United Direct £0.10 Ordinary 100%
(03215874 RGZW 407, Umted ngdom Kingdaom
Sygen Investimentos Ltda. Av. Leopoldino de Cliveira, 4113 - Sala 303 Uberobo Brazit Inclirect BRLOA3 100%
Minas Gerals CEP 38010~ OOO Brozn Ordinary
Lisicafé SA c/o Cabinet Mayor, avocats, Rue Jecn Gcbrle\ Switzerland Incirect CHF1,000 100%
Eynord &, WZOS Geneve Ordinary
Xelect lelted Horzen House Abbey Walk, St Andrews, Fife, UK Indirect £00C1 9%
Scotland, KY16 9LB QOrdincry

1 Associoted undertaxings including jo nt venture interests

2 JKsuwosidianes tuking advantage of the oudit exemptior within section 47%A of the Companies Act 2006
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38. DEFERRED CONSIDERATION

Accounting policies

We recognise deferred consideration on the Balance Sheet when a business combination contains o contractual clause that defers

o portion of the purchase price. When the consideration transferred by the Group in o business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration 1s measyured at its acquisition date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a busingss combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurerment penod adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additicnal information obtained during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

Subsequent contingent consideration fair value remeasurements that do not gualify as measurement period adjustments are
recognised in the Income Statement.

Contingent deferred consideration 1s measured at fair value and the valuation basis is Level 3 classification, where fair value
techniques use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

Contingent
defarred Deferred

cansideration  consideration Total

Em £€m Em

Balance at 1 July 2019 - 6.2 62

Reclassified from provisions {see note 25) 45 - 45

Payment of consideration 0.6 (1.1 (1.7)

Release of unutilised contingent ¢consideration 04} - {04)

Effect of movement in exchange rates 01 01

Balance at 30 June 2020 36 51 87

Business combination {see note 42) 0.8 - 0.8

Payment of consideration {2.0) (%.7) 6.7

Release of unutilised contingent consideration {0.4) - (0.4)

Effect of movement in exchange rates {0.3 - 0.3

Balance at 30 June 2021 17 0.4 2.1

Current 1.2 0.4 16

Neon-current Q.5 - 0.5

Balance at 30 June 2021 17 0.4 21

Current 28 L7 75

Non-current 08 Q4 12

Balance at 30 June 2020 356 51 87
The balance at 30 June 2021 relates to the following transactions:

Contingent
defarred Deferrad

Fiscal yaar of id ian ideration Total

transaction £Em £m Em

De Novo Genetics LLC 2017 - 0.4 04

Hermitage Genetics DAC 2017 0.4 - 0.4

Dairy LLC (n/a Bovisync) . 2019 0.4 - 0.4

Progerex S.L. 2019 0.1 - 01

Sergal Gestia Ramadera, S.L. (see note 42) 2021 0.8 - o8

Balance at 30 June 2021 1.7 0.4 21

Hermitage Genetics DAC
The contingent daferred consideration is based on feas paid 1o the seller and the eaming of PIC ~ Hermitage LP during the period
1 July 2018 and 1 April 2022,

Sergal Gestio Ramadera, S.L.
The contingent deferred consideration 15 based on sales 1o existing customers during the perniod 28 June 2021 and 28 June 2022,
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
200 2020
£m £m
Non-contrelling interest 3.6 46
Put option over non-controlling interest at inception (5.1) 5.6)
Total nen-controlling interest {1.5) {1.0)

Summanised financial information in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that has a material non-controlling interest 1s set out

below before intra-Group ebminations.

De Novo PIC Italia
Ganeties LLC Sl 20
£m £m Em
Revenue 3.4 4.1 7.5
Expenses (4.9 (3.3) (8.2}
Total comprehensive lexpensel/income for the year (1.5} 0.8 (0.7}
Total comprehensive (expensel/income attributable to owners of the Company (0.8} 0.6 0.2)
Total comprehensive lexpenseal/income attributable to the non-controlling interest (0.7} 0.2 (0.5}
Biclogical assets 15.8 - 15.8
Current assets 09 1.2 21
Other non-current assets 0.8 18 26
Current licbilities (11.5) (1.4) (12.9)
Net assets 60 1.6 7.6
Equity attributable to owners of the Company (2.6} (1.4 (4.0
Non-controlling interest 3.4 0.2 3.6
Dwidends of £0.2m were paid to non-controlling interests (2020: £nil).
De Novo PIC ltaha
Genetics LLC Sl 2020
Emr Em £m
Revenue 37 41 78
Expenses (3.1} (3.2} {6.3)
Total comprehensive income for the year a6 0% 15
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company 03 c8 11
Total comprehensive income attributabile to the non-controlling interest 03 01 0.4
Biclogical assets 148 - 149
Currant gssets 13 12 25
Other non-current assets 08 0z 17
Current liabilities (88 (0.8} (94
Net assets 82 15 Q7
Equity attributable to owners of the Company (38 (1.3 (5.1)
Non-controlling interest 4.4 02 46
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED .
For the year ended 30 June 2021

40. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Bomaz, Inc. and Bogz Dairy, LLE, are well-recognised breeders in the industry, and are related parties to the Group as thesge entities
are under the contral of relatives of Nate Zwald, our ABS Dairy COO.

We transact with Bornag, Inc. and Bogz Dairy, LLC as part of our bull product development effort, under a variety of contracts and
agreements. Payments in 2021 amounted to £0.5m (2020: £1.5m). As at 30 June 2021, the balance owing 1o these entities was £nil
[2020: Enil). Al amounts were settled in cash

These related-party transactions were made on torms equivalent 1o those that prevail in arm's length transactions.

41, POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
In August 2021, the first of two avdilable extension options for extending our banking focilities was exercised, extending the maturity
date of gur banking facilities to 24 August 2024,

On 22 July 2021, Caribou Biosciences Inc. completed an initial public offering. As part of this process, our series B preference shares
converted to common shares at a ratio of 1.818 to 1, resulting in o shareholding of 963136 commeon shares. These shares are listed on
the NASDAQ stock exchange under the symbaol CRBU, and after an nitial period of restriction, considerably iImproves the liquidity of
our investment,

42, BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
On 28 June 2021, the Group acquired the trade and assets of Sergal Gestio Ramadera, 5.L. ('Sergal), a leading Spanish boar stud
aperator, 10 integrate our semen supply chain,

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired are as follows:

£m
Biclogical assets (note 18} 03
Intangible assets identified — customer relationships (note 15) 37
Property, plont and equipment (note 17) 0.2
Total identifiable assets 4.2
Goodwill (note 14} 3.5
Total consideration 77
Satisfied by:
Cash 69
Contingent consideration orrangemeant 0.8
Total consideration 77

The goodwill of £3.5m arising from the ocquisition consists of the future synergies and market opportunities expected from combining
the aequired operations with existing Genus operations. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for Income tax purposes.

The contingent consideration arrangement requires certain sales targets to be achieved. The total that Genus could be required to
pay under the contingant consideration agreement wili not exceed £03.8m.

Acauisition-related costs of £0.1m were recognised within exceptional costs [see note 71,
Due 1o the proximity of the acquisition to the 30 June 2021, the acquired trade did not contribute any revenue or profit 1o the

Group's results. Had the transaction occurred on 1 July 2020, the contribution to revenue and profit would have been £31m and
£0.3m respectfully.
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2021
{restated)' [restatad]'
2021 2020 2019
Note £m £m Em
Non-current assets
Intangible assets C3 6.5 &7 31
Property, plant and equipment C4 1.1 13 05
Investments in subsidiaries Cs 122.8 1162 1093
Other investments Cé 20 18 24
Other receivabies C? 65.1 - -
Derivative financicl asset Cl5 - - 04
Deferred tax asset c8 21 14 -
199.6 1254 1157
Current assets
Other receivables Cc7 3792 L4447 4437
Cash and cash equivalents 13 10 20
380.5 L4657 4857
Current liabilities
Current payables Ce {222.8) (224.1) {216.7)
Provisions 11 {0.3) (20) -
{223.1) (226.1) 2167
Net current assets 157.4 2194 2220
Total assets less current liabilities 357.0 3450 3449
Non-current liabilities
Non-current payables C10 1111} (105.8) (102.1)
Provisions C1l 0.1) (0.4} {20)
{(111.2) 1106.2) (10£.1)
Net assets 2458 2388 2408
Equity
Called up share capital Cl146 6.6 &5 4.5
Share premium account 179.1 1721 1790
Own shares {0.1) {01} 0.1
Retained earnings 60.2 535 552
Hedging reserve - 02) 0.2
Total equity 2458 2388 2408

1 See Clfor detals of the or or perog restatament

The Company recagnised profit for the year of £19.6m (2020 restated: £11.7m profith

The Financial Statements were approved and cutherised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 September 2021,

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors.

Stephen Wilson
Chief Executive

Company number: 02972325

Alison Henriksen
Chief Financial Officer
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY .
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Shore
Called up premium Own Ratained Hedging Total
shars capital account shares sarnings raserve equity
£m £m Em £m £€m £m
Balance at 1 July 2019 {previously reported} 45 1790 ©1) 634 02 2450
Priar period restatement - - - 8.2) - (8.2)
Balance at 1 July 2019 lrestated) 6.5 1790 €1} 552 g2 2408
Fair value of movement on cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - - 04) {0.4)
Actuarial gain on retirement benefits obligations - - - Q5 - 05
Movement on pension asset recognition restriction - - - (0.4) - {04)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 01 0.4) 03}
Total profit for the financial year - - - 117 - 117
Total comprehensive income for the financial yeor - - - 118 (04} 114
Shores issued - 0l - - - 01
Dividends - - - (183) - (18.3)
Share-based poyment expense, net of tax - - - 4.8 - 4.8
Balance at 30 June 2020 [restated) 65 1791 0.1 535 ©2) 2388
Fair velue of movement on cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - - 0.2 0.2
Actuarial gain on retirement benefits obligations - - - 2.9 - 29
Movement on pension asset recognition restriction - - - (2.7) - 2.7
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 0.2 0.2 0.4
Total profit for the financial year - - - 19.6 - 196
Total comprehensive income for the financial year - - - 19.8 0.2 20.0
Shares issued 0.1 - - - - 0.1
Dividends paid - - - (19.5} - (19.5]
Share-based payment expense, net of tax - - - &.4 - 6.4
Balance at 30 June 2021 6.6 1791 {0.1) 60.2 - 2458

For information on dividends see note 13, cash flow hedges see note 26 and share-based payment expense see note 30.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

C1. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The Parent Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced
Disclosure Framework’ {'FRS 107) and the Companies Act 2006 {the "Act’). FRS 101 sets out a reduced disclosure framawork for a
‘qualifying entity’ as defined in the standard, which addresses the financial reporting requirements and disclosure exemptions in the
individual financial statements of gqualifying entities that otherwise apply the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements
of the Act and IFRS adopted pursuant to Regulation [ECH No 1606/2002, as it applies in the European Union. The Group Financial
Statements have also been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the IASBE.

The Company Financial Statements have been prepared using the histarical cost convention, as modified by the revaiuation of certain
financial assets and financial iabilities and in accordance with the Act. The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, as set out in note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statemerits of Genus plc. The accounting policies set out below

and stated in the relevant notes have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial Statements

The Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions avallable under FRS 101 in relation to share-bosed payments,
business combinations, financial instruments, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets, presentation

of a cash flow statement, standards issued not yet effective, impairment of assets and related-party transactions. Where required,
aquivolent disclosures are given in the Consolidated Financiat Statements of Genus plc.

As permitted by section 408 of the Act, the Company has not presented its own Income Statement in this Annual Report.
The functional currency of the Company is Sterling.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Preparing company financial statements in conformity with FRS 101 reguires mancgement to make estirmates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liakilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet

date and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate 1s revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods, if the
revision affects both current and future pernods.

Management has not identified any crntical aecounting judgements or key sources of estimation uncertainty.

Significant accounting policies applied in the current reporting period that relate to the Financial Statements as a whole
This section sets out our significant accounting policies that ralate to the Financial Statements as a whole. Where an accounting policy
1s generally applicabie to a specific note to the Financial Statements, the policy has been described in that note.

Other income and deferred income

The Company has entered into a strategic collaboration with Beijiing Capital Agribusiness (BCA}T under which BCA will establish and
fund a collaboration specific entity 'BCA Future Bio-Tech') which will use Genus's intellectual property and know-how to pursue the
PRRSv resistance regulatory and development waork in China. Genus will receive consideration after meeting certain milestones in the
developmaent programme.

Each milestone is considered o be either a separate performance obligation, or a set of groups of separate performance obligations,
under this agreement and are unbundled in the contractual arrangement s if they are distinct from one another.

We assess each separate performance obligation relating to the milestone payments, and upon completion of those performance
obligations recognise the fair value of amounts earned In other ncome. Same performance obligations, such as the transfer of
know-how, are recognised at a point in time whereas others, such as the provision of technical services, are recognised over time,
We recognise any received but unearned consideration as deferred income.

We will apply the same accounting policy to any other comparakle agreements.

Prier period restatement

The Company has changed its accounting policy related to the capitalisation of certain software assets. This change follows the IFRIC
Interpretation Committee’s guidance published in April 2021 and relates to the capitalisation of costs of configuring or customising
application software under *Software as a Service' ((ScaS) arrangements.

The Group's accounting policy has historically been to cagitalise costs related to the configuration and customisation of Sags
arrangements as intangible assets in the Balance Sheet. Following the adoption of the above IFRIC agenda guidonce, current 5aas
arrangements, were identified and assessed to determine if the Group has control of the software. For those armangement where
control does not exist, the Group derecognised the intangible asset previously capitalised.

This change in accounting pelicy led to adjustments amounting to a reduction of £13.3m and £8.1m in the Intangible assets recognised
in the 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019 Balance Sheets respectively, and te ¢ £5.2m and £5.9m increase in operating expenses within
administrative expenses, in those respective years. Further detail of the impact of the restatement can be found in note 2 of the Group
Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED ’
For the year ended 30 June 2021

C1, ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES CONTINUED

Pensions

A number of our emplioyees are members of defined contribution pansion schemes. We charge contributions to profit and loss as they
become payable under the schemes' rules. We show differences between the contributions payakle and the armounts actually paid as
either accruals or prepayments in the Balance Sheet. The schemas' assets are held separately from those of the Cornpany.

Certain former employees of the Company are members of one of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes, details of which are
given in note 29 1o the Group Financial Statements. The schemes are all multi-employer defined benefit schemes, whose assets and
liabilities are held independently from the Group but within their sponsored Group company.

Taxation
We provide for current tax, including UK corparation tax and foreign tax, at the amounts we expect 1o pay or recover, using the tax
rates and the laws enacted or substantively enacted ot the balance sheet date.

Foreign currencies

We record transactions in foreign currencies at the rate ruling at the transaction date. We retranslate monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the prevailing rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the
Income Statement.

Own shares
The Company has cdopted FRS 1071, which requires us to recognise the assets and liabilities associated with the Company’s investment
in its own shares in the Company's Financial Statements, where there 1s de facto control of the assets and liabilities.

The Company's own shares held by o Gualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust remain deducted from shareholders’ funds until they
vest unconditionally with employees.

Employee share schemes
The Company's Executive Directors and Chief Operating Officers receive part of their remuneration in the form of share awards,
which vest upon mesting performance criteria over a three-year period.

We meagsure the cost of these awards by reference to the shares' far value at the award date. At the end of each financial reporting
penod, we estimate the extent to which the performance critaria will be met at the end of three years and record an appropnate
charge in the profit and loss cocount, together with a corresponding credit to profit and loss reserves. Chongss in estimates of the
number of shares vesting may result in charges or credits 1o the profit and loss account in subseguent periods.

Share-based payments

We have implemented the generally accepted accounting principle for accounting for share-based poyments with subsidiary
undertakings under FRS 101, whereby the Company has granted rights to #ts shares 1o employees of its subsidiary undertakings under
an equity-settled arrangement, and the subsidiaries have not reimbursed the Company for these rights, Under this arrangement, the
Company treats the share-based poyment recognised in the subsidiary's financial statements as o cost of investment in the subsidiary
and credits equity with an egual amount,

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
Qur activities expose us primarily 1o the financial risks of changes in foraign currency exchange rates and interest rates.

We use interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk. We also use forward foreign currency contracts, implemented through a
medium-term U3 Dollar cross-currancy borrowing and related interest rate swap, to hedge exposure to translation risk associated with
US Dollar net assets of subsidianes. Forward foreign currency contracts do not gualify for hedge accounting in the Parent Company
Financial Statements, as the hedged item is not in its Balance Sheet.

Qur use of financial derivative instruments is governed by tha Group's policies, which are approved by the Board of Directars, The notes
to the Graup Financial Statements include information about the Group's inancial risks and their management, and its use of financial
instruments and their impact on the Group's risk profile, performance and financial condition.

The fair value of the US Dollar and interest rate swaps 15 the estimated amount that we would receve or pay 10 terminate the swap at
the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the creditworthiness of the swap caunterparties,

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the bolance sheet date, which is the present value of the
quoted forward price
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C1. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES CONTINUED

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualifying hedging instruments that are designated and
gualify as cash flow hedges 1s recognised in Other Comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging
reserve, and limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement, and is includad in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

Amounts previously recognised in Qther Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the Income Statement
in the periods when the hedged item affects the Income Statement, in the same ling as the recognised hedged item. However, when
the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial ability, the gains and losses
previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity are removed from equity and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-Ainancial liability. This transfer does not affect Other Comprehensive
Income. Furthermore, if the Company expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash flow hadging reserve will not be
recovered i Lhe future, that amount 1s immediately reclassified to the Income Statement.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship lor a part thereof} ceases to meet the qualifying
criteria (ofter rebalancing, if applicablel. This includes instances when the hedging instrument expires or Is sold, terminated or
exercised. The discontinuation is accounted for prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised in Other Cemprehensive Income and
accumulated in cash flow hedge reserve at that time remains in equity and is reclassified to the Income Statement when the forecast
transaction occurs. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in the cash flow hedge
raserve is reclassified immediately to the Income Statement.

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Company agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts
calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Company to mitigate the nsk of changing interest rates
on the fair vaiue of issued fixed-rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable-rate debt held. The fair value of
interest rate swaps at the reporting date is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curves at the reporting
date and the credit risk inherent in the contract. The average interest rate is based on the cutstanding balances at the end cf the
financial year,

As the critical terms of the interest rate swap contracts and their corresponding hedged items are the same, the Company performs

a qualitative assessment of effectiveness and it is expected that the value of the interest rate swap contracts and the volue of the
corresponding hedged items will systematically change in opposite directions, in response to mavemeants in the underlying interest
rates. The main source of hedge ineffectiveneass in these hedge relationships is the effect of the counterparty and the Company’s own
credit risk on the fair value of the interest rate swap contracts, which is not reflected in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to
the change in interest rates. No other sources of ineffectivenass emerged from these hedging relationships.

C2. EMPLOYEES
Staff costs including Directors’ remuneration during the year amounted 10!

2021 2020
£m £
Wages and salaries 77 75
Social security costs 1.4 11
Pension costs 0.2 02
Share-based payment expense 2.8 18
12,1 104

The Directors' Remuneration Report sets out details of the Directors’ remuneration, pensions and share options.

The average monthly number of employees including Directors during the year was as follows:

201 2020
Numbar Murrber

Administration 40 40
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

For the year ended 30 June 2021

C3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Accounting policies

Patents, licences and software are stated at acguisition cost less accumulated amortisation. The amortisation period is determined by
reference to expected useful life, which is reviewed at least annually. Amortisation is charged to the Income Statement on a straight-

line basis over the estimated useful life. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consurnption of future economic
benefits embodied in the dsset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as

changes in accounting estimates.

See note 15 for useful economic life, We do not amortise assets under construction.

{rastated)’
{restated]’ Patentsand  Assets under {restated)’
Software licances construction Total
Em £m £m £m
Cost
Balance at 1 July 2019 {restated) 16 37 20 73
Additions - - 27 27
Transfers 30 - {30) -
Balance at 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 (restated) 4b 37 1.7 100
Additions - - 23 23
Transfers 29 - (2.9 -
Disposals {0.4) - - 0.4)
Balance at 30 June 2021 71 37 1.1 119
Amortisation
Balance at 1 July 2019 {restated) 13 29 - 42
Amortisation for the year 03 o8 - 11
Balance at 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 {restated) 16 37 - 5.3
Amortisation for the year 0.5 - - a.5
Disposals {0.4) - - {0.4)
Balance at 30 June 2021 17 37 - 5.4
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2021 5.4 - 11 4.5
At 30 June 2020 (as restated) 30 - 17 47
At 30 June 2019 {as restated) 03 08 20 31

1 See note Cfor deta Is of te or or cenod restatement

Assets under construction primarily relate 1o the ongoing development of GenusOne, ¢ unified enterprise-wide business systam.

C4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Accounting policies

We state property, plant and equipment ot cost, together with any incidental acquisition expenses, or ot their latest valuation, less
depreciation ond ony provision for impairment. We colculote degreciation on a straight-line basis, to write the assets down to their
estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives. The rates of annual depreciation on tangible fixed assets are as follows:

= Leasehoid improvements
> Leagsed buildings
> Eguipment

period of lease
pericd of lease
3tc 10 years

We raview the carrying value of fixed assets for impairment, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may

not be recoverable.
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C&4, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured initially at cost based on the value of the associated fease liability, adjusted for any poyments
made before inception, initial direct costs and an estimate of the dismantling, remaoval and restoration costs reguired in the terms of
the lease. Subsequent to initial recognition, we record an interest charge in respect of the lease liabllity. The related right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the term of the lease or, if shorter, the useful economic life ('UEL) of the leased asset. The lease term shall include
the period of an extension option where it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised. Where the leose contains a purchase
option, the asset is written-off over the useful life of the asset when it is reasonably certain that the purchase option will be exercised.

Loosoho[dW ) Cwned Leased
Impravements Equipment assets buildings Total
£m £m Em £m £m

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2020 05 06 11 10 21
Additions - 0.1 0.1 - 0.1
Disposals - {0.3) {0.3) - 0.3)
Balance at 30 June 2021 0.5 0.4 . 0.9 1.0 19
Depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2020 02 as 07 0l 08
Depreciation for the year 0.1 - 0.1 0.1 0.2
Disposals - (0.2 (0.2) - 0.2)
Balance at 30 June 2021 0.3 0.3 0.6 0.2 0.8
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2021 0.2 01 0.3 08 1.1
Ar 30 June 2020 03 01 Q4 02 13

C5. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Accounting policies
Shares in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.

The Company assesses investments for impairment whenever events or changes in circurnstances indicate that the carrying value of
an investrment may not be recoverable. If any such indication of iImpairment exists, then we estimate the recoverable amount. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-genarating unit is less than the value of the investment, it is considerad to be imparred and we write
it down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

Sharesin
subsidiary
undertakings
£m
Cost
Balance at 1.July 2020 3094
Additions 6.6
Balance at 30 June 2021 3160
Provision for impairment
Balance at 1 July 2020 193.2
Provided during the year -
Balonce at 3¢ June 2021 193.2
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2021 122.8
At 30 June 2020 116.2

Additions relate to increasing our investment in ABS Pecplan Ltda and Genus Investment Limited.

The Company considers the relationship between its market caprtalisation and the carrying value of its investments, among other
factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment. As at 30 June 2021, the net investment in five of the Company’s subsidiary
undertakings exceeded the Company’s share of the net assets. Each of these subsidiaries are denominated in Latin American
currencies, all of which have seen significant weakening against Sterling during the year ended 30 June 2021 For each of these
undertakings, the recoverable value has been estimated using the Board-approved Strategic Plan. There were na indicators of
impairment for the Company's other subsidiary undertakings.

The key assumptions for the value inuse calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth rates and expected
trading performance.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED :
For the year ended 30 June 2021

C5. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES CONTINUED

Management estimates discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the time valug of money and the risks spacific to the
Group. The pre-tax discount rates are derived from the Group’s post-tax weighted average cost of capital {WACC), which has been
calculated using the capital asset pricing model, the inputs of which include a country risk-free rate, equity risk premium, Group size
premium and a risk adjustment (beta). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a long-term growth rate of 2.5%
(2020: 2.5%).

As a result of this analysis, the Company has not recognised any additional impairment charge during the year.

Principal subsidiary undertakings
The Company's principal subsidiaries and their main activities are given in note 37 to the Group Financial Statements

Cé, OTHER INVESTMENTS
Accounting policies
Listed equity investments are stated at fair value.

20 2020
£m £m
Listed investment — NMR 20 18

NMR ordinary shares weré acquired as part of the NMR pension ggreement, and are measured at fair velue. The valuation basis is
Level 1 classification, where fair value technigues are quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

C7. CTHER RECEIVABLES
Accounting policies
We state other receivables at their amortised cost less any impairment tosses.

2021 2920
Mote £m £m

Amounts due within one year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 3745 4507
Corporation tax recoverable 09 -
Prepayments 1.6 22
Deferred taxation C8 21 06
Derivative financial asset Cl5 0.1 12
379.2 LALLT

Amounts due after one year

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 65.1 -
465.1 -

At the balance sheet date, the total amounts owed by Group undertakings were £439.6m (2020: £440.7m). The carrying amount of
these assets approximates their farr value. There are impaired recevable balances of £nil {2020: £nil) as the Company does not expect
any credit losses on amounts owed by Group undertakings, due to the centralised management of these balances. Of the amounts
owed by Group undertakings, £3291m (2020: £324.5m) is interest-bearing and any nterest charged is at current market rates.

C8. DEFERRED TAXATION

Accounting policies

We recognise deferred taxation in respect of all timing differences that have criginated but not reversed ot the balance sheet date,
where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in future or a right to pay less tax in future have occurred ot
the balance sheet date.

We cnly recognise deferred taxation assets if we consider it more likely than not that we will have sutable profits from which we can
deduct the future reversal of the underlying timing differences. Timing differences are differences arising between the Company’s taxable
profits and its results as stated in the Financial Statements, and which are capable of reversing in ane or maore subseguent perods.

We only recognise deferred taxation in respect of the future remittance of retained earnings of aoverseas subsidiaries to the extent that,
at the balance sheet dote, dividends have been accrued as recevable.

We measure deferred toxonhon on @ non-discountad baosis, ot the 1ax rotes we expect to apply in the periods in which we expect the
trming differences 1o reverse, bosed on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted ot the balance sheet date.

2021 2020

£m zm

Deferred tax gsset due within one year 21 064
Deferred tax asset due after more than cne year 2.1 14

4.2 20
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C8. DEFERRED TAXATION CONTINUED
The movements in deferred taxation are as follows:
2021 2020
£m £m
At the start of the year 2.0 15
Recogrnised in the Income Statement 21 0l
Recognised in equity 0.1 04
At the end of the year 6.2 20
The amounts provided are as follows:
202 2020
Em £m
Share-based paymeant expense 18 12
Other timing differences 2.0 07
Losses 0.4 0.1
4.2 20

At the balance sheet date, the Company had unused tax losses available for offset against future profits, with a potential tax benefit
of £0.4m {2020: £0.1ml. We have recognised a deferred tax asset in respeact of this benefit, as we expect these losses to be offset

against future profits of the UK tax group in the near term.

C9%. CURRENT PAYABLES
Accounting policies

Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at ther nominol value.

2001 2020

Note £m £m

Bank loans and overdrafts Cl2 13.0 Q.2
Corporation tax payable - 03
Trade payakles 15 Q7
Other payables 0.1 c.2
Amounts cwed to Group undertakings 204.2 2097
Accruals 38 32
Deferred income 01 3
Obligations under leases Cl3 0.1 01
Derivative financial liabilities C15 - 04
222.8 2241

Included within amounts owed to Group undertakings are amounts of £176.6rm {2020 £185.8m) which are unsecured, repayable on

demand and any Interest chargead is at current market rates.

There are no outstanding contributions due to defined contribution pension schemes for the benefit of the employees (2020: £nill.

C10. NON-CURRENT PAYABLES

2021 2020
Note Em Em
Bank loans and overdrafts Ccl12 109.4 1038
Chbligations under leases C13 0.6 08
Derivative fingncial liabilities C15 - 0l
Deferred income 1.1 11
1111 1058

C11, PROVISIONS
202 2020
Em £m
Provisions due within one year 03 20
Pravisions after more than one year 0.1 [6FA
0.4 2.4

The provisions primarily consist of g share forfeiture provision of £0.3rm, which relates to potential claims that could be made by

untraced members over the next two years, relating to the resale proceeds of shares that were identified during prior years as being

forfeited (see note 25).
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C12. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Accounting policies

We initiolly state debt at the amount of the net proceeds, after deducting issue costs. The carrying amount i$ inCreased by the finance
cost in respect of the accounting period and reduced by payments made in the perod.

We charge the finance costs of debt to the profit and loss account over the delbt term, at a constant rate on the carrying value of the
debt to which they relate.

o0 2020
Em £m

Loans and botrewings comprise amounts falling due:
In aone vear or less ar on dermand 138 Q5
In more than one year but not more than two years - 1038
In more than two years but not more than five years 1099 -
1237 1133
Less. unamortised issue costs (1.3) 0.3)
1224 1130
Amounts falling due within one year (13.0) 22)
Amounts falling due after more than ¢ne year 109.4 1038

At the balance sheet date, the Company’s credit faciities comprised a £150m multi-currency revolving credit facility {RCF}, a USD125
million RCF and a USD20 millon bond and guarantee facility. The onginal term of the facility was for three years, with two yedars
remaining at the balance sheet date. There 1s an option to extend the maturity date by a further year before the first and second
anniversaries of the signing date. The first extension has been requested to 24 August 2024 and approved by all participating banks,
increasing the credit facility term by a further 12 montns. The facility alse includes an uncommitted £100m accordion option, which can
be requested on o moximum of three gccasions over the lifetme of the facility to fund the Group's business development plans,

As part of its interest rate strategy, the Company has entered into interest rate swaps 1o haedge floating LIBOR rates. As a result, bank
loan and overdrafts include borrowings of £5m fixed at 1133%, excluding applicable bank margin.

Terms and debt repayment schedule
The terms and conditions of outstanding loans and overdrafts were as follows:

201 2025

Currency Interest rate Em £

RCF and overdraft GBP 15% 42.3 287
RCF, term loan and overdraft uso 15% 59.7 86
RCF and overdraft EUR 14% 107 68
Other unsecured bank borrowings Other 08% o7 32
Total interest-bearing liabilities 122.4 1130

The above RCFs are unsecurad.

C13. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES
A lease is @ commitment to make o payment in the future, primarily in relation to property, plant and machinery and motor vehicles.

Accounting policies
In accordance with IFRS 16, we recognise as an expense any payments made in respect of short-term lzases (those with a term of less
than 12 months) and for low-value items on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

For all other leases we recognise a liabllity at the date at which the leased asset is made available for use, and a corresponding
right-of-use asset is recognised and depreciated over the term of the lease {see note C4).

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the future lease payments, excluding any payments relating to non-lease
components. Future lease payments include fixed payments, in-substance fixed payments, and variable lease payments that are
based on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable Lease liabilties alsc take into account amounts payable under
residual value guarantees and payments to exercise options, to the extent that it is reasonably certain that such payments will be
made, The paymants are discounted at the rate implicit in the leose or, where thot cannot be measured, at on incrermental
borrowing rate.

We remeasure the lease liability land make a corresponding adiustment 1 the related nght-of-use asset} whenaver:

> Thelease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of the exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease
haklity 1s remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rote.

> Thelease payments change due 1o changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual
vatue, In which cases the lease hability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payrments using the initial discount rate
{untess the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, In which case a revised discount rate is used).

> Alegse contract is modified, and the lease modification s not accounted for a5 o separate lease, In which case the lease lability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The Company did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.
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C13. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES CONTINUED
The changes in the lease liabilities are as follows:
2021 2020
Em £m
Balance at the start of the year 09 -
Recognised on the adoption of IFRS 16 - 10
Poyrments made {0.1) 01
Balance at the end of the year 0.8 0%

In accordance with the reduced disclosure exemptions included in FRS 101, a maturity analysis has not been presented. The maturity

analysis of the Group's lease obligations is included in note 28 1o the Group Financial Statements.

C14. OPERATING LEASES
Accounting policies

For short-term leases (those with @ term of less than 12 months) and low-value items, we charge the rentals payable to the Income

Statement on a straight-line basis over the lecse term.

The Company has elected not to apply IFRS 16 to contracts where the right-of-use asset would be recognised as an intangible asset

{e.q. software licences).

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which expire:

200 2020
Em Em
In less than cne year 08 08
Between one and five years - 08
In more than five years - B
08 16
Operating lease rentals charged in the year:
202 2020
£m Em
Other 0.8 Q7
€15, DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Additional disclosures on financial instruments can be found In note 26 to the Group Financial Statements.
C16. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
2021 2020 2021 2020
Number Number £m £rn
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 10 pence 65,761,500 65091625 8.6 6.5
There is no authorised share capital limit.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to racelve dividends, as declared from time to time.
The movement in share capital for the period was as follows:
2021 2020 2021 2020
Numbar Number £m £m
Issued under the Exacutive Share Opticn Plan 19875 37086 - -
Issued to Employee Benefit Trust 650,000 - 0.1 -

669:875 37,0&;5 Q1
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C16. CAPITAL AND RESERVES CONTINUED
Shares 1ssued under the Executive Share Option Plan were issued at aption prices as follows:

200 - 2}@

Numbar Price Number Price
Executive Share Option Plan - - 65097 654.50p
6,599 729.83p Q213 72983p
9,032 977.83p 7175 G7783p
1,738 1334.00p 6,209 133400p
2,506 1413.00p 8,372 141300p

19,875 37066

Reserve for own shares

The Company's shares are held by a QUEST, which is an employee benefit trust established to facllitate the cperation of our long-term
incentive scheme for senior management. The reserve amount represents the deduction in arriving at shareholders' funds for the
consideration the trust paid for the Company’s sharas, which had not vested unconditionally at the balance sheet date, The number
and market value of the ordinary shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust and the QUEST were:

2021 2020 2021 2020

Number Number Em £n

Shares allocated but not vested 509,269 75,184 25.2 25
Unallocated shares 92,334 22,334 4.6 33
601,603 167518 298 59

The shares have a nominal value of £60,160 (2020 £16,752},

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments
net of taxation - see note 26.

C17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company is exempt under FRS 101 from disclosing transactions with other members of the Group.

C18. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
At 30 June 2021, outstanding contracted capital expenditure amounted to £nil (2020: £nit).

C19. PENSIONS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES

The NMR pension assigned to Genus plc under the Flaxibie Apportionment Agreement, recorded an actuarial gain of £2.9m, which has
increased the asset restriction made in previous years. As the Company does not have unilateral right to this surplus, as required In
accordance with IFRIC 14 it s restricted to £nil. For additional information on the MPF pension scheme, of which NMR was one of the
participating employers, please see nota 29.

The retirement benefit obligations referred to in note 29 to the Group Financial Statements include obligations relating to the MPF
defined benefit scheme. Genus, together with other participating employers, is joint and severally liable for the scheme’s obligations.
Genus has gccountad for its section and its share of any orphan ossets and liabilities, collectively representing approximately 86%
(2020: 86%) of the MPF. As a result of the joint and several liability, Genus has a contingent liability for the scheme's obligations that it
has not accounted for. The total deficrt of the MPF scheme from the most recent triennial valugtion can be found in note 29.

Certain UK subsidiares, which are detailed in note 37 to the Group Financial Statements, will take advantage of the audit exemption
set out within section 4794 of the Companies Act 2004 for the year ended 30 June 2021 The Company has given a statutory guarantee
over all of the habilities held by those UK subsidianes for the year ended 30 June 2021. The Company has assessed the prebability of
loss under the guarantee as remote.

At 30 June 2021, the Company had entered into bank guarantees totalling £13.9m (2020: £nil),
C20. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

In August 2021 the first of two available extension options for extending our banking facilities was exercised, extending the maturity
date of our banking facilities to 24 August 2024,
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FIVE-YEAR RECORD — CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

The information included in the five-year record below I1s in accordance with [FRS as adopted for use in the Europeon Union.

2021 20207 20197 2018° a7
Financial results Em £m Em £rn £m
Revenue from continuing operations 574.3 5514 4885 47073 4521
Adjusted operating profit from continuing operations' 769 60.1 t1i8 555 551
Adjusted operating profit including joint ventures and associates' 898 70.8 590 609 601
Adjusted profit before tax' 84.8 65.8 551 563 544
Basic adjusted earnings per sharg' 100.9p 773p 53.8p 723p 4%.4p
Dituted adjusted earnings per share' 100.1p 7570 61.70 71.3p 6840
Operating profit from continuing cperations 47.7 424 28 60 382
Profit before tax from continuing operations 55.8 46.3 40 56 40.7
Profit after tax from continuing operations 46.8 357 08 394 343
Net profit attributable to owners of the Company 47.3 353 19 405 328
Basic eamings per share 72.6p S44p I0p 66.1p 538p
Diluted earnings per share 72.0p 540p 2%p 65.2p 530p
Net assets 496.6 4945 4720 4017 402.1
Net debt 105.6 1026 796 1085 1116

1 Adusted operatng profit, adjusted profit bafore tax and odjusted basc and diutec earmings oer share are betare ~et 1AS 41 va uotien moverent on oo og:cal assets,
armortisat'or of acaured ntangible ossets, share -bosed payment expense, except onaliterrs ane other going ond 1ossas

2 Restated seenote 2

3 As oreviously "eported, the resuits of FY17 have not oeen restatea for tne prior penod adjustrent outhi~ed .0 the FY20 Annugl Report ~ote 7 as it wouid be impracticable 10 co
5o Consequetly, tme net assets of this penied 15 rot directly comparap'e to those In the subsequent years,
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES GLOSSARY

The Group tracks a number of

APMs in manoging its business, which
are not defined or specified under the
requirements of [FRS because they
exciude amounts that are included in,
or include amounts that are excluded
from, the most directly comparable
measure calculated and presented in
accordance with [FRS, or are caiculated
using financial measures that are not
calculated in accordance with IFRS.

The Group believes that these APMs,
which are not considerad to be a
substitute for or superior to IFRS measures,
provide stakeholders with additicnal
hetpfulinformation on the performance of
the business. These APMs are consistent
with how the business performance

15 pltanned and reportad within the
internal management reporting to

the Board and GELT. Some of these

APMs are also used for the purpose

of setting remuneration targets.

These APMs should be viewad as
supplemental 1o, but Nnot as a substitute
for, megsures presented in the
consolidated financial Information relating
to the Group, which are prepared in
accordance with IFRS. The Group believes
that these APMs are useful indicators of its
performance. However, they may not be
comparable to similarly-titted measures
raporied by other companies, due 1o
differences in the way they are calculated.

The key APMs that the Group uses include:

Alternative Perfarmance
Measures

Caleulation methodology and closest eguivalent IFRS measure
(where applicable)

Reasons why we believe the
APMs are useful

Income Statement measures

Adjusted operating profit  Acjusted operating profit is operating profit with the net IAS 41

exc JVs

valuation movement on biological assets, amortisation of acquired

ntangible assets, share-based payment expense and excepticnal
items added back and excludes JV and associate results.

Closest equivalent IFRS measure Operating profit!

See reconciliation on page 183,

Adjusted operating profit
in¢ Jvs

Including adjusted operating profit from JV and associate results.

See reconcitiation on page 183.

Adjusted operating profit
inc JVs exc gehe editing
costs

In¢luding adjusted operating profit from JV and associate results
but excluding gene editing costs.

See reconciliation on page 183.

Adjusted operating profit
inc JVs after tax

Adjusted operating prefit Including JV less adjusted effective tax.

See reconciliation on page 183,

Adjusted profit inc JVs
before tax

Adjusted operating profit including JVs less net finance costs.

See reconciliotion on page 183

Adjusted profitinc JVs
after tax

Adjusted profitincluding Jvs before tax less adjusted effective tax.

See recenciliation on page 183.

Allows the companson of underlying
financial performance by excluding
the impacts of exceptional items
and is a performance indicator
against which short-term and
long-term incentive outcomas for
our senior executives are measured:
> net |AS 41 valuation movermnents
on biological assets — these
movements can be materially
volatile and do not directly
correlate to the undertying
trading performance in the
penod. Furthermore, the
moverment is non-cash related
and many assumptions used in
the valuation model are based
on projections rather than current
trading;
> amortisation of acguired
intangible assets - excluding this
Improves the comparability
between acguired and
organically grown operations, as
the Igtter cannot recognise
internally generated intangible
assets. Adjusting for amortisation
provides a more consistent basis
for comparison between the two;
> share-bosed payments — this
expense is considered to be
relatively volatile and not fully
reflective of the current period
trading, as the performance
critena are based cn EPS
performance over a three-year
period and include estimates of
future performance; and
> exceptional tems — these are
items which due to either their
size or their nature are excluded,
10 improve the understanding of
the Group's underlying
performance.

Adjusted profit inc JVs
before tax exc Saas
impact

Adjusted opergting profit before tax, excluding the impact of
the change in gccounting policy related to the occounting for
‘Software as g Service ('Saas’l (See note 2)

See reconciligtion on page 183,

> This measure is presented oniy
this year to demonstrate the
mpact of our change in
accounting policy, and will not
be presented in future periods.
We present this measure to
allow comparability of inancial
performance with the
expectations of the year, which
were based on our pre-existing
accounting policy.
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Reoasons why we believe the
APMs are useful

Adjusted effective tax
rate

Adjusted basic earnings
per share

Total income tax charge for the Group excluding the tax impact of
adjusting items, divided by the adjusted cperating profit,

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Effective tax rate
See reconciliation on page 184

Adjusted profit after tax profit divided by the
weighted basic average nurnber of shiures.

Closest equivalent IFRS measure. Eamings per share

See calculation on page 184.

Adjusted diluted earnings
per share

Adjusted earnings cover

Adjusted EBITDA -
calculated in accordance
with the definitions used
in our financing facilities

Adjusted operating
margin
Adjusted operating
margin (exc JVs)

Constant currency basis

Balance Sheet measures

Net debt

Net debt — calculated in
accordance with the
definitions used in our
financing facilities

Underlying attributable profit divided by the diluted weighted basic

average number of shares.
Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Diluted earmings per share

See calculation on page 184.

Adjusted earnings per share divided by the expected dvidend for

the year

See calculation on page 184.

This is adjusted operating profit, adding back cash recelved

from cur JVs, depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
depreciation of the historical cost of biclogical assets, operational
amaortisation {l.e. excluding amortisation of acguired Intangivles)
and deducting the amount attributable to minority interest.

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Operating profit!

See reconciliation on page 184,

Adjusted operating profit including Jvs) divided by revenue.

Adjusted operating profit clivided by revenue.

The Group reports certain financial measures, on both a reported
and constant currency basis and retranslates the current year's
results at the average actual exchange rates used in the previcus
fincneial year

Net debt is gross debt, made up of unsecured bank loans and
overdrafts and obligations under finance leases, with a deduction
for cash and cash eqguivalents.

See reconciliation on page 185.

Net debt excluding the impact of adopting IFRS 16 and adding
back guarantees and deferred purchase arrangements.

See reconciliotion on page 185.

Provides an underlying tax rate to
allow comparability of underhying
financial performance, by excluding
the iImpacts of net IAS 41 valuation
movement on biclogical assets,
amortisation of acquired intangible
assets, share-based payment
expense and excepticnal items.

On a per share Basis, this allows the
comparabitity of underlying
financial performance by excludging
the impacts of adjusting items.

The Board dividend policy targets
the adjusted earning cover to be
between 2.5-3 times,

This APM is presented because it is
used in calculating our ratio of nat
debt to EBITDA and our interest
cover, which we report to our banks
to ensure compliance with our bank
covenants.

Allows for the comparability of
underlying financial performance
by excluding the impacts of
exceptional itermns.

The Group's business operates In
multiple countries worldwide and its
trading results are transiated back
into the Group's functional currency
of Sterling. This measure eliminates
the effects of exchange rate
fluctuaticns when comparing
year-on-year reported results.

This cllows the Group to monitor its
tevels of debt.

This is a key metric that we report to
our banks to ensure compliance
with our bank covenants.
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Alternotive Performance
Measures

Calculation methodology and closest equivalent IFRS measure
{where applicable)

Reasons why we believe the
APMs are useful

Cash flow measures

Cash conversion

Free cash flow

Other measures

Interest cover

Ratio of net debt to
adjusted EBITDA

Return on adjusted
invested capital

Cash generated by operations as a percentage of adjusted
operating profit excluding JVs.

See calculation on page 185,

Cash generated by the Group before debt repayments,
acquisitions and investments, dividends and proceeds from share
issues,

Closest (FRS measure: Net cash flow from operating octivities

See reconciliation on page 185,

The ratio of adjusted net finance costs, calculated In accordance
with the definitions used In our inancing facilities, is net finance
costs with a deduction for pension interest, interest from adopting
IFRS 16, unwinding of discount on put options and amortisation of
refinancing fees, to adjusted EBITDA.

Closest equivalent IFRS componants for the ratio: The equivalent
IFRS components are finance costs, inance income and operating
profit

See calculation and reconciliation on page 186.

The ratic of net debt, calculated in accordance with the definitions
used in our financing facilities, is gross delbt, made up of unsecured
bank loans and overarafts and obligations under finance leases,
with a deduction for cash and cash equivalents and adding back
amounts related to guarantess and deferrad purchase
arrangements, to adjusted EBITDA,

Closest equivalent IFRS companents for the ratio: The equivalent
IFRS components are gross debt, cash and cash equivalents and
operating profit

See calculation on page 185

The Group's return on adjusted invested capital 1s measured on the
basis of adjusted operating profit Including Vs after tax, which is
operating profit with the pre-tax share of profits from Jvs and
associates, net 1AS 41 valuation movement on biological assets,
omortisation of acquired intangible assets, shore-bosed payment
expense and exceptional items added back, net of amounts
attributable to non-controlling interest and tox.

The adjusted operating profit including JVs after tax is divided by
adjusted invested capital which is the equity attributable to
owners of the Company adding back net debt, pension liability net
of related deferred tax and deducting biclogical assets liess
historical cost) andg goodwill, net of related deferred tax.

Closest equivalent (FRS componants for the ratio;
Return on invasted capital

See calculation and reconciliation on page 186 and 187

This 15 used to measure how much
operating cash flow we are
generating and how efficient we
are at converting our operating
profit into cash.

Shows the cash retained by the
Group in the year,

This APM is used to understand our
ability to meet our interest
payments and is also a key metric
that we report to our banks to
ensure compliance with our bank
covenants,

This APM is used as a measurement
of our leverage and is also a key
metric that we report to our banks
10 ensure compliance with our Hank
covenants,

This APM is used to measure our
ability to efficiently invest our
capital and gives us a sense of how
well we are using our resources to
generaie returns.

1 Goecinguofl s ot gefirec oe IFPS It s creserted ntne Groul 17Co™e Stote™ant ard 5570w 25 072fir cefore taxs Airarce ~ooma saits ong s~a'e of post-tox orofit of

Jus amc osscc ates eta rag
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THE TABLES BELOW RECONCILE THE CLOSEST EQUIVALENT IFRS MEASURE TO THE APM OR OUTLINE THE CALCULATION OF THE APM

INCOME STATEMENT MEASURES

Adjusted operating profit exc JVs

Adjusted operating profit inc JVs

Adjusted operating profit inc J¥s and exc gene editing costs

{restated)

20 2020
£m £m £ £m Reference
Operating profit 477 42.4 Group Income Statement
Add back:
Net |1AS 41 valuation movement on biclogical assets 108 {158} Group Incorme Statement
Amortisation of acguired intungible assets 14 85 Group Income Statement
Share-based payment expense 77 58 Group Income Statement
Exceptional items 33 192 Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc JVs 749 &0.1 Group Income Statement
Less: amounts attributable to non-controling interest o1 0.4 Group Income Statement
Operating profit from JVs and associates 131 8% Group Income Statement
Tax on Jvs and gssociates 30 2.3 Note 11 - Income tax expense
Net |AS 41 valuation movement (2.0 Q1 Neote 18 — Equity accounted
investees
Adjusted operating profit from JVs 130 113
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs 89.8 70.8
Gene editing costs 76 5.2 Note 5 - Segmental
information
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs and exc gene editing 97.4 76.0
costs
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs after tax
lrestatod)
202 B 2020
£Em £m  Reference
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs 89.8 70.8 See APM
Adjusted tax {(20.2} (L&8) At effective tax rate — see
note 12
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs after tax &9.6 84.0
Adjusted profit inc JVs before tax
Adjusted proefit inc JVs after tax
[restated)!
i 2021 B w0
£m £m  Refarence
Adjusted operating profit in¢c JVs 89.8 70.8 See APM
Less net fincnce costs (5.0} {(50) Note 10 - Net finance costs
Adjusted profit inc JVs before tax 84.8 45.8
Adjusted tax (121} (15.8) Note 12 — Earnings per share
Adjusted profit inc JVs after tax &5.7 50.2
Adjusted profit inc JVs before tax exc Saas impact
restated)!
202 020 )
Em Em Refererce
Adjusted profit inc JVs before tax 84.8 45.8 See APM
Impact of change in accounting policy 27 5.2 Financial review
Adjusted profit inc JVs before tax exc Saas impact 875 71.0

1 See nate 2 for details of the pror period ‘estatement.
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Adjusted effective tax Em/rate

[restatec]

) 2021 2020
£m % Frr % Referance
Adjusted effective tax Em/rate 191 225 15.6 23.7 Note 12 - Earnings per share
Exceptional items {1.1) {33.3) 4.5) {23.4) Note 12 - Earnings per share
Share-based payment expense (1.6 {20.8) (1.1 (190} Note 12 - Earmnings per share
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 1.5 (20.3) (1.8) {21.2) Note 12 — Eamings per share
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on bioclogical assets (29) (269) 4.7 297 Note 12 = Earnings per share
Effective tax £m/rate 120 20.4 129 26.5 Note 11 - Taxation and
defarad taxation
Adjusted basic earnings per share
(restated)
20 2020 Reference
Adjusted profit inc JVs after tax {Em) 657 50.2 See APM
Weighted average number of orcinary shares (000s) 465108 44208 Note 12 - Earnings per share
Adjusted basic earnings per share (pence) 1009 773
Adjusted diluted earnings per share
{restored)
201 2020 Refcrence
Adjusted profit inc JVs after tax {(Em) &57 80.2 See APM
Weighted average number of diluted ordinary shares 65662 65427 Note 12 - Earnings per share
{000s]
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (pence) 100.1 76.7
Adjusted earnings cover
{restated)
021 2020
pence times pence tmes Reference
Adjusted earnings per share 1009 773 See APM
Dividend for the year 320 291 Note 13 - Dividends
Adjusted earnings cover 3.2 27
Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under our financing facilities
[restatear ™
200 2020
£m £m Em £ Refamience
Operating profit &7.7 42.4 Group Income Statement
Add back:
Net IAS 41 valuation mavement on biological assets 108 (158) Group Income Statement
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 74 85 Group Income Statement
Share-based payment expense 77 58 Croup Income Statement
Exceptional items 33 192 Group income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc Jvs 769 601 Group Income Statement
Adijust for:
Adjusted operating profitimpact of change in
accounting policy n/a 5.2 Note 2 - Basis of preparation
Cash received from JVs (dividend and loan repayment) 41 37 Group Staternent of Cash
Flows
Depreciation: property, plant and eguipment 240 240 Note 17 - Property, plant and
equipment
Operational lease payments {125} (12.1) Note 28 - Obligations under
leases
Depreciation: historical cost of biological assets 100 110 See Financial Review
Amartisation and impairment lexcluding separately
identifiable acquired intangivle assets) 37 46 Note 15 - intangible assets
Amortisation impact of change ‘'n accounting policy n/a 05 Note 2 - Basis of preparation
Less amounts attributable to non-contreling interest 10.1} D& Group Income Statement
Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under our financing
facilities 106.1 96.4

T See cote 2 for oetais of te o or per od restatament

2 Folowrg Gerusenter 7g © new coedit fac -ty isee ~ote 271 tne defirt ors of EBITDA Bor-ow ~gs a~a Net Debt were a—e~dad Corsecuent y, the comnorat ve va ues ~ave

bear -estated 1o -eflect t~e are~aec defi~ 1 ors a5 "epo-ted to the Darks
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BALANCE SHEET MEASURES
Net debt
Net debt as calculated under our financing facilities
restateall
2021 _ww )
£m £m £m Em Reference
Current unsecured bank loans and overdrafts 13% Q2
Non-current unsecured bank loans and overdrafts 1094 1036
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafts 1233 1128 Group Balance Sheet
Current obligations under finance leases 20 100
Naon-current obligations under finance leases 193 211
Obligations under finance leases 283 311 Group Balance Sheet
Total debt inancing 1516 143% Note 32 - Notes to the cash
flow statement
Deduct:
Cash and cash equivalents {46.0) (41.3}) Group Balance Shest
Net debt 105.6 102.6
Deduct:
Lower of obligations under finance leases or £30m' (283) (300}
Add back:
Guarantees 121 5¢ Note 35 - Contingencies and
bank guarantees
Deferred purchase arrangements 01 0.2 No direct reference
Net debt - as calculated under our financing facilities 96.5 78.7
CASH FLOW MEASURES
Cash conversion
frestated) 7
2001 2020 B
£m £m £m fm Reference
Cash generated by operations 86.6 77.2 Note 32 — Notes to the cash
flow statement
Operating profit 477 424 Group Income Statement
Add tack:
Net |AS 41 valuation mavement on biological assets 108 {158} Group Income Staterment
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets T4 85 Group Income Statement
Share-based payment expense 77 58 Group Income Statemant
Exceptional items 33 192 Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc JVs 769 60,1 Group Income Statement
Cash conversion (%) 113% 128%
Free cash flow
(restated) @
2021 2020
£m £m £m £ Refererce
Cash generated by operations 86.6 772 Note 32 - Notes to cash flow
statement
interest and tax paid (19.1) {171} Note 32 - Notes to cash flow
statement
Capital expenditure (33.8) {297} Group Statement of Cash
Flows
Dividends received from JV and associates 4.1 25 Group Statement of Cash
Flows
Jaint venture and associate loan (paymentl/repayment (0.4) 1.2 Group Statement of Cash
Flows
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.3 1.1 Group Statement of Cash
Fiows
Dividend to non-controlling interest 0.2} ~ Group Statement of Cash
Flows
Free cash flow 375 352

1 Folowing Genus enterng a new cred.t focity see note 27) the definitions of ERITDA, Borrowings and Met Debt wers amendes Canseguertly, the comparatve valles hove

peen restated to reflect tre amenced def~tions Qs -eported 1@ the banks

2 See note 2 for detarls of the prior penod restatement
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES GLOSSARY CONTINUED

OTHER MEASURES
Interest cover

lrestateq)”
2021 2020
£m Timas Emr Times Refterernce !
Finance costs 54 53 Greup Income Statement
Finance income (0.4) (03 Group Income Statement
Net finance costs 50 50 Note 10 - Net finance costs
Deduct:
Pension interest 03 [0.4) Note 10 - Net finance costs
Interest on lease liabilities 08 (1.0 Note 10 - Net finance costs
Unwinding discount on put options {06) {05) Note 10 - Net finance costs
Amortisation of refinancing fees {08} [(7A Note 10 - Net finance costs
Adjusted net finance costs 2.4 27
Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under our financing
facilities 106.1 96.4 See APM
Interest cover 45 is
Ratio of net debt to adjusted EBITDA
frestateaql’
207 2020
£m Times £m Times Refererce
Net debt - as calculated under our financing facilities 96.5 787 See APM
Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under our financing
facilities 106.1 96.4 See APM
Ratio of net debt to EBITDA 09 0.8
Return on adjusted invested capital
lrestatedy
202 090
£m % Em % Reference
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs after tax 69.6 54.0 See APM
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 498.1 4955 Group Balance Sheet
Add back:
Net debt 1056 1026 Note 32 - Notes to the cash
flow statement
Pension liability 111 181 Group Balance Shest
Related deferred tax {(2.1) {(35) Note 11 - Taxation and
deferred taxation
Adjust for:
Biclogical assets — carrying value {3125} (3499} Note 16 - Biological assats
Biclogical assets' harvest classed as inventories {178} (203 Note 20 — Inventories
Biological assets — histaric cost 651 575 See Financial Review
Goodwili (101.5) (105.6) Group Balance Sheet
Related deferred tax 637 44 Note 11 — Taxation and
deferred taxation
Adiusted invested capital 3027 268.8
Return on adjusted invested capital 23.0% 20.1%

1 Folow ~g Genus ertenng o cew cresit foc 1ylsos note 27, the gefint ors of EBITDA, Borrowrgs Grd Net Dent wers omeraso Corsequerty tre comnormbue va ues hgve

bee~ restated to reflect tre aTengec defin.tiens as reportec to tre oa-<s

Z  Seenote 2 for getals of the orcr oeroa estaterent
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Return on adjusted invested capital

{restoted)
2071 ) S 200
£m % Em % Refererce

Return on adjusted invested capital 23.0% 20.1% see APM
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs after tax 696 540 see APM
Tax rate 202 225% 1468 237% MNote 12 - Earnings per share
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs 298 708 Group Incorme Statement
Adjusted operating profit attributable to non-controlling

interest Gl 0.4 Group Income Statement
Pre-tax share of profits from Vs exe net |AS 41 valuation

rmovement {130} {11.3) Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc JVs 769 60.1 Group Income Statement
Fair value movement on biclogical assets (10.8} 158 Group Income Statement
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (7.4} {8.5) Group Income Statement
Share-based payment expense (77} (5.8 Group Income Statement
Exceptional items (3.3) {19.2) Group Income Statement
Share of post-tax profit of WVs 131 89 Group Income Statement
Finance costs 50 50} Group Income Statement
Profit before tax 558 46.3 Group Income Statement
Tax G0) (10.6) Group Income Statement
Profit 46.8 357 Groug Income Statement
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 498.1 495.5 Group Balance Sheet
Return on invested capital 4% 7.2%

1 See note 2 for detqils of the pnor per od restatement
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GLOSSARY

AGM - Annuat General Meeting.

Artificial insemination (Al — Using semen
collectad from a bull or boar ta
impregnate a cow or sow whan in estrus.
Artificial insemination cliows a genetically
superor male ta be used to mate with
many more females than would be
possible with natural mating

ASF — Africon Swine Fever.

Biosecurity — The precautions taken to
reduce the chance of transmitting disease
agents from one livestock operction to
ancther.

Boar — A male pig.

BRD - Bovine Respirgtory Disease, a
complex, bactenal and viral infection that
causes lung disease in cattle (particularly
calves) and is often fatal.

CPl - Consumer Price Index,

CRISPR-Cas ¢ - Technology which
accurately targets and cuts DNA to
preduce precise and controllable changes
to the genome.

CSR - Corporate Social Responsibility.
DSBP - Deferred Share Bonus Plan.
EPS - Earnings per share.

Farrow — When a sow gives birth 1o
piglets,

GELT - Genus Exacutive Leadership Team.

Gender skew — The ability to influence the
propaortion of offspring being of o
particular sex.

Genetic gain - The change of the genetic
make up of a particutar anmal population
1n response to having selected parents
that excelled genetically for mportant
trais.

Geneticlog - The aomount of time required
o disseminate genetic gain frem a
nucleus herd to the commercial customer

Genetic hucleus — A specialised pig herd,
where Genus PIC keeps its pure ines. Pigs
are genetically tested at the nucleus t©
select the best animals 1o produce the
rnext generation.

Genomic bull ~ A bull which has been
assessed through genomic testing. This
typically refers to pulls which have not
been progeny-tested.

Genomically tested - An animal that has
been DNA profiled

Genomics - The study of the genome,
which is the DNA sequence of an animal’s
chromosomes.
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Gilt - A young female pig, which has not
yet given birth.

GMS - ABS's Genetic Management
Systerm, which creates a genetic solution
tailored to eqch individual dairy producer
to obtain imgproved herd genetics.

Grandparent - The relationship of
breeding pid to the generation of terminal
market pigs. A grondparent produces
parents, who in turn produce the
comrmercial generation of terminal pigs.

Group - Genus plc and its subsidiary
companies.

In vitro fertilisation (IVF'} - The
fertilisation of an cocyte with semen
loutside an animal in a laboratory for
transfer into a surrogate.

Index/indices — A formula incorporating
economically important traits for ranking
the genetic potential of animals as
parents of the next generation.

Integrated pork producer — Producers of
pork typically involved in raising animals 1o
slaughter weight all the way through to
packaged and/cr branded pork products.

IntelliGen — The technology platform used
10 process sexed bovine semen for ABS
and third-party customers and
commercialised by ABS globally as Sexcel.

IP — Intellectual property.

PR - Inter Partes Review before the US
Patent and Trademarks Qffice.

IVB - In Vitro Brasil S A
JV — Joint venture.

Line - Multiple animals that have been
mated together in a closed breeding
populaton. Pure lines can have ther
onging in one founding breed or in several
breeds.

Market pig equivalents ['MPE') - Refers to
a standardized measure of our customers’
production of slaughter animals that
Contain our genetcs with geneés from each
of the sow and boar counting for half of
the animat.

Multiplier - A producer whose farm
contains grandparent sows. The farm
crosses together two lines of
grandparents, muitiplying the number of
geneticolly mproved parents that are
available for sale,

NuEra - The ABS beef breeding
programme and index designed to drive
the customer’s genetic iImprovement and
deliver tatal system profitability for the
beef supply chain

PQA - Pork Quality Assurance.

Progeny tested - Elite animals whose
genefic value as a parent has been tested
and validated through the parformance of
their offspring.

PRRSv - Porcine Reproductive and
Respiratory Syndrome Virus.

PSP - Performance Share Plan.

PTAB — Patent Trial and Appeal Board
before the US Patent and Trademarks
Office.

R&D - Research and development.

RMS - ABS's Repreductive Maonagement
System, which is & systematic approach to
maximising pregnancy production and its
contribution to herd profitability.

RPI - Retail Price index.

RWD - ABS's Rea! World Data System of
cbserved performance data from many
dairy herds.

Sexcel - The ABS brand of sexed bovine
gaenetics preduced using IntelliGen.

Sire — The male parent of an animal,

Sire iine -~ The male line selected for traits
desirable for the market.

Sow — A female pig which has given kirth
at least ance.

Straw - A narrow tube used to package
frozen bull semen.

Stud - Locations where bulls or boars are
housed and their semen collected,
evaluated, diluted into multiple doses/
straws and packaged, ready for shipping
o farms.

Terminal boars - The male pig that is used
to mote with o parent female to produce o
termingl pig.

Trait - A measurable charactenstic that
may be a target for genetic selection.

TransitionRight ~ Genus ABS's patent-
pending genetic selection tool ta heip
prevent multiple post calving metabolic
disorders that occur during transition.

Unit - A straw of frozen bull semen or
wube 'bog of fresh boar semen sold to o
customaer,
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